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2. FINANCIAL STABILITY 

The Contractor must have financial stability to do business with the State of Nebraska for the 
length of the contract. Financial stability will be determined by the State Treasurer based on a 
totality of the circumstances of the firm including, but not limited to, total equity, equity as a 
percent of assets, cash flow, debt coverage ratios, earning, analyst opinions, pending and 
potential lawsuits, regulatory actions taken or pending against the firm, compliance with 
regulatory capital requirements, management stability and other information bearing on the 
question of whether the firm is financially stable at the present time and can reasonably be 
expected to be financially stable through the term of the contract. Bidder must include these 
financials with the proposal response and packaged separately. 

Citi, the leading global bank, has approximately 200 million customer accounts and does business in 
more than 160 countries and jurisdictions. Citi provides consumers, corporations, governments. and 
institutions with a broad range of financial products and services, including consumer banking and 
credit, corporate and investment banking, securities brokerage, transaction services, and wealth 
management. 

Giti ~-.:inancial Sumnmry 

The following table summarizes Citi's key financial measures. 

Total Net Revenues (billions) $76.7 $77.2 $76.4 $69.9 $71.4 $18.9 

Operating Expenses $48.4 $55.1 $43.6 $41.4 $41.2 $10.9 (billions) 

Income/loss from Continuing $13.6 $7.5 $17.4 $15.0 ($6.6) $5.4 $4.6 Operations (billions) 

Net Income/loss (billions) $13.7 $7.3 $17.2 $14.9 ($6.8) $15.8 $4.6 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $4.34 $2.20 $5.40 $4.72 ($2.98) $5.33 $1.68 (Net Income) 

Total Assets (billions) $1.880 $1,842 $1,731 $1,792 $1,843 $1.922 

Deposits (billions) $968.3 $899.3 $907.9 $929.4 $959.8 $1,001.2 

Total Liabilities (billions) $1,674 $1,630 $1,508 $1.566 $1,641 $1,719 

Total Stockholders' Equity $204.0 $210.2 $221 .9 $225.1 $200.7 $201.9 
{billions) 

Common Equity Tier 1 10.57% 10.57% 12.07% 12.57% 12.36% 12.1% 
Capital Ratio 

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 11.23% 11.45% 13.49% 14.24% 14.06% 13.7% 

Total Capital Ratio 12.64% 12.80% 15.30% 16.24% 16.30% 16.0% 

Supplementary Leverage 5.42% 5.94% 7.08% 7.22% 6.68% 6.7% 
Ratio 

Return on Average Assets 0.73% 0.39% 0.95% 0.82% (0.36%) 0.84% 0.98% 

Return on Average Common 7.0% 3.4% 8.1% 6.6% (3.9%) 7.0% 9.7% 
Equity 

Efficiency Ratio 63% 71% 57% 59% 58% 58% 



Book Value per Share $65.12 $66.05 $69.46 $74.26 $70.62 $71.67 

Tangible Book Value per 
$55.19 $56.71 $60.61 $64.57 $60.16 $61.02 Share 

Market Capitalization 
$158 $164 $153 $165 $191 $172 (billions) 

2017 results include the impact from Tax Reform, while 2017 adjusted results exclude the impact from Tax Reform. See Citi's 
2017 Annual Report Form 10-K (!illp://www.ciligroup.comlclli/lnvestor/annual· roports.h!ml) for a summary of Tax Reform and a 
reconciliation of these results, in addition to further information on how Citi's financial measures are calculated. 

NM= Not meaningful 

Capital Base and Liquidity 

Citi is one of the best capitalized financial institutions in the world. Citigroup's book value per share 
was $71.67 and tangible book value per share was $61.02, each as of 01 2018, representing 5% and 
7% decreases, respectively, primarily reflecting the estimated impact of tax reform. Sequentially, book 
value per share and tangible book value per share both increased 1 %. As of 01 2018, Citigroup's 
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital ratio was 12.1 %, down from 12.4% sequentially, due to an 
increase in risk weighted assets driven by loan growth and client activity, as well as the return of 
capital to common shareholders, partially offset by net income. Citigroup's Supplementary Leverage 
Ratio for 01 2018 was 6.7%, unchanged sequentially. During 01 2018, Citigroup repurchased 30 
million common shares and returned a total of $3.1 billion to common shareholders in the form of 
common share repurchases and dividends. 

Please refer to Citi's SEC filings (hllp://www.cltigroup.com/citi/lrwestor/sec.htm) for additional information on how Citigroup Inc. 
capital ratios were calculated. 

Capital Requirements and Ratios 

Citi has maintained capital ratios in excess of regulatory requirements for a number of years, which 
has allowed the firm to consistently reinvest in operating business lines. 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 

Total Capital Ratio 

Supplementary Leverage Ratio 

As of March 31, 201 B 

-

6.7% 

Please refer to Citi's SEC filings (http://www.ci liqroup.com/cili/investor/sec.htm) for additional information on how Citigroup Inc. 
capital ratios were calculated. 

Litigation 

From time to time, Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup) and/or certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries are the 
subject of inquiries and investigations conducted by federal or state regulatory agencies. Citigroup 
routinely cooperates with such investigations. In addition, in the ordinary course of business. 
Citigroup and/or certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries are involved in a number of civil legal 
proceedings and arbitration proceedings. As a public company, Citigroup files periodic reports with 
the SEC, as required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which include current descriptions of 
material regulatory proceedings, investigations and litigations, if any, concerning Citigroup and/or 
certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries. 



Please refer to the periodic reports describing such material events at 
http://www.citigroup.com/citi/investor/sec.htm. 

Investigations by Regulators 

From time to time, Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup) and/or certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries are the 
subject of inquiries and investigations conducted by federal or state regulatory agencies. Citigroup 
routinely cooperates with such investigations. In addition, in the ordinary course of business, 
Citigroup and/or certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries are involved in a number of civil legal 
proceedings and arbitration proceedings. As a public company, Citigroup files periodic reports with 
the SEC, as required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which include current descriptions of 
material regulatory proceedings, investigations and litigations, if any, concerning Citigroup and/or 
certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries. 

~ Please refer to the periodic reports describing such material events at 
.,..-., http://www.Citigroup.com/ citi/investor/sec.htm. 

The bidder must be a bank licensed to do business in the State of Nebraska and of approved 
standing and responsibility pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 77-2387(2). The bidder must 
provide financial statements applicable to the firm. If publicly held, the bidder must provide a 
copy of the corporation's most recent audited financial reports and statements, and the name, 
address, and telephone number of the fiscally responsible representative of the bidder's 
financial or banking organization. 

Citibank, NA is a wholly owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc., which is the parent company and a 
registered bank holding company and financial holding company listed on the NYSE (C) and other 
principal international stock exchanges. 

While we are not licensed in the State of Nebraska, Citibank, NA is chartered as a National 
Association bank under the U.S. National Bank Act and is allowed to do business anywhere within the 
United States. 

For a copy of Citi's most recent audited financial report, please refer to the attached Appendix - Citi 
2017 Financial Report. 

If the State has any questions regarding Citi's financial statements, you can contact your proposed 
program Account Manager, Marykay Casey. 

Marykay Casey 
Account Manager - Vice President 
Colorado, US 
1 (303) 308-3166 
marykay.casey@citi.com 

If the bidder is not a publicly held corporation, either the reports and statements required of a 
publicly held corporation, or a description of the organization, including size, longevity, client 
base, areas of specialization and expertise, and any other pertinent information, must be 
submitted in such a manner that proposal evaluators may reasonably formulate a 
determination about the stability and financial strength of the organization. Additionally, a 
non-publicly held firm must provide a banking reference. 

Not applicable. Citi is a publicly traded company. Please see the preceding section for information 
regarding Citi's financial standing. 



The bidder must disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other real 
or potential financial reversals, which might materially affect the viability or stability of the 
organization, or state that no such condition is known to exist. 

From time to time, Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup) and/or certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries are the 
subject of inquiries and investigations conducted by federal or state regulatory agencies. Citigroup 
routinely cooperates with such investigations. In addition, in the ordinary course of business. 
Citigroup and/or certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries are involved in a number of civil legal 
proceedings and arbitration proceedings. As a public company, Citigroup files periodic reports with 
the SEC. as required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which include current descriptions of 
material regulatory proceedings, investigations and litigations, if any, concerning Citigroup and/or 
certain of its affiliates and subsidiaries. 

A. Please refer to the periodic reports describing such material events at 
~ http://wwl/'!..Citigroup.com/cili/investor/sec.htm. 

Citi does not foresee any litigation, pending or otherwise, affecting the company or our ability to 
deliver the best commercial card solution to the State. 
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Region NA 
Currency United States Dollar 

Tier 8 
Tier 3 

State of Nebraska 

Total Revenue $501,697 

Average Days to Pay 30 days 

Contract Term 5 Years 

Sales $94,000,000 (bps) 

Blended Interchange Revenue 2,214,554 236 

FX Markup Revenue 26,895 3 

FX Passthrough Revenue 17,930 2 
Late Fees /ATM Fees 0 0 

Annual Fee 0 0 

Gross Revenue $2,259,379 240 

Rebate (1.491,133) (159) 

Cost of Funds (266,548) (28) 

Association Support (ROW) 0 

Signing Bonus 0 0 

Total Contra-Revenue (1,757,681) (187) 

Net Revenue $501,697 53 

FX Passthrough Expense (17,930) (2) 

Association Support (NA) 42,300 5 

Association Fees (18,800) (2) 

Systems & Reporting (49,519) (5) 
Cards, Statements, Payments (6,095) ( 1) 

Insurances (32) 0 

Fraud (18,800) (2) 

Other Variable Expenses (1,350) 0 

Variable Expenses (70,226} (7) 

Client Specific Expenses (20,140) (2) 
Variable Margin $411,331 44 

Implementation (17,062) (2) 

Ops & Customer Service (79,698) (8) 

Other Direct, Technology, Sales (97,995) (10) 

Direct Controllable (194,755) (21) 

Direct Controllable Margin $216,577 23 
Allocations (92,275) (10) 

Full Margin $124,302 13 



: Commercial Cards P&L NA 

Net Revenue & Spend by Product 
Product Spend Net Revenue 

T&E $3,000,000 $60,673 
CTA $0 $0 

Peard $88,000,000 $377,395 
VCA $3,000,000 $63,629 

One Card $0 $0 



$14,000,000 
$26,857,143 116 1.16% 
$39,714,286 129 $513,514 1.29% 
$52,571,429 143 $753,029 1.43% 

$73,610,390 147 $1,083,574 1.47% 

$94,649,351 156 $1,471,938 1.56% 

$115,688,312 163 $1,881,932 1.63% 

$136,727,273 167 $2,277,818 $2,277,818 1.67% 
$157,766,234 168 $2,647,288 $2,647,288 1.68% 
$178,805,195 170 $3,036,010 $3.036,010 1.70% 
$199,844,156 172 $3,435,184 $3,435,!84 1.72% 
$220,883,117 174 $3,844,810 $3,844,810 1.74% 
$241,922,078 176 $4,250,660 $4,250,660 1.76% 
$262.961,039 177 $4,664,790 $4,664,790 1.77% 
$284,000,000 179 $5,075,200 $5,075,200 1.79% 

l) Providing a Sign On greater than 2% of volume on any tier 
2) Offering a Sign On for a Startup program 
3) Offering a Sign On for a Public Sector Client 
4) Changing the SO for a client with an ORR of less than S-
5) Any Additional Volume Incentive (kicker) is included 

Spend TCI @Obp FM 
$ 5,000,000 91 
$ 10,000,000 116 
$ 15,000,000 125 
$ 20,000,000 131 

s 30,000,000 142 

$ 40,000,000 151 

s 50,000,000 157 

s 60,000,000 164 

s 75,000,000 169 

s 100,000,000 174 

s 150,000,000 180 
s 200,000,000 184 

s 250,000,000 187 

s 350,000,000 191 
$ 500,000,000 193 



$1,000,000 
$2,000,000 0.00% 
$3,000,000 13 $3,900 $3,900 0.13% 
$4,000,000 61 $24,400 $24,400 0.61% 
$9,090,909 96 $87,273 $87,273 0.96% 

$14,181,818 124 $175,855 $175,855 1.24% 
$19,272,727 136 $262,109 $262,109 1.36% 
"--" .... ,.'"' t;.._,,.. ..>£<+1..>u.:1, 0.:io 146 $355,709 $355,709 1.46% 
$29,454,545 149 $438,873 $438,873 1.49% 
$34,545,455 152 $525,091 $525,091 1.52% 
$39,636,364 155 $614,36'1 $614,364 1.55% 
$44,727,273 158 $706,691 $706,691 1.58% 
$49,818,182 161 $802.073 $802,073 1.61% 
$54,909,091 164 $900,509 $900,509 1.64% 
$60,000,000 166 $996,000 $996,000 1.66% 

$1,000,000 
$2,000.000 
$3,000,000 13 $3,900 $3,900 0.13% 
$4,000.000 61 $24.400 $24,400 0.61% 
$9,090,909 96 $87,273 $87,273 0.96% 

$14,181,818 124 $175,855 $175,855 1.24% 
$19,272,727 136 $262,109 $262, 109 1.36% 
$24,363,636 146 $355,709 $355,709 1.46% 
$29,454,545 149 $438,873 $438,873 1.49% 
$34,545.455 152 $525,091 $525,091 1.52% 
$39,636,364 155 $614,364 $614,364 1.55% 
$44,727,273 158 $706,691 $706,691 1.58% 
$49,818,182 161 $802,073 $802,073 1.61% 
$54,909,091 164 $900,509 $900,509 1.64% 
$60,000,000 166 $996,000 $996,000 1.66% 



$145,200 
$310,857 $310,857 1.36% 

$33,714,286 $505,714 $505,714 1.50% 
$111,571,429 158 $704,229 $704,229 1.58% 
$55,428,571 164 $909,029 $909,029 1.64% 
$66,285,714 169 $1,120,229 $1,120,229 1.69% 
$77,142,857 176 $1,357,714 $1.357,714 1.76% 
$88,000.000 178 $1,566.400 $1,566,400 1.78% 
$98,857,143 179 $1,769,543 $1,769,543 1.79% 

$109, 71.4,286 181 $1,985,829 $1,985,829 1.81% 

$120,571.429 183 $2,206,1157 $2,206,457 1.83% 
$131,428,571 185 $2,431,429 SL,431,429 1.85% 
$142,285,714 186 $2,646,514 $2,646,514 1.86% 
$153,142,857 187 $2,863,771 $2,863,771 1.87% 

$164,000,000 188 $3,083,200 $3,083,200 1.88% 



Client Name 
Salesperson 

CRMIO 
GFl>ID 

Industry 

Request Type 
Cont.,,,t length 

lnc:umbent 
T&E Liabilitv 
T&EBilling 

T&EP,ym-,nt 

. .. 
T&E 

P-Card 
VCA 

Onecard 

' 
30 
30 

30 
30 

Rob Robbins/Ma .. r~n 8ilb<e1 
1-l&NlCIE 

l<Xl0295961--

Public Sector 
RFP 
s 

L.5.Bank 
c~~orate 

Central 
C4!ntral 

• 
30 I T/er3 
30 I Til!f8 
30 I Tte,3 
25 Exdude 

This is a new proSPect Purchase ~,d opportunity. The State, unr¥ersity system and 
polysubs •~ able to participate .. nder the a,ntract. Currently thue are 19 po!ysubs 

participaUng. 

U.S. T&E M>J1..C..rd IConv~n 
U.S. P.C.rd M3.nerc.atd I ::otivcrslon 
U.S. VCA M31tertArd !Conversion 

=••HiiiiiE= 
Globo ' 

Cash Access Yes 
%C31hAccess 0.00% 

CTA No 
%CTASpend 0.00% 

% Meeting & Events o.~ • 

' 
I MasterCard 
I MasterCard 
I Mo,rerCard 
I Visa 

4+ 

C..ntrof 0.01991 15L63Jl9Sll o.olSI OJNo 
0,01991 S00.9S'.9i)S36I 9~15 •!ll.."- Jv .. S.00%1 0.50%1 
0.01991 1821.26] O.O!S! -!lJ..A !No 5.00%1 0.50%1 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF 
THE SECURCTIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2017 

Commission file number 1-9924 

Citigroup Inc. 
(Exact name or registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 52-1568099 
(State or other jurisd'ction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10013 
(Address of principal executive ofticcs) (Zip code) 

(212) 559-1000 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (l) hns filed all repo,·ts 1·equired to he filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (01· for such shorter period that the registrant was required to tile such reports), and (2) has 
•ccn subject to such tiling requirements for the pnst 90 days. Yes IRl No D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive 
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such tiles). Yes r&l No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a lal'ge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting, or 
an emerging growth company. Sec the definitions of "large accelerated tiler," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company" and 
"emer·ging growth company" in Rule 12h-2 of the ~xchange Act. 

Large accelerated filer IRl Accelerated tiler 0 Non-accelerated filer 0 
(Do not check if a smaller 

reporting company) 

Smaller reporting company 0 
Emerging growth company 0 

If an erneq~ing growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to usc the extended transition period for comtllying 
with any new 01· revised financial accounting standards provided pursunnt to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. Yes D 

Indicate by check mark whether the 1·cgistrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes D No IX! 

Number of shares of Citigroup Inc. common stock outstanding on March 31, 2017: 2,753,257,797 

Available on the web at www.citigroup.com 
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OVERVIEW 

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in 
conjunction wid1 Citigroup's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
he year ended December 31, 2016 {2016 Annual Report on 
rorm 10-K). 

Additional information about Citigroup is available on 
Cifi's website at www.citig.roup.com. Citigroup's recent 
annual repo1ts on Form 10-K, quaiterly rcpo11s on Form 10-Q, 
proxy statements, as well as other filings with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), are available 
free of charge through Citi's website by clicking on the 
"Investors" page and selecting "All SEC Filings." The SEC's 
website also contains current reports on Form 8-K, 
information statements and other information regarding Citi at 
www.sec.gov. 

Ce1tain reclassifications, including a realignment of 
certain businesses, have been made to the prior periods' 
financial statements and disclosures to conform to the current 
period's presentation. For additional information on certain 
recent reclassifications, see Note 3 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Throughout this report, "Citigroup," "Citi" and "the 
Company" refer to Citigroup Inc. and its consolidated 
subsidiaries. 
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Citigroup is managed pursuant to the following segments: 

CITJC;ROUP SEGI\1ENTS 

I I 
Global Institutional 

Consu1ner Clients Corporate/ 
Banking Group Other* 
(GCB) (ICG) 

• North Amcrka • Banking • Trcast1r~· 
• L:,tin America - Investment banking • Operations and 
• Asial•l - Treasury and trade tcchnoJogy 

solutions • Global shd'f functions 
Consisting of: 

- Corporntc lending ,rnd other corporate 
• Retail Banking & 

- Private bank expenses 
\:Vealth Ma1rngement. 

\1arl,ets and " Legacy non-core assc,ts: 
including • 

securities services - Consumer loans 
- Local snrnll business 
banking and cummcrci;:il - Fixed income markets - Certain ink:rnational 

banking - Equity markets consumer portfolios and 

- Rcsidcntinl rent estate - Securities services businesses 

- Asset marrngement in - Certain portfolios of 
Latin America securities, loans nnd 

• Citi-bnrndcd cards in nil other nsscts 

regions • Discontinued operations 

• Citi retail services in 
North America 

The following arc the four regions in which Citigroup operates. The regional results are fully retlcctcd in the segment results 
above. 

CITIGROUP REGIONS 121 

I 

I I I I 
Europe, 

North Middle East 
II 

Latin America 
11 

II America and Africa Asia 

(EMEA) 

* As previously announced, the remaining businesses and portlolios of assels in C:i!i I Joi dings are now re11oi'ted as par( of' Corporate/Other for all periods presented 
and Citi Holdings is 110 longer a separately reported husincss segment. Por additional information, see Note 3 to the Consolidated Fimmc;ial Statements below. 

(I) Asia GCR includes the results of operations of UC:fi activities in ccriain EMEA countries for all periods presented. 
(2) North A111erica indudes the U.S., Canada and Puerto Rico, !.atin America indudes :'v1exico and Asia includes .Japan. 

3 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

First Quarter of 2017-Solid Performance Across the 
Franchise 
As described forther throughout this executive summary, Citi's 
first quarter of 2017 results of operations mark a significant 
improvement compared to the prior-year period as many 
businesses bcnefitted from continued momentum from lhe end 
of last year. Citi increased revenues in both Global Consumer 
/Janking (GCB) and Institutional Clients Group (JCG), while 
continuing to wind down the legacy assets in Corporate/Other 
and maintaining expense discipline. Citi also continued to 
make targeted investments to drive revenue growth and 
improve returns in several businesses, including in equities, 
Citi-branded cards and Mexico. 

In GCB, the North America credit card business continued 
lo benelit from the acquisition of the Costco portfolio, while 
mortgage revenues were lower reflecting the impact of the 
higher rate environment on origination activity, as well as the 
impact of the previously announced sale of a portion of Citi's 
U.S. mortgage servicing rights, as pa1t of Citi's exit of its U.S. 
mortgage servicing operations. International CJCB generated 
positive operating leverage driven by year-over-year revenue 
growth in Mexico and Asia, excluding the impact of foreign 
currency translation into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes 
(FX translation). JCG showed broad-based momentum, with 
·evenue growth in fixed income and equity markets, treasuiy 
,md trade solutions, investment banking and the private bank. 
These increases in revenues were partially offset by lower 
revenues in Corporate/Other, reflecting the continued wind 
down of legacy assets, prutially offset by cerLain gains on asset 
sales, including the sales of the consumer finance business in 
Canada and the consumer business in Argentina. 

Citi also continued to generate significant regulatory 
capital during the quarter through a combination of earnings 
and the utilization of approximately $800 million in dererrcd 
tax assets {DTAs) (for additional information, see "Income 
Taxes" below). Citi generated approximately $5.5 billion in 
regulatory capital during the quarter, before returning 
approximately $2.2 billion to its common shareholders in the 
form of common stock repurchases and dividends. 
Outstanding common shares declined I% from the prior 
qua1ter and 6% from the prior-year period. Despite the return 
of capital to its shareholders, each or Citigroup's key 
regulatory capital metrics remained strong as of the end of the 
first quarter of2017 (see "Capital" below). 

While economic sentiment has improved, there continue 
to be various economic and political u11certainties and changes 
thal could impact Citi's businesses, including as a result of, 
among others, potential policy changes arising from the U.S. 
presidential administration and Congress as well as the U.K.'s 
initiation of the process to withdraw from the European 
Jnion. for a more detailed discussion of these risks and 
uncertainties, see each respective business's results of 
operations and "forward-Looking Statements" below, as well 
as each respective business' results of operations and the 

4 

"Managing Global Risk" and "Risk Factors" sections in Citi's 
2016 Annual Report on fo1m 10-K. 

First Quarter of 2017 Summary Results 

Citigroup 
Citigroup reported net income of$4. l billion, or $1.35 per 
share, compared to $3.5 billion, or$ I. IO per share, in the 
prior-year period. The 17% increase in net income from the 
prior-year period was primarily driven by higher revenues and 
lower credit costs, as expenses remained largely unchanged. 

Citigroup revenues of$18. I billion in the first quarter of 
2017 increased 3%, driven by a 16% increase in !CG, as well 
as a I% increase in GCB, partially offset by a 40% decrease in 
Corporate/Other due primarily to the continued wind down of 
legacy assets. 

Citigroup's end-or-period loans increased 2% to $629 
billion versus the prior-year period. Excluding the impact of 
FX translation, Citigroup\ end-of-period loans also grew 2%, 
as 8% growth in GCB and 3% growth in /CG were pa1tially 
offset by the continued wind down or legacy assets in 
Corporate/Other. (Citi's results of operations excluding the 
impact of FX translation are non-GAAP financial measures.) 
Citigroup's end-of-period deposits increased 2% to $950 
billion versus the prior-year period. Excluding the impact of 
fX translation, Citigroup's deposits were up 3%, driven by a 
4% increase in GCB deposits and a 3% increase in /CG 
deposits, slighrly offset by a decline in Corporate/Other 
deposits. 

Expenses 
Citigroup's operating expenses were largely unchanged versus 
the prior-year period, as the impact of higher performance­
related compensation and higher business volumes were offset 
by lower repositioning costs and a benefit from FX translation, 
as investments were largely funded through efficiency savings. 
Year-over-year, GCIJ operating expenses were largely flat, 
JC(J operating expenses increased I% and Corporate/Otha 
operating expenses declined 11 %. 

Cost of Credit 
Citi's total provisions for credit losses and for benefits and 
claims of $1.7 billion decreased 19% from the prior-year 
period. The decrease was driven by a net loan loss reserve 
release in /CG compared to a net loan loss reserve build driven 
by energy-related exposures in the prior-year period and a 
decline in the provision for benefits and claims, as well as a 
modest decline in net credit losses. 

Net credit losses of$1.7 billion declined 1% versus the 
prior-year period. Consumer net credit losses of $1.7 billion 
increased 10%, driven by the Costco portfolio acquisition, 
organic volume growth and seasoning, as well as the impact of 
changes in collection processes in North America cards, 
pa1tially offset by the continued wind down of legacy assets in 
Corporate/Other. Corporate net credit losses decreased $173 



million lo $37 million, driven by improvement in the energy 
sector. 

For additional infonnation on Citi's consumer and 
corporate credit costs and allowance for loan losses, sec 
"Credit Risk" below. 

Capil(t/ 
Citigroup's Tier 1 Capital and Common Equity Tier I Capital 
ratios, on a fully implemented basis, were 14.5% and 12.8% as 
of March 31, 2017, respectively, compared to 13.8% and 
12.3% as or March 31, 2016 (all based on the Basel Ill 
Advanced Approaches for determining risk-weighted assets). 
Citigroup\ Supplementary Leverage ratio as of March 31, 
2017, on a fully implemented basis, was 7.3%, compared to 
7 .4% as of March 3 J, 2016. For additional information on 
Citi's capital ratios and related components, including the 
impact ofCiti's DTAs on its capital ratios, see "Capital 
Resources" below. 

Global Consumer Bankhig 
GCB net income decreased 16% to $1.0 billion, as higher 
revenues were more than offse! by higher cost of credit. 
Operating expenses were largely !lat at $4.4 billion, as the 
addition of the Costco portfolio, volume growth and continued 
investments were offset by ongoing efficiency savings, lower 
repositioning costs and a benefit from FX translation. 

GC8 revenues of$7.8 billion increased 1 % versus the 
prior-year period. Excluding the impact of FX translation, 
GC/J revenues increased 3%, driven hy increases in North 
America GCB, Latin America GCB and Asia GCB. North 
America GCB revenues increased 2% to $4.9 billion, as higher 
revenues in Citi-branded cards were pai1ially offset by lower 
revenues in retail banking and Citi retail services. Citi­
hranded cards revenues of $2.1 billion were up 13% versus tl1e 
prior-year period, reflecting tl1e contribution from the Costco 
portfolio and modest organic growth, partially offset by tl1e 
ongoing impact of higher promotional rate balances. Citi retail 
services revenues of $1.6 billion decreased 5% versus the 
prior-year period, driven by the ahscnce of gains on sales of 
two cards po11folios sold in the lir.st qua,ter nf2016. Retail 
banking revenues decreased 3% from the prior-year period, 
mainly driven by lower morlgage revenues. Excluding 
mortgage, retail banking revenues were up 5% from the prior­
year period, driven by continued growth in average loans, 
deposits and assets under management. 

North /Jmericu GCB average deposils of $186 billion 
were up 3% versus the prior-year period, average retail loans 
of$55 billion grew 5%, and assets under management of$55 
billion grew 12%. Average branded card loans or $83 billion 
increased 28%, while branded card purchase sales of$73 
billion increased 58% versus the prior-year period, both driven 
by the Costco po11folio acquisition as well as organic growth. 
Average retail services loans of $45 billion were up 3%, while 
retail .services purchase sales of$17 billion were largely 
unchanged. For additional information on the results of 
operations of North America GCB for the first quai1er of 2017, 
sec "Global Consumer Banl<inK North America GCB" below. 

International UCB revenues (consisting of /,atinAmerica 
GCB and Asia GCB (which includes the results of operations 
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in certain J:;MJ<;A countries)) were largely unchanged at $2.9 
billion versus the prior-year period. Excluding the impact of 
FX translation, international CJCB revenues increased 3% 
versus the prior-year period. Latin America GCB revenues 
increased 4% versus the prior-year period, driven by 8% 
growth in retail banking, reflecting continued growth in 
average loans and deposits as well as improved deposit 
spreads, partially offset by lower cards revenues. Asia GCB 
revenues increased 3% versus the prior-year period, driven by 
improvement in cards and wealth management, partially offset 
by lower retail lending revenues. For additional information 
on the results of' operations of Latin America GCB and Asia 
GCB for the first quarter of 2017, including the impact of FX 
translation, see "Global Consumer Banking" below. 

Year-over-year, international GCB average deposits of 
$118 hi Ilion increased 6%, average retail loans of $83 billion 
decreased 3%, assets under management of $92 billion 
increased 4%, average card loans of$23 billion increased 3% 
and card purchase sales of $23 billion increased 5%, all 
excluding the impact of FX translation. 

lustitutiomll Clients Group 
!CG net income of $3.0 billion increased 61 %, driven by the 
higher revenues and lower cosl or credit, pa11ially offset by 
higher operating expenses. /CG operating expenses increased 
1 % to $4.9 billion, as higher performance-based compensation 
was partially offset by lower repositioning costs and a benefit 
from FX translation. 

/CG revenues were $9.1 billion in the first qua11er of 
2017, up 16% from the prior-year period, driven by an 18% 
increase in Markets and securities services revenues and a 
13% increase in Banking revenues (including the impact of 
$115 million of mark-to-market losses on loan hedges related 
to accrual loans within corporate lending compared to losses 
of' $66 m ii lion in the prior-year period). 

/Jonking revenues of$4.5 billion (excluding the impact of 
mark-to-market losses on hedges related to accrual loans 
within corporate lending) increased 14% compared to the 
prior-year period, driven by strong performance in investment 
hanking, treasury and trade solutions and the private bank. 
Investment banking revenues or $1.2 billion increased 39% 
versus the prior-year period. Advisory revenues increased 8% 
to $246 million versus tl1e prior-year period. Debt 
underwriting revenues increased 39% to $733 million and 
equity underwriting revenues nearly doubled to $235 million. 

Private bank revenues increased 9% to $744 million 
versus the prior-year period, driven by loan and deposit 
growth and improved spreads. Corporate lending revenues 
decreased 16% lo $319 mill ion. Excluding tl1e mark-to­
market impact of loan hedges, corporate lending revenues 
decreased 3% to $434 million versus the prior-year period due 
to lower average volumes. Treasury and trade solutions 
revenues increased 9% to $2.1 billion versus the prior-year 
period, driven by strong fee growth, higher volumes and 
improved spreads. 



Markets and securities services revenues increased 18% 
to $4.8 billion versus the prior-year period. Fixed income 
markets revenues increased 19% lo $3 .6 billion versus the 
prior-year period, reflecling strength in both rates and 
:urrencies as well as spread pi·oducts. Equity markets revenues 
increased I 0% to $769 million versus the prior-year period, 
reflecting an improvement in equity derivatives. Securities 
services revenues decreased 3% to $543 million versus the 
prior-year period, largely due to the impact of prior-period 
divestitures. Excluding the divestitures, securities services 
revenues increased 12%, driven by higher deposit balances 
and growth in assets under custody. For additional 
information on the results of operations of JCCJ for the first 
quarter of'2017, see "Institutional Clients Group" below. 

Corporttte!Other 
Corporate/Other net income was $92 million in the first 
qua11er of 2017, compared to net income of$450 million in 
the prior-year period, reflecting lower revenues, partially 
offset by lower operating expenses and lower cost of credit. 
Expenses of $1. l billion declined 11 % from the prior-year 
period, primarily driven by the wind-down of legacy assets, 
partially offset by approximately $100 million of episodic 
expenses primarily related to the exit ofCiti's U.S. mm1gage 
servicing operations. 

Corporate/Other revenues were $1.2 billion, down 40% 
from the prior-year period, driven by legacy asset run-off and 
divestiture activity, as well as lower revenues from treasury­
related hedging activity. Revenues in the first quarter of2017 
included nearly $750 million of episodic gains on asset sales, 
)artially offset by an approximate $300 million charge related 
to the exit of the U.S. mot1gage servicing operalions. For 
additional information on the results of operations or 
Corporate/Other for the first qua11er of 2017, see "Corporate/ 
Other" below. 

Corporate/Other end-of-period assets decreased 23% to 
$96 billion from the prior-year period as Citi continued to 
wind down the legacy assets. 
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RESlJLTS OF OPERATIONS 

SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA-PAGE 1 

Citigroup inc. and Consolidated Suhsidiaries 

First Quarter 

In millions ofdo/lars. except per-share amounts and ratios 2017 2016 % Change 

Net interest revenue $ 10,857 $ 11,227 (J)'Yo 

Non-interest revenue 7,263 6,328 15 

Revenues, net of interest expense $ 18,120 $ 17,555 3% 
Operating expenses 10,477 10,523 

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims 1,662 2,045 (19) 

Income fro1t1 continuing operations before income faxes $ 5,981 $ 4,987 20 % 

Income taxes 1,863 1,479 26 

Income from continuing operations $ 4,))8 $ 3,508 17 % 

lncomc (lossi from discontinued operations, 
net of taxes '1 (18) (2) NM 

Net income before attribution of noncontrolling 
interests $ 4,IOO $ 3,506 17 %, 

Net income attributable to nom:ontrolling interests lO 5 100 
Citigrou~\'S net income $ 4,090 $ 3,501 17% 

l,ess: 

Preferred dividends-Basic $ 301 $ 210 43 % 

Dividends and undistributed earnings allocated to employee restricted and deferred shares that contain 
nonforfoilablc rights to dividends, applicable to basic EPS 55 40 38 

Income allocated to unrestricted common shareholders 
for basic and diluted EPS $ 3,734 $ 3,251 15 % 

t.arnings per share 

Basic 

Income from continuing operations $ 1.36 $ 1.11 23 
Net income 1.35 1. to 23 
Diluted 

Income from continuing operations $ 1.36 $ I. II 23 'Yo 

Net income 1.35 1.10 23 
Dividends declared per common sh:we 0.16 0.05 NM 

Statement continues on the next page, including notes to the table. 
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SUMMAR\' OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA-PAGE 2 

Citigroup Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

First Quarter 

In milfions of dollars, e.xcr:pt per-share amounts, ralio., and 
direct slajf 2017 2016 % Change 

At March 31: 

Total assets $1,821,635 $1,800,967 1% 

Total deposits 949,990 934,591 2 

I ,ong-term debt 208,530 207,R35 

Citigroup common stockholders' equity 208,879 209,769 

Total Citigroup stm.:khol<lers' equity 218,132 227,522 

Direct staff (in thousands) 215 225 (4) 

Performance metrics 

Return on average assets 0.91% 0.79% 

Return on average common stockholders' equityf2> 7.4 6.4 

Return on average total stockholders' cquityC2l 7.3 6.3 

Efficiency ratio (Total 011erating expcnsesrfotal revenues) 58 60 
Basel Ill ratios-full implementation 

Common Equity Tier I Capital()) 12.83% 12.34% 

Tier I Capita1C3> 14.49 13.81 

Total Capita1<3l 16.54 15.71 

Supplementary Leverage ratiol4
l 7.28 7.44 

Citigroup common stockholders' equity lo assets 11.47% 11.65% 

Total Citigroup stockholders' equity to assets 12.52 12.63 

Dividend payout ratio(~) 11.9 4.5 

Total payout ratio<6l 59% 44% 

Book value per common share $ 75.86 $ 71.47 6% 

Tangible hook value (TBV) per sharc11l $ 65.94 $ 62.58 5% 

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and prctcrrcd stock dividend~ 2.Slx 2.54x 

(I) Sec Note 2 to the Consolidated Finm1cial Statements for additional information on Citi'.~ discontinuetl operntions. 
(2) The rclllrn on average common stockholders' e<1uity is calculated using net i11comc less prefeired stock dividends divided by «1vernge common stockholders' 

equity. The return on avc1age 101111 Citigroup stockholders' equity is calculated using net income divided by avernge Citigroup stockholders' equity. 
(3) Citi's regulatory capital ratios reflect full imple,m:ntation of the U.S. Rascl Ill rules. Risk-weighted assets are based on the Basel III Advanced Approaches for 

dclcrmining total risk-weighted assets. 
(4) Cili's Supplementary I .cvcragc 1atio reflects full implementation of the U.S. Rase! Ill rules. 
(S) Dividends declared per common share as a percentage of net income per diluted share. 
(6) Total common dividends declared plus common stock repurchases .is a percentage of net income available to common shareholders. See "Consolidated 

Statement ol'Changcs in Stockholders' Equity", Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and "Equity Security Repurchases" below for the 
component details. 

(7) For information 011 TRV, sec "Capital Resources ·-Tangible Common Equity, Book Value Per Share, Tangihlc Book Value Per Share and Returns on Equity" 
below. 
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SEGMENT AND BUSINESS-1.NCOME (LOSS)AND REVENUES 

CITIGROUP INCOME 

In millions ofdoflars 

Income from continuing operations 

G/oha/ Consumer Banking 

North America 

Latin America 

Asii11 

Total 

lnstitutio1111f Clients Group 

North America 

EMEA 

Latin America 

Asia 

Total 

Corporate/Other 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 

Citigroup's net income 

( l) Asia GCR includes the results of operations of CiCR activities in certain EM!:;A countries fo1 all periods presented. 
NM Not mcaningfol 

9 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

First Quarter 

2017 2016 '1o Change 

627 $ 833 (25)% 

130 146 (11) 

246 215 14 

1,003 $ 1,194 (16)% 

1,100 $ 546 NM 
855 374 NM 
475 330 44 

581 619 (6) 

3,011 $ 1,869 61 % 

104 445 (77)% 
4,118 $ 3,508 17 % 

(18) $ (2) NM 

10 5 100 % 

4,090 $ 3,501 17 o;., 



CITIGROUP REVENUES 

First Qu.irtea· 

In millions ,if dollars 2017 2016 % Change 

Global Con:mmer Banking 

North America $ 4,944 $ 4,830 2% 

/,atin ilmerica 1,151 1,229 (6) 

Asia('! 1,722 1,655 4 

Total $ 7,817 $ 7,714 1% 

Institution"/ Clients Group 

North America $ 3,455 $ 2,91W 16% 

EMEA 2,807 2,167 30 

Latin America 1,127 962 17 

Asia 1,737 l,786 (3) 

Total $ 9,126 $ 7,895 16% 

Cmporate/Other 1,177 1,946 (40) 

Total Citigroup Net Revenues $ 18,)20 $ 17,555 3% 

(I) Asia GCB inclu<lt:s lhe rt:sults ofopt:rnlions ofCCB activities in certain HMl-.il countries for all reriods presented. 
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SEGMENT BALANCE SHEET<1i 

Citigroup 

Corporate/Other 
J>aa·ent company-
issued long-term 

Global Institutional and debt and Total 
Consumer Clients consolidatin&, stockholders' Citigroup 

In millions of dollars Banking Group elim inations cquityf3l consolidated 

Assets 

Cash and deposits with banks $ 9,371 $ 64,322 $ 106,352 $ - $ 180,045 

Federal funds sold an<l securities 
borrowed or purchased under 
agreements to resell 302 242,241 386 242,929 

Trading account assets 6,512 235,799 2,592 244,903 

Investments 11,172 112,252 222,409 345,833 

Loa11s, net of unearned income and 

tt.llowancc for loan losses 282,90) 305,404 28,260 616,565 

Other assets 38,422 94,798 58,140 191,360 

Liquidity assets<4l 63,128 259,291 (322,419) 

Total assets $ 411,808 $ 1,314,107 $ 95,720 $ $ 1,821,635 

Liabilities and equity 

'l\ital deposits $ 311,383 $ 619,513 $ 19,094 $ - $ 949,990 

rcdcraJ funds purchased and 
securities loaned or sold under 
agreements lo repurchase 3,597 144,624 9 148,230 

Trading accou11t liabilities 24 143,464 582 144,070 

Short-term borrowings 578 19,299 6,250 26,127 
Long-term dcbt(J) 1,225 32,739 32,940 141,626 208,530 

Other liabilities 17,811 77,000 20,724 llS,535 

Net inter-segment funding (lendingf> 77,190 277,468 15,100 (369,758) 

Total liabilities $ 411,808 $ 1,314,107 $ 94.699 $ (228,132) $ 1,592,482 

Total equity151 1,021 228,132 229,153 

Total Jiubilities and equity $ 411,808 $ l.,314,I07 $ 95,720 $ $ 1,821,635 

([) The supplemental information presented in the table above rellec.:ls Citigroup's consolidated 0/\J\I' balance sheet hy reporting segment as oJ'Mareh JI, 2017. 
The respective segment information depicts 1hc assets and liabilities managed by each segment as of such date. 

(2) Consolidating eliminations for total Citigroup and Ci!igroup p~rent comp11ny assets and liabilities are recorded within Co1porate!01her. 
(3) The total stockholders' equity and the majority ol'long-1enn debt of Citigroup reside in the Citigroup rarent company Consolidated Ralance Shee!. Citigroup 

allocates stockholders' equity a11d long-term debt to i!s busim:sses through inter-segment allocations as shown above. 
(4) Represents tile attribution ofCitigroup's liq11idity assets (primarily consisting of cash and available-for-sale securities) to the various businesses based on 

Liquidity Coverngc Ratio (J .CR) assumptions. 
(5) Corporme!Other equity represents no11comrolling i11teresls. 
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GLOBAL CONSUMER BANKING 

Global Consumer Banking (GC/J) consists of consumer banking businesses in North America, Latin America (consisting or Ci ti's 
consumer banking business in Mexico) and Asia. GCB provides traditional banking services to retail customers through retail hanking, 
including commercial banking, and Citi-branded cards and Citi retail services (for additional information on these businesses, sec 
"Citigroup Segments" above). GCB is focused on its priority markets in the U.S., Mexico and Asia with 2,601 branches in 19 
countries and jurisdictions as or March 31, 2017. At March 31, 2017, CJCB had approximately $412 billion of assets and $311 billion 
of deposits. 

CJCB's overall strategy is to leverage Citi's global footprint and be the preeminent bank for the emerging affluent and amucnt 
consumers in large urban centers. Tn credit cards and in ce11ain retail markets, Citi serves customers in a somewhat broader set of' 
segments and geographies. 

First Quarter 

In millions qf dollars except as otheruJise noted 2017 2016 % Change 

Net inkresl revenue $ 6,522 $ 6,352 3% 

Non-interest revenue 1,295 1.362 (5) 
Total revenues, net of intet·cst expense $ 7,817 $ 7,714 1% 

Total operating expenses $ 4,415 $ 4,401 -% 
Net credit losses $ 1,603 $ 1,371 17 'Yo 

Credit reserve build (release) 177 85 NM 
Provision (release) for unfunded lending commitments 6 NM 
Provision for benefits and claims 29 28 4 

Provisions for credit losses and for henefits and claims $ 1,815 $ 1,485 22 % 

lncomc from continuing operations before taxes $ 1,587 $ 1,828 (l3)'Yo 

Income taxes 584 634 (8) 

Income frorn continuing operations $ 1,003 $ 1,194 (16)% 

Nom:onlrolling interests 1 2 (50) 

Net income $ 1,002 $ 1,192 (16)% 

Balance Sheet data (in billions of dollars) 

Total EOJ> assets $ 412 $ 384 7 'Yo 
Average assets $ 411 $ 377 9 

Return on average assets 0.99% 1.27% 

Etlicicncy ratio 56% 57% 

Average deposits $ 304 $ 294 3 

Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 2.24% 2.04% 

Revenue by business 

Retail hanking s 3,155 $ 3,187 (l)'Jlo 

Cards<•J 4,662 4,527 3 

Total $ 7,817 $ 7,714 1% 

Income from continuing operntions by business 
Retail hanking $ 339 $ 298 14 % 

Cards111 664 896 (26) 

Total $ 1,003 $ 1,194 (16)% 

Table continues on the next page. 
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l<'oreign curi·ency (J<'X) translation impact 

Total revenue-as reported $ 7,817 $ 

Impact of FX tnmslation<2l 

Total rcvcnucs-cx-FX()l $ 7,817 $ 

Total operating expenses as reported $ 4,415 $ 

Impact of FX translatio,P> 

Total operating expenses-ex-FX(3J $ 4,415 $ 

Total provisions for LLR & PBC----as reported $ 1,815 $ 

Impact ofFX translation(2l 

Total provisions for LLR & PBC-ex-Fx0> $ t,815 $ 

Net incomtl--as reported $ 1,002 $ 

Impact of FX translatio1/2> 

Net income----ex-Fxl3l $ 1,002 $ 

(I) Includes both Citi-brandcd cards and Citi retail services. 
(2) Rcllccts the impact ofFX translation into ll.S. dollars at the first quarter of2017 avenige exdwnge rnh:s for all periods presented. 
(3) Presentation of this metric excluding FX translation i.~ a non-G/\/\P financial measure. 
NM Not me,mingful 
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7,714 1% 

(103) 

7,61 I 3% 
4,401 -% 

(42) 

4,359 1% 

1,485 22 '% 

(30) 

1,455 25 % 

1,192 (16)% 

(25) 

1,167 (l4)'}'o 



NORTH AMERICA GCB 

North America GCB provides traditional retail banking, including commercial banking, and its Citi-branded cards and Citi retail 
services card products to retail customers and small to mid-size businesses, as applicable, in the lJ.S. North America GCB's U.S. 
cards product portfolio includes its proprietary po11folio (including the Citi Double Cash, Thank You and Value cards) and co-branded 
cards (including, among others, American Airlines and Costco) within Citi-branded cards as well as its co-brand and private label 
relationships (including among others, Scars, The Home Depot, Macy's and Best Buy) within Citi retail services. 

As of March 3 l, 2017, North America GCIJ's 705 retail bank branches are concentrated in the six key metropolitan areas of New 
York, Chicago, Miami, Washington, D.C., Los Angeles and San Francisco. Also as or March 31, 2017, North America GCB had 
approximately 9.6 million retail banking customer accounts, $55.5 billion in retail banking loans and $ J 88.4 billion in deposits. In 
addition, North America GCB had approximately 120 million Citi-branded and Citi retail services credit card accounts with $126.4 
billion in outstanding card loan balances. 

first Quarter 

In millions of dollars, except as otherwise noted 2017 2016 Of., Change 

Net interest revenue:: $ 4,617 $ 4,398 5% 

Non-interest revenue:: 327 432 (24) 

Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 4,944 $ 4,830 2% 

Total operating expenses $ 2,576 $ 2,500 3 o;., 

Net credit losses $ 1,190 $ 933 28 °/., 
Credit reserve build (release) 152 79 92 
Provision fur unfunded iending commitments 7 NM 
Provisions for bendits and claims 6 9 (33) 

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits a11d claims $ 1,355 $ 1,021 33 %, 

Income from continuing operations before taxes $ 1,013 $ 1.309 (23)% 

Income taxes 386 476 (19} 

Income from continuing operations $ 627 $ 833 (25)% 

Noncontrolli11g interests 

Net income $ 627 $ 833 (25)% 

Balance Sheet data (in bilfions oj'dollars) 

Average assets $ 245 $ 211 16% 

Return on average assets 1.04% 1.59% 

Efficiency ratio 52% 52% 

A vcrage deposits $ 18S.S $ IR0.6 3 

Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans 2.63% 2.32% 

Revenue by business 

Retail banking $ 1,256 $ 1,290 (3)% 
Citi-brandcd cards 2,096 1,860 13 

Citi retail servke~ 1,592 1,680 (5) 

Total $ 4,944 $ 4,830 2% 

lncome from continuing operations by business 

Retail hanking $ 83 $ R9 (7)% 

Citi-hranded cards 24R 353 (30) 

Citi retail services 296 391 (24) 
Totnl $ 627 $ 833 (25)% 

NM Not meaningful 
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IQl7 vs. IQl6 
Net income decreased by 25% due to significantly higher cost 
of credit and higher expenses, pa11ially offset by higher 
revenues. 

Revenues increased 2%, reflecting higher revenues in 
Citi-branded cards, partially offset by lower revenues in Citi 
retail services and retail banking. 

Retail banking revenues declined 3%, mainly due to 
lower mortgage revenues (decrease of approximately $80 
million). The decline in mortgage revenues was driven by 
lower origination activity and higher cost of funds driven by 
higher interest rates, as well as the impact of the sale of a 
pm1ion ofCiti's mmtgage servicing rights (MSR) (see 
"Executive Summary" above). Excluding mo11gage revenues, 
retail banking revenues increased 5%, primarily reflecting 
continued growth in average loans (5%), average deposits 
(3%) and assets under management (12%). Citi expects 
higher interest rates and the impact of the MSR sale to 
continue to negatively impact mortgage revenues during the 
remainder of 2017. 

Cards revenues increased 4%. In Citi-branded cards, 
revenues increased 13%, largely rcllecting the impact of the 
Costco po11folio acquisition (completed June 17, 2016) and 
modest organic growth, pa1tially offset by the ongoing impact 
of higher promotional rate balances. Average loans grew 28% 
(4% excluding Costco) and purchase sales grew 58% (4% 
excluding Costco). 

Citi retail services revenues decreased 5%, primarily 
driven by the absence of gains on the sales of two portfolios 
'sold in the first quarter of 2016. Excluding these gains, 
.evcnues increased 1%, driven by volume growth, mostly 
offset by the continued impact of the previously disclosed 
renewal and extensions of several partnerships within the 
portfolio. Average loans were up 3% and purchase sales were 
largely unchanged. 

North America GCB expects revenue growth in the 
second quarter of 2017 to be largely driven by the impact of 
the Costco pot1folio acquisition. 

Expenses increased 3%, primarily driven by the addition 
of the Costco po11folio, volume growth and continued 
investments, pa11ially offset by enicicncy savings and lower 
repositioning costs. 

Provisions increased 33% from the prior-year period, 
driven by higher net credit losses and a higher net loan loss 
reserve build. 

Net credit losses increased 28%, primarily driven by 
higher losses in Citi-branded cards and Citi retail services. In 
Citi-branded cards, net credit losses increased 39% to $633 
million, primarily due to the Costco po11folio acquisition, 
organic volume growth and seasoning and the impact of 
changes in collection processes. ln Citi retail services, net 
credit losses increased 15% to $520 million, primarily due to 
the volume growth and the impact of changes in collection 
proccsscs. Thc net loan loss reserve build in the first qum1er of 
2017 was $159 million, compared to a build of$79 million in 
:he prior-year period, largely supporting volume growth, 
including the Costco portfolio acquisition. 
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For additional information on North America GCB's retail 
banking, including commercial banking, and its Citi-branded 
cards and Citi retail services portfolios, see "Credit Risk ·­
Consumer Credit" below. 



LATIN AMERICA GCB 

Latin America GCB provides traditional retail banking, including commercial banking, and its Citi-branded card products to retail 
customers and small to mid-size businesses in Mexico through Citibanamex (previously known as Banco Nacional de Mexico, or 
Banamex), one of Mexico's largest banks. 

At March 31, 2017, Latin America GCB had 1,499 retail branches in Mexico, with approximately 27.8 million retail banking 
customer accounts, $19. 7 billion in retail banking loans and $27.6 billion in deposits. In addition, the business had approximately 
5.7 million Citi-brandcd card accounts with $5.2 billion in outstanding loan balances. 

Fil'St Quarter 
In millions ofdollars, except as otherwise noted 2017 2016 % Change 
Net inte,·est revenue $ 800 $ R53 (6)'% 

Non-interest revenue 351 376 (7) 
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 1,151 $ 1,229 (6)% 

Total operating expenses $ 659 $ 718 (8)% 

Net credit losses $ 253 $ 278 (9)% 

Credit reserve build (release) 12 17 (29) 
Provision (release) for unfunded lending commitments (100) 
Provision for benefits and claims 23 19 21 
Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims (LLR & PBC) $ 288 $ 315 (9)%, 

Income from continuing operations bdore taxes $ 204 $ 196 4% 

Income taxes 74 50 48 

Jncome from continuing operations $ 130 $ 146 (11)% 
Noncontrolling interests 

Net income $ 129 $ 145 (11)% 

Balance Sheet data (in hi/lions ofdolfars) 

A vcrage assets $ 43 $ 50 (14)o/ 

Return on average assels 1.22% 1.17% 

Efficiency ratio 57°!., 58% 
Average deposits $ 25.3 $ 26.J (3) 

Nel credit losses as a percentage of average loans 4.44% 4.58% 

Revenue by business 

Retail hanki11g $ 836 $ 856 (2)% 

Citi-hranded cards 315 373 (16) 
Total $ 1,151 $ 1,229 (6)% 

Income from continuing operations by business 

Retail banking $ 86 $ 90 (4)% 

Citi-branded cards 44 56 (21) 
Total $ 130 $ 146 (11)% 
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FX translation impact 

Total revenues--as reported $ ), 151 

lmpa1.:t of FX translationCJJ 

Total rcvcnues-ex-PX(21 $ 1,151 

Total operating expenses as reported $ 659 

Impact of FX translationl1l 

Total operating expenses-ex-FX(2l $ 659 

Provisions for LLR & PBC-as reported $ 288 

Impact ofFX translation(1J 

Provisions for I .LR & PBC-cx-Fxc21 $ 288 

Net income-as reported $ 129 

Impact of PX translation(11 

Net income-ex-Fx<2l $ 129 

(I) Rcllccts the impact of i;x trnnslation inlo U.S. dollars at the first quarter of2017 average exchange rates for all periods presented. 
(2) Presentation of this metric excluding FX trnnslation is a 11011-GAAP financiul measure. 

$ 1.229 (6)% 

(122) 

$ 1,107 4% 

$ 71!! (8)'Yo 

(57) 

$ 661 -%, 

$ 315 (9)% 

(31) 

$ 284 1% 

$ 145 (11)% 

(27) 

$ 118 9% 

The discussion of the results ofoperationsfor Lalin America GCB he/ow excludes the impact of J<X translation for all periods 
presented. Presentations of the results of operations, excluding the impact <f FX translation, are non-GA AP financial measures. For a 
reconciliation qf certain of these metrics to the reported results, see the table above. 

)QI 7 vs. 1QI6 
Net income increased 9%, primarily driven by higher 
revenues, partially offset by higher credit costs. 

Revenues increased 4%, driven by higher revenues in 
retail banking, partially offset by lower revenues in 
cards. 

Retail banking revenues grew by 8%, reflecting continued 
growth in volumes, including an increase in average loans 
(6%), driven by higher personal and commercial loans, and an 
increase in average deposits (8%), as well as improved deposit 
spreads. Cards revenues decreased 6%, reflecting lower 
revolving loans as well as a higher cost to fund non-revolving 
loans, pa11ially offset by higher volumes (average loans up 
5%) and increased purchase sales (8%). While revolving Joan 
balance trends improved during the quarter, Latin America 
GCB expects cards revenues lo continue to remain under 
pressure in the near temi. 

Expenses were largely unchanged as ongoing investment 
spending was offset by efficiency savings and lower 
repositioning costs. 

Provisions increased I%, driven by a higher provision for 
bcnelits and claims, partially offset by a lower net loan loss 
reserve build (decline of$4 million). Net credit losses were 
largely unchanged, as an increase in net credit losses in retail 
banking was offset by continued improvements in cards, 
reflecting a continued focus on higher credit quality 
customers. 

For additional information on Latin America GCB's retail 
banking, including commercial banking, and its Citi-branded 
cards portfolios, see "Credit Risk- Consumer Credit" helow. 

18 



ASIAGCB 

Asia GCB provides traditional retail hanking, including commercial banking, and its Citi-brandcd card products to retail customers 
and small to mid-size businesses, as applicable. During the first quarter of2017, Citi's most significant revenues in the region were 
from Singapore, Hong Kong, Korea, Australia, India, Taiwan, Indonesia, Thailand, the Philippines and Malaysia. Included within 
Asia GCB, traditional retail banking and Citi-branded card products are also provided to retail customers in ce11ain EMEA countries, 
primarily in Poland, Russia and the United Arab Emirates. 

At March 31, 2017, on a combined basis, the businesses had 397 retail branches, approximately 16.4 million retail banking 
customer accounts, $66.2 billion in retail banking loans and $95.4 billion in deposits. In addition, the businesses had approximately 
16.7 million Citi-branded card accounts with $18.3 billion in outstanding Joan balances. 

First Quarter 

In millions of dollars. excr:pt as otherwise noted cii 2017 2016 % Change 
N~t interest revenue $ l,l05 $ 1,101 -% 
Non-interest revenue 617 554 11 
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 1,722 $ 1,655 4% 
Total op~rating expenses $ 1,180 $ 1,183 -% 
Net cr~di! losses $ 160 $ 160 - '!lo 
Cr~dit reserve build (release) 13 (11) NM 
Provision (release) for unfuncfod lending commitments (1) (100) 
Provisions for credit loss~s $ 172 $ 149 15 % 

Income from continuing operations before t.ix~s $ 370 $ 323 15% 
Income laxes 124 108 15 
Income from continuing operations $ 246 $ 215 14 % 
Noncontrolling interests (JOO) 
Net income $ 246 $ 214 15 °/., 
Balance Sheet data (in billions qf dollal'sj 

Average ass~ls $ 123 $ I 16 6% 
Return 011 av~rngc assets 0.81% 0.74% 

Efticiency ratio 69% 71% 

Average deposits $ 92.7 $ 87.2 6 
Net credit losses as a p~rcentage of average loans 0.78% 0.76% 

Revenue hy business 

Retail hanking $ l,063 $ 1,041 2% 
Citi-branded cards 659 614 7 
Totnl $ l,722 $ 1,655 4% 
Income from continuing operations by business 

Retail hanking $ 170 $ 119 43% 
Citi-branded cards 76 96 (21) 
Tot:11 $ 246 $ 215 14 % 
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FX translation impact 

Total revenm:s-a:; reported $ 1,722 

Impact of FX translation<2
) 

Total rcvcnucs-cx-FXP) $ 1,722 

Total operating expenses-as reported $ 1,180 

Impact ofFX translation<21 

Total operating expenses-ex-FX01 $ 1,180 

Provisions for loan losses- as reported $ 172 

Impact of FX translationr2> 

Provisions for loan losses-ex-FXPI $ 172 

Net income-as reported $ 246 

Impact ofFX translationl2> 

Net income-ex-Fxr3> $ 246 

(1) Asia GCB includes the results or operations of GCR activities in certain Ei'v!EA countries for all periods presented. 
(2) Reflects the impllct ofFX translation into U.S. dollars at lhc first quarter of2017 uvernge exchm1ge rates for all periods presented. 
(3) Presentation of this metric excluding FX translation is a non-<.iA/\J> financial measure. 
NM Not meaningful 

$ 1,655 

19 

$ 1,674 

$ 1,183 

15 

$ 1,198 

$ 149 

I 

$ ISO 

$ 214 

2 

$ 216 

The discussion ,f the results qf operations.for Asia GCB below excludes the impact qf FX translation.for all periods presented. 
Presentations of the results qf operations, excluding the impact of FX translation, are non-GAAP.financial measures. For a 
reconciliation o_f'certain ,f these metrics to the reported results, see the tahle ahove. 

IQI7 vs. lQ16 
Net income increased 14%, reflecting higher revenues and 
lower expenses, partially offset by higher cost of credit. 

Revenues increased 3%, driven by improvement in cards 
1nd wealth management revenues, pa11ially offset by lower 
:etail lending revenues. 

Retail banking revenues increased 1%, mainly due to an 
increase in wealth management revenues and higher insurance 
revenues, which were largely offset by the repositioning of the 
retail loan portfolio. Wealth management revenues increased 
due to modest improvement in investor sentiment, stronger 
cquily markets and an increase in assets under management 
(5%). These increases were largely offset by a 5% decrease in 
lending revenues, rcllccting co11tinued lower average loans 
(decrease of 5%). The lower average loans were due to the 
optimization of this portfolio away from lower-yielding 
mo11gage loans to focus on growing higher return personal 
loans. 

Cards revenues increased 6%, due to higher volumes, 
improved revolve rates and higher yields. The volume growth 
was driven by a 3% increase in average loans and a 4% 
increase in purchase sales, both of which benefited from a 
portfolio acquisition in Australia. 

Expenses decreased 2% as volume growth and ongoing 
investment spending were more than offset by lower 
repositioning expenses compared to the prior year. 

Provisions increased 15%, primarily due to reserve builds 
rclaled to the cards portfolio acquisition in Australia, pa11ially 
offset by lower net credit losses. Overall credit quality 
continued to remain stable in the region. 

For additional information on Asia GCB's retail banking, 
including commercial banking, and its Citi-branded cards 
po11folios, sec "Credit Risk-Consumer Credit" below. 
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3% 

-% 

(2)% 

15 % 

15 % 

15 'Yo 
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INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS GROUP 

institutional Clients Group (!CG) includes Bankini and Markets and securities services (for additional information 011 these 
businesses, see "Citigroup Segments" above). JC(J provides corpornLc, institutional, public sector and high-net-wo1th clients around 
the world with a full range or wholesale banking products and services, including fixed income and equity sales and trading, fol'eign 
exchange, prime brokerage, derivative services, equity and fixed income research, corporate lending, investment banking and advisory 
services, private banking, cash management, trade finance and securities services. /CG transacts with clients in both cash instruments 
and derivatives, including fixed income, foreign currency, equity and commodity products. 

JC(J revenue is generated primarily from fees and spreads associated with these activities. /CU earns fee income for assisting 
clients in clearing transactions, providing brokerage and investment banking services and other such activities. Revenue gcncraLcd 
from these activities is recorded in Commissions and.fees and Investment banking. Revenue is also generated from transaclion 
processing and assets under custody and administration. Revenue generated from these activities is primarily recorded in 
Administration and other jiducimJ; fees. ln addition, as a market maker, !CG facilitates transactions, including holding product 
inventory to meet client demand, and earns the differential between the price at which it buys and sells the products. These price 
differentials and the unrealized gains and losses on the inventory are recorded in Principal transactions (for additional information on 
Principal transactions revenue, sec Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Other primarily includes mark-to-market gains 
and losses on certain credit derivalivcs, gains and losses on available-for-sale (AFS) securities and other non-recurring gains and 
losses. Interest income earned on assets held less interest paid to customers on dcposi!s and long-term and sho1t-term debt is recorded 
as Net interest revenue. 

The amount and types or Markets revenues are impacted by a variety orimcrrelated factors, including market liquidity; changes in 
market variables such as intcl'cst rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices, and credit spreads, as well as their 
implied volatilities; investor confidence; and other macroeconomic conditions. Assuming all other market conditions do not change, 
increases in client activity levels or bid/offer spreads generally result in increases in revenues. However, changes in market conditions 
can significantiy impact client activity levels, bid/offer spreads, and the fair value of product inventory. For example, a decrease in 
market liquidity may increase bid/offer spreads, decrease client activity levels, and widen credit spreads on product inventory 
positions. 

JCG s management orthe Markets businesses involves daily monitoring and evaluating of the above factors at the trading desk as 
well as the country level. /CG does not separately track the impact on total Markets revenues of the volume of transactions, bid/offer 
spreads, fair value changes of'product inventory positions and economic hedges because, as noted above, these components arc 
interrelated and are not deemed useful or necessary individually to manage Lhe Markets businesses at an aggregate level. 

ln the Markets businesses, client revenues are those revenues directly attributahle to client transactions at the time of inception, 
incl~ding commissions, intcrcsL, or fees earned. Client revenues do not include the results of client facilitation activities (for example, 
holding product inventory in anticipation of client demand) or the results of' certain economic hedging activities. 

JCG's international presence is suppo1ted by trading floors in approximately 80 countries and a proprietary network in 97 
countries and jurisdictions. At March 3I,2017, /CG had approximately $1.3 trillion or assets and $620 billion of deposits, while two 
of its businesses, securities services and issuer services, managed approximately $15.9 trillion of assets under custody compared to 
$14.8 trillion at the end of the prior-year period. 
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First Quarter 

In millions of dollars, except as otlterwise noted 2017 2016 'Yo Chnnge 

Commissions and fees $ 985 $ 1,004 (2)% 

Administration and other tiduciaty fees 644 597 8 

Investment banking 1,044 740 41 

Principal transactions 2,668 1,576 69 

Othel1l (5) (7) 29 

Total non-interest revenue $ 5,336 $ 3,910 36% 

Net interest revenue (including dividends) 3,790 3,985 (5) 

Totlll l'evenues, oet of interest expense $ 9,126 $ 7,895 16 % 

Total operating expenses $ 4,945 $ 4,872 1% 

Net credit losses $ 25 $ 211 (88)% 

Credit reserve build (release) (176) 108 NM 

Provision (release) for unfunded lending commitments (54) 71 NM 

Provisions for credit losses $ (205) $ 390 NM 

Income from continuing operations before taxes $ 4,386 $ 2,633 67 % 

Income taxes 1,375 764 80 

Income from cJntinuing operntions $ 3,011 $ 1,869 61 % 

Noncontrolling interests 15 10 50 

Net income $ 2,996 $ 1,859 61 % 

EOP assets (in billions of dollars) $ 1,314 $ 1,293 2% 

/\. vcrage assets (in billions of dollars) $ 1,318 $ 1,272 4 o;., 

Return on average assets 0.92'% 0.59% 

Efficiency ratio 54% 62% 

Revenues by region 

North America $ 3,455 $ 2,980 16 % 

EMEA 2,807 2,167 30 

Latin America 1,127 962 17 

Asia 1,737 1,786 (3) 

Total $ 9,126 $ 7,895 16 % 

Income from continuing operations by region 

North America $ l,100 $ 546 NM 

EMEA 855 374 NM 

I.at in America 475 330 44 

Asia 581 619 (6) 

Total $ 3,011 $ 1,869 61 % 

Average loans by region (in billions of dollars) 

North America $ 140 $ 133 5% 

Ei\41•:A 65 63 3 

Lalin America 37 39 (5) 
Asia 60 60 

Total $ 302 $ 295 2% 

EOP deposits by business (in bi/lions of dollars) 

Trc11sury and t.rade solutions $ 417 $ 417 - o;., 

All other !CG businesses 203 192 6 

Tot:\! $ 620 $ 609 2% 

'I) First quarter of2016 includes a previously disclosed charge of approximately $180 million primarily reflecting the write down ofCiti's net investment in 
Venezuela as a result of changes in the exchange rate during the quarter. 

NM Not meaningful 
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JCG Revenue Details-Excluding (Loss) on Loan Hedges 

First Quarter 

/11 millions of dollars 2017 2016 % Change 

Investment hanking revenue details 

Advisory $ 246 $ 227 8'% 
Equity underwriting 235 118 99 
Debt underwriting 733 528 39 
Total investment banking $ 1,214 $ 873 39 % 

Treasury and trade solutions 2,075 1,903 9 

Corporate le11di11g-excluding (loss) on loan hedges1') 434 448 (3) 

l'rivate bank 744 684 9 

Total banking revenues (ex-(loss) on loan hedges) $ 4,467 $ 3,908 14 % 

Corporate lcnding-(loss) 011 loan hedges11J $ (115) $ (66) (74)%, 

Total banking revenues (including (loss) 011 loan hedges) $ 4,352 $ 3,842 13 % 

1-"ixed income markets $ 3,622 $ 3,051 19 % 

Equity m1:1rkets 769 697 JO 
Securities services 543 561 (3) 

Othcr<2l (160) (256) 38 
Total markets and secul'ities services revenues $ 4,774 $ 4,053 18 % 
Total 1·evenues, net of interest expense $ 9,126 $ 7,895 16 % 

Commissions and fees $ 140 $ 124 13 % 

Principal transactions13J 2,318 1,344 72 

Other 149 216 (31) 

Total non-interest revenue $ 2,607 $ 1,684 55 % 

Net interest revenue 1,015 1,367 (26) 

Total flxed income markets $ 3,622 $ 3,051 19 % 

Rates and currencies $ 2,503 $ 2,236 12 % 

Spl'ead products/ other fixed income 1,119 815 37 

Tot11l fixed income markets $ 3,622 $ 3,051 19 %, 

Commissions and fees $ 316 $ 357 (11)% 

Principal transactions<3l 166 51 NM 
Other 8 2 NM 
Total non-interest revenue $ 490 $ 410 20 % 

Net interest revenue 279 287 (3) 

Total equity markets $ 769 $ 697 10 

{I) Hedges on accl'ual loa,1s reflect the 111ark-10-ma.1ke1 on cn:uil ucrivlllivcs uscd lo c~onomic,tlly hedge the corporate loan accrual portfolio. The lixcd premium cosls 
of these hedges arc 11c1ted againsl the corporate lendiug revenues to rctlcc\ the cost or credil protection. 

(2) First quarter 01'2016 includes the previously disclosed charge of approximately $180 million, primarily reflecting the write down of Ci ti's net i11vcs1111ent in 
Venezuela as a result o!' changes in the exchange rate during the quarter. 

(3) Fxcludcs principal tnmsactions revenues of HXi husincsscs other tl1an Markets, p.-imarily lreasury and trade solutions and the private bank. 

NM Not meaningii.d 

23 



IQ17 vs. 1Q16 
Net income increased 61 %, primarily driven by higher 
revenues and lower cost or credit, paitially offset by higher 
operating expenses. 

Revenues increased 16%, reflecting higher revenues in 
both Banking (increase of 13%, increase of 14% 
excluding the loss on hedges on accrual loans), and 
Markets and securities services (increase of 18%), 
primarily due lo fixed income markets and equity 
markets. Banking revenues were driven by strong 
performance in investment banking, treasury and trade 
solutions and the private bank. Citi expects revenues in 
/CG will likely continue to reflect the overall market 
environment during the remainder of2017, including a 
normal seasonal decline in Markets and securities 
services revenues in the second qua1ter of2017. 

Within Banking: 

Investment banking revenues increased 39%, largely 
reflecting increased industry-wide debt and equity 
underwriting activity and momentum in advisory during 
the current quarter. Debt underwriting revenues increased 
39%, driven by the increase in market activity and wallet 
share. Equity underwriting revenues increased 99% 
largely due to the rebound from the prior year period's 
slow activity. Advisory revenues increased 8% reflecting 
increased wallet share, despite a modest decline in market 
M&A activity. 
Treasury and trade solutions revenues increased 9%, 
driven by strong fee growth, higher volumes and 
improved spreads. Client activity in both cash and trade 
drove revenue growth across all regions. End of period 
deposit balances were unchanged (1% increase excluding 
the impact of FX translation) and average trade loans 
were unchanged (1% increase excluding the impact of FX 
translation). 
Corporate lending revenues decreased 16%. Excluding 
the impact of losses on hedges on accrual loans, revenues 
decreased 3% driven by lower average volumes. 
Private Bank revenues increased 9%, reflecting revenue 
growth in all regions. The increase was mostly driven by 
loan and deposit growth, improved banking spreads and 
increased managed investments revenues. 
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Within Markets and securities services: 

Fixed income markets revenues increased 19%, primarily 
due to higher revenues in EMEA and North America. The 
increase was largely driven by higher principal 
transactions revenues (up 72%), slightly offsel by lower 
net interest revenues (down 26%). The increase in 
principal transactions revenues was driven by both higher 
rates and currencies revenues and higher spread products 
revenues, rcllccting increased client revenues and 
recovery from a challenging trading envirorunent in the 
prior year. Net interest revenues were lower largely due 
to a change in mix of trading positions in support of client 
activity. 

Rates and currencies revenues increased 12% driven 
mainly by higher rates revenues, driven by strength in 
EMEA and North America, partially offset by a decrease 
in GI O FX revenues reflecting low volatility and lower 
client activity, particularly in Asia. Spread products and 
other fixed income revenues increased 37% primarily due 
to recovery from the challenging trading environment in 
the prior year, particularly in securitized products, and 
continued momentum and higher client revenues in credit 
and municipal products. 
Equity markets revenues increased by 10%, driven by 

Continued growth in client balances and an improvement 
in equity derivatives, particularly in 8MEA and Asia. 
These drivers were partially offset by lower cash equities 
revenues, primarily in North America, driven by lower 
volumes and commissions, reflecting the ongoing shill to 
electronic trading by clients across the industry. 
Securities services revenues decreased by 3%. Excluding 
the impact ol'prior period divestitures, revenues grew 
12%, driven by higher deposit balances and higher 
interest revenue, primarily in North America and /,atin 
America, and higher lee revenue from growth in assets 
under custody and client volumes. 

Expenses increased 1% as higher incentive compensation 
was partially offset by lower repositioning costs and a benefit 
from FX translation. 

Provisions decreased by $595 million to a benefit of$205 
million in the current qua1ter, reflecting a net loan loss reserve 
release of$230 million (compared to a $179 million build in 
the prior-year period largely related to energy and energy­
related exposures) and lower net credit losses of' $25 million 
($2 I I million in the prior-year period). The lower cost of 
credit was driven by ratings upgrades and continued stability 
in commodity prices. 



CORPORATE/OTHER 

Corporate/Othet· includes certain unallocated costs of global staff functions (including finance, risk, human resomces, legal and 
compliance), other corporate expenses and unallocated global operations and technology expenses, Corporate Treasury, certain No11h 
America and international legacy consumer loan po11folios, other legacy assets and discontinued operations (for additional informatior 
on Corporate/Other, see "Citigroup Segments" above). At March 31, 2017, Corporate/Other had $96 billion in assets, a decrease of 
23% year-over-year and 7% from December 31, 2016. 

In millions qf dollar.f 

Net interest revenue 

Non-interest revenue 

Total revenues, net of interest expense 

Total orerating expenses 

Net credit losses 

Credit reserve build (release) 

Provision (release) for unfunded lending commitments 

Provision for henefits and claims 

Provisions for loan losses and for benefits and claims 

[ncome from continuing operations before taxes 

I ncorn~ !tt)(t.S (bendits) 

Income from continuing operations 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 

Net income before attribution of noncontrolling interests 

Noneontrolling interests 

Net income 

NM Not mcaningliil 

IQJ7 vs. IQ16 
Net income was $92 million, compared to $450 million in the 
prior-year period, due to lower revenues, pa11ially offset by 
lower expenses and lower cost of credit. 

Revenues decreased 40%, driven by legacy asset run-off 
and divestiture activity, as well as lower revenue from 
treasury-related hedging activity. Revenues in the current 
quarter included approximately $750 million in gains on asset 
sales, which more than offset a roughly $300 million charge 
related to the exit ofCiti's U.S. mortgage servicing operations. 

Expenses decreased 11 %, primarily driven by the wind­
down of legacy assets, partially offset hy approximately $ JOO 
million in episodic expenses primarily related to the exit of the 
U.S. mo11gage servicing operations. 

Excluding the episodic items noted above, Curporate/ 
Other generated an approximate $350 million loss from 
continuing operations before taxes. Citi expects that revenues 
and expenses in Corporate/Other should continue to decline 
with the ongoing wind-down of legacy assets, and Corporate/ 
Other should generate underlying negative earnings before 
taxes per quarter of roughly the same amount going forwa1·d. 

Provisions decreased 69%, primarily due to lower net 
credit losses and a lower provision for benefits and claims. 
Net credit losses declined 43% to $81 million, reflecting the 
impact or ongoing divestiture activity as well as continued 
improvement in the legacy North America mortgage portfolio. 
The provision for benefits and claims declined by $59 million 
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First Quarter 

2017 2016 % Change 

$ 545 $ 890 (39)% 

632 1,056 (40)% 

$ 1,177 $ l,946 (40)% 

$ 1,117 $ 1,250 (11)% 

$ 81 $ 142 (43)'Yo 

(35) (31) (13) 

s (I) NM 

I 60 (98) 

52 170 (69)% 

$ 8 $ 526 (98)% 

(96) 8! NM 
$ 104 $ 445 (77)%, 

(18) (2) NM 

$ 86 $ 443 (81)% 

(6) (7) 14 % 

$ 92 $ 450 (80)% 

to $1 million, reflecting lower insurance-related business 
activity. 

Payment Protection Insurance (PPI) 
In March 2017, the U.K. Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 
released a policy statement with the final rules and guidance 
related to PPL During the current quarter, Citi increased its 
PPI reserves by approximately $55 million, driven by the 
ongoing level of claim volumes and the impact of the final 
rules and guidance. Citi's PPJ reserve as ofMareh 31, 2017 
was $246 million, compared to $228 million as of the end of 
2016. 

For background information on PPI, see "Citi Holdings" 
in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form I 0-K. 



OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

The table below shows where a discussion of Citi 's various 
off-balance sheet arrangements may be found in this Form 10-
~. For additional information on Citi's off-balance sheet 
arrangements, see "Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements" and 
Notes I, 21 and 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in 
Citigroup's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Types of Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Disclosures in 
this Form 10-Q 

Variable interests and other See Note 18 to tlic Consolidated 
obligations, including Financial Statements. 
contingent ohligations, 
arising from variable 
interests in nonconsolidated 
VlEs 

Letters of credit, and lending See Note 22 to the Consolidated 
and other commitments H11ancial Statements. 

Guarantees See Note 22 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
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CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Overview 
Capital is used principally to suppo11 assets in Citi 's 
businesses and to absorb credit, market, and operational 
losses. Citi primarily generates capital through earnings 
from its operating businesses. Citi may augment its capital 
through issuances of common stock, noncumulative 
perpetual preferred stock and equity issued through awards 
under employee bcnelit plans, among other issuances. 
Further, Citi's capital levels may also be affected by 
changes in accounting and regulatory standards as well as 
U.S. corporate tax laws, and the impact of future events on 
Citi's business results, such as changes in interest and 
foreign exchange rates, as well as business and asset 
dispositions. 

During the first quarter of 2017, Citi returned a total of 
approximately $2.2 billion of capital to common 
shareholders in the form of share repurchases 
(approximately 30 million common shares) and dividends. 

Capital Management 
Citi>s capita: managenaent frrune\.vork is designed to ensure 
that Citigroup and its principal subsidiaries maintain 
sufficient capital consistent with each entity's respective 
risk prolilc, management targets, and all applicable 
regulatory .standards and guidelines. For additional 
informalion regarding Citi's capital management, see 
"Capital Resources-Capital Management" in Citigroup's 
2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Capital Planning and Stress Testing 
Citi is subject to an annual assessment by the Federal 
Reserve Iloard as to whether Citigroup has encclive capital 
planning processes as well as sufficient regulatory capital to 
absorb losses during stressful economic and financial 
conditions, while also meeting obligations lo c1·editors and 
counterpa1tics and continuing to serve as a credit 
intermediary. This annual assessment includes two related 
programs: the Comprehensive Capiral Analysis and Review 
(CCAR) and Dodd-Frank Act Stress Testing (DFAST). For 
additional information regarding Citi's capital planning and 
stress testing, including potential changes in Citi's 
regulatory capital requirements and future CCAR 
prncesses, see "Forward-Looking Statements" below and 
"Capital Resources Current Regulatory Capital 
Standards-Capital Planning and Stress Testing" and "Risk 
Factors-Strategic Risks" in Citigroup's 2016 Annual 
Repmt on Form 10-K. 
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Current Regulatory Capital Standards 
Citi is subject to regulatory capital standards issued by the 
hderal Reserve Board which constitute the U.S. Basel Ill 
rules. These rules establish an integrated capital adequacy 
framework, encompassing both risk-based capital ratios and 
leverage ratios. For additional information regarding the 
risk-based capital ratios, Tier 1 Leverage ratio, and 
Supplementary Leverage ratio, see "Capital Resources 
Current Regulatory Capital Standards" in Citigroup's 2016 
Annual Report on Fonn 10-K. 

<.,'SJB Surcharge 
The Federal Reserve Board also adopted a rule which 
imposes a risk-based capital surcharge upon U.S. bank 
holding companies that are identified as global systemically 
important bank holding companies (GSIBs), including Citi. 
GSIB surcharges under the rule initially range from 1% to 
4.5% of total risk-weighted assets. Citi's initial GSJB 
surcharge ellcctive January 1, 2016 was 3.5%. However, 
ongoing efforts in addressing quantitative measures or 
systemk irnpfn'ic1nct: l1o1vt: rtimlku iu a n:tiuclion oi'Citi's 
GSIB surcharge to 3%, effective Januruy I, 2017. For 
additional information regarding the identification or a 
GSIB and the methodology for annually determining the 
GSJB surcharge, see "Capital Resources -Current 
Regulatory Capital Standards-GSlB Surcharge" in 
Citigroup's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Transition Provisions 
The U.S. Basel m rules contain several differing, largely 
multi-year transition provisions (i.e., "phase-ins" and 
"phase-outs"). Citi considers all of these transition 
provisions as being fully implemented on January I, 2019 
(full implementation). For additional information regarding 
the transition provisions under the U.S. Basel Ill rules, 
including with respect to the USIB surcharge, sec "Capital 
Resources-Current Regulatory Capital Standards­
Transition Provisions" in Citigroup's 2016 Annual Report 
on Form 10-K. 



Citigroup's Capital Resources Under Current Regu/(lfory 
St"'ul,mls 
Citi is required to maintain stated minimum Common 
Kquity Tier I Capital, Tier I Capital and Total Capital ratios 
of 4.5%, 6% and 8%, respectively. 

Citi's effective minimum Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, Tier I Capital and Total Capital ratios during 2017, 
inclusive of the 50% phase-in or both the 2.5% Capital 
Conservation Buffer and the 3% GSIB surcharge (all of 
which is to be composed of Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital), are 7.25%, 8.75% and 10.75%, respectively. Citi's 
effective minimum Common Equity Tier I Capital, Tier I 
Capital and Total Capital ratios during 2016, inclusive or 
the 25% phase-in of both the 2.5% Capital Conservation 
Huffer and the 3.5% GSTB surcharge (all of which is to be 

composed ol'Common Equity Tier I Capital), were 6%, 
7.5% and 9.5%, respectively. 

frn1hcrmore, to be "well capitalized" under current 
federal bank regulatory agency definitions, a bank holding 
company musl have a Tier I Capital ratio of at least 6%, a 
Total Capital ratio ofat least 10%, and not be subject to a 
Federal Reserve Board directive to maintain higher capital 
levels. 

The following tables set forth the capital tiers, total 
risk-weighted assets, risk-based capital ratios, quru1erly 
adjusted average total assets, Total Leverage Exposure and 
leverage ratios under current regulatory standards 
(reflecting Basel Ill Transition Arrangements) for Citi as of 
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. 

Citigroup Capital Components and Ratio.~ Under Current Regulatory Standards (Ba~el Ill Tnmsition Armngeme11ts) 

in millions of dollars, ex,·epl mlios 

Common Equity Tier I Capital 

Tier I Capital 
Total Capital (Tier I Capital+ Tier 2 Capitali1

> 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets 

Common Equity Tier I Capital ratio<21 

Tier 1 Capital ratio'2' 

Total Capital ratio<2J 

In millions ofdoflurs. except ra/ios 

Quarterly Adjusted Average Total AssctsPl 

Total Leverage Exposurel41 

Tier I Leverage ratio 

Supplementary I .everage ratio 

March 31, 2017 

Advanced 
Approaches 

$ 161,665 

177,104 

201,500 

1,166,202 

13.86% 

15.19 

17.28 

Standardized 
Approach 

$ 161,665 

177,104 

214,080 

1,142,579 

14.15% 

15.50 

18.74 

March 31,201.7 

$ 1,776,048 

2,375,616 

9.97% 

7.46 

December 31, 2016 

.Advanced Standardized 
Approaches Approach 

$ 167,378 $ 167,378 

178,387 178,387 

202,146 214,938 

1,166,764 1,126,314 

14.35% 14.86% 

15.29 15.84 

17.33 19.08 

December 31, 2016 

$ 1,768,415 

2,351,883 

10.09% 

7.58 

(I) Under the Adva11eed Approacl1cs framework eligible credit reserves that exceed expected credit losses arc eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital to the 
extent the excess reserves do not exceed 0.6% of credit risk-weighted assets, which differs from the Standardized Approach in which the allowance lor 
credit losses is eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital up to 1.25% of <.:re<lit risk-weighted asscls, with any excess allowllnce for credit losses being deducted 
in arriving ut <.:redit risk-weighted assets. 

(2) As of Murd1 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, Citi 's reportable Common Equity Tier I Capital, Tier I Capital and Total Capital rntios were the lower 
derived under the 13asel lll Advanced Approaches framework. 

(3) Tier I Leverage ratio <lenominalor. 
(4) Supplementary Leverage ratio denominator. 

As indicated in the table above, Citigroup's capital 
ratios at March 31, 2017 were in excess of the stated and 
ellcctivc minimum requirements under the U.S. Hasel Ill 
rules. rn addition, Citi was also "well capitalized" under 
current federal hank regulatory agency definitions as of 
March 31, 2017. 
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Components of Citigroup C"pital Um/er Current Regulltto1y Stmuhm/s 
(Basel III Atlvtmced Approaches witlt Transition Arra11gements) 

J\iforch 31, December 31, 
In 111il/io11s qf do/la,·s 2017 2016 
Common Equity Tier I Capital 

Ciligroup common stockholders' e,1uitl11 $ 209,063 $ 206,051 
Add: Qualifying nonco11trolling interests 197 259 
Rcgulatol'y Capital Adjustments and Deductions: 

Less: Net unrealizt:d losses on securities availahle-fol'-sale (Af-S), net oftax<2>(~) (116) (320) 
Less: Defined benefit plans liahility adjustment, net oftax(lJ (1,035) (2,066) 
Less: Accumulated net unreafo:ed losses on cash flow hedges, 11et ol'tax.<4J (562) (560) 
Less: Cumulative unrealized net loss related to changes in fair value of financial liahilities 

attributable to own creditworthiness, net oftax<1
)($) (138) (37) 

Less: lntangihle assets: 

Goodwill, net of related deterred tax liabilities (IYl'I ,sf61 21,448 20,858 
lcfonlifiaslc intangible assets other than mortgagt: servicing rights (MS!ls), net of related 

DTLs13 3,790 2,926 
Less: Defined bt:nefit pension plan net assets()) 669 514 
Less: Deferred tax assets ( DTJ\s) arising from net operating loss, fol'eign tax credit and general 

husi11ess credit eany-forwards0ll7l 16,862 12,8U2 
Less: Excess over I 0%,/i 5% iimitations for other DTAs, certain cnrninon stock investments, 

and MSR!Pll7ll&) 6,677 4,815 
Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital $ 161,665 $ 167,378 
Additional Tier I Capital 

Qualifying perpetual prefer,·ed stock<' l $ 19,069 $ 19,069 

Qualifying trust pl'eferred securitics19J 1,372 1,371 
Qualifying noncontrolling interests 23 17 
Uegulatory Cnpital Adjustment and Deductions: 

Less: Cumulative unrealized net Joss related to changes in fair value of financial liabilities 
attrihutable lo own creditworthiness, net ofll!x<3)(;> (35) (24) 

I ,ess: Defined benefit pension plan net assetsPJ 167 343 
Less: DTAs arising from net operating loss, foreign tax credit and general 

business credit carry-forwards<3>f7l 4,215 8,535 
Less: Permitted ownership interests in covered funds<'°> 618 533 
Less: Minimum regulatory capital requirements of insurance underwi·iting subsidiarics< 11> 60 61 
Total Additional Tier 1 Capital $ 15,439 $ 11,009 
Total Tier l Capitnl (Common Bquity Tier 1 Capital+ Additional Tier I Capital) $ 177,l04 $ 178,387 
Tiel' 2 C11pitnl 

Qualifying suhordinatcd debt $ 23,278 $ 22,818 
Qualifying trust preferred securitics<12

J 319 317 
Qualifying 11011controlling interests 30 22 
Excess of eligible credit reserves over expected credit losscs(13> 827 660 
Regulatory Capital Adjustment and Deduction: 

Add: Unrealized gains 011 AFS equity exposures ineludahle in Tier 2 Capital 2 3 

Less: Mi11imum regulatory capital requirements of insurance underwriting subsidiaries<11l 60 61 
Totlll Tier 2 Capital $ 24,396 $ 23,759 

Total Cnpital (Tier 1 Capital+ Tier 2 Capital) $ 201,SOO $ 202,146 

Footnotes arc presented on the following page. 
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Citigroup Rish-Weighted A.~·.~et~ U11tler Current Regu/(ltory St(lnt/(trds (Bttsel Ill Tramiti01r Arrangements) 

March 31, 2017 D1:ce111 ber 3 I , 2016 
Advanced Standa1·dizcd Advanced Standar<li;:1:<l 

In millions ojdollars Approaches Approach Approaches t\pproach 

Credit RiskC14
> $ 766,382 $ 1,070,053 $ 773,483 $ 1,061,786 

Market Risk 72,247 72,526 64,006 64,528 

Operational Risk 327,573 329,275 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets $ 1,166,202 $ 1,142,579 $ 1,166,764 $ 1,126,314 

(I) Issuance costs of $184 mill ion n:lated to preferred stock outstanding at March 31, 2017 and Oecemher 31, 2016, are excluded from common stockholders' 
equity and netted against preferred stock in accordance with l'ederal Reserve Board regulatory reporting re(1uin:ments, which differ from those under lJ.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles (01\AP). 

(2) In addition, inclndes the net amount of unamortized loss on held-to-maturity (HTM) securities. This amount relates to securities thut wen: previously 
translcrrcd from AFS to HTM, and non-credit-related factors such i1s changes ill interest rates and liquidity spreads for l lTM securities with other-than­
temporary impairment. 

(3) The transition arrangements for significant regulatory capital adjustments and deductions illlpacting Common F.quity Tier I Capital and/or /\dditionul 
Tier I Capital are set forth in the chart entitled "Rascl 111 Transition /\rrungements: Signilicmll Regulatory Capital Adjustments and Deductions," as 
presented in Citigroup's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

(4) Common Equity Tier I C.ipital is adjusted lor accunwlatcd net unrcali1.ed gains (losses) on cash now hedges included in Accumulated other comprehensive 
ir1come {loss) (/\OCl) tlmt relute to the hedging ol' items not rccogni1.cd at fair vulue on the balance sheet. 

(5) The cumulative impact of changes in Citigroup's own creditworthiness in valuing liabilities for wl1ich the fair v,due option has been elected and own-credit 
valuatiou adjustments on derivatives me excluded from Common F.quicy Tier I Capital, in accordance with the U.S. Basel l1I rules. 

(6) Include.~ goodwill "embedded" in the valmuion ofsignilicmlt common stock investments in unconsolidated financi.il institutions. 
(7) Of Ci ti's approximately $45.9 billion of net DTAs .it Miirch 31, 2017, approximately $19.6 billion were includable in regulatory capital pursuant lo the lJ.S. 

Rascl ll I rules, while apprnximately $26.3 billion were exduded. Excluded from Citi's regulatmy capital at Marcl1 31, 2017 was approximately $27. 7 
billion of net DTAs arising from net operating loss, foreign tax credit and general business credit carry-forwards as well as tempornry dilli:renccs, of which 
approximately $23.5 billion were deducted from Common [(1uity Tier I Capital and approximately $4.2 billion were deducted from A<lditiom1l Tier I 
Capital, reduced by approximately $1.4 hillion of net OTLs primarily .associated with goodwill and certain other intangible assets. Separately, under the 
U.S. Rase! Ill rules, goodwill and these other intangible assets are deducted net of' associated DTI ,S in arrivi11g at Common Equity Tier I Capital. DTAs 
arising froill net operating lo.~s, foreign tax credit and genernl business credit carry-forwards arc required to he deducted from both Common Ec111ity Tier I 
Capital and Additional Tier I Capital under the transition arrangements ol'the U.S. Basel Ill rules; whereas DTAs arising from temporary differences are 
deducted in full lrom Common Equity Tier I Capital under these rules, if'in excess of 10%/l 5% limitations. 

(8) Assets subject to IOo/o/15% limitations include MSRs, UT/\s arising from temporary diflerences and signilicant common stock investments in 
unconsolidated financial institutions. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, this d1:duction related only lo DTAs arising from tempornry differences 
that exceeded the 10% limitation. Accordi11gly, approximately $6.7 billion ofDTAs arising from temporary dillcrcnccs were excluded from Citi's Common 
E11uity Tier I C.ipilld al March 31, 2017. Changes to the l J.S. corporate ti1x regime tlmt impact th1: value ofCiti's DTAs arising from temporary differences, 
which exceed the then current amount deducted from Citi's Common Equity Tier I Capital, would further reduce Citi's regulatory capital to the extent of 
such excess a[ler tax. For additional inlbrmation regarding potential lJ.S. corpornte tax reform, see "Risk Factors-Strategic Risks" in Citigroup's 2016 
Annual Report on form 10-K. 

(9) Represents Citigroup Capital XIII trust prclcrrcd securities, which are permanently grnndfathered as Tier I Capital \llldcr the U.S. Rascl Ill rules. 
(IO) Uimking entities me required to be ii1 compliance with the Volckcr Rule of the Oodd-himkAct that prohibits conducling certain proprietary investment 

activities and limits their ownership of; and relationships with, covered funds. Accordingly, Citi is re<111ired by the Volckcr Ruic to deduct from Tier I 
Capirnl all permitted ownership interests in covered funds that were acquired after Oecember 31, 2013. 

(II) 50% of the minimum regulatory c.ipital rt<tuirements or insurance underwriting sub~idiaries must be deducted from each of Tier l Capital and Tier 2 
Capital. 

(12) I-::ffcctivc January I, 2016, non-grnndfllthered trust prdi:rred securities arc not eligible for inclusion in Tier I Capit,d, but me t:ligible !or inclusion in Tier 2 
Capital subject to full phase-out by Jmurnry I, 2022. Non-grand lathered trust pl'eferred securities are eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital in an amoum up 
to 50% and 60% dul'ing 2017 and 2016, respectively, of the aggregate outstanding principal amounts of such issuunces .is ol'January I, 2014, in accol'dance 
with the transition arrangements for non-(ttmlifying c.ipital instruments under the IJ.S. Basel Ill rnles. 

( 13) Advanced Approaches banking organizations are permitled to include in Tier 2 Capital eligible credit reserves that exceed expected credit losses to tl1c 
extent that the excess reserves do not exceed 0.6% of crt:dit risk-weighted assets. 

(14) Under the U.S. Rascl Ill rules, credit risk-weighted assets during the transition period reflect the effects of transitional anangements reh1led to regulatory 
capital adjustments and deductions and, as a result, will differ from credit risk-weighted assets derived under full implementation of the rules. 
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Citigroup Capital Rollforward Unliel' Current Regu/(t(ory Stand"rd:r; 
(Basel l/1 Advtmced Appr0<1ches with Transitio11 Arrangements) 

In million.< of dolfars 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 

Balance, beginning of period 

Net income 

Common and preferred stock dividends declared 
Ne1 increase in treasury stock 

Net decrease in common stock und u<lditional paid-in capital 

Net decrease in foreign currency translation adjustment net of hedges, net of lax 

Net decrease in unrealized losses on securities AFS, net of tax 

Net increase in defined benefit plans liahility adjustment, nel of tax 

Net change in adjustment related to changes in fair value of financial liabilities 
attributable to own creditworthiness, net of tax 

Net increase in goodwill, net of related DTLs 

Net increase in identifiable intangible assets other tha11 MSRs, m:l of related DTLs 

Net increase in defined benefit pension pla11 net assets 

Net increase in DTAs arising from net operating loss., foreign tax credit and general 
business credi t carry-forwards 

Net incrc:i~e in exces~ l)ver I 0%/!5% !imitations for other D'IJ\s, certain common 
stock investments and MSRs 

Other 

Net decrease in Common ~quity Tier 1 Cnpital 

Common Eq uity Tier I Ca1•ital Balance, end of period 
Additional Tier 1 Capitnl 

Balance, beginning of period 

Net increase in qualifying trust preferred securities 

Net change in adjustment related to cha11ges in fair value of financial liabilities 
attributable to own credit worthiness, net of tax 

Net decrease in defined benefit pension plan net assels 

Net decrease in DTAs arising from net operating loss, foreign tax credit and general 
business credit carry-forwards 

Net increase in permitted ownership interests in covered funds 

Otl1cr 
Net increase in Additional Tier 1 Capital 

Tier 1 Capital B11lancc, end of 11eriod 
Tier 2 Cnpital 

Balance, beginning of 11eriod 

Net increase in qualifying subordinated deht 

Net increase in qualitying trust preferred securities 

Net increttSe in excess of eligible credit reserves over expected credit losses 

Other 
Net increiise in Tier 2 Capital 

Tier 2 Capital Balance, end of period 

Total Capital (Tier I Cnpital + Tier 2 Capitnl) 

31 

Three months ended 
March 31, 2017 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

167,376 

4,090 

(746) 

(1,277) 

(429) 

1,318 

16 

(1,043) 

41 

(590) 

{864) 

(155) 

(4,034) 

(1,886) 

(152) 

(5,711) 

161,665 

I0,992 

l 

ll 
176 

4,337 

(85) 

7 
4,447 

177,104 

23,759 

460 
2 

167 

8 

637 
24,396 

201,500 



Citigroup Risk-Weighted A.uets Rol(forward Under Current Regufotory St(lndard.~ 
(B"sel /11 Adwmce,I Appro"ches with Tmnsition Arnmgement.9 

In millions of dollars 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets, beginning of period 

Changes in Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 

Net decrease in retail exposuresnl 

Net increase in whole!salc cxposurcs<2l 

Nel decrease in repo-style transactions 

Net decrease in securitization exposures 

Net increase in equity exposures 

Net decrease in over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives°1 

Net decrease in derivatives CVA <4l 

Net decrease in other cxposures<5> 

Net decrease in supervisory 6% multipliei16> 

Net decrease in Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 

Changes in Market Risk-Weighted Assets 

Net increase in risk lcvcls(7) 

Net decrease due to model and methodology updatesl8l 

Net increase in Market Risk-Weighted Assets 

Net decrease in Operational Risk-Weighted Assets<9l 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets, end of period 

Th1·ee months ended 
March 31, 2017 

$ 1,166,764 

(4,312) 

4,445 

(197) 

(235) 

465 

(4,199) 

(1,061) 

(1,665) 

(342) 

$ (7,101) 

$ 10,995 

(2,754) 

$ 8,241 

$ (1,702) 

$ 1,166,202 

(I) Retail exposures decreased during the tlm:e months t:nded March 31, 2017 primarily due to n:sidenlilll mortgage loan sales and rc11ayments, divestitures of 
certain legacy assets and reductions in quulifying revolving (cards) exposures attributable to seasonal holiday spending repayments, r,artially offsel by lhe 
impact orFX translation. 

(2) Wholesale exposures incrca~cd during the three monlhs ended March 31, 2017 primarily due to increl!ses in commercial loans and loan commitments, us 
well as 1hc i1npac, of FX translation. 

(3) OTC derivatives decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 rrimarily due to changes in fair vidue ,md improved portfolio credit quality. 
(4) Derivatives CVA decreased during the three months ended Mmch 31, 2017 primarily driven hy model enhancements, pmtially ollsct by incrca~ed exposure 

,md volatility. 
(S) Other exposures include cleared transactions, unsetlled trnnsuctions, asscls other than those reportable in specific exposure categories and non-material 

portfolios. Other exposures decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 rrimarily due to a reduction in assets subject to risk-weighting arising 
from 1he 1rnnsitioni11g 10 higher regulatory capital dedu~1ions elfective January I, 2017, and from the previously-1mnounced sale of'a portion ofCiti's 
mortgage servicing rights, which were offset, in part, hy im increase:: in exchange-traded exposures. 

(6) Supervisory 6% multiplier docs not apply to derivatives CV/\. 
(7) Risk levels increased during the three monlhs ended March 31, 2017 primarily due lo increases in exposure levels subject to Stn:ssed Value al Risk and 

comprehensive risk, as well as an increase in positions su~ject to securiti:tal ion charges. 
(K) Risk-weigilted ussets declined during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due 10 changes in model inruts regarding volatilily, as well as mc1hodology 

changes for st!ln<ford specific risk charges. 
(9) Ouring the first quurlt:r of 2017, operational risk-weighted assels decreased by $1 . 7 l>illion due lo guarlcrly updates to model parmnelers. 
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Capital Resources of Citigroup '.S' Subsfr/i(lry U.S. 
Depository Imuitutfons Under Current Regulatory 
St"mlanls 
Citigroup's subsidiary U.S. depository institutions arc also 
subject to regulatory capital standards issued by their 
respective primary federal bank regulato1y agencies, which 
are similar to the standards of the Federal Reserve Board. 

During 2017, Citi's primary subsidiary U.S. depository 
institution, Citibank, N.A. (Citibank), is subject to effective 
minimum Common Equity Tier l Capital, Tier I Capital 
and Total Capital ratios, inclusive of the 50% phase-in of 
the 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer, of5.75%, 7.25% and 
9.25%, respectively. Citibank's effective minimum 
Common Equity Tier I Capital, Tier I Capital and Tota.I 

Capital ratios during 2016, inclusive of the 25% phase-in of 
the 2.5% Capital Conservation Butler, were 5.125%, 
6.625% and 8.625%, respectively. Citibank is required to 
maintain stated minimum Common Equity Tier I Capital, 
Tier 1 Capital and Total Capital ratios of 4.5%, 6% and 8%, 
respectively. 

The following tables set forth the capital tiers, total 
risk-weighted assets, risk-based capital ratios, qua11erly 
adjusted average total assets, Total Leverage Exposure and 
leverage ratios under current regulatory .standards 
(reflecting Hasel lll Transition Arrangements) for Citibank, 
Cit i's primary subsidiary U.S. depository institution, as of 
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. 

Citibank Capital Components and R(ltios Um/er Current Regulmory Stmulanlr; (B(l:~el Ill Transitio11 Arrtmf(ement.9 

In millions of dollars. except ratios 

Common Equity Tier I Capi!al 

Tier I Capital 

Total Capital (Tier I Capital + Tier 2 Capitalf1 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio12Xn 

Tier I Capital rntid2'l3l 

Total Capital ratio<2lPJ 

In million.v of doflars. except ratios 

Quaiterly Adjusted Average Total Assctsf4l 

Total Leverage l·:xposunP> 

Tier I 1,evt:nige ratiol1> 

Supplementary Leverage ratio 

Mal'ch 31, 2017 

Advanced Standardized 
Approaches Approach 

$ 126,543 $ 126,543 

127,859 127,859 

140,431 151,628 

984,660 1,016,037 

12.85% 12.45% 

12.99 12.58 

14.26 14.92 

March 31, 2017 

$ 1,350,921 

1,885,462 

9.46% 

6.78 

December 31, 2016 

Advanced Standardized 
Approacht:s Approach 

$ [26,220 $ 126,220 

126,465 126,465 

138,821 150,291 

973,933 1,001,016 

12.96% 12.61% 

12.99 12.63 

14.25 15.01 

Oeccmbcr 31, 2016 

$ 1,333,161 

1,859,394 

9.49% 

6.80 

(I) lJnder the Advanced Approaches framework eligible cl'cdit reserves tha1 exceed expecled credit losses arc eligible lor inclusion in Tier 2 Capital to the 
extent the excess reserves do not exceed 0.6% of c1·cdi1 ri.~k-wcigh<cd assets, which differs from the Standardized Approach in which the allowance fm 
credit losses is eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital up to I .25% or credit risk-weighted assets, with any excess allow,mce for credit losses heing dcd11clcd 
in arriving al credit risk-wcighh:d asse\s. 

(2) /\s of March 11, 201 7 and December 31, 20 I 6, Citibank's reportable Common Equity Tier I Capital and Tier r Capilal ralios were the lowcl' derived under 
the 13ascl Ill Standardized Approach frnmework. 1\s of Marcil 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, Citibank's reportable Total Capital ratio was the lower 
del'ivcd under the Rase! lll Advanced Approaches framework . 

(3) Citibank mus! maintain r11inimum Common Equity Tier I Capital, Tier 1 Capital, Total Capital and Tier I Leverage ralios of 6.5%, 8%, 10% and 5%. 
respectively, to be considered ''well capitalized" under the revised Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) regulations applicable to in~ured depository ins1itutio11s 
as established by the U.S. Bllsel Ill rules . For additional inlonna1io11, see "Capital Resources -Currc11t Regulatory Capital Standards Prompt Correc1ive 
Action Framework" in Citigroup's 2016A11nual Report on Form 10-K. 

( 4) Tier 1 I .everage rnlio denominator. 
(5) Supplementary Levernge rntio denominator. 

As indicated in the table above, Citibank's capital 
ratios at March 31, 2017 were in excess of the stated and 
effective minimum requirements under the U.S. Basel Ill 
rules. In addition, Citibank was also "well capitalized" as or 
March 31, 2017 under the revised PCA regulations which 
became effective January I, 2015. 
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Impact of Clwnges 011 Citigroup and Citiballk Capital 
Htttio.~· Under Current Regulatory Capital St{lnt/ards 
The following tables present the estimated sensitivity of 
Citigroup's and Citibank's capital ratios to changes of$100 
million in Common Equity Tier I Capital, Tier 1 Capital 
and Total Capital (numerator), and changes of $1 billion in 
Advanced Approaches and Standardized Approach risk­
weighted assets, quai1erly adjusted average total assets, as 
well as Total Leverage Exposure (denominator), under 
current regulatory capital standards (reflecting Basel 1JJ 
Transition Arrangements), as of March 31, 2017. 

This information is provided for the purpose or analyzing 
the impact that a change in Citigroup's ol" Citibank's 
financial position or results of operations could have on 
these ratios. These sensitivities only consider a single 
change to either a component of capital, risk-weighted 
assets, quarterly adjusted average total assets, or Total 
Leverage Kxposure. Accordingly, an event that affects more 
than one factor may have a larger basis point impact than is 
reflected in these tables. 

Tmp(lct ,>.f Changes on Citigroup (UU/ Citibank Risk-Base,/ Cllpital Ratios (Basel lll Tnmsition Arrangements) 

.ln basis points 

Citigrou11 

Advanced Approaches 

Standardized Approach 

Citibank 

Advanced Approaches 

Standai·dized Approach 

Common Equity 
Tier I Capital rntio 

Jmpact of Impact of 
$IOO million $1 billion 

clrnnge in change in 
Common risk-

Equity weighted 
Tier I Capital assets 

0.9 1.2 

0.9 1.2 

1.0 1.3 

1.0 1.2 

Tier 1 Capital ratio Total Capitnl ratio 

Impact of Impact of 
$1 billion $1 billion 

Im pact of change in Im pact of change in 
$100 million risk- $100 million risk-

change in wcigMcd change in weighted 
Tier 1 Capital assets Total Capital ;issets 

0.9 1.3 0.9 1.5 

0.9 1.4 0.9 1.6 

1.0 1.3 1.0 1.4 

Ul 1.2 1.0 1.5 

Impat:t of Clumges on Citigroup (lttd Citibtmk Leverflge Ratios (Bt1sel Ill Transition Arrangements) 

In basis poims 

Citigroup 

Citibank 

Citigroup Broker-Dealer Suhsi(/i(lrie.,;; 
At March 31, 2017, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., a U.S. 
broker-dealer registered with the SEC that is an indirect 
wholly owned subsidiary of Citigroup, had net capital, 
computed in accordance with the SEC's net capital rule, of 
approximately $10.5 billion, which exceeded the minimum 
requirement by approximately $8.6 billion. 

Moreover, Citigroup Global Markets Limited, a broker­
dealer registered with the United Kingdom's Prudential 
Regulation Authority (PRA) that is also an indirect wholly 
owned subsidiary of Citigroup, had total capital of$17.4 
billion at March 3 l, 20 I 7, which exceeded the PR A's 
minimum regulatory capital requirements. 

Tier l Leverage 1·atio Supplementary Leve1·agc rntio 

Impact of 
$1 billion Impact of 
change in $1 billion 

Impact of quarterly Impact of change in 
$100 million adjusted $100 million Total 

change in average total change in Leverage 
Tier I Capital assets Tier 1 Capital Exposure 
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0.6 0.6 0.4 0.3 

0.7 0.7 0.5 0.4 

In addition, certain of Citi 's other broker-dealer 
subsidiaries are subject to regulation in the countries in 
which they do business, including requirements to maintain 
specified levels of net capital or its equivalent. Citigroup's 
other broker-dealer subsidiaries were in compliance with 
their regulatory capital requirements at March 31, 2017. 



Basel Ill (Full Im1>lementation} 

Cilif?roup's Capi/(tf Resources Under IJltsel /II 
(Full lmplement"tion) 
Citi currently estimates that its effective minimum 
Common Equity Tier I Capital, Tier I Capital and Total 
Capital ratio requirements under the lJ.S. Basel lll rules, on 
a fully implemented basis, inclusive of the 2.5% Capital 
Conservation Buffer and the Countercyclical Capital Buffer 
at its cunent level of0%, as well as an expected 3% GSrB 
surcharge, may be J 0%, 11.5% and 13.5%, respectively. 

Further, under the U.S. Basel lll rules, Citi must also 
comply with a 4% minimum Tier I Leverage ratio 
requirement and an effective 5% minimum Supplementary 
Leverage ratio requirement. 

The following tables set fotth the capital tiers, total 
risk-weighted assets, risk-based capital ratios, quarterly 
adjusted average total asset:;;, Total Leverage Exposure and 
leverage ratios, assuming full implementation under the 
U.S. Basel JJJ rules, for Citi as of March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016. 

At March 31, 2017, Citi's constraining risk-hased 
cap?ta! ratios \Vere !hc~;c dedved under the nnsc! JH 
Advanced Approaches framework. 

Citigroup Capital Companents and Rmios Under B"sel Ill (Full Impleme11tatio11) 

In millions qfdo/lars, except ratios 

Common Equity Tier I Capital 

Tier I Capi!al 

Total Capital (Tier I Capital I Tier 2 CapitaJf > 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets 

Common Equity Tier I C,ipital rnt io(2l!Jl 

Tier I Capital ratiol2ll3l 

Total Capital ratio<2l<3l 

l11111i/lions of dollars, excepl ralios 

Quarterly Adjusted Average Total Asscts<4l 

Total Leverage Exposurel;l 

Tier I Leverage ratid 31 

Supplcmcnta1y Leverage ratio131 

March 31, 2017 

Advanced Standardized 
Approaches A11pl'oach 

$ 152,835 $ 152,835 

172,626 172,626 

197,027 209,607 

1,191,503 1,166,447 

12.83'Yo 13.10% 

14.49 14.80 

16.54 17.97 

March 31, 2017 

$ 1,772,780 

2,372,348 

9.74% 

7.28 

December 31, 2016 

Advanced Shm<lardizcd 
Approaches Approm;h 

$ 149,516 $ 149,516 

169,390 169,390 

193,160 205,975 

1,189,680 1,147,956 

12.57% 13.02% 

14.24 14.76 

16.24 17.94 

December 31, 2016 

$ 1.761,923 

2,145,391 

9.61% 

7.22 

(I) Under the /\dvanccd Approm;hes framework eligible credit reserves that exceed expected credit losses are eligihlc tor inclusion in Tier 2 Capital to the 
extent the excess reserves do not exceed 0.6% of credit risk-weighted as.~ets, which dillers from the Standardized Approach in which the allowance lor 
credit losses is eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital up to 1.25% of credit risk•wcighted <1ssets, with any excess allow,mce for credit losses hcing deducted 
in arriving at credit risk-weighted assets. 

(2) /\s of March 3 I, 2017 ,md December 31, 2016, Cili's Common lquity Tier I Capital, Tier 1 Capital and Total Capital ratios were the lower derived under 
the 8asel Ill Advanced Approaches framework. 

(3) Citi's Rascl Ill capihll rnlios aud related com1)011ents, on a fully implemented basis, are non·G/\AI' financial 11\Casures. 
( 4) Tier l Leverage ratio denominator. 
(5) Supplementary Leverage ratio denominator. 
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Common Equity Tier I Capital Ratio 
Citi's Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio was 12.8% at 
March 3 I, 20 I 7, com pal'ed to 12.6% at December 3 I, 2016 
(all based on application of the Advanced Approaches for 
determining total risk-weighted assets). The quarter-over­
qua11er growth in the ratio was primarily due to quarterly 
net income of$4.l billion and benelicial net movements in 
AOCJ, offset in pa11 by the return or approximately $2.2 
billion of capital to common shareholders. 

Component.<; of Citigroup Capital Under Bflsef Ill (Advanced Appro"ches with Full Implementation) 

March 31, 
In millions of dollars 2017 

Common Equity Tier I Cat>ital 

Ciligroup common stockholders' equity(') $ 209,063 

Add: Qualitying noncontrolling interests 133 

Regulatory Capital Adjustments and Deductions: 

Less: Accumulated net unrealized losses on cash tlow hedges, net oftax12l (562) 

Less: Cumulative unrealized net loss related to changes in fair value of 
financial liabilities atuibutable co own creditworthiness. ne! of tax<3l (173) 

Less: Intangible assets: 

Goodwill, net of related DTJ .. s'4l 21,448 

Iden ti fiahle intangible assets otJ1cr than MS Rs., nel of related IYl'Ls 4,73R 

Less: Defined benefit pension plan net assets 836 

Less: DTAs arising from net operating loss, foreign tax credit and general 
business credit carry-forwards(Sl 21,077 

Less: Excess over !Oo/o/15% limitations for other D'l:As, certain common stock investments, 
and MSRs<5l<6J 8,997 

Total Common Equity Tiel' 1 Capital $ 152,835 

Additional Tier I Capital 

Qualifying perpetual preferred stoek<11 $ 19,069 

Qualifying !rust preferred securitics(7
l 1,372 

Qualifying noncon!rolling interests 28 

Regulatory Capital Deductions: 

Less: Permitted ownership interests in covered funds(~) 618 

I .ess: Minimum regulatory capital requirements of insurance underwriting subsidiaries(~) 60 

Total Additional Tier l Capital $ 19,791 

Total Tier I Capital (Common Equity Tier I Ca(lital + Additional Tier 1 Capital) $ 172,626 

Tier 2 Capital 

Qualifying subordinated debt $ 23,278 

Qualifying trust preferred securities<'°> 319 

Qualifying noncontrolling interests 37 

Excess of eligible credit reserves over expe<.:!ed credit losses<11
> 8:27 

Regulatory Capital Deduction: 

Less: Minimum regulatory capital requirements of insurance underwriting suhsidiaries<9
> 60 

Total Tier 2 Capital $ 24,401 

Total Capital (Tier 1 Capitul + Tier 2 Ca1>itali'2l $ 197,027 

December 3 I, 
2016 

$ 206,051 

129 

(560) 

(61) 

20.858 

4,876 

857 

21,337 

9,357 

$ 149,516 

$ 19,069 

1,371 

28 

533 

61 

$ 19.874 

$ 169,390 

$ 22,818 

317 

36 

660 

61 

$ 23,770 

$ 193,160 

(I) l~suance costs of$184 million n:laled lo prclcrrcd stock outstanding at March 31, 2017 ,md December JI, 2016, arc excluded from common stockholders' 
equity and nened against preferred stock in accordance with l'cderal Reserve 13omd regulatory reporting Te\1Uircmcnts, which differ frotn those under U.S. 
(i/\/\P 

(2) Common Equity Tier l Capital is adjusted tor accumL1iatcd net unrealized gains (losses) on c;ash llow hedges included in AOC! that relate to the hedging of 
items not recognized at foir value on the balance sheet. 

Foo!notes continue on the following page. 
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(3) The cumulative impacl of change~ in Citigroup's own crcditworthint:ss in valuing liabilities for which the foir v11Jue option has been elected a11d own-credit 
valuation adjus1men1s on derivatives are excluded from Co111,11011 E<1uity lier I Capital, in accordance with 1hc U.S. I3asel Ill rules. 

(4) Includes goodwill "embedded" in the valuation of significant common stock investments in unconsolidated linancial institutions. 
(5) OfCiti's arproximatcly $45.9 billion of net OTt\s at March 31, 2017, approximately $17.2 billio11 were includable in Common [quityTier I Capital 

pursuant to the U.S. Rase! Ill rules, while approximately $28.7 billion were excluded. Lxcluded from Citi's Common Equity Tier l Capital at March 31, 
2017 was a total or approximatt:ly $30.1 billion of 11ct DTAs arising from net opernting loss, foreign tax credit and general business credit carry-forwards as 
well as temporary dilli:rences, reduced by approximately $1.4 billion ofnel DTLs primarily associated with goodwill ,mu certuin other intangible assets. 
Separately, under !he U.S. I3.ist:I Ill rules, goodwill and these other intangible assets are deducted net of associated DTLs in arriving at Common Lquity 
Tier I Capital. DTAs arising from net opernting loss, foreign lax credit and general business credit carry-forwards are n:<1uired to be fully deducted from 
Co111mo11 '"'quity Tier I Capital under full implementation oflhe U.S. B.isel Ill rnles; whereas OTt\s arising fro,11 1empornry dilTerences are deducted from 
Common F.quity Tier I Capital, if in excess of I 0'%/15% I imitations. 

(6) i\ssets subject lo IOo/o/15% limitatio11~ include MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and signilicalll common stock investments in 
unconsolidated fi11a11cial institutions. 1\t March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, this deduction related only 10 DTAs arising from temporary differences 
that exceeded the 10% limitution. /\ccordingly, approximately $9.0 billion oflYIAs arising from temporary diflerences were excluded from Citi's Common 
f-:quity Tier I Capital at Mmch 31, 20l 7. Changes to the U.S. eorpornte tax regime that impact the value or Citi's DTAs arising from tempora1y differences, 
which exceed the then current amount deducted from Cili's Common Equity Tier I Capital, would further reduce Cit i's regulatory capital to the cxtc11t or 
such excess aller lax. For additional infol'mation regarding polenliul U.S. corporate tax reform, sec "Risk Pactors-Strategic Risks" in Citigrnup's 2016 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

(7) Rq>rcscnts Citigroup Capital XIII trust preferred securities, which are permanently gra11dfathcrcd as Tier I Capital under the U.S. Ba.~cl Ill rules. 
(X) Rankingentilies are required to he in compliance with the Volcker Rule of the Oodd-Frank Act that prohibits conducting certain proprietary investment 

activities and limit, their ownership of, and relationships with, coveied funds. Accordingly, Citi is required by the Volcker Rule to deduct from Tier 1 
Capital ,di permitted ownership interests in covered Jii11ds 11ml were acquil'cd after December 31, 2013. 

(9) 50% of lhe minimum regulatory car ital req1,iremenls of insurmm: underwriting subsidiaries must be deducted from each of Tier I Capital a11d Tier 2 
Capital. 

( 10) Represents lhe amount of non-grandfathered ln1sl preli:rred securities eligible fol' inclusion in Tier 2 Capital under the lJ.S. Basel I I I rules, whicl1 will be 
fully phased-out oflier 2 Capital hy January I, 2022. 

( 11) Advanc1:d Approaches banking organizations arc pcrmiuecl to include in Tier 2 Capital eligible credit reserves that exceed expected credit losses to the 
extent lhal the excess reserves do 1101 exceed 0.6% or credit risk-weighted assets. 

(12) Total Capital as calculated under Advanced Approach1:s, which differs from the Standardized Approach in the treatment of the amount of eligible eredil 
reserves indudable in Tier 2 Carita!. 
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Citigroup C(lpit(I/ Rol(forwar<I Under Bltsel JJI (Advance,/ Approacltes with Full lmplemen/(ltio,i) 

111 millions flj dollars 

Common E<111ity Tier l Capital 

Balance, beginning of period 

Net income 

Common and preferred stock dividends declared 

Net increase in treasury stock 

Net decrease in common stock and additional paid-in capital 

Net decrease in foreign. currency translation adjustment net of hedges, net or lax 

Net decrease in unrealized losses on securities AFS, net of tax 

Net increase in defined benefit plans liability adjws!ment, net of tax 

Net change in adjustment related to changes in fair value of financial liabilities 
attributable to own creditworthiness, net of tax 

Net increase in goodwill, net of related DTLs 

Net decrease in identifiable intangible assets other than MSRs, net of related DTLs 

Net decrease in defined benefit pension plan net assets 

Net decrease in DTAs arising from net operating loss, foreign tax credit and general 
business credit carry-forwards 

Net decrease in e;:xcess over IOo/u/15% limitations for other DTAs, ct:rtain common stock 
investments and MSRs 

Other 

Net increase in Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 

Common £quity Tier 1 Capital Balance, end of period 

Additional Tier I Capital 

Balance, beginning of pel'iod 

Net increase in qualitying trust preferred securities 

Net increase in permitted ownership interests i11 covered funds 

Other 

Net decrease in Additional Tier 1 Capital 

Tier 1 Capital Balance, end of period 

Tier 2 Capital 

Balance, beginning of period 

Net increase in qualifying subordinated debt 

Net incm1se in excess of eligihle credit reserves over expected credit losses 

Other 

Net increase in Tier 2 Capital 

Tier 2 Capital Balance, end of period 

Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital+ Tier 2 Capital) 
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Three months ended 
March 31, 2017 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

149,512 

4,090 

(746) 

(1,277) 

(429) 

1,318 

220 

(12) 

52 

(590) 

138 

21 

303 

321 

(86) 

3,323 

152,835 

19,874 

1 

(85) 

I 

(83) 

172,626 

23,770 

460 

167 

4 

631 

24,401 

197,027 



Citigroup Risk-Weighted Assets Umler Bt1sel III (Full Implementation) 

In millions of dollars 

Credit Risk 
Market Risk 

Operational Risk 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets 

Total risk-weighted assets under the Basel 111 
Advanced Approaches increased slightly from year-end 
2016, substantially due to an increase in market risk­
weighted assets, partially offset by a decrease in operational 
risk-weighted assets due to quarterly updates to model 
parameters, as well as a decline in credit risk-weighted 
assets. The decrease in credit risk-weighted assets under the 
Basel TH Advanced Approaches was primarily due to 
decreases in residential mortgage and qualifying revolving 
(cards) exposures, decreases in OTC derivative exposures 
and derivatives CVA, as well as the previously-announced 
sale of a po1tion ofCiti's mo1tgage servicing rights and 
sales of cettain legacy assets, partially offset by the impact 
ofFX translation and higher corporate loan exposures. 

Total risk-weighted assets under the Rasel Ill 
Standardized Approach increased due to substantially 
higher credit and market risk-weighted assets. The increase 
in credit risk-weighted assets under the Hase! Ill 
Standardized Approach resulted from the impact of FX 
translation, increases in commercial loans and 
commitments, and increases in rcpo-style transactions, 
partially offset by a reduction in qualifying revolving 
(cards) and residential mortgage exposures as well as the 
previously-announced sale or a portion of Citi 's mortgage 
servicing rights and sales of cc11ai11 legacy assets. 

The increase in market risk-weighted assets under both 
approaches over this period was primarily due to increases 
in exposure levels subject to Stressed Value at Risk and 
comprehensive risk, as well as an increase in positions 
subject to securitization charges. 

$ 

$ 

39 

March 31, 2017 

Advanced Standardized 
Approaches Approach 

791,683 $ 1,093,921 
72,247 72,526 

327,573 

1,191,503 $ 1,166,447 

December 3 I. 2016 

Adva11ced Standardized 
Approaches Approach 

$ 796,399 $ 1,083,428 

64,006 64,528 

329,275 
$ 1,189,680 $ 1,147,956 



Citigroup Risk-Weighted Assets Roliforwartl (Basel Ill At/v(lnced Approaches with Full Implementation) 

In miflions qj'doflars 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets, beginning of period 

Changes in Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 

Net decrease in retail exposures!l 1 

Net increase in wholesale cxposurcs<2J 

Net decrease in repo-style transactions 

Net decrease in sccuritization exposures 

Net increase in equity exposures 

Net decrease in over-the-counter (OTC) derivativesPJ 

Net decrease in derivalives CYAC4
l 

Net increase in other cxposures<5l 

Net decrea~e in supervisory 6% multiplicl61 

Net decrease in Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 

Changes in Market Risk-Weighted Assets 

Net increase in risk levcls'71 

Ne! decrease due to model and methodology updatcs<gl 

Net increase in Market Risk-Weighted Assets 

Net decrease in Operntional Risk-Weighted Assets<9l 

Total Risk-Weighted Assets, end of period 

Three months ended 
March 31, 2017 

$ 1,189,680 

(4,312) 

4,445 

(197) 

(235) 

542 

(4,199) 

(1,061) 

508 

(207) 

$ (4,716) 

$ 10,995 

(2,754) 

$ 8,241 

$ (1,702) 

$ 1,191,503 

(I) Retail exposures decreased during the three months ended Mmch 31, 2017 primarily due to residential mol'tgage loan sales and repayments, divestitures ol' 
certain legacy assets and reductions in qualifying revolving (cards) exposures attributable to seasonal holiday spending repayments, partially ollset by the 
impact ol'FX translation. 

(2) Wholesale exposures increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 primarily d11c lo increases in commercial loans and Joan commihnents, as 
well as the impact of FX translation. 

(3) OTC derivatives decreased during the three months ended Ma1ch 31, 2017 primarily due to changes in tilir value and improved portfolio credit quality. 
(4) Derivatives CVA decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 primarily driven by model enhancements, partially offset hy increased exposure 

and volatility. 
(5) Other exposures include cleared transactions, unsettled transactions, assets other than those reportable in specific exposure categories and non-material 

portfolios. 
(6) Supervisoay 6% multiplier docs not apply to derivatives CV/\. 
(7) Risk levels increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 primarily due to increases in exposure levels subject to Stressed Value at Risk and 

comprehensive risk, as well as an increase in positions subject to securitization charges. 
(8) Risk-weighted assets declined during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due to changes in model inputs regarding volatility, as well as methodology 

changes for sticmford specific risk charges. 
(9) Uuring the first quarter of 2017, operatio11al risk-weighted assets decreased hy $1. 7 bi II ion due to (llmrterly updates to model parameters. 
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Suppfemcmlltry Levemge Ratio 
Citigroup's Supplementary Leverage ratio was 7.3% for 
the first quarter of 2017, compared lo 7.2% for the fourth 
quarter of 2016. The growth in the ratio qua,tcr-over­
quarlcr was principally driven by an increase in Tier 1 
Capital attributable largely to quarterly net income of$4.1 
billion, which was pa1tially offset by an increase in 1otal 
Leverage Exposure primarily due to growth in average on­
balance sheet assets as well as an increase in the potential 
future exposure on derivative con!racts. 

The following table sets forth Cit i's Supplementary 
Leverage ratio and related components, assuming rull 
implementation under the U.S. Basel II[ rules, for the three 
months ended March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. 

Citigroup /Jase/ 11/ Supplementmy Leverage Rfllio ,md Related Components (Full lmpfementution) 

In millions ofdol/ars. except 1·alios 

Tier 1 Capital 

Total Leverage Ex1iosure (TU:.) 

On-balance sheet assets11 l 

Certain off-balance sheet exposures:l2l 

Po!ential future exposure on derivative con!racts 

Etlcctivc notional of sold credit derivatives, nd3J 

Countcrparty credit risk for repo-style !ransactionsc4J 

Unconditionaiiy canceiiabie commitments 

Other off-balance sheet exposure.~ 

Total of certain off-balance sheet exposures 

I .ess: Tier I Capital deductions 

Total Leverage Exposure 

Supplementary Leverage ratio 

(I) Keprescnts the daily average ofon-bahmce sheet assets for the quarter. 

Ma,·ch 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 

$ 172,626 $ 169,390 

$ 1,830,554 $ 1,819,802 

220,573 211,009 

65,584 64,366 

25,205 22,002 

67,101 66,663 
221,105 219,428 

$ 599,568 $ 583,468 

57,774 57,879 

$ 2,372,348 $ 2,345,391 

7.28% 7.22% 

(2) Represents the average or certain off-balm1ce sheet exposures calculated as or the las! day of each month in the quarter 
(3) Under the lJ.S. Hase! Ill rules, banking organizations are required to include in TI.F the ellt:ctive notional amount of sold credit derivatives, with neuing of 

exposures permitted if certain conditions are met. 
(4) Kepo-style transactions include repurd1ase or reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing or securities lending transactions. 

Citibank's Supplementary Leverage ratio, assuming 
full implemen!ation under the U.S. Basel III rules, was 
6.7% for the first quarter of 2017, compared to 6.6% forthe 
fou11h quarler of 2016. The growth in the ratio quarler-over­
quartcr was prindpally driven by an increase in Tier I 
Capital attributable largely to quarterly net income, 
partially offset by cash dividends paid by Citibank to its 
parent, Citicorp, and which were subsequently remitted to 
Ci Li group. 
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Regulatory Capital Standards Developments 
The Basel Comminee on Banking Supervision (Basel 
Committee) issued various proposed and final rules during 
the first quarter 01'2017, which are designed to provide 
further clarification, modification or enhancement to ce11ain 
clements of the Basel m capital framework. 

ltlcmtification amt Management of Step-in Risk 
In March 2017, the Rase! Commiucc issued a second 
consultative document which proposes guidelines regarding 
the identification and management of so-called "step-in 
risk," which is defined as "the risk that a bank decides to 
provide financial suppo11 to an unconsolidated entity that is 
facing stress, in the absence of, or in excess of, any 
conlractual obligations to provide such support." This 
consultative document establishes a proposed framework 
that would be used by banks for conducting a self­
assessment of step-in risk, which would also be reported to 
each bank's respective national supervisors. The self­
assessment of step-in risk would consider the risk 
characteristics of ce11ain unconsolidated entities, as well as 
the banks' relationship to such entities. The proposed 
framework, however, would not require any additional 
regulatory capital or liquidity charges beyond the current 
Basel JII rules. 

Pillar 3 Disclosure Requirements - Comolitlaled am( 
Enltancetl Framework 
In March 2017, the Basel Committee issued a final rule 
which adopts further revisions arising from the second 
phase of its review or the "Pillar 3" disclosure 
requirements, and which builds on the initial revisions from 
phase one of the review which were finalized in January 
2015. 

The final rule consolidates all existing Basel 
Committee disclosure requirements into the Pillar 3 
framework, with these constituting the disclosure 
requirements regarding the composition or capital, leverage 
ratio, Liquidity Coverage Ratio, Net Stable runding Ratio, 
indicators for measuring the global systemic importance of 
banks, Countercyclical Capital Huffer, interest rate risk in 
the banking book, and remuneration. Moreover, the tinal 
rule introduces enhancements to the Pillar 3 framework, in 
pai1, by incorporating a "dashboard" of a banking 
organization's key regulatory capital and liquidity metrics. 
Lastly, the final rule sets forth revisions and additions to the 
Pillar 3 framework resulting from ongoing reforms to the 
regulatory capital framework, including incorporating 
disclosure requirements arising from the Financial Stability 
Hoard's total loss-absorbing capacity (TL/\C) regime 
applicable to global systemically impo11ant banks (GSIBs), 
and revised disclosure requirements for market risk 
attributable to the revised market risk framework. 

The final rule does not include disclosure requirements 
arising from the Basel Committee's ongoing finalization of 
the Rase! 111 reforms, such as those with respect to certain 
potential revisions to credit and operational risk disclosures, 
which will be included within the scope of the third phase 
of the review of the Pillar 3 framework. 
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Citi is currently subject lo the Advanced Approaches 
disclosure requirements under the U.S. Basel Ill rules. The 
U.S. banking agencies may revise the nature and extent of 
these disclosure requirements in the rururc, as a result of the 
Basel Committee's revised Pillar 3 disclosure requirements. 

Reguh1t01y Trelttment of Accounting Provisionsfor 
Expected Cre,iit Losses - l11terim Approach ftnd 
Transitiomtl Arra11geme11ts 
rn March 2017, the Basel Committee issued a final rule 
which retains, for an interim period, the current Basel rn 
treatment, under both the Standardized Approach and 
Internal Ratings-Based Approaches, applicable to 
accounting prnvisions for credit losses. Such measure is in 
recognition of the promulgation by both the International 
Accounting Standards Hoard and more recently the U.S. 
Financial Accounting Standards Hoard of new accounting 
pronouncements (lFRS 9, "Financial lnstn,ments," and 
ASU 2016-13, "Financial instruments - Credit losses," 
respectively) regarding the impairment of financial assets 
and adoption of provisioning standards which incorporate 
forward-looking assessments in the estimation of expected 
credit losses, which represents a substantial depatture from 
the recognition or credit losses under the current incurred 
loss model. Measuring the impai1ment of loans and other 
financial assets under expected credit loss models may 
result in earlier recognition o(~ and higher accounting 
provisions for, credit losses, and consequently may increase 
volatility in regulatory capital. The current Basel II[ 

treatment is being retained so as to afford the Basel 
Committee additional time in which to thoroughly consider 
and develop a permanent regulatory (;apital treatment with 
respect to accounting provisions for expected credit losses. 

Moreover, the final rule provides for optional 
transitional arrangements, which may be availed by 
jurisdictions, that would permit banking organizations lo 
more evenly absorb the potentially significant adverse 
impact on regulato1y capital arising from the recognition or 
higher expected credit loss provisions. The final rule also 
establishes standards with which these transitional 
arrangements must comply. 

The U.S. banking agencies may revise the Basel Ill 
rules in the future in conjunction with the adoption by U.S. 
hanking organizations or the current expected credit loss 
model as set fo11h under ASU 2016-13. 

Revised Assessment Fmmeworhfor Glohal Systemiclllly 
lmport,mt Bttnks 
ln March 2017, the Basel Committee issued a consultative 
document which proposes revisions to the framework for 
assessing the global systemic impo11a11ce of'banks. The 
current framework employed by the Hasel Committee as lo 
the identification of USIBs and the assessment of a 
surcharge, is based primarily on quantitative measurement 
indicators underlying five equally weighted broad 
categories of systemic importance: (i) size, (ii) 
interconnectedness, (iii) cross-jurisdictional activity, (iv) 
substitutability/financial institution infrastructure, and (v) 
complexity. With the exception of size, each or the other 



categories are comprised or multiple indicators, and 
amounting to 12 indicators in total. 

The proposal, which reflects the results of the Basel 
Committee's planned initial review, sets forth several 
modifications to its GSIB framework, the most significant 
of which for Citi would be the removal of the existing cap 
on the substitutability/financial institution infrastructure 
catego1y. Among the other changes proposed by the Basel 
Committee and estimated to be or lesser impact to Citi, 
would be the introduction witJ1in the substitutability/ 
financial institution infrastructure category of a trading 
volume indicator, accompanied by an equivalent reduction 
in the cutTent weighting of the existing underwriting 
indicator. Moreover, the Basel Committee's proposed 
requirement to expand the scope of consolidation to include 
exposures of insurance subsidiaries within the size, 
interconnectedness, and complexity categories would raise 
the global aggregate of these respective measures of 
systemic importance to which all GSlBs are subject, and as 
a result it is estimated that Citi would benefit on a relative 
basis vis-a-vis certain other GSlBs, given that its insurance 
subsidiaries arc presently consolidated under U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles ,md for regulatory pui'poscs. 
Aside from these proposed modifications, the Basel 
Committee is also separately seeking feedback on the 
potential for a new indicator regarding sho11-term wholesale 
funding. 

rn contrast, a U.S. bank holding company that is 
designated a GSrB under the Federal Reserve Board's rule, 
is required, on an annual basis, to calculate a surcharge 
using two methods, and is subject to the higher of the 
resulting two surcharges. The first method ("method l ") is 
based on the same live broad categories of systemic 
impo11ance resident under the Basel Committee's 
framework to identify a GSIR and derive a surcharge. 
Under the second method ("method 2"), the substitutability 
category is replaced with a quantitative measure intended to 
assess the extent of a GS 1B 's reliance on short-term 
wholesale runding. 

Accordingly, if the Federal Reserve Board were to 
adopt the Basel Committee's proposed revisions with 
respect to the U.S. GSIB framework, Citi's method I GSTI3 
surcharge would increase from its 2017 level of2% to an 
estimated 2.5%, while its estimated method 2 GSIB 
surcharge would remain unchanged at its 2017 level of 3%. 
Fui1her, while it is currently estimated that under these 
circumstances method 2 would remain Citi's binding 
constraint for GSlB surcharge purposes, nonetheless an 
increase in Citi's method 1 GSIB surcharge could impact 
the extent to which Citi satisfies certain 'l'LAC minimum 
requirements in the future. 
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Tangible Common Equity, Book Value Per Share, Tangible 
Book Value Per Share and Returns on Equity 
Tangible common equity (TCE), as defined by Citi, represents 
common stockholders' equity less goodwill and identifiable 
ntangible assets (other than MSRs). Other companies may 

calculate TCE in a different manner. TCE, tangible book value 
per share and returns on average TCE are non-GAAP financial 
measures. 

Ir, millions of dollars or shares, except per share amoums 

Total Citigrnu11 stockholde1·s' equity 

Less: Preferred stock 

Common stockholders' equity 

Less: 

Goodwill 

Identifiable intangible assets (other than MSRs) 

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets (other than MSRs) related to assets held-for-sale 

Tangible common equity (TCE) 

Common shares outstimding (CSO) 

Book value per share (common equity/CSO) 

Tangible book value per share (TCE/CSO) 

In millions of dollars 

Net income available to common shareholders 

Average common stockholders' equity 

Average TCE 

I .ess: Average net OT/\s excluded from Common Equity Tier I Capita1'11 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Man:h 31, 
2017 

228,132 

19,253 

208,879 

22,265 

5,013 

48 

181,553 

2,753.3 

75.86 

65.94 

Three months 
ended March 31, 

2017 

$ 3,789 

$ 207,040 

$ 180,288 

28,951 

Average TCE, excluding avernge net DTAs excluded from Common Equity Tier I Capital $ 151,337 

Return on average common stockholders' et1uity 

Ueturn on average TCE (ROTCE)(2l 

Return on average TCE, excluding average net DTAs excluded from Common Equity Tier I 
Capital 

7.4'Yo 

8.5 

I0.2 

Decem her 3 I, 

2016 

$ 225,120 

19,253 

$ 205,867 

21,659 

5,114 

72 

$ 179,022 

2,772.4 

$ 74.26 

64.57 

Three months 
ended March 31, 

2016 

$ 3.291 

$ 207,084 

$ 181,336 

29,988 

$ 151,348 

6.4% 

7.3 

8.7 

(I) Represents average net DT1\s excluded in ari-iving llt Common E11uity Tier I Capital under full implementation of the U.S. Rascl Ill rules. The avernge is b!lsed 
upon quarter-end amounts over the most recent two quurtei-s through Mim:h JI, 201 7 and March 31, 20 l 6, respcclivcly. 

(2) ROTCF. represents annualized net income available to common shareholders c1s c1 percentage of average TCE. 
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MANAGING GLOBAL RISK 
CREDIT RISK(() 
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(I) for additional information regarding certain credit risk, market risk and other quantitative and qualitative infonnalion, refer to Citi's Pillar 3 Basel Ill Advanced 
Approaches Disclosures, as required by lhe rules of the federal Rese1ve Hoard, on <.:iti's Investor Relations website. 
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MANAGING GLOBAL RISK 

For Citi, effective risk management is of primary importance 
to its overall operations. Accordingly, Citi's risk management 
·1rocess has been designed to monitor, evaluate a1\d manage 
the principal risks it assumes in conducting its activities. 
Specifically, the activities that Citi engages in, and the risks 
those activities generate, must be consistent with Citi's 
mission and value proposition, the key principles that guide it, 
and Citi's risk appetite. 

For more information on Citi's management of global 
risk, including its three lines of defense, see "Managing 
Global Risk" in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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CREDIT RISK 

For additional information on credit risk, including Citi's 
credit risk management, measurement and stress tesling, sec 
"Credit Risk" and "Risk Factors" in Ci ti's 2016 Annual Report 
on Form 10-K. 

CONSUMER CREDIT 
Citi provides traditional retail banking, including commercial 
banking, and credit card products in 19 countries through 
North America GCB, Latin America GCB and Asia GCB. The 
retail banking products include consumer mortgages, home 
equity, personal, commercial Joans and lines of credit, and 
similar related products with a focus on lending to prime 
customers. Citi uses its risk appetite framework to define its 

In billion.v of dollars 

Retail banking: 

Mortgages 

Commercial banking 

Personal and other 

Total retail banking 

Cards: 

Citi-brandcd cardsC2J 

Citi retail services 

Total cards 

Total GCB 

GCB regional distribution: 

Nonh America 

Lalin America 

llsia<3l 

Total GCB 

Corporate / Other 

Total consumer loans 

(I) F:nd-of~pcriod loans include interest und fees on credit cinds. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

lcuding parameters. In addition, Citi uses proprietary scoring 
models for new customer approvals. As stated in "Global 
Consume,· Banking' above, GCB's overall strategy is to 
leverage Citi's global footprint and seek to be the preeminent 
bank for the affiuent and emerging affluent consumers in large 
urban centers. ln credit cards and in cettain retail markets, 
Cili serves customers in a somewhat broader set of segments 
and geographies. GCB's commercial banking business 
focuses on small to mid-sized businesses. 

Consumer Credit Portfolio 
The following tables show Citi's quarterly end-of-period 
consumer loans:<1

> 

IQ'l6 

82.2 $ 

32.2 

27.6 

142.0 $ 

87.8 $ 

42.5 

130.3 $ 

272.3 $ 

59% 

9 

32 

!00% 

45.3 $ 

317.6 $ 

2Q'16 

81.6 $ 

32.6 

27.2 

141.4 $ 

100.1 $ 

43.3 

143.4 $ 

284.8 $ 

62% 

8 

30 

100% 

41.3 $ 

326.1 $ 

3Q'16 

81.4 $ 

33.2 

27.0 

141.6 $ 

103.9 $ 

43.9 

147.8 $ 

289.4 $ 

62% 

8 

30 

100% 

39.0 $ 

328.4 $ 

4Q'16 

79.4 $ 

32.0 

24.9 

136.3 $ 

108.3 $ 

47.3 

155.6 $ 

291.9 $ 

64% 

8 

28 

100% 

33.2 $ 

325.1 $ 

IQ'17 

81.2 

33.9 

26.3 

14I.4 

105.7 

44.2 

149.9 

291.3 

62% 

9 

29 

100% 

29.3 

320.6 

(2) In the second quarter of2016, Citi completed the ucquisition of the $10.6 hill ion Co~tco lJ.S. co-hrnnded credit card portfolio. 
(3) Asia includes loans and le.ises in cerrnin EMEA countries for all periods presented. 

For information on changes to Citi's end-of-period 
consumer loans, see "Liquidity Risk Loans" below. 

47 



Overall Consumer Credit Trends 
The following charts show the quarterly trends in 
delinquencies and net credit losses across both retail banking, 
including commel'cial banking, and cards for total GCB and by 
egion. 

Global Consumer Banking 

-+- NCL -.-,90+ DPD 

2·22% 1.99% 2.05% 2.04% 2.02% 210% 2.24% 
1.87% · 

0.74% 0.74% 0.77% 0.74% 0.69% 0.75% 0.79% 0.77% 
I f I i I J 

20'15 30'15 40'15 1Q'16 2Q'16 3Q'16 40'16 10'17 

North America 

_.,_ NCL -e,.... 90+ DPD 

2·58% 2 2s01 2 "2°' 2.21% . ,. ,., /O 

2.63% 
2.34% 2.07'Yo 2.~42_"!._. --

-.. - ~- .....- .,.. -----. 
0.77% 0.79% 0.85% 0.84% 0.75% 0.85% 0.90% 0.89% -, 

2Q'15 3Q'15 4Q'15 10'16 2Q'16 3Q'16 4Q'16 1Q'17 

Latin America 

-+- NCL _.,_ 90+ DPD 

4.71% 4.70% 4.78% 4.58% 4 '>QO! 
·" IO 4.18% 4.20% 4.44% 

... _ 
1.62% 1.53% 1.43% 

-.,._,_ ---
1.28% 1.25% 1.23% 1.17% 1.12% 

20'15 30'15 40'15 10'16 2Q'16 30'16 4Q'16 1Q'17 

Asia111 

_.,_ NCL ___. 90+ DPD 

0.84% 0.80% 0.85% 0.76% 0.76% 0.78% 0.79% 0.78% 

0.42% 041% 041% 041% 0.42% 041% 0.42% 041% 
I I I I I I I I I 

2Q'15 3Q'15 4Q'15 1Q'16 2Q'16 3Q'16 4Q'16 1Q'17 

(I) Asia includes GCR activities in certain F,MF,A countries for all 
periods presented. 
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North America GCH provides mo11gages, home equity 
loans, personal loans and commercial banking products 
through Citi's retail banking network, and card products 
through Citi-branded cards and Citi retail .services businesses. 
The retail bank is concentrated in six major meuopolitan cities 
in the United States (for additional information 011 the U.S. 
retail bank, see "North America GCB" above). 

As of March 31, 2017, approximately 69% of North 
America GCB consumer loans consisted of Citi-branded and 
Citi retail services cards, which drove the overall credit 
pe1formance of North America GCB (for additional 
information on North America GCB's cards portfolios, 
including delinquencies and net credit losses, see "Credit Card 
Trends" below). 

l,atinAmerica GCJJ operates in Mexico through 
Citibanamex, one of Mexico's large.st banks, and provides 
credit cards, consumer mortgages, personal loans and 
commercial banking products. Latin America GCB serves a 
more mass market segment in Mexico and focuses on 
developing multi-product relationships with customers. 

As set forth in the chart above, 90 1 days past due 
delinquencies and net credit loss rates improved in Latin 
America GCB year-over-year as or the first qua1ter of 2017, 
while the delinquency rate decreased and the net credit loss 
rate increased qua1ter-over-quarter. The improvement in 
delinquencies was primarily driven by higher payment rates. 
The sequential increase in the net credit loss rate was driven 
by seasonality and lower loan growth. 

Asia GCB operates in 17 countries in Asia and EMEA 
and provides credit cards, consumer mo1tgages, personal loans 
and commercial banking products. 

As shown in the chart above, 90+ days past due 
delinquency and net credit loss rates were largely stable in 
Asia GCB year-over-year and quarter-over-quarter as of the 
first quai1er of 20 J 7. This stability reflects the strong credit 
profiles in Asia GCB's target customer segments. In addition, 
regulatory changes in many markets in Asia over the past few 
years have resulted i11 stable or improved portfolio credit 
quality, despite weaker macroeconomic co11ditions in several 
countries . 

For additional information on cost of credit, loan 
delinquency and other information for Citi's consumer loan 
portfolios, sec each respective business's results of operations 
above and Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 



Credit Card Trends 

The following charts show the quarterly trends in 
delinquencies and net credit losses for total GCB cards, Citi's 
North America Citi-branded cards and Citi retail services 
po11folios as well as for Citi's Latin America and Asia Citi­
branded cards pm1folios. 

Total Cards 

_._ NCL _...., 90+ DPD 

3.84% 
3.39% 3.35% 

-1.10% 1.11% 1.17% 1.17% 1.01% 1.07% 1.17% 1.17% 

2Q'16 30'15 40'15 10'16 20'16 30'16 4Q'16 1Q'17 

North America Citi-Branded Cards 

_._ NCL _.,_ 90+ DPD 

3.19% 
2.75% 2.79% 2.83% 2.82% 

3.11% 

.....-- .. ,.__,_ ...-- ---
0.11•1,, o.76% o.80% o.82% 0 66% o.75% 0.87% -0.85% 

1 I I I 

20'15 3Q'15 4Q'15 10'16 20'16 30'16 40'16 10'17 

North America Citi Retail Services 

_._ NCL .,.._ 90+ OPD 

4.30% 

-1.31% 1.44% 1.63% 
---- -1.56% 1.43% 1.51% 1.61% 1.66% 

2Q'15 30'15 4Q'15 1Q'16 2Q'16 3Q'16 4Q'16 1Q'17 
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Latin America Citi-Branded Cards 

_._ NCL ...... 90+ DPD 

11.44% 11.55% 10.63% 11.14% 

9.70% 9.52% 9.80% 

_.. 
3.39% 3.13% 3.20% 2.81% 2.90% 2.67% 2.71% 2.63% 

2Q'15 3Q'15 4Q'15 10'16 20'16 3Q'16 40'16 10'17 

Asia Citi-Branded Cards111 

-.-NCL ...,._90+ OPD 

2.43% 2.32% 2.27% 2.29% 2.16% 2.25% 2.20% .. 2.06% ..___ 
• • • 

-- -1.06% 1.01% 1.02% 1.02% 1.00% 1.05% 1.03% 1.00% 

2Q'15 3Q'15 40'15 10'16 20'16 30'16 40'16 10'17 

(I) Asia includes loans and leases in certain EMEA countries for all 
periods presented. 



North America GCB's Citi-branded cards po1tfolio issues 
prnprietary and co-branded cards. As shown in the chart 
above, 90+ days past due delinquency rates in Citi-branded 
cards increased year-over-year as of the first quruter of 2017 
lue to seasoning and the impact of changes in collection 

processes, and modestly decreased quarter-over-quaiter, due to 
the flow-through or delinquencies to credit losses related to 
the Costco conversion. Net credit loss rates increased yeai·­
over-year due to seasoning and the impact of changes in 
collection processes and quaitcr-ovcr quarter due to the flow­
through of delinquencies to credit losses related to the Costco 
conversion, seasonality and the impact to changes in collection 
processes. 

Citi retail services partners directly with more than 20 
retailers and dealers to offer private-label and co-branded 
consumer and commercial cards. Citi retail services' target 
market is focused on select industry segments such as 
specialty retail, consumer electronics and fuel. Citi retail 
services continually evaluates opportunities to add partners 
within target industries that have strong loyalty, lending or 
payment programs and growth potential. 

Citi retail services' delinquency and net credit loss rates 
increased year-over-year and quarter-over-quarter as or the 
first quarter of2017, primarily due to seasoning as well as the 
impact of changes in collection processes. The net credit loss 
rate also increased quarter-over-quaiter due to seasonality. 

Latin America GCB issues proprieta1y and co-branded 
cards. As set forth in the chart above, 90+ days past due 
delinquency rates have continued to improve or remained 
,table year-over-year and qua1ter-over-quarter as of the first 

1uartcr of 2017. Net credit loss rates decreased year-over­
year, primarily driven hy the higher payment rates, while net 
credit loss rates increased quarter-over-quarter due to 
seasonality. 

Asia GCIJ issues proprietary and co-branded cards. As 
set fo1th in the cha1t above, 90+ days past due delinquency 
and net credit loss rates have remained broadly stable, driven 
by mature and well-diversified cards portfolios. 

For additional information on cost or credit, delinquency 
and other information for Citi's cards po,tfolios, sec each 
respective business's results of operations above and Note 13 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

North Americ" Otrds FICO Distribution 
The following tables show the current FICO score 
distributions for Citi's North America Citi-branded cards and 
Cili retail services portfolios based on end of period 
receivables. FICO scores are updated monthly for 
substantially all or the portfolio and on a quarterly basis for 
the remaining portfolio. 
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Citi-Braoded 

December 31, 
FICO distribution March 31, 2017 2016 

> 720 61% 64% 

660 - 720 27 26 

620 - 660 7 6 

<620 5 4 

Total 100% 100% 

Citi Retail Services 

December 3 I, 
l<ICO distribution March 31, 2017 2016 

> 720 40% 42% 

660 - 720 35 35 

620 · 660 14 13 

<620 11 10 

Total IOO'Yo 100% 

The percentage orloans outstanding with borrowers with 
FICO scores greater than 720 declined sequentially due to 
seasonality reflecting high quality transactors with higher 
holiday spending as of year-end 2016. Otherwise the 
portfolios continued to demonstrate strong underlying credit 
quality. 

For additional information on FICO scores, see Note 13 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 



North America Consumer Mortgage Lemling 
Citi's North America consumer mo1tgage po11folio consists of 
both residential first mortgages and home equity loans. The 
following table shows the outstanding qua1terly end-of-period 
loans for Citi's North America residential first mo11gage and 
home equity loan portfolios: 

111 billions qf dol/an IQ'16 2Q'16 3Q'16 4Q'16 IQ'17 

GCB: 

Residential firsts $ 39.2 $ 40.1 $ 40.1 $ 40.2 $ 40.3 

Home equity 3.7 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.0 

Total GCB $ 42.9 $ 43.9 $ 44.0 $ 44.2 S 44.3 

Corporate/Otftet: 

Residential firsts $ 17.6 $ 15.8 $ 14.8 $ 13.4 $ 12.3 

I lome t:quity 18.3 17.3 16.1 15.0 )3.4 

Total Corporate/Otlter $ 35.9 $ 33.1 $ 30.9 $ 28.4 $ 25.7 

Total Citigroup-
North America $ 78.8 $ 77.0 $ 74.9 $ 72.6 $ 70.0 

For additional information on delinquency and net credit loss 
trends in Citi's consumer mortgage portfolio, see "Additional 
Consumer Credit Details" below. 

Home Equity loans-Revolving HELCJCs 
As set forth in the table above, Citi had $17.4 billion of home 
equity loans as of'March 31, 2017, of which $4.2 billion are 
fixed-rate home equity loans and $ 13 .2 billion are extended 
under home equity lines of credit (Revolving HELOCs). 
Fixed;rate home equity loans are fully amortizing. Revolving 
HELOCs allow for amounts to be drawn for a period of time 
with the payment or interest only and then, at the end of the 
draw period, then then-outstanding amount is converted to an 
amortizing loan, or "reset" (the interest-only payment feature 
during the revolving period is standard for this product across 
the industry). Upon reset, these borrowers will be required to 
pay both interest, usually at a variable rate, and principal that 
amortizes typically over 20 years, rather than the standard 30-
year amortization. 

Of'the Revolving HELOCs at March 31, 2017, $6.4 
billion had reset (compared to $6.2 billion at December 31, 
2016) and $6.8 billion were still within their revolving period 
that had not reset ( compared to $7 .8 billion at Deccm bcr 31, 
2016). The following chart indicates the F[CO and combined 
loan-to-value (CLTV) characteristics ofCiti's Revolving 
HELOCs po11folio and the year in which they reset: 
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North America Home Equity Lines of Credit Amortization - Citigroup 
Total ENR by Reset Year 
In billions of dollars 8S of M8rch 31, 2017 

S,J 0 224% 
-FIC0%0 ... CI..TV>IOO 

202 .. 
-flCO•i60,CLM 101) 

S3~ -·riCO(.?.-G"•,(l'1'V- •~ •IC4 

s~o 
ntO•MO,,ClJ\' •Dt •IOO 

t.46~ 
- ncof~•.et.Meo 

5;.1,:, 12ij% 
nco~cto.«M~ 

-.44},l,U"'-EN~ 

":>ao 

';15 I s,n 

$06 

soo 
... 2~1:1 4!01!- 20!G 2017 201R 20·19 :?IJ2U :.!Ol1 t 

Note: Totals may not sum due to rounding. 

Approximately 49% ofCiti's total Revolving IJELOCs 
portfolio had reset as of March 31, 2017 (compared to 44% as 
of Deccm bcr 31, 2016). Of the remaining Revolving I IELOCs 
portfolio, approximately 33% will commence amortization 
durino the remainder of2017. Citi's customers with Revolving I;> 

I IELOCs that reset could experience "payment shock" due to 
the higher required payments on the loans. Citi currently 
estimates that the monthly loan payment for its Revolving 
HELOCs that reset during the remainder of2017 could 
increase on average by approximately $354, or 146%. 
Increases in interest rates could further increase these 
payments given the variable nature of the interest rates on 
these loans post-reset. Of the Revolving HELOCs that will 
reset during the remainder of2017, approximately $95 
million, or 3%, of the loans have a CLTV greater than 100% 
as of March 31, 2017. Borrowers' high loan-to-value 
positions, as well as the cost and availability of refinancing 
options, could limit borrowers' ability to refinance their 
Revolving HELOCs as these loans begin to reset. 

Approximately 6.4% of the Revolving HELOCs that have 
reset as or March 31, 2017 were 30+ days past due, compared 
to 3.9% orthe total outstanding home equity loan po11folio 
(amortizing and non-amo11izing). This compared to 6.7% and 
3. 9%, respectively, as of December 31, 2016. As newly 
amortizing loans continue to season, the delinquency rate or 
Citi's total home equity loan portfolio could increase. In 
addition, resets to dale haw generally ou.:urre<l <luring a 
period of historically low interest rates, which Citi believes 
has likely reduced the overall "payment shock" to the 
bonower. 

Citi monitors this reset risk closely and will continue to 
consider any potential impact in determining its allowance for 
loan loss reserves. In addition, management continues to 
review and take additional actions to offset potential reset risk, 
such as a borrower outreach program to provide reset risk 
education and proactivcly working with high-risk borrowers 
through a specialized single point of contact unit. 



Additional Consumer Credit Details 

Consumer Loan Delinquency Amou11ts amt Ratio!i 

1£0)> 
loans<1

> 90+ days past duel2l 

Jn millions qf dollars, March 31, Mnrch 31, December 31, 
ex,·epl F.OP loan amounts in hi/lions 2017 2017 2016 

Global Consumer Btm/1i11g<3lC4> 

Total $ 291.3 $ 2,241 $ 2,293 $ 

Ratio 0.77°/., 0.79% 

Retail banking 

Total $ 141.4 $ 488 $ 474 $ 

Ratio 0.35% 0.35% 

North America 55.5 182 181 

Ratio 0.33% 0.33% 

Latin America 19.7 141 136 

Ratio 0.72% 0.76% 

Asids) 66.2 165 157 

Ratio 0.25% U.25% 

Cards 

Total $ 149.9 $ 1,753 $ 1,819 $ 

Ratio 1.17% 1.17% 

North America Citi-branded 82.2 698 748 

Ratio 0.85% 0.87% 

Norlh America-Citi retail services 44.2 735 761 

Ratio 1.66% 1.61% 

Latin America 5.2 137 130 

Ratio 2.63% 2.71% 

Asia(S) 18.3 183 180 

Ratio l.00% 1.03% 

Corporate!Other-Consumer<"l(7I 

Total $ 29.3 $ 684 $ 834 $ 

Ratio 2.45% 2.62% 

International 2.1 77 94 

Ratio 3.67% 3.92% 

North America 27.2 607 740 

Ratio 2.35% 2.52% 

Total Citigroup 320.6 $ 2,925 $ 3,127 $ 

Ratio 0.92'}/o 0.97% 

(I) F.nd-of-pcriod (J-::01') loans inclmlt: interi:st and fees on credit cards. 

30--89 days past dui.P' 

March 31, March 31, Decembt:r 31, March 31, 
2016 2017 2016 2016 

2,022 $ 2,516 $ 2,540 $ 2,360 

0.75% 0.87% 0.87% 0.87% 

498 $ 777 $ 726 $ 793 

0.35% 0.55% 0.54% 0.56% 

152 189 214 198 

0.29% 0.35':-'o 0.39% 0.38% 

172 246 185 256 

0.87'Yc 1.25% 1.03% 1.29% 

174 342 327 339 

0.25% 0.52% 0.52% 0.49% 

1.,524 $ 1,739 $ 1,814 $ 1,567 

1.17% 1.16% 1.17% 1.20% 

530 632 688 492 

0.82'X 0.77% 0.80% 0.76% 

665 730 777 688 

I .56o/t 1.65% 1.64% 1.62% 

149 145 125 152 

2.81'X 2.79% 2.60% 2.87% 

180 232 224 235 

I .02o/t 1.27% 1.28% 1.34% 

896 $ 615 $ 735 $ 929 

2.08-Y< 2.20% 2.31% 2.16% 

145 60 49 161 

2.27o/r 2.86% 2.04% 2.52% 

751 555 686 768 

2.05% 2.15% 2.33% 2.09% 

2,918 $ 3,131 $ 3,275 $ 3,289 

0.93o/r 0.98"/o 1.01% 1.05% 

(2) The ratios of90+ day.~ past due and 30-89 days past due are calculated based on EOJ> loans, net of unearned income. 
(3) The 90+ days past due ha lances for North America--Citi-branded and North America--Citi retail services are generally still accruing interest. Citigroup's policy 

is generally to accrue interest on credit card loans until 180 days past due, unless notification ofhankruptcy filing has been received earlier. 
(4) The 90+ days past due and 3(H\9 days past due and relati:d rnlios for GCB Norrh Americc, exclude IJ.S. rnmtgage Joans that are guaranteed by U.S. government· 

sponsored entities since the r,otcntial loss predominantly .-esidi:s within the U.S. govcrnment·sronsorcd entities. The amounts excluded for loans 90+ days past 
due and (EOP loans) were $313 million ($0.7 billion), $327 million ($0.7 billion) and $456 million ($1.1 billion) at Mal'ch 31, 2017, December 31, 2016, and 
March 31, 2016, respectively. The amounts excluded for loans 30-89 days past due (EOP loans have the same adjustment as above) were $84 million, $70 million 
and $86 million at March 31, 2017, December 31, 2016, and March 31, 2016, respectively. 

(S) Asia indudes delinquencies a11d loans in cc11ain EMEA count1ii:s for all periods presented. 
16) The 90• days past due and 30-K9 days past due and related ratios for CorporatdOther-Nol'lhAmerica consumer exclude IJ.S. moltgage loans that are 

guarnnh:ed by U.S. government-sponsored entities since the potential loss predominantly resides wilhin the IJ.S. government-sponsmed entities. The amounts 
excluded for loans 90+ days past due (and EOP loans) were $0.8 billion ($1.4 billion), $0.9 billio,1 ($1.4 billion) and $1.3 billion ($1.9 billion) at March 31, 2017, 
December 31, 2016, and March 31, 2016, respectively. The amounts excluded for loans 30-89 days past due (EOI' loans have the same adjustment 11s above) /or 
each period were $0. l billion, $0.2 billion and $0.2 hi Ilion at March 31, 2017, December 31, 2016, and Mal'ch 31, 2016, respectively. 
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(7) The Marell 31, 2017, December 31, 2016, and March 31, 2016 loans 90 1 days past due imd 3(H!9 days past due and related ratios for North America exclude 
$7 million, $7 millio11,m<.I $9 million, respectively, of loans that arc carried at foir v,due. 

Consumer L0<111 Net Credit Losses and Ratios 

Avera~e 
loans > Net credit losscsmm 

In millions ,if dollars. except average loan amounts in billions 1Q17 1Q17 4Q16 IQl6 

Global Con . ..umer Btmlci11g 
Total $ 289.6 $ 1,603 $ 1,516 $ 1,371 

Ratio 2.24% 2.10% 2.04% 

Retail banking 

Total $ 138.8 $ 236 $ 2R6 $ 221 

Ratio 0.69% O.R2% 0.64% 
North America 55.4 37 R3 25 

Ratio 0.27% 0.60% 0.19% 

Latin America 18.3 137 138 134 

Ratio 3.04% 2.97% 2.81% 
Asia141 65.1 62 65 62 

Ratio 0.39% 0.40% 0.37% 

Cards 

Total $ 150.8 $ 1,367 $ 1,230 $ 1,150 

Ratio 3.68% 3.2R% 3.52% 

Norlh America-Citi-lmmded 82.6 633 539 455 

Ratio 3.11% 2.61% 2.83% 

Nol'lh America-Retail services 45.3 520 483 453 
Ratio 4.66% 4.28% 4.14% 

Latin A rnerica 4.8 116 110 144 
Ratio 9.80% 8.75% I 1.14<r 

Asia(4l 18.l 98 98 98 
Ratio 2.20%, 2.25% 2.27% 

Corporate/Otlier-Consumerc J 

Total $ 31.7 $ 69 $ 60 $ 143 

Ratio 0.88'% 0.69% 1.25% 
International 2.1 26 32 78 

Ratio 5.02'Yo 5.30% 4.68% 
North America 29.6 43 28 65 

Ratio 0.59% 0.35% 0.66% 

Total Citigroup $ 321.3 $ 1,672 $ 1,576 $ 1,514 

Ratio 2.11%, 1.95% 1.92% 

(I) Average loans include interest a11d lees on credit cards. 
(2) The rntios of net credit losses arc calculated based on average loans, net of unearned income. 
(3) As a rcsull of the entry into agreements in October 2016 to sell its Hrazil and Argentina consumer banking businesses, these businesses were classilicd as held-for­

salc (HI'S). The Argentina consumer banking business sale closed at the end ol'thc lirst qumter 2017. As a result of HFS accounting treatment, approximately 
$42 million and $41 million of net creel ii losses (NC Ls) were recorded as a reduction in n::venue (Ot!ter revenue) during the fourth quarter of'2016 and first <1uar1er 
of 2017, respectively. Accordingly, these NC Ls are not included in this table. I .oans HFS are excluded from this table as they arc recorded in Othel' assets. 

(4) Asia includes NCLs .ind average loans in certain HMr;/1 co1111trics lor all periods presented. 
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CORPORATE CREDIT 
Consistent with its overall strategy, Citi's corporate clients 
are typically large, multi-national corporations which value 
Siti's global network. Citi aims to establish relationships 
Nith these clients that encompass multiple products, 
consistent with client needs, including cash management and 
trade services, foreign exchange, lending, capital markets 
and M&A advisory. 

Corporate Credit Portfolio 
The following table sets f011h Citi's corporate credit 
po11folio within JC() (excluding private bank), before 
consideration of collateral or hedges, by remaining tenor for 
the periods indicated: 

Due 
within 

In billions of dollars I year 

l)ireet oul.standings (on-balan<.:e sheettll $ 129 

Unfunded lending commitments (oft~balanec sheeti2> 113 

Total ex1losure $ 242 

(I) Includes drawn loans, ovcrdraf\s, bankers' acceptances and leases. 

At March 31, 2017 

Grenter 
than 
I yeaa· 

but Greater 
within than Total 
5 years 5 years exposure 

$ 82 $ 20 $ 231 

221 23 357 

$ 303 $ 43 $ 588 

At December 3 I, 2016 

Greater 
(han 
I year 

Due hut Greater 
within within than Total 
I year 5 years 5 years exposure 

$ 109 $ 94 $ 22 $ 225 

I03 218 23 344 

$ 212 $ 312 $ 45 $ 569 

(2) Includes unused commitments to lend, letters or credit and linancial guarantees. 

Portfolio Mix-<Jeogmplty, Cou11terpt1rly "nd hul11stry 
:iti's corporate credit po1tfolio is diverse across geography 

and counterparty. The following table shows the percentage 
by region based on Citi's internal management geography: 

Mllrch 31, Oecember 31, 
2017 2016 

North America 53% 55% 
EMEA 26 26 
Asia 13 12 

l.atin 1/merica 8 7 

Total 100% 100%, 

The maintenance of accurate and consistent risk ratings 
across the corporate credit portfolio facilitates the 
comparison of credit exposure across all lines of business, 
geographic regions and products. Counterparty risk ratings 
reflect an estimated probability of default for a counterparty 
and are derived primarily through the use of validated 
stalistical models, scorecard models and external agency 
ratings (under defined circumstances), in combination with 
consideration of factors specific to the obligor or market, 
such as management experience, competitive position, 
regulatory environment and commodity prices. Facility risk 
ratings are assigned that reflect the probability of default of 
the obligor and factors that affect the loss-given-default of 
,he facility, such as support or collateral. Internal obligor 
ratings that generally correspond to BBB and above are 
considered investment grade, while those below are 
considered non-investment grade. 
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Citigroup also has incorporated climate risk assessment 
and reporting criteria for certain obligors, as necessary. 
Factors evaluated include consideration of climate risk to an 
obligor's business and physical assets and, when relevant, 
consideration of cost-effective options to reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions. 

The following table presents the corporate credit 
po11folio by facility risk rating as a percentage of the total 
corporate credit portfolio: 

Total exposure 

March 31, Decemher 31, 
2017 2016 

I\ t\ A.I I\ I\! A 48% 48% 

BBB 34 34 

BB/B 16 16 

CCC or helow 2 2 

Total 100% 100% 

Note: Totttl exposure includes direct outstandings an<l unfunded lending 
commitnmlts. 



Citi's corporate credit portfolio is also diversified by 
industry. The following table shows the allocation ofCiti's 
total corporate credit portfolio by industry: 

Total exposure 

March 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

Transpo1tation and industrial 21% 22% 

Consumer retail and health 16 16 
Technology, media and telecom 12 12 

Power, chemicals, metal:; and 
mining II 11 

Energy 11nd commodities<1
> 8 9 

Real estate 7 7 

Banks/hroker-deakrs/fi1111nce 
companies 6 (i 

Hedge funds 5 5 
Insurance and special purpose 
entities 5 5 

Public sector 5 5 

Other indusll'ies 4 2 

Total 100% 100% 

Note: Total exposure includes direct outstllndings mul unfundcd lending 
commitmt:nls. 
(1) In addition to this exposure;:, Citi has energy-1elated exposure within 

the "Public seclOr" (e.g., energy-related state-owned eutities) and 
"Transportation and industrial" sector (e.g., off-shore drilling entities) 
inc\udt:d in the wble above.As ofMa1ch 31, 2017, Citi's total 
expos1m: to these energy-rdated entities remained largely consistent 
with the prior quarter, at approximately $6 billion, of which 
approximately $4 billion consisted of direct outstanding funded loans. 
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Expmmre to B,mks, Broke1·-Dealers mtd Finance 
Companies 
As or March 31, 2017, Citi's total corporate credit exposure 
to banks, hrokcr-dcalers and finance companies was 
approximately $37 billion, of which $26.2 billion 
represented direct outstanding funded loans, or 4% ofCiti's 
total outstanding loans. Also as of'March 31, 2017, 
approximately 76% ofCiti's bank, broker-dealers and 
finance companies total corporate credit exposure was rated 
investment grade. Included in the amounts noted above, as of 
March 31, 2017, Citi's total corporate credit exposure to 
banks was approximately $24.6 billion, with approximately 
$19.7 billion consisting of direct outstanding funded loans, 
or 3% of Citi's total outstanding loans. Of the approximate 
$24.6 billion as of March 31, 2017, approximately 28% 
related to Asia, 29% related to EMEA, 21 % related to North 
America and 23% related to Latin America. More than 72% 
of Citi's total corporate credit exposure to banks had a tenor 
of less than 12 months as of March 31, 2017. 

In addition to the corporate lending exposures described 
above, Citi has additional exposure to banks, broker-dealers 
and finance companies in the form of derivatives and 
securities financing transactions, which are typically 
executed as repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements or 
securities loaned or borrowed arrangements. As of March 31, 
2017, Citi had net derivative credit exposure to banks, 
broker-dealers and finance companies of approximately $8.8 
billion after the application of netting arrangements, legally 
enforceable margin agreements and other collateral 
arrangements. The collateral considered as part of the net 
derivative credit exposure was represented primarily by high 
quality, liquid assets. As of March 31, 2017, Citi had net 
credit exposure to banks, broker-dealers and finance 
companies in the form of securities financing transactions of 
$5.2 billion after the application of netting and collateral 
arrangements. The collateral considered in the net exposure 
for the securities financing transactions exposure was 
primarily cash and highly liquid investment grade securities. 



Credit Ri.~k Mitigation 
As pa11 of its overall risk management activities, Citigroup 
uses credit derivatives and other risk mitigants to hedge 
">ortions or the credit risk in its corporate credit portfolio, in 
.,ddition to outright asset sales. The results of the mark-to­
market and any realized gains or losses on credit derivatives 
are reflected primarily in Other revenue on the Consolidated 
Statement of Income. 

At March 3 l, 20 l 7 and December 31, 2016, $27.6 
billion and $29.5 billion, respectively, orthc corporate credit 
portfolio was economically hedged. Citigroup's expected 
loss model used in the calculation of its loan loss reserve 
does not include the favorable impact of credit derivatives 
and other mitigants that are marked-to-market. In addition, 
the reported amounts of direct outstandings and unfunded 
lending commitments in the tables above do not reflect the 
impact of these hedging transactions. The credit protection 
was economically hedging underlying corporate credit 
portfolio exposures with the following risk rating 
distribution: 

Rating of Hedged Exposure 

March 31, Decemher 31, 
2017 2016 

AAA/AA/A 16% 

BBB 49 
BB/B 31 

CCC orbdow 4 

Total 100% 

The credit protection was economically hedging 
underlying corporate credit portfolio exposures with the 
following industry distribution: 

16% 

49 
31 

4 

100% 
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Industry of Hedged Exposure 

M,wch 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

Transportation an<l industrial 28%, 29% 

Energy and commodities 19 20 

Consumer retail and health 13 10 

Technology, media and telecom 13 13 

Power, chemicals, metals and 
mining 12 12 

Public sector 6 5 

Banks/broker-dealers 4 4 

Insurance and special purpose 
e11tities 3 3 

Other industries 2 4 

Total 100% 100% 



ADDITIONAL CONSUMER AND CORPORATF, CREDIT DETAILS 

Loans Outstanding 

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr. 
In millions of do/la1w 2017 2016 2016 2016 2016 
Consumer loans 
In L: .S. t)ffices 

Mortgage and real cstatc<11 $ 71,170 $ 72,957 $ 75,057 $ 77,242 $ 79,128 
Installment, revolving credit, and other 3,252 3,395 3,465 3,486 3,504 
Cards 125,799 132,654 124,637 120,113 106,892 
Commercial and industrial 7,434 7, 159 6,989 7,041 6,793 

Total $ 207,655 $ 216,165 $ 210,148 $ 207,882 $ 196,317 
In offices outside the U.S. 

M01tgagc and real cstate(1l $ 43,822 $ 42,803 $ 45,751 $ 46,049 $ 47,831 
Installment, revolving credit, and other 26,014 24,887 28,217 27,830 28,778 
Cards 24,497 23,783 25,833 25,844 26,312 
Commercial and industrial 17,728 16,568 17,498 17,520 17.352 
Lease financing 83 81 113 140 139 

Total $ 112,144 $ 108,122 $ I 17,412 $ 117,383 $ 120,412 
Total consumer loans $ 319,799 $ 324,287 $ 327,560 $ 325,265 $ 316,729 
Unearned income<2l 757 776 812 817 826 
Consumer loans, net of u nearncd income ~ 320,556 $ 325,063 $ 328,372 $ 326,082 $ 317,555 
Corpol'ate lollns 

In U.S. otliccs 

Commercial and industrial $ 49,845 $ 49,586 $ 50,156 $ 50,286 $ 44,104 
Loans to financial insti!utions 35,734 35,517 35,801 32,001 36,865 
Mortgage and real estate<!} 40,052 38,691 41,078 40,175 38,697 
Installment, revolving credit, an<l other 32,212 34,501 32,571 32,491 33,273 
Lease financing 1,511 1,518 1,532 1,546 1,597 

Total $ 159,354 $ 159,813 $ 161,138 $ 156,499 $ 154,536 
In offices outside the lJ.S. 

Commercial and industrial $ 87,258 $ 81,882 $ 84,492 $ 87,432 $ 85,836 
Loans to financial institutions 33,763 26,886 27,305 27,856 28,652 
Mmtgagc and real estate(t) 5,527 5,363 5,595 5,455 5,769 
Installment, revolving credit, and other 16,576 19,965 25,462 24,855 21,583 
Lease financing 253 251 243 255 280 
Governments and official institutionl, 5,970 5,850 6,506 5,757 5,303 

Total $ 149,347 $ 140,197 $ 149,603 $ 151,610 $ 147,423 
Total corporate loans $ 308,701 $ 300,010 $ 310,741 $ 308,109 $ 301,959 
Unearned incomem (662) (704) (678) (676) (690) 
Corpornte lo:rns, net of unearned income $ 308,039 $ 299,306 $ 3 10.063 $ 307.433 $ 301,269 
Total loans-net of unearned income $ 628,595 $ 624.369 $ 638.435 $ 633,515 $ 6 18,824 
Allowance for loan losse~---on drawn exposures (12,030) (12,060) (12,439) (12,304) (12,712) 
Total loans-net of unearned income 

and allow11nce for credit losses $ 616,565 $ 612,309 $ 625,996 $ 621,211 s; 606,112 

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total lonns-
net of unearned i11come<4> 1.93% 1.94% 1.97% 1.96% 2.07% 

Allowance for consumer loan losses as a pcrccntafe of 
total consumer loans-net of unearned income14 2.96% 2.88% 2.95%, 2.89% 3.09% 

Allownnce for corporate loan losses as a 11ercentare of 
total cori>orate lonns-net of unearned income<~ 0.83% 0.91% 0.90'Vo 0.95% 0.98% 

(I) Loans secured primarily by real estate. 
(2) Unearned income on co11sumer loans primarily represents unamortized origination fees, costs, premiums llnd discounts. 
(3) Unearned income on corporate Joans primarily represents interest received in advauce but not yet earned 011 lollns originated on a discount basis. 
(4) i\11 periods exclude loaiis tlwt are carried at fair value. 
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Details of Credit Loss Experience 

1st Qtr. 4thQtr. 3rd Qlr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr. 

In millions of dollars 2017 2016 2016 2016 2016 

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period $ 12,060 $ 12,439 $ 12,304 $ 12,712 $ 12,626 

Provision for loan losses 

Consumer $ 1,816 $ 1,659 $ 1,815 $ 1,276 $ 1,571 

Corporate (141) 68 (69) 114 315 

Total $ J,675 $ 1,727 $ 1,746 $ 1,390 $ 1,886 

Gross credit losses 

Consumer 

In II .S. offices $ 1,444 $ 1,343 $ 1,181 $ 1,213 $ 1,231 

In offices outside the U.S. 597 605 702 678 689 

Corporate 

In lJ.S. offices 48 32 29 62 189 

In offices outside !he U.S. 55 103 36 95 34 

Total $ 2,)44 $ 2,083 $ 1,948 $ 2,048 $ 2,143 

Credit rccovericsl1
l 

Consume,· 

In U.S. offices $ 242 $ 235 $ 227 $ 262 $ 256 

In otliccs outside the U.S. 127 137 173 154 150 

Corporate 

In lJ.S. offices 2 2 16 3 4 

In office:.- outside the U.S. 64 13 7 13 9 

Total $ 435 $ 387 $ 423 $ 432 $ 419 

Net credit losses 

In lJ.S. offices $ 1,248 $ 1.138 $ 967 $ 1,010 $ 1,160 

In offices outside the ll.S. 461 558 558 606 564 

Totul $ 1,709 $ 1,696 $ 1,525 $ 1,616 $ 1,724 

Otl1cr- -nd1lDll4JtS)l6J(7) $ 4 $ (410) $ (86) $ (182) $ (76) 

Allowance for loan losses at end of period $ 12,030 $ 12,060 $ 12,439 $ 12,3()4 $ 12,712 

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans18J 1.93%, 1.94% 1.97% 1.96% 2.07% 

t\llowam:e for unfunded lending commitments<?) $ 1,377 $ 1,418 $ 1,388 $ 1,432 $ 1,473 

Total allowance for loan losses :md unfunded lending commitments $ 13,407 $ 13,478 $ 13,827 $ 13,736 $ 14,185 

Net consumer credit losses $ 1,672 $ 1,576 $ 1,483 $ 1,475 $ 1,514 

As a percentage of average consumer loans 2.11% 1.95% 1.80% 1.87% 1.90% 

Net corporate credit losses $ 37 $ 120 $ 42 $ 141 $ 210 

As a percentage of average corporate loans 0.05% 0.16% 0.05% 0.19% 0.29% 

Allowance by type at end of period(JOJ 

Consumer $ 9,495 $ 9,358 $ 9,673 $ 9,432 $ 9,!107 

Corporate 2,535 2,702 2,766 2,872 2,905 

Totnl $ 12,030 $ 12,060 $ 12,439 $ 12,304 $ 12,712 

(I) Recoveries have been reduced by certain collection cost~ that are incurred only if collection efforts arc successful. 
(2) Includes all a<ljustme11ts 10 the allowance for credit losses, .~uch as ch,mges in the a\Jowunce from ac<1uisitions, dispositions, scci1ritizations, FX trnnslution, 

purclrn:;e uccounting adjustments, etc. 
(3) The first <1uarter or2017 includes a reduction of approximately $161 million related to the sule or transfer to held-lor-snlc (HFS) of various loan portfolios, 

including a reduction of$37 million related to the transfer of a real estate loan portfolio to I IPS. A<ldilionally, the first quarter inch1dcs an incl'case of 
approximately $164 million related to FX translation. 

(4) The fourth quarter of2016 includes a reduction of approximately $267 million ,elated to the snle or trnnsli:r lo HFS or various loan porcfolios, including a 
reduction of $3 million related lo the transfer or a real estate loan portfolio to I IFS. /\dditionully, the fourth <11wrler includes a reduction of approximately $141 
million related to PX trnnslation. 

(5) The third quarter of2016 includes a reduction of approximately $58 million related to the sale or lrnnsler lo HPS or various loan porllolios, including a reduction 
of $50 million relalt:d 10 the transler or a real estate loan portfolio to HFS. Additionally, the 1hird <1umler includes a reduction or approximately $46 million related 
to FX trnnshtlion. 
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(6) The second qual'tcrnf2016 includes a reduclion of approximately $l0 I million related to 1he sale or transfer to HFS of various loan porUolios, indutling a 
reduction of$24 million rclatcd to the transfer ofa real estate Joan portfolio to HFS. Additionally, 1he second quarter includes a reduction ol'approxi1m1tdy $75 
million related to FX translation. 

(7) The firsl <111arterof2016 includes a rcductio11 oJ'approxinUJtely $148 million related to tile sale or 1ransfer to IIPS ofval'ious loan portfolios, inch1di11g a reduction 
ol'$29 million related to the transfer of a real cstak loan portfolio to J IFS. Additionally, Ilic lirst quarh:r includes an increase of apprnximatcly $63 million relaletl 
lo FX translation. 

(8) March 31, 2017, Decemhel' 31, 2016, September 30, 2016, June 30, 2016 and March 31, 2016 exclude $4.0 billion, $3.5 billion, $4.0 billion, $4. l billion and $4.8 
billion, respectively, of loans which arc carried at fair value. 

(9) Rc1lresen1s i1tltlitiom1I credit reserves recorded as Other liabiliries on the Consolidated Ralancc Sheet. 
(10) Allowance for Joan losses represent.~ management's besl estimale ofprohahle losses inherent i11 the portfolio, 11s well as probable losses related to large 

individually eviduated impaired loans and troubled debt restrncturings. See "Significant Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates" and Note I to the 
Consolitlatt:d financial Statements in Cit i's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Attribution ol'lhe allowunct: is made for analytical purposes only ai1d the entire 
allow,mct: is available to ahsorh probable credit losses inherent in the overall portfolio. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 
The following tables detail information on Citi's allowance for loan losses, loans and coverage ratios: 

March 31, 2017 

Allowance for Loans, net of Allowance as a 
In billions of dollars loan losses unearned income percentage of loans<•J 
North America cards1 J $ 5.3 $ 126.4 4.2% 
North America mortgages()) 1.0 69.9 1.4 
North America olher 0.4 12.8 3.1 
International cards 1.3 24.0 5.4 
International othcr<4l 1.5 87.5 1.7 
Total consumer $ 9.5 $ 320.6 3.0% 
Total co,·porate 2.5 308.0 0.8 
Total Citigroup $ 12.0 $ 628.6 l.9'Yo 

(I) Allowance as a percentage of loans excludes loans that arc carried at foir value. 
(2) Includes both Citi-bnmded ciuds and Citi retail services. The $5.3 billion of lom1 loss reserves represented approximately 14 months of coincident net cl'cdit loss 

coverage. 
(3) Of the $1.0 billion, approximately $0.9 hill ion was allocated to Nor1/1 America mortgages in Corpora!e/Other. Ol'lhc $1.0 billion, approximately $0.4 hi Ilion and 

$0.ti hillion arc determined in accordance with /\SC 450-20 and ASC 310-10-35 (troubled deht restructurings), respectively. Of the $69.9 billion in loans, 
approximately $65.2 billion and $4.S billion of the loans arc evaluated in ,1ccor<lllnce with ASC 4S0-20 and /\SC 310-10-35 (troubled debt restrncturings), 
rcs11cctivcly. For additional information, see Note 13 to the Consolida11:d financial Statements. 

(4) l11cludcs mortgages and olher relail loans. 

December 31, 2016 

Allowam.:e for Loans, net of Allowance as a 
In hi/lions of dolfars loan losses unearned income percentage of loansC1l 
North America cards(2J $ 5.2 $ 133.3 3.9% 
North America mortgagcs(JJ I.I 72.6 1.5 
North America other 0.5 13.6 3.7 
International cards 1.2 23.1 5.2 
International othcr<4

) l.4 82.8 1.7 
Totlll consumer $ 9.4 $ 325.4 2.9% 

Total corporate 2.7 299.0 0.9 
Total Citigroup $ 12.1 $ 624.4 1.9% 

(1) Allowance as a percentage of loans excludes loans thal are carried at fair value. 
(2) lncludt:s bolh Citi-hrandcd cards and Cili r<:tail services. The $5.2 hill ion of loan loss reserves represented approximately 15 months of coincident net credil loss 

coverage. 
(3) Of the ~I.I billion, approximately $1.0 billion was allocated to North America mortgages in Co,porate/Orher. Of the $1.1 billion, approximately $0.4 billion and 

$0.7 hill ion arc determined in accordance wilh ASC 450-20 and /\SC 3 I 0-10-35 (troubh:d dt:bt restrncturings), respectively. Of the $72.6 billion in Joans, 
approximately $6 7.7 billion and $4.8 billion of the loaus are evaluated i1, accortlance with ASC 450-20 and ASC 310-10-35 (troubled debt restructurings), 
l'espectively. For additional information, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financi,11 S1atemt:11ts. 

(4) Includes mortgages and o!her retail loans. 
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Non-Accrual Loans and Assets and Renegotiated Loans 
There is a certain amount of overlap among non-accrual loans 
and assets and renegotiated loans. The following summary 
provides a general description of each category: 

Non-Accrual loans and Assets: 

Corporate and consumer (commercial banking) non­
accrual status is based on the determination that payment 
of interest or principal is doubtful. 
A corporate loan may be classified as non-accrual and still 
be performing under the tenns of the loan structure. 
Payments received on corporate non-accrual loans arc 
generally applied to loan principal and not reflected as 
interest income. Approximately 65% and 64% ofCiti's 
corporate non-accrual Joans were performing at March 3 l, 
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. 
Consumer non-accrual status is generally based on aging, 
i.e., the borrower has fallen behind on payments. 
Mortgage loans in regulated bank entities discharged 
through Chapter 7 bankruptcy, other than FHA insured 
loans, are classified as non-accrual. Non-bank mo11gage 
loans discharged through Chapter 7 bankruptcy are 
classified as non-accrual at 90 days or more past due. ln 
addition, home equity loans in regulated bank entities are 
classified as non-accrual if the related residential first 
mo11gage loan is 90 days or more past due. 
North America Citi-branded cards and Citi retail services 
are not included because, under industry standards, credit 
card loans accrue interest until such loans are charged off, 
which typically occurs at 180 days contractual 
delinquency. 

Renegotiated loans: 

• Includes both corporate and consumer loans whose terms 
have been modified in a troubled debt restructuring 
(TDR). 
Includes both accrual and non-accrual TDRs. 

60 



Non-Accrtml Loans and Assets 
The table below summarizes Citigroup's non-accrual loans as 
of the periods indicated. Non-accrual loans may still be 
current on interest payments. In situations where Citi 
reasonably expects that only a pottion of the principal owed 
will ultimately be collected, all payments received are 
rcllected as a reduction of principal and not as interest income. 
For all other non-accrual loans, cash interest receipts are 
generally recorded as revenue. 

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, Jun. 30, Mar. 31, 

In millions of dollars 2017 2016 2016 2016 2016 

Corporate non-accrual loans<11 

North America $ 993 $ 984 $ 1,057 $ 1,280 $ 1,331 

EMEA 828 904 857 762 469 

/,atin America 342 379 380 267 410 

Asia 176 154 121 151 117 

Total corporate non-accrual loans $ 2,339 $ 2,421 $ 2,415 $ 2,460 $ 2,327 

Consumer non-accrual loansfiJ 

North America $ 1,926 $ 2,160 $ 2,429 $ 2,520 $ 2,519 

Latin America 737 711 841 884 817 
Asia<2l 292 287 282 301 265 

Total consumer non-accrual loans $ 2,955 $ 3,158 $ 3,552 $ 3,705 $ 3,601 

Total non-accrual loans $ 5,294 $ 5,579 $ 5,967 $ 6,165 $ 5,928 

(I) Excludes purchased distressed loans, as they are genernlly accreting iutel'est. The carrying value of these loans was $194 million at March 31, 2017, $187 million 
al December3 I, 2016, $194 million at March 31, 2016, $212 million at June 30,2016 and $236 million al March)!, 2016. 

(2) Asia GCB includes balances in certain F.MF.A countries for all periods presented. 

The changes in Citigrnup's non-accrual loans were as follows: 

Three months ended Three months ended 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

In millions ofdol/ars Corporate Consumer . Total Corporate Co11sumer Total . 
' . . 
'· ' Non-accrual loans at beginning of period $ 2.42 1 $ 3,158 :$ 5,579 $ 1,596 $ 3,658 :$ 5,254 

Additions<•) 
I I 

253 824: 1,077 1,047 914: 1,961 
' (162): Sales and transfers to held-for-sale (36) (135): (171) (8) ( 170) 
I I 

Returned to performing (37) (164)1 (201) (15) (141): (156) . 
Paydowns/seulements (183) (280); (463) (98) (245): (343) 

Charge-offs (54) (524): (578) (140) (439): (579) 
' . 

Other (25) 76: 51 (55) 16: (39) . 
Ending balance $ 2,339 $ 2,955 :$ 5,294 $ 2,327 $ 3,601 :$ 5,928 

(I) The increases in corporate non,accrual loans in the first quarter 01'20l61>rimarily related to Citi's Nor//1 America and F.MF.A energy am! energy-related corporate 
credit exposure. 
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The table below summarizes Citigroup's other real estate owned (OREO) assets as ol'the periods indicated. This represents the 
carrying value of all real estate properly acquired by foreclosure or other legal proceedings when Citi has taken possession of the 
collateral: 

Mar. 31, Oec. 31, Sept. 30, Jun. 30, Mar. 31, 

In millions qf dollars 2017 2016 2016 2016 2016 

OREO 

North America $ 136 $ 161 $ 132 $ 151 $ 159 

l~Mr:A 1 l I 

Latin America 31 18 18 19 35 

Asia 5 7 10 5 JO 

Total OREO $ 173 $ 186 $ 161 $ 175 $ 205 

Non-accrual assets 

Corporate non-accrual loans $ 2,339 $ 2,421 $ 2,415 $ 2,460 $ 2,327 

Consumer non-accrual loans 2,955 3,158 3,552 3,705 3,601 

Non-accrual loans (NAI ,) $ 5,294 $ 5,579 $ 5,967 $ 6,165 $ 5,928 

OREO $ 173 $ 186 $ 161 $ 175 $ 205 

Non-accrual assets (NAA) $ 5,467 $ 5,765 $ 6,128 $ 6,340 $ 6,133 

NAL as a percentage of total loans 0.84% 0.89% 0.93% 0.97% 0.96% 

NM as a percentage of total assets 0.30 0.32 0.34 0.35 0.34 

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage ofNAL<1l 227 216 208 200 214 

(I) The allowance for loan loss1:s includ1:s th1: allowance (or Citi's credit card portfolios and purchased distressed loans, while the non-accrual loans 1:xclu<le cr1:dit 
card halances (with the exception of certuin international portfolios) and purchased <listress1:<l Joans HS these continue to accrue interest until charg1:-0IT. 
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Re11.egoti(lted Loans 
The following table presents Citi's loans modified in TDRs. 

Mar. 31, Oec. 31, 
In millions ofdol/ars 2017 2016 
Corporate renegotiattd loansl') 

In U.S. otliccs 
Commercial and industriaf2> $ 136 $ 89 
Mo1tgagc and real estate 80 84 

Loans to financial institu!ions 9 9 
Other 177 228 

$ 402 $ 410 

[n offices outside the U.S. 
Commercial and industria1<2J $ 254 $ 319 

Mortgage and real estate 4 3 

Loans to financial institutions 15 

$ 273 $ 322 

Tot<.il corporate renegotiated loans $ 675 $ 732 

Consumer renegotiated loans<3><4i<5
l 

rn {J.S. offices 
Mortgage and real estatcc6> $ 4,541 $ 4,695 

Cards 1,327 1,313 

Installment and other 138 117 

$ 6,006 $ 6,125 

In offices outside the lJ.S. 
Moi1gagc and real estate $ 357 $ 447 

Cards 496 435 

Installment and other 379 443 

$ 1,232 $ 1,325 

Total consumer renegotiated loans $ 7,238 $ 7,450 

(I) Includes $466 million and $445 million of non-accrual loans included in 
1he non-m;cruul loans table above at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 
2016, respe<.:tively. The remaining Joans arc acerui11g interest. 

(2) In addition to modifications l'etlcctcd as TD Rs al March 31, 2017, Citi 
also modified $185 million of commercial loans risk rated "Substundard 
No11-Perlorming" or worse (a~sct category de lined by banking 
regulators) in offices outside the IJ.S. These modilications were not 
considered TDRs because the modifications did not involve a 
concession. 

(3) lndudes $1,438 million and $!,502 million ofnon-accnml loims 
induded in the non-accrual loans table above at M,1rch 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, respectively. Tile remaining loans are accruing 
interest. 

(4) lndudes $47 million and $58 million of'commerciul real estate loans at 
Murch 31, 2017 and Ucecmbcr 31, 2016, respe<.:tively. 

(5) Includes $126 million and $105 million of other <.:ommercial loans at 
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respe<.:tively. 

(6) Reduction in the three months ended Mar<.:h 31, 2017 includes $1!9 
million related to TDRs sold or transfem:d to held-for-sale. 
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LIQUIDITY RISK 

For additional information on funding and liquidity at 
':;itigroup, including its objectives, management and 
,neasurement, see «Liquidity Risk" and "Risk Factors" in 
Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

High-Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 

Citibank 

Mal'.31, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, 
in billions qf dollars 2017 2016 2016 

Availahle cash $ 83,8 $ 68.3 $ 74.2 

U.S. sovercig1, 113.8 123.0 117.7 

U.S. agency/agency MBS 59.2 61.7 68.9 

I' oreign government debt<21 84.5 87.9 86.8 

Other investment grade 0.3 0.3 I.I 

Total HQLA (F:OP) $ 341.6 $ 341.2 $ 348.7 

Total IIQLA (AVG) $ 353.5 $ 345.7 $ 335.1 

Non-Bank and Other<11 Total 

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, 
2017 2016 2016 2017 2016 2016 

$ 24.S $ 19.8 $ 24.5 $ 108.3 $ 88.1 $ 98.7 

22.7 22.5 22.6 136.5 145.5 140.3 

0.8 0.6 0.5 60.0 62.3 69.4 

17.2 15.6 19.6 IOl.7 103.5 106.4 

1.5 1.2 1.6 l.8 1.5 2.7 

$ 66.7 $ 59.7 $ 68.8 $ 408.3 $ 400.9 $ 417.5 

$ 59.3 $ 58.0 $ 65.0 $ 412.8 $ 403.7 $ 400.I 

Nole: Except as indicated, amounts set lorth in the tahlc a hove arc as of period end and may incre,1se or decrease intra-period in the ordinary course of business. For 
securities, lhe amounts represent the liquidity value !Ila! potentially could he realized, mid therefore exclude any securities that arc encumbered, and ineoqmratc any 
haircuts 1hi1t would be re11uired for secured funding transactions. The l'cdcral Reserve l.3omd adopted foud rules re<111iring disclosure or 1-IQI .A, the I .iquidily Coverage 
Ratio and rc:lated components on ,111 average basis each quarter, as comrarcd to end-of-period starling on April I, 2017 (for additional information, sec "Liquidity 
Covernge l{alio (LCk)" below). Citi has presented in this form I 0-Q the average information on these metrics currently available, which includes average total HQI J\, 
avernge LCR and average net oulllows under the LCR; other component information is not currently available. 
(1) Citibanamex and Citibank (Swit;i:erland) AG account for approximately $6 hi Ilion of the "Non-13ank and Other" 1 IQLA balance as ol'March 3 l, 2017. 
(2) Foreign government debt includes securit it:s issued or guaranteed by foreign sovereigns, agencies and multilateral development banks. Foreign governl'llent debt 

securities are held largely to support local li11uidi1y requirements and Citi's local franchises, and principally include government bonds from Mong Kong, Taiwan, 
Korea, Singapore, India, Urnzil and Mexico. 

As scl forth in the table above, sequentially, Citi's total 
HQLA increased both on an end-of-period and an average 
basis, due primarily lo an increase in cash driven by higher 
deposits. 

Citi's HQLA as set forth above does not include Citi's 
available borrowing capacity from the Federal I Jome Loan 
Hanks (FHLBs) of which Citi is a member, which was 
approximately $28 billion as of'March 31, 2017 (compared to 
$21 billion as of December 31, 2016 and $37 billion as of 
March 3 l, 2016) and maintained by eligible collateral pledged 
to such banks. The HQLA also docs not include Citi's 
borrowing capacity at the U.S. Federal Reserve Bank discount 
window or other central banks, which would be in addition to 
the resources noted above. 

ln general, Citi's liquidity is fungible across legal entities 
within its bank group. Citi's bank subsidiaries, including 
Citibank, can lend to the Citi parent and broker-dealer entities 
in accordance with Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act. As 
or March 31, 2017, the capacity available for lending to these 
entities under Section 23A was approximately $15 billion, 
unchanged from $15 billion as of December 31, 2016 and 
compared to $14 billion as of March 31, 2016, su~ject to 
certain eligible non-cash collateral requirements. 
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Loans 
The table below sets forth the average loans, by business and/ 
or segment, and the total end-of-period loans for each of the 
periods indicated: 

Mnr.31, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, 
In billions qf dollars 2017 2016 2016 

Glob11/ Co11s11mer Ba11ki11g 

North America $ 183.3 $ 182.0 $ 161.6 

Latin America 23.l 23.5 24.4 
Asia(•) 83.2 81.9 84.9 

Total $ 289.6 $ 287.4 $ 270.9 

I11stitutional Clieltls Gmu1, 

Corporate lending 118.1 118.9 121.6 

Treasury and trade solutions 
(TI'S) 70.5 71.5 70.4 

Private bank, markets and 
securities se1·vices and other 113.2 113.9 103.0 

Total $ 301.8 $ 304.3 $ 295.0 

Total Corporate/Other 31.8 34.6 46.3 

Total Citigl'oup loans (A VG) $ 623.2 $ 626.3 $ 612.2 

Total Citigroup loans (EOP) $ 628.6 $ 624.4 $ 6UU! 

(I) Includes loans in cerl.iin EMEA countries fo.- all periods presented. 

As set forth in the table above, end-of-period loans 
increased 2% year-over-year and I% qua1ter-over-quarter. On 
an average basis, loans increased 2% year-over-year and 
remained largely unchanged sequentially, both on a reported 
basis and excluding the impact of FX translation. 

Excluding the impact of FX translation, average GCB 
loans grew 7% year-over-year, driven by 13% grow!h in North 
America. Within North America, Citi-branded cards increased 
28% year-over-year, primarily due to the acquisition of the 
Costco po1tfolio, as well as modest organic growth. 
ln!crnational GCB loans declined l %, as 6% growth in 
Mexico was more than offset by a 3% decline in Asia, 
rcllccting Citi's continued optimization of its por!folio in this 
region to generate higher returns. 

Average /CG loans increased 3% year-over-year, 
primarily driven by the private bank. Corporate lending 
decreased 2%, primarily driven by a lower level of episodic 
funding required by /CG'.~ target market clients in the first 
qua1ter of 2017, compared to !he prior-year period. The 
majority of /CG:~ target market clients are investment grade, 
with a generally strong liquidity position. ln the quarter, d1ese 
target clients accessed the capital markets to fund ongoing, 
longer-term financing requirements in the continued attractive 
rate environment. Treasury and trade solutions loans increased 
l % as the business continued to suppott its clients while 
distributing trade loan originations to optimize its balance 
sheet and returns. Private bank and markets and securities 
services loans grew 10% year-over-year, driven primarily by 
the private bank. 

Average Corporate/Other loans decreased 32% year-over­
year, driven by $10 billion of reductions in average North 
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America mor1gages, including transfers to held-for-sale (sec 
Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Deposits 
The table below sets forth the average deposits, by business 
and/or segment, and the total end-of-period deposits for each 
of the periods indicated: 

Mar.31, Dec. 31, Ma.r. 31, 
In hi/lions ,if dollars 2017 2016 2016 

G/ob"l Con.mmer Banld11g 

North America $ 185.5 $ 186.0 $ 180.6 

/,atin America 25.3 25.2 26.1 

Asial1> 92.7 89.9 87.2 

Total $ 303.5 $ 301.1 $ 293.9 

I11stitutional Client.~ Group 

Treasury and trade solutions 
(TTS) 416.2 415.4 402.1 

Banking ex-TI'S 120.8 122.4 113.5 

Markets and securities services 80.l 81.7 77.4 

Total $ 617.t $ 619.5 $ 593.0 

Corporare/Other 20.3 14.5 24.8 

Total Citigroup deposits (A VG) $ 940.9 $ 935. l $ 911.7 

Total Citigroup deposits (EOP) $ 950.0 $ 929.4 $ 934.6 

(I) Includes deposits in certain F.lvfFA countries for .ill periods presented. 

End-ot:.period deposits increased 2% year-over-year and 
quarter-over-quarter. On an average basis, deposits increased 
3% year-over-year and 1 % sequentially. 

Excluding the impact ofFX translation, average deposits 
grew 4% from the prior-year period as Citi experienced strong 
customer engagement across all major businesses and regions. 



Long-Term Debt 
The weighted-average maturities of unsecured long-term debt 
issued by Citigroup and its atliliates (including Citibank) with 
1 remaining life greater than one year (excluding remaining 
.rust preferred securities outstanding) was approximately 
6.9 years as of March 31, 20 I 7, a slight decline from both the 
prior-year period and sequentially. 

Citi's long-term debt outstanding at the parent includes 
senior and subordinated debt and a po11ion of"what Citi refers 
to as customer-related debt, consisting of structured notes, 
such as equity- and credit-linked notes, as well as non­
structured notes. Citi's issuance of customer-related debt is 
generally driven by customer demand and supplements 
benchmark debt issuance as a source of funding for Citi's 
parent and non-hank entities. Ci ti's long-term debt at the bank 
also includes FHLB advances and securitizations. 
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Long-Term Debt Outftmuli11g 
The following table sets fo1th Citi's end-of-period total long-
te1m debt outstanding for each of the periods indicated: 

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, 
In hi/lions of dollars 2017 2016 2016 

Parent and othcrt'l 

Benchmark debt: 
Senior debt $ 100.2 $ 99.9 $ 94.0 

Subordinated debt 26.3 26.8 29.4 
Trust preferred 1.7 1.7 1.7 

Customer-related debt: 
Structured debt 24.3 22.8 23.6 

Non-structured debt 2.9 3.0 3.3 

I .ocal counti·y and otherC21 2.0 2.5 4.1 
Total parent nnd other $ 157.4 $ 156.7 $ 156.1 
Bank 
rHLB borrowings $ 20.3 $ 21.6 $ 17.1 

Sccuritizations<3J 24.0 23.5 28.7 

CBNA Benchmark Debt 2.5 
Local country ard other<2l 4.3 4.4 5.9 
Total bank $ 51.l $ 49.5 $ 51.7 

Total long-term debt $ 208.5 $ 206.2 $ 207.8 

Note: Amounts represent the current value oflong-tenn debt on Citi's 
Consolidated Ralancc Sheet which, fm certain deht instruments, includes 
consideration or fair value, hedging impact~ and unamortized discounts and 
premiums. 
(I) "Parent and other" includes long-term debt issued to third parties by the 

parent holding company (Citigroup) and Citi's non•hank subsidiaries 
(including broker-dealer subsidiaries) that arc consolidated into 
Citigroup. As ol"Mareh 3l, 2017, "parent and othci-" included $15.8 
billion oflong-tenn debt issued by Citi's broker-dealer subsidiaries. 

(2) Local country debt includes debt issued by Citi's affiliates in support of 
their local operations. 

(3) Predominantly credit card seeuritiiatio11s, primarily backed hy Citi­
brnnded credit curd receivables. 

Year-over-year, Citi's total long-term debt outstanding 
increased modestly, as an increase in senior debt at the parent 
more than offset continued reductions in securitizations at the 
bank entities. Sequentially, Citi's total long-term debt 
outstanding increased, primarily driven by the issuance of 
benchmark debt at the bank, as parent and other debt remained 
largely unchanged. 

As pa11 or its liability management, Citi has considered, 
and may continue to consider, opportunities to repurchase its 
long-term debt pursuant lo open market purchases, tender 
offers or other means. Such repurchases help reduce Citi's 
overall fonding costs (and assist it in meeting regulatory 
changes and requirements). During the first quarter of2017, 
Citi repurchased an aggregate of approximately $0.9 billion of 
its outstanding long-term debt. 



Long-Term Debi lssuauce.f aud Mat11ritie.'> 
The table below details Citi's long-term debt issuances and maturities (including repurchases and redemptions) during the periods 
presented: 

IQ17 4Q16 IQl(i 

In billions of dollars Maturities Issuances Man,ritics Issuances Malurities Issuances 
Parent and other 

Benchmark debt: 

Senior deht $ 5.3 $ 5.2 $ 2.2 $ 9.7 $ 4.3 $ 5.2 

Subordinated debt 1.2 0.7 0.2 - - 1.5 

Trust preferred - - - - - -
Cuslomer-rclated debt: 

Structured debt 6.6 6.2 1.8 1.6 2.0 3.6 
Non-structured deh! 0.2 - 0.3 - 0.2 -

Local country and other 0.6 0.2 0.1 - 0.1 l.9 
Total parent and other $ 13.9 $ 12.3 $ 4.6 $ 11.3 $ 6.6 $ 12.2 
Bank 

FI-ILB bol'l'owings $ 1.8 $ 0.5 $ 5.1 $ 5.1 $ 1.7 $ 1.0 

Seeuritizations 2.0 2.5 4.1 3.3 2.3 -
CBNA Benchmark Debt - 2.5 - - - -

Local country an<l other 1.2 0.8 1.2 0.6 0.7 0.7 

Total bank $ 5.0 $ 6.3 $ 10.4 $ 9.0 $ 4.7 $ 1.7 

Total $ 18.9 $ 18.6 $ 15.0 $ 20.3 $ 11.3 $ 13.9 

The table below shows Citi's aggregate long-term debt maturities (including repurchases and redemptions) during the first qua1ter of 
2017, as well as its aggregate expected annual long-term debt maturities as of March 31, 2017: 

Maturities 
In bil/io11s qf dollars IQ17 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Tht:realler Total 
Parent and other 

Benchmark debt: 

Senior debt $ 5.3 $ 8.8 $ 18.2 $ 14.1 $ 8.9 $ 14.0 $ 2.5 $ 33.7 $ 100.2 

Subordinated debt 1.2 - 0.9 1.3 - - I. I 22.9 26.3 

· J ·rust preferred - - - - - - - l. 7 1.7 

Customer-rt:lakd debt: 

Structured debt 6.6 - 4.6 2.7 2.0 2.3 1.2 11.4 24.3 

Non-structured deht 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.1 0.3 0.1 - 1.4 2.9 

Local country and other 0.6 - 0.7 0.2 0.1 0.6 0.3 0.3 2.0 
Total parent and other $ 13.9 $ 9.2 $ 25.0 $ 18.4 $ 11.3 $ 17.0 $ 5.1 $ 71.4 $ 157.4 

Bank 

PHLB borrowings $ 1.8 $ 6.0 $ 13.8 $ 0.6 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 20.3 

Sccuritizations 2.0 3.3 9.4 6.5 0.1 3.8 0.1 0.9 24.0 

CBNA Bern;hmark Debt - - - 2.5 - - - - 2.5 
I ,ocal country and other 1.2 0.4 1.8 0.6 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.3 4.3 

Total bank $ 5.0 $ 9.7 $ 25.0 $ 10.2 $ 0.9 $ 3.9 $ 0.2 $ 1.2 $ 51.1 

Total long-term debt $ 18.9 $ 18.9 $ 50.0 $ 28.6 $ 12.2 $ 20.9 $ 5.3 $ 72.6 $ 208.5 
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Secured Funding l)·ansactions and Short-Term 
Borrowings 
Citi supplements its primary sources of funding with sho11-
·erm borrowings. Short-term borrowings generally include (i) 
,'ecurcd funding transactions (securities loaned or sold under 
agreements lo repurchase, or repos) and (ii) to a lesser extent, 
short-tcnn borrowings consisting of commercial paper and 
borrowings from the FHLB and other market participants (see 
Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for fu11her 
information on Citigroup's and its affiliates' outstanding short­
term borrowings). 

Outside of secured funding transactions, Citi's short-term 
borrowings increased year-over-year (a 25% increase), but 
declined sequentially (a 15% decline). The increase year-over­
year was driven by an increase in FHLB borrowing, as Citi 
continued Lo oplimize liquidity across its legal vehicles. 

Secured Funding 
Secured funding is primarily accessed through Citi's broker­
dealer subsidiaries to fund efficiently both secured lending 
activity and a po11ion of securities inventory held in the 
context of market making and customer activities. Citi also 
executes a smaller portion of its secured funding transactions 
through its bank entities, which is typically collateralized by 
foreign government debt securities. Generally, daily changes 
in the level of Cit i's secured funding are primarily due to 
fluctuations in secured lending activity in the matched book 
(as described below) and securities inventory. 

Secured runding of $148 bi I lion as of March 31, 2017 
lcclincd 6% from the prior-year period and increased 5% 

sequcnlially. Excluding the impact of FX translation, secured 
funding decreased 3% from the prior-year period and 
increased 3% sequentially, both driven by normal business 
activity. Average balances for secured funding were 
approximately $149 billion for the quarter ended March 31, 
2017. 

The po11ion of secured funding in the broker-dealer 
subsidiaries that funds secured lending is commonly referred 
to as "matched book" activity. The majority of'this activity is 
secured by high quality, liquid securities such as lJ.S. Treasury 
securities, U.S. agency securities and foreign government debt 
securities. Other secured funding is secured by less liquid 
securities, including equity securities, corporate bonds and 
asset-backed securities. The tenor ofCiti's matched book 
liabilities is generally equal to or longer than the tenor of the 
corresponding matched book assets. 

The remainder of the secured funding activity in the 
broker-dealer subsidiaries serves to fund securities inventory 
held in the context or market making and customer activities. 
To maintain reliable funding under a wide range of market 
conditions, including under periods of stress, Citi manages 
these activities by taking into consideration the quality of the 
underlying collateral, and stipulating financing tenor. The 
weighted average maturity of Citi 's secured funding of less 
liquid securities inventory was greater than 110 days as of 
March 31, 2017. 

Citi manages the risks in its secured funding by 
conducting daily stress tests Lo account for changes in 
capacity, tenors, haircut, collateral profile and client actions. 
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Additionally, Citi maintains counterpatty diversification by 
establishing concentration triggers and assessing counterpaity 
reliability and stability under stress. Citi generally sources 
secured funding from more than 150 counterparties. 

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) 
In addition to internal measures that Citi has developed for a 
30-day stress scenario, Citi also monitors its liquidity by 
reference to the LCR, as calculated pursuant Lo the U.S. LCR 
rules (for additional information, see "Liquidity Risk" in Citi's 
2016 Annual Report on Form l 0-K). The table below sets 
forth the components ofCiti's LCR calculation and HQLA in 
excess or net outflows as of the periods indicated: 

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, 
In billions ofdolfC1rs 2017 2016 2016 

IIQI.A $ 412.8 $ 403.7 $ 400.l 

Net outflows 334.4 332.5 333.3 

LCR 1.23% 121% 120% 

I IQI ,A in excess of net outflows $ 78.4 $ 71.3 $ 66.8 

Note: The amounts set forth in the table iihovc arc presented on an avernge 
basis. 

As set forth in the table above, Citi's LCR increased both 
year-over-year and sequentially driven by an increase in 
l lQLA which more than offset a modest increase in net 
outflows. 



Credit Ratings 
The table below sets fo1th the ratings for Citigroup and 
Citibank as of March 31, 2017. While not included in the 
table below, the long-term and short-term ratings of Citigroup 
Global Markets fnc. (CGMl) were "A2/P-I" at Moody's, "A+/ 
A-1" at Standard & Poor's and "A~ /F 1" at Fitch as of 
March 31, 2017. The long-term and short-term ratings or 
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (CGMHJ) were 
BBIH/A-2 at Standard & Poor's and A/Fl at Fitch as or 
March 31, 2017. 

Fitch Ratings (Fitd1) 

Moody's Investors Service (Moody's) 

Standard & Poor's (S&P) 

Potential Impacts ,if Ratings Downgrades 
Ratings downgrades by Moody's, Fitch or S&P could 
negatively impact Citigroup's and/or Citibank's funding and 
liquidity due lo reduced funding capacity, including derivalive 
triggers, which could take the form of cash obligations and 
collateral requirements. 

The following information is provided for tJ1e purpose or 
analyzing the potential funding and liquidity impact to 
Citigroup and Citibank of a hypothetical, simultaneous 
ratings downgrade across all three major rating agencies. This 
analysis is subject to certain estimates, estimation 
methodologies, judgments and unce11ainties. Uncertainties 
include potential ratings limitations that certain entities may 
have with respect to permissible counterparties, as well as 
general subjective counterpa1ty behavior. For example, ce11ain 
corporate customers and markets counterparties could re­
evaluate their husiness relationships with Citi and limit 
transactions in certain contracts or market instruments with 
Citi. Changes in counterparty behavior could impact Citi's 
funding and liquidity, as well as the results of operations or 
certain of its businesses. The actual impact to Citigroup or 
Citibank is unpredictable and may differ materially from the 
potential funding and liquidity impacts described below. For 
additional information on the impact of credit rating changes 
on Citi and its applicable subsidiaries, see "Risk Factors­
Liquidity Risks" in Citi's 2016 Annual Rcpo11 on Form I 0-K. 

Citigroup Inc. Citibank, N.A. 

Senior Commercial Long- Short-
deht paper Outlook term term Outlook 

A Fl Stable A+ Fl Stable 

Baal P-2 Stable Al P-l Stable 

BBB+ A-2 Stable A+ A-1 Stable 

69 

Citigroup inc. and Citibank Potential Derivative Triggers 
As of March 3 I, 2017, Citi estimates that a hypothetical one­
notch downgrade oftJ1e senior debt/long-Lenn rating of 
Citigroup Inc. across all three major rating agencies could 
impact Citigroup's funding and liquidity due to derivative 
triggers by approximately $0.6 billion, compared to 
$0.4 billion as of December 31, 2016. Other funding sources, 
such as secured funding and other margin requirements, for 
which there are no explicit triggers, could also be adversely 
affected. 

As of March 3 I, 2017, Citi estimates that a hypothetical 
one-notch downgrade of the senior debt/long-term rating of 
Citibank across all three major rating agencies could impact 
Citibank's funding and liquidity by approximately $0.8 billion, 
compared to $1.2 billion as of December 31, 2016, due to 
derivative triggers. 

ln total, Citi estimates tJ1at a one-notch downgrade of 
Citigroup and Citibank, across all three major rating agencies, 
could result in increased aggregate cash obligations and 
collateral requirements of approximately $1.4 billion, 
compared to $1.6 billion as of December 3 J, 2016 (see also 
Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). As set 
fo11h under "High-Quality Liquid Assets" above, the liquidity 
resources of Citibank were approximately $353 billion and the 
liquidity resources of Citi 's non-bank and other entities were 
approximately $59 billion, for a total of approximately 
$413 billion as of March 31, 2017. These liquidity resources 
are available in pa11 as a contingency for the potential events 
described above. 

[n addition, a broad range of mitigating actions are 
currently included in Citigroup's and Citibank's contingency 
funding plans. For Citigroup, these mitigating factors include, 
but arc not limited to, accessing surplus funding capacity from 
existing clients, tailoring levels of secured lending, and 
adjusting the size of select trading books and collateralized 
borrowings from certain Citibank subsidiaries. Mitigating 
actions available to Citibank include, but are not limited to, 
selling or financing highly liquid government securities, 
tailoring levels of secured lending, adjusting the size or select 



trading assets, reducing loan originations and renewals, raising 
additional deposits, or borrowing from the FHLB or central 
banks. Citi believes these mitigating actions could 

· ~ubstantially reduce the funding and liquidity risk, if any, or 
.he potential downgrades described above. 

Citibank-Additional Potential Impacts 
rn addition to the above derivative triggers, Citi believes that a 
potential one-notch downgrade of Citibank's senior debt/long­
term rating by S&P could also have an adverse impact on the 
commercial paper/shm1-tenu rating of Citibank. J\s of 
March 3J,2017, Citibank had liquidity commitments of 
approximately $1 O. l billion to consolidated asset-backed 
commercial paper conduits, compared to $10.0 billion as of 
December 31, 2016 (as referenced in Note 18 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

In addition to the above-referenced liquidity resources of 
ce11ain Citibank and Citibanamex entities, Citibank could 
reduce the funding and liquidity risk, if any, of the potential 
downgrades described above through mitigating actions, 
including repricing or reducing certain commitments to 
commercial paper conduits. In the event of the potential 
downgrades described above, Citi believes that certain 
corporate customers could re-evaluate their deposit 
relationships with Citibank. This re-evaluation could result in 
clients adjusting their discretionary deposit levels or changing 
their depository institution, which could potentially reduce 
certain deposit levels at Citibank. However, Citi could choose 
to adjust pricing, offer alternative deposit products to its 

xisting customers or seek to attract deposits from new 
customers, in addition to the mitigating actions referenced 
above. 
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MARK RT RISK 

Market risk emanates from both Citi's trading and non-trading 
portfolios. Trading po11folios comprise all assets and liabilities 
marked-to-market, with results reflected in earnings. Non­
trading portfolios include all other assets and liabilities. 
For additional information on market risk and market risk 
management at Citi, see "Market Risk" and "Risk Factors" in 
Citi's 2016 Annual Repo11 on Form 10-K. 

Market Risk of Non-Trading Portfolios 
For additional information on Citi's net interest revenue (for 
interest rate exposure purposes), interest rate risk and interest 
rate risk measurement, see "Market Risk of Non-Trading 
Portfolios" in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form l 0-K. 

The following table sets forth the estimated impact to Citi's net interest revenue, AOCI and the Common Equity Tier I Capital 
ratio (on a fully implemented basis), each assuming an unanticipated parallel instantaneous 100 basis point increase in interest rates. 

/11 millions of dollars (1111/ess otherwise no1ed) Mar. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016 Mar.31, 2016 

Estimated annualized impact to net interest revenue 

U.S. dolla/ 11 
$ 1,644 $ 1,586 $ 1,362 

A 11 other currencies 581 550 587 

Total $ 2,225 $ 2,136 $ 1,949 

As a percentage of average inlerest·caming assets 0.14% 0.13% 0.13% 

Estimated initial impact lo AOC! (aficr-taxP) $ (3,830) $ (4,671) $ (4,950) 

Estimated initial impact on Common Equity Tier I Capital ratio (bpsi3
} (43) (53) (57) 

(I) Certain trading-oriented businc:sses within Citi have accrual-aecountc:<l positions that are excluded from the cslimate<l impact to net intel'est revenue in the table, 
si11ce these exposures are managed economically in co111bina1io11 with nmrk-to•market positio11s. The U.S. dollar i11h:n:s1 rnte exposurn a~sociatcd witl11hese 
businesses was$( I 80) million for a I 00 basis point instanta11cous increllse in interest rates as of Marci, 3 I, 2017. 

(2) Includes the cflccl of changes in interest rates on AOC! related lo i1weslmen1 securities, cash Oow hedges ai,d pension Ji11bility a(\justments. 
(3) The estimated initial im1>act to the Common Equity Tier 1 Capital rntio considers the effect ofCiti's DTA position an<l is b,1se<l on only the estimated initial AOC! 

impact above. 

The sequential increase in the estimated impact lo net 
interest revenue primarily reflected changes in balance sheet 
composition, including increases in ce11ain ofCiti's deposit 
balances. The sequential decrease in the estimated impact to 
AOCI primarily rellected changes to the positioning ofCiti 
Treasury's investment securities and related interest rate 
derivatives portfolio. 

ln the event or an unanticipated para Ile! instantaneous I 00 
basis point increase in interest rates, Citi expects the negative 
impact to AOC[ would be offset in stockholders' equity 
through the combination of expected incremental net interest 
revenue and the expected recove1y of the impact on AOCI 
through accretion of Citi's investment portfolio over a period 
of time. As or Mardi 31, 2017, Citi expects that the negative 

In millions <if dolfars (11n/"ss otherwise no1ed) 

Overnight rate change (bps) 

I 0-ycar rate cha11ge (bps) 

~stimated annunlized impact to net inte1·est ,·evenue 

U.S. dollar 

All other currencies 

Total 

Estimated initial impact to AOC! (after-tax)°) 

Estimated initial impact to Common Equity Tier I CapitaJ ratio (bpsf> 

$3.8 billion impact to AOCI in such a scenario could 
potentially be offset over approximately 18 months. 

The following table sets fo11h the estimated impact to 
Citi's net interest revenue, AOC( and the Common Equity 
Tier I Capital ratio (on a fully implemented basis) under four 
different changes in interest rate scenarios for the U.S. dollar 
and Citi's other currencies. While Citi also monitors the 
impact of a parallel decrease in interest rates, a I 00 basis point 
decrease in short-term rates is not meaningful, as it would 
imply negative interest rates in many of Citi's markets. 

Scenario I Scenario 2 Scenario 3 Scenario 4 

100 100 

100 IOO (100) 

$ 1,644 $ 1,533 $ 96 $ ( 114) 

581 536 33 (33) 

$ 2,225 $ 2,069 $ 129 $ (147) 

$ (3,830) $ (2,430) $ (1,550) $ 1,261 

(43) (27) ( 18) 14 

Note: F.ach scenario in the tablt: above assumes tl1at the rate change will occur i11Wmtancously. Changes in inlert:st rates for maturities hetwccn the overnight rnle and 
the I 0-ye.ir rate: are inte1polated. 

(I) lnclu,:lcs lhc efli:ct of changes in interest rates on AOCI n::lalc:ll to investment securities, cash flow hedges and pension liability adjustments. 
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(2) The eslimaled initiul impact to lhe Common Equity Tier I Capital ratio considers the effect ofCiti's deferred tax assc:I position a,,d is based on only the estimated 
AOCI impact ubove. 

As shown in the table above, the magnitude of the impact 
t.o Citi's net interest revenue and AOCJ is greater under 
'.·cenario 2 as compared to scenario 3. This is because lhc 

combination of changes to Citi's investment portfolio, 
partially offset by changes related to Citi's pension liabilities, 
results in a net position that is more sensitive to rates at shorter 
and intermediate term maturities. 

In recent years, a number of central banks, including the 
European Central Bank, the Bank of Japan and the Swiss 
Nalional Bank, have implemented negative interest rates, and 
additional governmental entities could do so in the future. 
While negative interest rates can adversely impact net interest 
revenue (as well as net interest margin), Citi has, to date, been 
able to partially offset the impact of negative rates in these 
jurisdictions through a combination of business and Citi 
Treasury interest rate risk mitigation activities, including 
applying negative rates to client accounts (for additional 
information on Citi Treasury's ongoing interest rate mitigation 
activities, sec "Market Risk Market Risk ofNon-Trading 
Portfolios" in Citi's 2016 Annual Reporting on Form 10-K). 

Changes in Foreign. Exchange Rates-Impacts un AOC} and 
Capital 
As of March 3 l, 2017, Citi estimates lhat an unanticipated 
parallel instantaneous 5% appreciation ol'lhc U.S. dollar 
against all of the other currencies in which Citi has invested 
capital could reduce Citi's tangible common equity (TCE) by 
,pproximately $1.4 billion, or 0.8%, as a result or changes to 

Citi's foreign currency translation adjustment in AOCI, net of 
hedges. This impact would be primarily due to changes in lhc 
value of the Mexican peso, the Euro and the Australian dollar. 

In miflions of dollars (un{es.v othenvise noted) 

Change in FX spot rate(J) 

Change in TCE due to FX translation, net of hedges 

As a percentage ofTCE 

This impact is also before any miligating actions Citi may 
take, including ongoing management or its foreign currency 
translation exposure. Specifically, as currency movements 
change the value of Citi's net investments in foreign-currency­
denominated capital, these movements also change the value 
of Citi's risk-weighted assets denominated in those currencies. 
This, coupled with Citi's foreign currency hedging strategies, 
such as foreign currency borrowings, foreign currency 
forwards and other currency hedging instruments, lessens the 
impact of foreign currency movements on Citi's Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital ralio. Changes in these hedging 
strategies, as well as hedging costs, divestitures and tax 
impacts, can fm1her impact the actual impact of changes in 
foreign exchange rates on Citi's capital as compared to an 
unanticipated parallel shock, as described above. 

The effect of Cit i's ongoing management strategics with 
respect to changes in foreign exchange rates and the impact of 
lhcsc changes on Citi's TCE and Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital ratio arc shown in the table below. For additional 
information on lhc changes in AOCI, see Note 17 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

For the qua1·te1· ended 

Mar.31,2017 Dcc.31,2016 Mar.31,2016 

$ 

4.5% 

654 $ 

0.4'ro 

(5.2)% 

(1,668) $ 

(0.9)% 

2.1% 

396 

0.2% 

Estimated impact to Common Equity Tier I Capital ratio (on a fully implemented basis) due 
to changes in FX lrauslation, net of hedges (hps) (2) (I) 

(I) l'X spot rate change is a weighled average based upon Cili's quarterly average G/\/\P capital exposure to foreign countries. 
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Interest Revenue/Expense and Net Interest Margin 

Average Rates - Interest Revenue, Interest E)(pense. an Cl IJet Interest Margm 

_._. lfb!~R".i~e-~~~~ --· --lrtl.M1£>!)""e•Alle<og,f;a!J! __,._ 'P.t~~P.« 11.ur,, 

4 .00% 
3.68% 3.65% 3.65% 3.60% 3.63% 

3.50% 

3.00% 

2.92% 
2.86% 2.86% 2 .50% 2.79% 2.74% 

2 .00% 

1.50% 
1.16% 

0.98% 1.04~, 1,03% 1,06% J 
1.00% I . - ~~ ... 

0.50% 
1016 2016 3016 4016 1017 

1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. lstQtr. Change 

In millions of dollars, excepl as otherwise noted 2017 2016 2016 IQ17 vs. IQ16 

Interest revenue<•) $ 14,546 $ 14,551 $ 14,286 2% 

Interest cxpense'2' 3,566 3,277 2,940 21 

Net interest revenue $ 10,980 $ 11,274 $ 11,346 (3)% 

Interest revenue- average rate 3.63% 3.60% 3.68% (5) bps 

Interest expense average rate 1.16 1.06 0.99 17 bps 

Net interest margin 2.74 2.79 2.92 (18) bp:s 

Interest-rate benchm,wks 

Two-year U.S. Treasury note-average rate 1.24% 1.01% 0.84% 40 bps 

I 0-year ll.S. Treasury note-average rate 2.45 2.14 1.91 54 bps 

I 0-year vs. two-year spread 121 b))S 113 hrs I07 bps 

Note: All interest expense amounts include PD!C deposit insura11cc assessments. 
(I) Ner interest revenue includes lhe taxable equivalent adjustments related to the lax-exempt bond portfolio (based on the l J.S. federal statutory tax rate of35%) of 

$123 milliou, $112 million, and $119 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017, December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2016, respectively. 
(2) Interest expense associated with certain hybrid financial instruments, which are classified as Long-term debt and aceou11ted for at fair value, is reporlt:d togt:lher 

with any cha11ges in foir vidue as part of Principal Transactions in tltc Consolidaled Stalt:mt:nts of Income and is therefore not rcncctcd in ll\lerest expense in tht: 
table above. 

Citi's net interest revenue declined 3% to $10.9 billion ($11.0 
billion on a taxable equivalent basis) versus the prior-year 
period, due to lower trading-related net interest revenue ($949 
million, down approximately 28% or $375 million), and lower 
net interest revenue associated with legacy assets in 
Corporate/Other ($402 million, down approximately 35% or 
$218 million), as well as the impact of FX translation 
(negative $58 million), pa11ially offset by higher net interest 
revenue in the remaining accrual businesses (core accrual net 
interest revenue). Core accrual net interest revenue increased 
3% to $9.5 billion versus the prior-year period, driven by the 
addition orthc Costco po11folio, other volume growt11 and the 
impact of the December 2016 interest rate increase, partially 
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offset by the impact of one less accrual day in 2017, an 
increase in the FDIC assessment and higher long-term debt. 

Citi's net interest margin (NIM) is calculated by dividing 
gross interest revenue less gross interest expense by average 
intcrcst-caming assets. Citi's NIM was 2.74% on a taxable 
equivalent basis in the first quarter of 20 l 7, a decrease of 18 
bps from the prior-year period. Citi's core accrual NIM 
declined 9 bps as the higher core accrual net interest revenue 
was more than offset by balance sheet growth, particularly in 
cash balances. (Citi's core accrual net interest revenue and 
core accrual NJM are non-GAAP financial measures. Citi 
believes these measures provide a more meaningful depiction 
for investors of the underlying fundamentals or its business 
results.) 



Additional Interest Rate Details 

Average D"l,mces "ml Interest Rates-Assetsc•ic2
JC

3> 

Taxable Equivalent Basis 

Average volume Interest 1·cvcn uc % Average rate 

!sf Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr. 1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr. lstQtr. 4111 Qtr. Isl Qtr. 

In millions of dollars, except rates 2017 2016 2016 2017 2016 2016 2017 2016 2016 

Assets 

Deposits with banks14l $ 154,765 $ 143,119 $ 117,765 $ 295 $ 268 $ 219 0.77% 0.74% 0.75% 

Federal funds sold and secul'itie.s 
borrowed or purchased under 
agreements to resell15l 

In U.S. offict:s $ 144,003 $ 145,799 $ 150,044 $ 368 $ 360 $ 374 1.04% 0.98% 1.00% 

In offices outside the U.S.14l 103,032 89,565 78,571 293 236 273 1.15% 1.05% 1.40% 

Total $ 247,035 $ 235,364 $ 228,615 $ 661 $ 596 $ 647 1.09% I.OJ% 1.14% 

Trading account assets'6Jl7l 

In U.S. otliccs $ 101,836 $ 100,473 $ 104,982 $ 884 $ 956 $ 953 3.52% 3.79% 3.65% 

In ofliccs outside the u.s.<4> 94,015 94,309 90,623 423 415 518 1.82% 1.75% 2.30% 

Total $ 195,851 $ 194,782 $ 195,605 $ 1,307 $ 1,371 $ 1,471 2.71'!/o 2.80% 3.02% 

Investments 

In U.S. offices 

Taxahle $ 221,450 $ 220,461 $ 228,980 $ 1,034 $ 999 $ 1,000 1.89% I.RO% 1.76% 

Exempt from U.S. income tax 18,680 18,802 19,400 196 192 169 4.26':-'o 4.06% 3.50% 

111 offices outside the u.s.C4l 107,225 106,289 103,763 789 772 754 2.98% 2.89% 2.92% 

Total $ 347,355 $ 345,552 $ 352,143 $ 2,019 $ 1,963 $ 1,923 2.36°/., 2.26% 2.20% 

Loans (net of unearned income fl 
In U.S. offices $ 367,397 $ 371,92R $ 350,107 $ 6,273 $ 6,302 $ 5,873 6.92% 6.74% 6.75% 

In offices outside the u.s.<4l 255,941 254,100 262,133 3,697 3,731 3,901 5.86% 5.84% 5.99% 

Total $ 623,338 $ 626,028 $ 612,240 $ 9,970 $ l0,033 $ 9,774 6.49% 6.38% 6.42% 

Other interest-earning assets(?J $ 56,733 $ 62,602 $ 56,260 $ 294 $ 320 $ 252 2.10% 2.03% 1.80% 

Total interest-earning assets $ 1,625,077 $ 1,607,447 $ 1,562,628 $ 14,546 $ 14,551 $ 14,286 3.63% 3.60% 3.68% 

Non-interest-earning assotst6) $ 205,477 $ 212,355 $ 214,943 

Total assets $ 1,830,554 $ 1,819,802 $ 1,777,571 

(1) Net inlerest rev,amue includes the taxuhle equivalent adjustments reluted to the tax-exempt bond portfolio (hascd on the U.S. federnl statutory tax rate of'35%) of 
$123 million, $112 million, and $119 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017, December 31, 2016 and March 3 I, 2016, respectively. 

(2) Interest rates and amounts include the effects of risk management activities associated with the respective 11ssc1 categories. 
(3) Monthly or quancrly averages have been used hy ce1tain subsidimies where daily averages arc unavailable. 
(4) Average rates rcllect prevailing local interest rates, including inflationmy eJlects and mo11ctary corrections in certain countries. 
(S) Average volumes of securities borrowed or purchased under ag1eements lo resell are reported net pursuant to ASC 210-20-45. However, Interest revenue excludes 

the impact of ASC 210-20-45. 
(6) The fair value c,irrying an,ounts of derivative contracts arc i-eported net, pursrnml to ASC 815-10-45, ill Non-inten:st-eurning assets and Oilier non-imeresl­

bearing fiabilities. 
(7) Interest expense on Trading account /iubilities of /CG is reported as a reduction of !merest revenue. Interest revenue and Interest expen.,e 011 cash collateral 

positions 1tre reported in interest 011 Trading ac,·oimf C1ssets and Trading account liabili1ies, respectively. 
(8) Includes cnsh-busis loans. 
(9) Includes brokerage receiv11bles. 
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Avernge Bahmces mu/ Interest Rate.-.-Uabilities <1nd Equity, mu/ Net Interest Keve11ue<•J(Zl<3l 

Taxable Equivulent Basis 

Avernge volume Interest expense % Average rate 

1st Qtr. 4th Q1r. Isl Qtr. 1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. Isl Qtr. 1st Qtr. 4th Qtr. I st Qtr. 

In millions of dollars, excepl rales 2017 2016 2016 2017 2016 2016 2017 2016 2016 
Liabilities 

Deposits 

In U.S. ofticcsC4
l $ 302,294 $ 293,969 $ 277,648 $ 507 $ 473 $ 316 0.68% 0.64% 0.46% 

In offices outside the u.s.csJ 428,743 424,902 424,055 908 874 888 0.86% 0.82% 0.84% 

Total $ 731,037 $ 718,871 $ 701,703 $ 1,415 $ 1,347 $ 1,204 0.78% 0.75% 0.69% 

Federal funds purchased and 
securities loaned or sold under 
agreements to repurchase<<>J 

In U.S. offices $ 94,461 $ 94,922 $ 103,523 $ 282 $ 237 $ 260 1.2I'Yo 0.99% 1.01% 

rn offices outsidt: 1ht: u.sY> 54,425 55,215 59,392 211 187 242 1.57% 1.35% 1.64% 

Total $ 148,886 $ 150,137 $ 162,915 $ 493 $ 424 $ 502 1.34%, 1.12% 1.24% 
Trading account liabilitic~;<'l!8l 

In U.S. offices $ 32,215 $ 33,266 $ 23,636 $ 84 $ 61 $ 52 1.06% 0.73% 0.88% 
In ofticcs outside the 11.s.<51 59,667 48,404 41,676 63 63 36 0.43% 0.52% 0.35% 

Total $ 91,882 $ RI,670 $ 65,312 $ 147 $ 12/J $ 88 0.65'Yo 0.60% 0.54% 
Short-term borrowi11gs<9J 

In U.S. offices $ 71,607 $ 71,381 $ 56,834 $ 85 $ 79 $ 29 0.48%, 0.44% 0.21% 
In offices outside the u.s.<5l 24,006 23,554 22,642 114 98 71 1.93% 1.66% 1.26% 

Total $ 95,613 $ 94,935 $ 79,476 $ 199 $ 177 $ 100 0.84% 0.74% 0.51% 
Long-term deht< 101 

In U.S. offices $ 178,656 $ 178,006 $ 172,429 $ 1,255 $ 1,148 $ 995 2.85'% 2.57% 2.32<!1,. 

In offices outsidt: lht: u.sY> 5,313 5,631 6,854 57 57 51 4.35% 4.03% 2.99% 

Total $ 183,969 $ 183,637 $ 179,283 $ 1,312 $ l,205 $ 1,046 2.89% 2.61% 2.35% 
Total interest-bearing liabilities $1,251,387 $ 1,229,250 $1,188,689 $ 3,566 $ 3,277 $ 2,940 1.16% 1.06% 0.99% 

Demand deposits in ll.S. offices $ 37,748 $ 41,699 $ 31,336 

Other non-interest-hearing 1 iabilitiesl71 3I4,l06 319,567 332,065 

Total liabilities $1,603,241 $1,590,516 $ l.552,090 

C.ifig1·oup stockholders' equity111J $ 226,312 $ 228,218 $ 224,320 

Noneontrolling interest 1,001 1,068 1,161 

Total equity'11 1 $ 227,313 $ 229,286 $ 225,481 

Total liabilities and stockholders' 
equity $1,830,554 $1,819,802 $ 1,777,571 
Net interest l'evenue as a percentage 
of avera~e interest-earning assets<12

l 

In U.S. offices $ 959,115 $ 960,324 $ 940,526 $ 6,837 $ 7,105 $ 6,953 2.89% 2.94% 2.97% 
[n offices outside (ht: u.s.<6

) 665,962 647,123 622,102 4,143 4,169 4,393 2.52 2.56 2.84 
Total $1,625,077 $ 1,607,447 $ 1,562,628 $ 10,980 $ 11,274 $ 11,346 2.74% 2.79% 2.92% 

(I) Net interest revenue includes the taxable equivalent adjustments rdaled to the tax-exempt bond portfolio (based on lhe U.S. federal statuto,y tax rate of35%) of' 
$123 million, $112 million, and $119 million for the three monlhs ended March 31,2017, Dcccmhcr 31, 2016 and March 31, 2016, respectively. 

(2) lnlcrcsl rales anc.l amounts include the effects of risk management activities associated with the respective liabilily calegories. 
(3) Mo11thly or quarlerly averages have been used by certain subsidiaries where daily avcrngcs arc unavailable. 
(4) Consis(s ofolher time deposits and savings deposits. Savings deposits are made up of insured money market 11ccounts, NOW accounts, and other savings deposits. 

The inlerest expense on savings deposits inch,dcs FOIC deposil insurance assessments. 
(5) Average mks rellect prevailing local interest rates, including inflationary effects and monetary corrcctio11s in cerlain countries. 
(6) Average vohnm:s of securities sold under agrccmcnls to repurchase are repoitcd uct pursuant to ASC 210-20-45. Ilowever, /11tere.v1 expense excludes the im1>act of 

ASC 210-20-4S. 
(7) The fair value canying amounts of derivative conlracts 11re reporletl net, pursuant to ASC 1! 15-10-45, i11 /Vo,1-interest-earning assets and Other non-inlerr:sl· 

bearing liabilities. 
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(8) Interest expense on Trading acco11n1 liahilities of /CG is reported llS u rt:duclion of' hiterest r,-v1mue. lnreresl revenue and Interest expense on cash colla1eral 
positions are reported in interest on Trading account assets and J'rading account liabilities, respectively. 

(9) Includes brokerage payables. 
(10) Excludes hybrid linancial instruments and beneficial interests in consolidi1ted VlF.s that arc classified as /,ong-term debt, as these oblig111ions i1n: accounted /or in 

changes in fair value recorded in Principal transactions. 
I I) Includes stockholders' e\wi1y from discontinued operations. 

,12) Indudes allocations for capital and funding costs ha~cd on the Joclltion of the asset . 

Anfllysis of Clumges in Interest Revenue<•JClJ<3) 

1st Qtr. 2017 vs. 4th Qtr. 2016 I st Qtr. 2017 vs. I st Qtr. 2016 

focrease (decrease) Increase (decrease) 
due to change in: due lo change in: 

Average Average Net Average Average Nel 
In millions of dollars volume rate change volume rate change 

Deposits with banks<~> $ 22 $ 5 $ 27 $ 70 $ 6 $ 

Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or 
purchased under agreements to resell 

In ll.S. offices $ (4) $ 12 $ 8 $ (15) $ 9 $ 

In omces outside the 1J.s.<4l 37 20 57 75 (55) 

Total $ 33 $ 32 $ 65 $ 60 $ (46) $ 

Trading account a ssets<51 

In U.S. offices $ 13 $ (85) $ (72) $ (28) $ (41) $ 

In offices outside the U.S.<4
l (I) 9 8 19 (114) 

Total $ 12 $ (76) $ (64) $ (9) $ (155) $ 

lnvestmentsl1l 

In IJ.S. offices $ 4 $ 35 $ 39 $ (40) $ 101 $ 

In offices outside the U.s.<4l 7 IO 17 25 10 

·r ota l $ 11 $ 45 $ 56 $ (15) $ lll $ 

Loans (net of unearned incomei6) 

In U.S. offices $ {77) $ 48 $ (29) $ 294 $ 106 $ 

In offices outside the lJ.S.<4
l 27 (61} (34) (91) ( 113) 

Total $ (SO)$ (13} $ (63) $ 203 $ (7) $ 

Other interest-earning asscts171 $ (30) $ 4 $ (26) $ 2 $ 40 $ 

Total interest revenue $ (2) $ (3) $ (5) $ 311 $ (51) $ 

(I) The taxable e1111ivalent adjust111en1 is related to the tax-exempt hond portfolio based on the U.S. lederal statutory tax rate of35% and is included in this 
presentation. 

(2) Rate/volume v11riance is allocah:d based on the percentage relationship of clianges in volume aml changes in rate to the total net change. 
()) Uet11iled uvernge volume, Interest revenue and Interest e,tpen.~e exclude Discontinued operations. See Nole 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(4) Changes in average r11tes rellect changes in prevailing local intercsl rates, including inflationmy effects and monetary corrcclions in certain countries. 
(5) Interest expense on TradinR account liabilities or /CC is reported as a reduction of Interest revenue. Interest revenue ancl Jntrm:st expense on ca~h collateral 

positions are reponed in interest on Trading account assets and Trading account liabilities, respectivdy. 
(6) Includes cash-basis loans. 
(7) Includes brokerage receivables. 

76 

76 

(6) 

20 

14 

(69) 

(95) 

(164) 

61 

35 

96 

400 

(204) 

196 

42 

260 



Amtlysis of Clumges ifz Interest Expense (Int/ Net Interest Reve11ue'1J<2Jl3> 

1st Qtr. 2017 vs. 4th Qtr. 2016 lstQtr. 2017 vs. 1st Qtr. 2016 

Increase (decrease) r ncrease (decrease) 
due to change in: due to change in: 

Ave1·age Average Net Average Average Net 
In millions qf dollars volume rnte change volume rate change 

Deposits 

In U.S. offices $ 14 s 20 $ 34 $ 30 $ 161 $ 

[n offices outside the U.S.(4
) 8 26 34 10 10 

Total $ 22 $ 46 $ 68 $ 40 $ 171 $ 

Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements 
to repurchase 

In U.S. oftkes $ (1) $ 46 $ 45 $ (24) $ 46 $ 

In offices outside the u.s.MJ (3) 27 24 (20) ( 11) 

Total $ (4) $ 73 $ 69 $ (44) $ 35 $ 

Trading account liabili ties'5l 

[n U.S. offices $ (2) $ 25 $ 23 $ 21 $ I I $ 

In omces outside tl1e U.S.l4> 13 (13) - 18 9 

Total $ 11 $ 12 $ 23 $ 39 $ 20 $ 

Short-term borrowingi6l 

In U.S. offices $ - $ 6 $ 6 $ 9 $ 47 $ 

[n offices outside the U.S.l4J 2 14 16 5 38 

Total $ 2 $ 20 $ 22 $ 14 $ 85 $ 

Long-term debt 

In U.S. otliccs $ 4 $ I03 $ 107 $ 37 $ 223 $ 

In offices outside the u.s.<4> (3) 3 - (13) 19 
Total $ 1 $ 106 $ 107 $ 24 $ 242 $ 

Total interest expense $ 32 $ 257 $ 289 $ 73 $ 553 $ 

Net interest t'evenue $ (34) $ (260) $ (294) $ 238 $ (604) $ 

(I) The taxable equivalent adjustmen! is related to the tax-exempt hond portfolio based on the U.S. li::clt:rnl st11tutory tax rate of35% and is inch,ded in this 
presentation. 

(2) Rate/volume variance is allocated based on the percentage relationship of changes in volume and changes in rnte to the total net change. 
(3) Uetailcd average voluine, Interest revenue 11nd interest expense exclude Disconti1111ed operations. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(4) Changes in average rates rellect changes in prevailing local interest rates, including iollationary effects and monetary corrections in certain countries. 
(5) Interest expense on Tradi11g accou11t liabilities of /CO is reported as a reduction ol' Interest revenue. Interest revenue and Interest expense on cash collaternl 

positions arc reported in interest on Trading account assels and Trading ac:c:011nt liabili1ies, respectively. 
(6) Includes brokerage payables. 
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20 
211 

22 
(31) 

(9) 

32 

27 

59 

56 

43 

99 

260 

6 

26t 
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Market Risk of Trading Portfolios 
For additional information on Citi's market risk of trading 
portfolios, sec "Markel Risk--- Market Risk of Trading 
0 ortfolios" in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Value at Risk 
As of March 31, 2017, Citi cslima!es that the conservative 
features of its VAR calibration contribute an approximate 
22% add-on (compared to 25% at December 31, 2016) to 
what would be a VAR estimated under the assumption of 
stable and pe1fectly normal distributed markets. 

As set forth in the table below, Citi's average trading 
VAR a.s ofMarch 31, 2017 increased sequentially, mainly 
due to changes in interest rate exposures across the po11folio, 
including increased mark-to-market hedging activity against 
non-trading positions in the markets and securities services 
business within !CG. Additionally, average credit spread risk 
declined from exposure changes. Average trading and credit 
portfolio VAR as of March 31, 2017 increased less than 
Trading VAR, mainly due to lower spread volatilities 
affecting the hedges to the lending portfolio. Trading VAR as 
of March 31, 2017 increased from December 31, 2016 
mainly due to interest rate risk changes as well as reduced 
diversification benefit across the pmtfolio, pa1tially onset by 
lower foreign exchange risk. 

Quarter-end and Average Trading VAR and Trading and Credit Portfolio VAR 

In millions of dollars 

I ntcrcst rate 

Credit spread 

Covariance a(Uuslmen1'1> 

Pully diversified interest rate and credit spread 

Foreign exchange 

Equity 

Commodity 

Covariance adjustme11t<1l 

Total trading VAR- all market risk factors, including general 
and l:pecilic risk (excluding credit port foliosi2> 

Specific risk-only component13> 

Total trading VAR-general market risk factOl'S only 
(excluding credit portfoliosi2> 

Incremental impact of the credit porlfolio<4> 

Total trading and credit portfolio VAR 

First 
Quarter 

Ma1·ch 31, 2017 
2017 Average 

$ 52 $ 48 $ 

54 56 

(17) (17) 

$ 89 $ 87 $ 

16 24 
17 15 

23 23 

(53) (63) 

$ 92 $ 86 $ 

$ - $ 2 $ 

$ 92 $ 84 $ 

$ 15 $ 14 $ 

$ 107 $ 100 $ 

Dec. 31, 
2016 

37 

63 

(17) 

83 

32 
13 

27 

(70) 

85 

3 

82 
20 

105 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fourth 
Quarter 

2016 March 31, 
Average 2016 

:n $ 37 $ 

64 62 $ 

(28) (29) 

69 $ 70 $ 

23 25 

14 9 

27 17 

(62) (62) 

71 $ 59 $ 

s $ 7 $ 

66 $ 52 $ 

18 $ 29 $ 

89 $ 88 $ 

first 
Quarter 

2016 
Average 

41 

64 

(27) 

78 

29 

15 

14 

(56) 

80 
7 

73 

28 

108 

(I) Covariance adjustment (also known as diversificalion bt:nt:fit) t:ttuals the difference hclwcen the total VAR and the sum oflhe VARs lied to each individual 
risk type. The benefit reflects the fact that the risks within t:ach and across risk types arc not pcrfcc1ly correlated mid, const:quently, lht: total VAR on a given 
day will be lower than the sum of lhe VA Rs relating to each individual risk type. The determination of the primary <lrivt:rs of chimges to the covariance 
adjnslmenl is made by an examination of the impacl of both model parameter and position changes. 

(2) The total Trading VAR inch1des mark-to-market and certain foir value option trading positions in /CG. with the exception of ht:dgt:s lo lht: loan portfolio, fair 
value option \0<1ns and all CVA exposures. Available-for-sale and accrual exposures arc not included. 

(3) Tht: specific risk-only component represents the level of equity and fixed income issucr-spccilie risk embedded in VAR. 
(4) Tht: crt:c.lit portfolio is composed of mark-to-market positions as~ociatt:<l with non-trading business units including Citi Treasury, the CVA relaling 10 

<lerivalive counlerparlies and all associated CVA hedges. FVA an<l DVA lire not included. The credit portlolio also includes hedges to the Imm portfolio, fair 
valut: option loans and hedges to the leveraged finance pipeline within capital markt:ls origination in /CC. 

78 



The table below provides the rru1ge or market factor VARs associated with Citi's total trading VAR, inclusive of specific risk: 

In millions ofdollars 

Interest l'a!e $ 

Credi! spread 

Fully diversified interest rate and credit spread $ 

foreign exchange 

Equity 

Commodity 

Total trading $ 

Total trading and credit portfolio 

First Quarter 

2017 

I.ow High 

29 $ 70 
51 63 
59 $ 109 

16 35 

6 25 

18 30 

61 $ 107 

75 123 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fourth Quarter 

2016 
Low lligh 

25 $ 45 
57 72 

61 $ 83 

15 32 

7 25 
21 33 

58 $ !!5 

78 I 05 

$ 

$ 

$ 

rirst Quarter 

2016 
Low High 

29 $ 64 

56 69 
66 $ 97 

24 40 

9 24 

JO ll! 

59 $ 106 

85 131 

Note: No covariance adjustment can be inferred lrom the above table as the high and low lor ec1ch murket factor will he from different close of business dutes. 

The following table provides the VAR for !CG, 
excluding the CVA relating to derivative counterpa1ties, 
hedges ofCVA, fair value option loans and hedges to the 
loan portfolio: 

In millions of dollars Mar. 31, 2017 

Tolal-1111 markcl risk factors, including 
general and specific risk 
l\vtragc during quarter 

High-during quarter 

Low-during quarter 

Regulatory VAR /Jack-testing 

$ 91 

$ 81 

95 
64 

In accordance with Hase! lll, Citi is required to pcrfonn 
back-testing to evaluate the effectiveness of its Regulatory 
VAR model. Regulatory VAR back-testing is the process in 
which the daily one-day VAR, at a 99% confidence intel'val, 
is compared to the buy-and-hold profit and loss (i.e., the 
profit and loss impact if the portfolio is held constant at the 
end of the day and re-priced the following day). Buy-and­
hold profit and loss represents the daily mark-to-market 
profit and loss attributable to price movements in covered 
positions from the close of the previous business day. Buy-
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and-hold profit and loss excludes realized trading revenue, 
net interest, fees and commissions, intra-day trading profit 
and loss and changes in reserves. 

Based on a 99% confidence level, Citi would expect two 
to three days in any one year where buy-and-hold losses 
exceeded the Regulatory VAR. Given the conservative 
calibration ofCiti's VAR model (as a result of taking the 
greater of sho1t- and long-term volatilities and fat-tail scaling 
of volatilities), Citi would expect fewer exceptions under 
normal and stable market conditions. Periods of unstable 
market conditions could increase the number of back-testing 
exceptions. 

As of March 31, 2017, there were two back-testing 
exceptions observed for Ci ti's Regulatory VAR for the prior 
12 months. As previously disclosed, trading losses on June 3, 
2016 marginally exceeded the VAR estimate at the Citigroup 
level, driven by higher volatility in the interest rate and 
foreign exchange markets following the release of weak non­
farm payroll data. Separately, trading losses on November 
14, 2016 exceeded the VAR estimate at the Citigroup level, 
driven by the widening or municipal bond yields following 
the election results in the United States. 



COUNTRY RISK 

for additional infonnation on country risk at Citi, see 
"Country Risk" in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Top 25 Country Exposures 
The following table presents Citi's top 25 exposures by 
country (excluding the U.S.) as of March 31, 2017. For 
purposes of the table, loan amounts are reflected in the country 
where the loan is booked, which is generally based on the 
domicile of the borrower. For example, a loan to a Chinese 
subsidiary of a Switzerland-based corporation will generally 
be categorized as a loan in China. In addition, Citi has 
developed regional booking centers in ce1tain countries, most 
signiticanlly in the United Kingdom (U.K.) and Ireland, in 
order to more efficiently serve its corporate customers. As an 

!CG 
loans<•) 

CCR 
loans<2l 

Other 
fundedl3> 

NctMTM 
Oil 

derivatives/ 
In billion.<<!/ dollars l]nfundcd<~l rcpos<~1 

United Kingdom $ 31.4 $ - $ 3.4 $ 56.3 $ 11.5 

Mexi<;o 8.8 24.9 0.4 6.0 1.8 

Hong Kong 13.7 10.3 0.7 8.1 1.3 

Singapore 12.2 12.0 0.1 5.6 I. I 

India 10.6 6.4 0.7 7.5 3.0 

Korea 2.5 19.5 0.4 3.6 1.5 

Brazil 13.7 0.2 0.2 3.4 4.5 

Ireland 8.2 - 0.7 15.7 0.3 

Australia 3.9 10.8 0.1 6.0 1.0 

Taiwan 4.5 8.4 0.1 I.I 0.7 

Japan 2.6 - 0.2 9.4 2.8 

Genrnmy 0.1 - - 3.9 5.1 

China 5.8 4.3 0.2 1.6 1.3 

Canada 1.8 0.6 0.5 6.1 2.0 

Poland 3.1 1.6 - 3.1 0.5 

Malaysia 1.3 4.3 0.3 1.5 0.2 

Netherlands - - - - 4.1 

Thailand 0.8 2.0 - 1.3 0.1 

Russia 2.3 1.0 - 1.2 0.5 

United Arab 
Emirates 3.1 1.4 0.1 1.5 0.4 

Colombia 2.6 1.7 - 1.1 0.1 

LuxembOltrg - - - - 0.6 

Indonesia 1.7 I. I 0.1 1.2 0.2 

Chile 1.8 - 2.0 0.1 0.2 

Turkey 2.9 - 0.4 0.4 0.3 

example, with respecl lo the U.K., only 25% of corporate 
loans presented in the table below arc to U.K. domiciled 
enlities (28% for unfunded commitments), with the balance of 
the loans predominately to European domiciled counterparties. 
Approximately 81 % of'thc total U.K. funded loans and 90% of 
the total U.K. unfunded commitments were investment grade 
as of March 31, 20 J 7. Trading account assets and investment 
securities are generally categorized based on the domicile of 
the issuer of the security of the underlying reference entity. 
For additional info1mation on the assets included in the table, 
see the footnotes to the table below. 

For a discussion of uncertainties arising as a result of the 
vote in the U.K. to withdraw from the EU, see "Risk Factors 
-Strategic Risks" in Citigroup's 2016 Annual Report on form 
10-K. 

Total 
hedges 

{on loans Investment 
and CVA) sccuritics<61 

$ (2.1) $ 8.4 

(0.8) 14.0 

(0.7) 5.8 

(0.3) 8.5 

(1.3) 7.9 

( 1.0) 7.6 

(2.8) 3.5 

- -
(1.0) 4.1 

(0.2) 1.8 

(1.7) 3.8 

(2.9) 9.4 

(I.I) 4.3 

(0.7) 4.6 

(0.3) 4.1 

(0.1) 0.8 

(0.6) 4.1 

- 1.7 

(0.2) 0.9 

(0.4) -
(0.1) 0.5 

(0.3) 5.2 

(0.2) 1.2 

- -

(0.2) 0.3 

T,·ading 
account 
assctsP> 

$ (0.3) 

4.0 

I.I 

0.6 

1.4 

1.9 

4.3 

0.4 

(1.0) 

2.l 

1.2 

2.4 

1.0 

0.1 

0.1 

0.8 

(0.8) 

0.3 

0.3 

(0.2) 

(0.1) 

0.2 

0.2 

-
(0.1) 

$ 

Total 
as of 
IQl7 

108.6 

59.1 

40.3 

39.8 

36.2 

36.0 

27.0 

25.3 

23.9 

18.5 

18.3 

18.0 

17.4 

15.0 

12.2 

9.1 

6.8 

6.2 

6.0 

5.9 

5.8 

5.7 

5.5 

4.1 

4.0 

$ 

Total 
as of 
4Ql6 

107.5 

52.4 

35.9 

36.4 

30.9 

34.0 

26.8 

24.8 

22.4 

16.6 

18.3 

16.0 

17.2 

17.0 

11.8 

9.3 

5.1 

5.8 

5.3 

6.0 

5.6 

5.4 

5.2 

4.() 

3.9 

$ 

Total 
;1sof 
IQ16 

103.5 

61.1 

34.5 

37.2 

32.8 

38.5 

27.8 

24.5 

25.9 

15.5 

I t.t 

21.9 

22.9 

17.4 

14.8 

10.8 

6.8 

6.2 

5.1 

6.4 

5.9 

6.2 

5.2 

3.R 

4.8 

(I) !CG loans rellccl funded corporate loans and private bank Joans, net of unearned income. /\s of March 31, 20 I 7, private hank loans in the table above totaled 
$20.8 billion, conccntratcd in Singapore ($7.5 billion), Hong Kong ($6.6 billion) and the lJ.K. ($5.5 billion). 

(2) CCR loans include funded loans in Rra:1.il and Colomhia related to businesses that were t.-ansferred to Corporate/Other as of January I, 2016. 
(3) Other l'unded includes other di reel exposure such as accounts receivable, loans held-for.sale, other loans in Corpora1e/Other and investments accounted for under 

the equity method. 
{4) Unfunded exposure includes unfunded corporate lending commitments, letters of credit and othe.- contingencies. 
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(5) Net mark-to-market (MTM) on derivatives and securities lending/ borrowing transactions (repos). Lxposurcs arc shown net of collateral and ineh,sivc ol'CVA. 
Includes margin loans. 

(6) lnvesl111e111 securities i11cl11dc ~ccuritics availahlc-for-salc, recorded at lair market value, and sec11rities held-to-maturity, recorded at historical 
cost. 

(7) Trading account assets are shown 011 a net has is and include derivative exposure where the underlying n:ference entity is located in chat coumry. 
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INCOME TAXES 

Deferred Tax Assets 
For additional information on Citi's deferred tax assets 
· DTAs), see "Risk Factors-Strategic Risks," "Significant 
Accounting Policies and Signiticant Estimates Income 
Taxes" and Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in 
Citi's 2016 Annual :Report on Fonn 10-K. 

At March 31, 20 I 7, Citigroup had recorded net DT1\s of 
approximately $45.9 billion, a decrease of$0.8 billion from 
December 31, 2016. The OTA reduction for the quarter was 
driven by the generation of earnings and movements in AOCI. 

The following table summarizes Citi's net D1As balance 
as of' the periods presented. Of Citi's net DTAs as of 
March 31, 2017, those arising from net operating losses, 
foreign tax credit and general business credit carry-forwards 
are 100% deducted in calculating Ci ti's regulatory capital, 
while DTAs arising from temporary differences are deducted 
from regulatory capital if in excess of the 10%/15% 
limitations (see "Capital Resources" above). Approximately 
$17.2 billion ofthe net OTA was not deducted in calculating 
regulatory capital pursuant to full Basel lll implementation 
standards as of March 31, 2017. 

Jurisdiction/Component DTAs balance 

Mar. 31, December 31, 
In billions of dollars 2017 2016 

Total U.S. $ 43.8 $ 44.6 

Total fot'eign 2.1 2.1 

Total $ 45.9 $ 46.7 
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Effective Tax Rate 
Citi's effective tax rate for the first quarter of 2017 was 31.1%, 
as compared with 29.7% in the first quarter of 2016. The 
higher effective tax rate predominantly reflects the higher 
level of pre-tax income in the current quru1er. 



DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Citi's disclosure controls and procedures are designed to 
ensure that information required to be disclosed under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, 
processed, summarized and repo11ed within the time periods 
specified in the SEC's rules and forms, including without 
limitation that information required to be disclosed by Citi in 
its SEC filings is accumulated and communicated to 
management, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate, to allow for 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

Citi's Disclosure Committee assists the CEO and CFO in 
their responsibilities to design, establish, maintain and 
evaluate the effectiveness ofCiti's disclosure controls and 
procedures. The Disclosure Committee is responsible for, 
among other things, the oversight, maintenance and 
implementation of the disclosure controls and procedures, 
subject to the supervision and oversight of the CEO and CFO. 

Citi's management, with the participation of its CEO and 
Cf-0, has evaluated the effectiveness ofCitigroup's disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule J 3a- J 5(e) under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of March 31, 2017 
and, based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have 
concluded that at that date, Citigroup's disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective. 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 219 
OF THE IRAN THREAT REDUCTION AND 
SYRIA HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

Pursuant to Section 219 of' the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria 
Human Rights Act of 2012, which added Section l3(r) to the 
Securities Exchange Ac! of 1934, as amended, Citi is required 
to disclose in its annual or qua11crly repo1ts, as applicable, 
whether it or any of its alTiliates knowingly engaged in certain 
activities, transactions or dealings relating to lran or with 
individuals or entities that are subject to sanctions under U.S. 
law. Disclosure is generally required even where the activities, 
transactions or dealings were conducted in compliance with 
applicable law. 

During the first quarter of 2017, a branch of Citibank, 
N.A., located in India, processed a funds transfer involving the 
Iranian Embassy in New Delhi, India. The value oftl1is funds 
transfer was fNR 27,552.00 (approximately USD 411.00). 
This payment was for visa services which are permissible 
under the travel exemption in the Iranian Transactions and 
Sanctions Regulations. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain statements in this Form 10-Q, including but not 
limited lo statements included within the Management's 
)iscussion and A11alysis of Financial Condition and Results or 

Operations, are "forward-looking statements" within the 
meaning of the rules and regulations of the SEC. In addition, 
Citigroup also may make forward-looking statements in its 
other documents filed or furnished with the SEC, and its 
management may make forward-looking statements orally to 
analysts, investors, representatives or the media and others. 

Generally, forward-looking statements arc not based on 
historical facts but instead represent Citigroup's and its 
management's beliefs regarding future events. Such statements 
may be identilied by words such as believe, expect, anticipate, 
intend, estimate, may increase, may fluctuate, and similar 
expressions or future or conditional verbs such as will, should, 
would and could. 

Such statements are based on management's current 
expectations and are subject to risks, uncertainties and changes 
in circumstances. Actual results and capital and other 
financial conditions may differ materially from those included 
in these statements due to a variety of factors, including 
without limitation: (i) the precautionary statements included 
within each individual business' discussion and analysis or its 
results or operations above and in Citi's 2016Annual Report 
on Form 10-K; (ii) the factors listed and described under "Risk 
factors" in Cit i's 2016 Annual Repolt on Form 10-K; and (iii) 
the risks and uncertainties summarized below: 

Citi's ability to address the shortcomings identified by the 
Federal Reserve Board and FDlC as a result of'their 
review ofCiti's 2015 annual resolution plan submission 
and the 2017 resolution plan guidance in Citi 's 2017 
resolution plan submission; 

• the potential impact on Citi's ability to return capital to 
shareholders due to any changes to the stress testing and 
CCAR requirements or process, such as the introduction 
ofa lirm-spccitic "stress capital buffer" or incorporation 
ofCiti's then-effective GSIB surcharge into its post­
stre.ss test minimum capital requirements or the 
introduction or additional macroprudential considerations 
such as funding and liquidity shocks in the stress testing 
process; 

• the ongoing regulatory uncertainties and changes faced by 
financial institutions, including Citi, in the U.S. and 
globally, including, among others, unce11ainties and 
potential changes arising from the U.S. presidential 
administration and Congress, potential changes to various 
aspects of the regulato1y capital framework and the terms 
of and other unce11ainties resulting from the U.K.'s 
initiation of the process to withdraw from the European 
Union, and the potential impact these uncertainties and 
changes could have on Citi's businesses, results of 
operations, financial condition, strategy or organizational 
structure and compliance risks and costs; 
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the numerous uncertainties arising as a result or the 
initiation of the process in the U.K. to withdraw from the 
European Union, including the terms of the withdrawal, 
and the potential impact to macroeconomic conditions as 
well as Cit i's legal entity structure and overall results of 
operations or linancial condition; 
the impact on the value ofCiti's DTAs and on Citi's net 
income or regulatory capital if corporate tax rates in the 
U.S. or certain state, local or foreign jurisdictions decline, 
or if other changes arc made to the U.S. corporate tax 
system, including changes resulting in a write down of 
timing difference fHAs; 
Citi's ability to continue to utilize its DTAs (including the 
foreign tax credit component of its DTAs) and thus reduce 
the negative impact of the DTAs on Citi's regulatory 
capital, including as a result of movements in Citi's 
AOCI, which can be impacted by changes in interest rates 
and foreign exchange rates; 
the potential impact to Citi if its interpretation or 
application of the extensive tax laws to which it is subject, 
such as withholding tax obligations ~.nd stamp and other 
transactional taxes, differs from those of the relevant 
governmental authorities; 
Citi's ability to achieve the expected returns on its 
ongoing investments in its businesses, including as a 
result of factors tJiat Citi cannot control; 
the po!cntial negative impact to Citi's co-branding and 
private label credit card relationships as well as Ci ti's 
results or operations or financial condition, including as a 
result of'loss of revenues, impairment of purchased credit 
card relationships and contract related intangibles or other 
losses, due to, among other things, operational difficulties 
of a particular retailer or merchant or early termination or 
a pa1ticular relationship, or external factors, including 
bankruptcies, liquidations, consolidations and other 
similar events; 
the potential impact lo Citi's businesses, credit costs and 
overall results of operations and financial condition as a 
result of macroeconomic and geopolitical challenges and 
unce11ainties, including those relating to potential 
outcomes of elections in the EU, potential fiscal or 
monetaiy actions or the pursuit of'protectionist trade and 
other policies by the U.S.; 
the various risks faced by Citi as a result or its presence in 
the emerging markets, including, among others, foreign 
exchange controls, sociopolitical instability (including 
from hyper-inflation), fraud, nationalization or loss of 
licenses, business restrictions, sanctions or asset freezes, 
potential criminal charges, closure of branches or 
subsidiaries and confiscation of assets as well as the 
increased compliance and regulatory risks and costs; 
the unce1taintics regarding the consequences of 
noncompliance and the potential impact on Citi's 
estimates of its eligible debt arising from the Federal 
Reserve Board's final total loss-absorbing capacity 
(TLAC) rules; 



the potential impact of concentrations of risk, such as 
market risk arising from Citi's volume or transactions 
with countcrparties in the financial services industl'y, on 
Citi 's hedging strategies and resu Its of operations; 
the potential impacts on Citi's liquidity and/or costs of 
funding as a result of external factors, including, among 
others, market disruptions and governmental fiscal and 
monetary policies as well as regulatory changes or 
negative investor perceptions of Citi 's creditworthiness; 
the impact or ratings downgrades ofCiti or one or more 
of its more significant subsidiaries or issuing entities on 
Citi's funding and liquidity as well as the results of 
operations of certain of its businesses; 
the potential impact to Citi from a disruption of its 
operational systems, including as a result of, among other 
things, human error, fraud or malice, accidental 
technological failure, electrical or telecommunication 
outages or failure of computer servers; 
the potential impact to Citi from an increasing risk of 
continually evolving cybersecurity risks (including theft 
or fonds or theft, loss, misuse or disclosure of confidential 
client, customer, corporate or network information or 
assets), damage to Citi's reputation, additional costs 
(including credit costs) to Citi, regulatory penalties, legal 
exposure and financial losses; 
the potential impact of incorrect assumptions or estimates 
in Cit i's financial statements or the impact of ongoing 
changes to financial accounting and reporting standards or 
interpretations, such as the FASB's new accounting 
standard on credit losses, on how Citi records and reports 
its financial condition and results of operations; 
the potential impact to Citi of ongoing implementation 
and interpretation of regulatory changes and requirements 
in the U.S. and globally, including on Citi's compliance 
risks and costs; 
the potential outcomes of the extensive legal and 
regulatory proceedings, investigations and other inquiries 
to which Citi is or may be subject al any given time, 
particularly given the increased focus on conduct risk and 
the severity of the remedies sought and potential collateral 
consequences to Citi arising from such outcomes; 
the potential impact to Citi's results of operations and/or 
regulatory capital and capital ratios if Citi's risk models, 
including its Basel II[ risk-weighted asset models, are 
ineffective, require refinement, modification or 
enhancement or approval i:s withdrawn by Citi's U.S. 
banking regulators; and 
the potential impact on Citi's performance, including its 
competitive position and ability to effectively manage its 
businesses and continue to execute its strategy, if Citi is 
unable to hire and retain highly qualified employees for 
any reason. 

J\ny forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of 
Citigroup speak only as to the date they are made, and Citi 
does not undertake to update forward-looking statements to 
reflect the impact of circumstances or events that arise after 
the date the forward-looking statements were made. 
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CONSOLIDATED Fl N ANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOMF. (UNAUDITED) 

In millions ofdollars. excepl per share amount.~ 

Revenues 

Interest n:venue 

Interest expense 

Net interest revenue 

Commissions and fees 

Principal transaetio11s 

Administration and other fiduciary fees 

Realized gains on sales of investments, net 

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments 

Gross impairment losses 

Less: Impairments recognized in AOC] 

Ne! impairment losses recognized in earnings 

Insurance premiums 

Other revenue 

Total non-interest revenues 

Total revenues, net of interest expense 

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims 

Provision for loan losses 

Policyholder benefits and claims 

Provision (release) for unfunded lending commitments 

Total provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims 

Operating ex11enses 

Co111pe11sation an<l benefits 

Premises im<l etJuipment 

·1·echnology/communieation 

J\dve1tising and marketing 

OtJ1er operating 

Total operating expenses 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 

1,rnvision for income taxes 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Loss from discontinued operations 

Benefit for income taxes 

Loss from discontinued Ol)erations, net of taxes 

Net income before atlrihution of non controlling interests 

Noncontrolling interesl.s 

Citigroup's net income 

Basic e11rnings per slrnrc ' l 

Income from continuing operations 

Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes 

Net income 

Weighted average common shares outstanding 
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s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

14,423 $ 14,167 

3,566 2,940 

10,857 $ 11,227 

2,759 $ 2,463 

3,022 1,840 

893 811 

192 186 

(12) (465) 

(12) $ (465) 

169 $ 264 

240 1,229 

7,263 $ 6,328 

18,120 $ 17,555 

1,,;75 $ 1,886 

30 88 
(43) 71 

1,662 $ 2,045 

5,534 $ 5,556 

620 651 

1,659 1,649 

373 390 

2,291 2,277 

I0,477 $ 10,523 

5,981 $ 4,987 

1,863 1,479 

4,118 $ 3,508 

(28) $ (3) 

(10) (I) 

(18) $ (2) 

4,100 $ 3,506 

lO 5 

4,090 $ 3,501 

1.36 $ 1.11 

(0.01) 

1.35 $ 1.10 

2,765.3 2,943.0 



Diluted earnings per shareC'J 

Income from continuing operations $ 1.36 $ 

Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes (0.01) 

Net income $ 1.35 $ 

Adjusted weighted average common shares outstanding 2,765.5 

(1) Due to rounding, earnings per share on eontinuin~ operations and discontinued operntion~ may not sum to earnings per share on net income. 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

I. II 

1.10 

2,943.1 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPRRHENSIVE INCOME 

(UNAUDITED) 

Citigroup inc. and Subsidiaries 

In millions of dollars 

Citigroup's net income 

Add: Citigroup's other comprehensive income 

Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investment securities, net of taxes 

Net change i11 debt valuation adjustment (OVA), net of taxes <1
> 

Net change in cash flow hedges, net of taxes 

Benefit plans liability adjustment, net of taxes 

Net change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of taxes an<l hedges 

Citigroup's total other comp,·ehensive income 

Citigroup's total comprehensive income 

Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 

Add: Net income attributable to noncontrolting interests 

Total comprehensive income 

(1) Sec Note 1 to the Consolidated Finuncial Statements. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

4,090 $ 3,501 

220 $ 2,034 

(60) 193 

(2) 317 

(12) (465) 

1,318 6S4 

1,464 $ 2,733 

5,554 $ 6,234 

31 $ 27 

IO 5 

5,595 $ 6,266 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

(UNAUDITED) 

In million., ofdol/ars 

Assets 

Ca:;h and due from banks (including segregated cash and other deposits) 
Deposits with banks 

t,'ederal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (including $137,360 
and $133,204 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, at fair value) 

Brokerage receivables 

Trading account assets (including $82,157 and $80,986 pledged to creditors at March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016. respectively) 

Investments: 

t\ vailable for sale (including $8,115 and $8,239 pledged to creditors as of March 31, 2017 and 
December 31.2016. respectively) 

Held to maturity (including $898 and $843 pledged to creditors as of March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, respectively) 

Non-marketable equity securities (including $1,529 an<l $1,774 at fair value as of March 31, 2017 and 
Decemher 31, 2016, respectively) 

Total investments 

Loans: 

Consumer (including $28 and $29 as of March 31. 2017 nnd December 31, 2016, respectively, al fair 
value) 

Corporate (including $4,007 and $3,457 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respeclively, at 
fair value) 

Loans, net of uncamcd income 
Allowance for loan losses 

T()tal loans, net 
Goodwill 
Intangible assets (other than MSRs) 
Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) 

Other asse!s (including $17,281 and $15,729 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31.2016, 
respectively, at fair value) 

Total assets 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Cilif{mup Inc. and Subsidiaries 

March 31, 
2017 December 31, 

(Unaudited) 2016 

22,272 $ 23,043 
157,773 137,451 

242,929 236,813 

36,888 28,887 

244,903 243,925 

290,282 299,424 

47,942 45,667 

7,609 8,213 

345,833 $ 353,304 

320,556 325.063 

308,039 299,306 

628,595 $ 624,369 
(12,030) (12,060) 
616,565 $ 612,309 

22,265 21,65<;, 
5,013 5,114 

567 1,564 

126,627 128,0()8 

1,821,635 $ 1,792,077 

The following table presents certain assets or consolidate<l variable interest entities (VIEs), which arc included in the 
Consolidated Halance Sheet above. The assets in the table below include those assets that can only be used to settle obligations of 
consolidated VJ.Es, presented on the following page, and are in excess of those obligations. Additionally, the assets in the table below 
include third-party assets of consolidated VIEs only and exclude intercompany balances that eliminate in consolidation. 

In millions of dollars 

Assets of consolidntcd VI Es to be used to settle obligations of consolidated VIEs 
Cash and due from hanks 
Trading account assets 
Investments 
Loans, net of unearned income 

Consumer 
Corporale 

Loans, nel of unearned income 
Allowance ror loan losses 

Total loans, net 
Other assets 
Totnl assets of consolidated Vll!:s to be used to settle obligations of consolidated VIEs 

Statement continues on the next page. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Mal'ch 31, 

2017 December 3 I, 
(Unaudited) 2016 

65 $ 142 
1,031 602 
3,397 3,636 

49,815 53,401 
19,556 20,121 
69,371 $ 73,522 
(1,860) (1,769) 
67,511 $ 71,753 

165 158 
72,169 $ 76,291 



CONSOLH>ATED BALANCE SHEET 
(Continued) 

in millions of dollars, except shares and per share amounts 

Liabilities 
No11-intel'est-heari11g deposits in {J.S. otliccs $ 

Interest-hearing deposits in U.S. otliccs (including $351 and $434 as of March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, respectively, at fair value) 

Non-interest-bearing deposits in offices outside the {J.S. 

Interest-bearing deposits in omces outside the U.S. (including $956 and $778 as of March 31, 2017 and 
Decemher 31, 2016, respectively, at fair value) 

Total deposits $ 

Federal funds purchased and securitks loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (including $40,939 
and $33,663 as of March 31, 2017 and Decemher 31, 2016, respectively, at fair value) 

nrokerage payables 
Trading account liabilities 

Short-term horrowings (including $3,473 and $2,700 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
respectively, at fair value) 

Long-term debt (including $27,526 and $26,254 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
resf)ectively, at fair value) 

Other liabilities (including $12,681 and $10,796 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
respectively, at fair value) 

Total liabilities 
Stockholders' e(1uity 

$ 

Preferred stock ($1.00 par value; authorized shares: 30 million), i~sued shares: 770,120 as of March 31, 
2017 a11d as or December 31, 2016, at aggregate liquidation value $ 

Common stock ($0.01 par value; authorized shares: <i hillion), issued shares: 3,099,523,273 and 
3,099.482,042 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 

Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Treasury stock, at cost: March 31, 2017-346,265,476 shares and December 31, 2016----327,090, 192 
shares 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
Total Citigroup stockholders' equity 
Noncontrolling interest 
Total equity 
Total liabilities and equity 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Citigroup inc. and Subsidiaries 

March 3l, 
2017 Decemher 31, 

(Unaudited) 2016 

129,436 $ 136,698 

310,572 300,972 

79,063 77,616 

430,919 414,120 

949,990 $ 929,406 

148,230 141,821 

59,655 57,152 
144,070 139,045 

26,127 30,701 

208,530 206,178 

55,880 61,631 

1,592,482 $ 1,565,934 

19,253 $ 19,253 

31 31 

!07,613 108,042 
149,731 146,477 

(17,579) (16,302) 

(30,917) (32,381) 
228,132 $ 225,120 

1,021 1,023 
229,153 $ 226,143 

1,821,635 $ 1,792.077 

The following table presents certain liabilities of consolidated VrEs, which are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet above. 
The liabilities in the table below include third-party liabilities of consolidated VJEs only and exclude intercompany balances that 
eliminate in consolidation. The liabilities also exclude amounts where creditors or beneficial interest holders have recourse to the 
general credit of Citigroup. 

In millions qf dollars 

Liabilities of consolidated Vl~s for which creditors or beneficial interest holders 
do not have recourse to the general credit of Citigroup 

Short-term borrowings 

Long-term debt 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities of consolidated VIEs for which creditors or beneficial interest 
holders do not have recourse to the general credit of Citigroup 

$ 

$ 

March 31, 
2017 

(Unaudited) 

10,636 

24,062 

739 

35,437 

fhe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral pait of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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December 31, 
2016 

$ 10,697 

23,919 

1,275 

$ 35,891 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(UNAUDITF:D) 

In millions of dollars, except shares in 1ho11sandf 

Preferred stock at aggregate liquidation value 

Balance, beginning of period 

Issuance of new preferred stock 

Balance, end of period 

Common stock and additional paid-in capital 

Balance, beginning of period 

Employee benefit plans 

Preferred stock issuance expense 

Other 

Balance, end of period 

Retained earnings 

Balance_, beginning of period 

Adjustment to opening halance. net of taxes<1
l 

Adjusted balance, beginning of period 
Citigroup's net income 

Common dividends(2l 

Preferred dividends 

Tax benefit 
Othel3J 

Balance, end of period 

T.-easury stock, at cost 

Balance, beginning of period 
Employee benefit plans<4J 

Treasury stock acquircd<5l 

Balance, end of period 

Citigroup's accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Balance, heginning of period 

Adjustment lo opening balance, net of taxes<•> 

Adjusted balance, beginning of period 

Citigroup's total other comprehensive income (loss) 

Balance, end of period 

Total Citigroup common stockholders' equity 

Total Citigroup stockholders' equity 

Noncontrolling interests 

Balance, beginning of period 

Transactions between Citigroup and the noneontrolling-intcrcst shareholders 

Net income nllribut.ablc to noncontrolling-intcrcst shareholders 

Other comprehe11sive income (loss) attributable lo 
noncontrolling-interest shareholders 

OUier 
Net change in noncontrolling interests 

Balance, end of period 

Total equity 

(1) See Note I to the Consolidated l'inancial Slatcmcnts lor additional details. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Three Months Ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

19,253 $ 

19,253 $ 

108,073 $ 

(426) 

(3) 

107,644 $ 

146,477 $ 

146,477 $ 

4,090 

(445) 

(301) 

(90) 

149,731 $ 

(16,302) $ 

507 
(1,784) 

(17,579) $ 

(32,381) $ 

(32,381) $ 

l,464 
(30,917) $ 

208,879 $ 

228,132 $ 

1,023 $ 

(1) 

10 

31 

(42) 

(2) $ 

1,021 $ 

229,153 $ 

16,718 

1,035 

17,753 

108,319 

(660) 

(31) 

(7) 
107,621 

133,841 

15 

133,R56 

3.501 

(149) 

(210) 

136,998 

(7,677) 

765 

(1,312) 

(8,224) 

(29,344) 

(15) 

(29,359) 

2,733 

(26,626) 

209,769 

227,522 

l,235 

(27) 

5 

27 

(I) 

4 

1,239 

228,761 

(2) Common dividends declared were $0.16 per share i11 the Jirst (IU«rler of2017 and $0.05 per share in the first quarter ol'2016. 
(3) Includes the impact of AS!/ 20 I 6-09, Compensation-Stock Compensalion (Topic 718) Improvements to F.mJlloycc Share-Based Payment Accounting. See Note I 

to the Consolidated 1:i11a11cia\ Statements. 
(4) Includes treasury stock related to (i) certain activity on cmJlloyee stock option progrnm exercises where the employee delivers existing shares lo cover the option 

exercise, or (ii) unde.- Citi's employee restricted or deferred stock programs where shHres are withheld to satisfy tax requirements. 
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(5) ror !ht: three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, primarily consists of open murkt:t pun.:hases under Citi 's Floard of Oin:ctors-approved common stock 
repurchast: program. 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

(UNAUDITED) 

h1111il/ions qf dollars 

Cash tlows from operating activities of con ti nu ing Ol)erations 

Net income before attribution of noncontrolling interests 

Net income attributable to noncontrolling intel'ests 

Citigroup's net income 

Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes 

Income from continuing operations-excluding noncontrolling interests 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities of 
continuing operations 

Net gains on significant disposals<11 

Depreciation and amorfo:ation 

Provision for loan losses 

Realized gains from sales of investments 

Net impairment losses on investments. goodwill and intangible assets 

Change in trading account assets 

Change in trading account liabilities 

Change in brokerage receiv11blcs net of hrokerage payables 

Change in loam; held-for-sale (I-IFS) 

Change in other assets 

Change in olher liabilities 

Other, net 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided hy (used in) operating activities of continuing operations 

Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations 

Change in deposits witl1 banks 

Change in federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 

Change in loans 

Proceeds from sales and securitizations ofloans 

Purchases of investments 

Proceeds from sales of invesuncnts 

Proceeds from maturities of investments 

Proceeds from significant diSJlOSaJsPl 

Capital expenditures on premises and equipment and capitalized software 

l'rocee<ls from sales of premises and equipment, subsidiaries and affiliates, 
and repossessed assets 

Net cash used in investing 11ctivitics of continuing operations 

Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operntions 

Dividends paid 

Issuance of preferred stock 

Trcasu1y stock acquired 

Stock tendered for payment ofwithholdi11g taxes 

Change in federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase 

Issuance oflong-term debt 

Payments and redemptions of long-term debt 

Change in deposits 

Change in short-term bo1·rowings 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

4,100 $ 3,506 

10 5 

4,090 $ 3,501 

(18) (2) 

4,I08 $ 3,503 

(19) (422) 

896 908 

1,675 1,886 

(192) (186) 

40 465 

(1,073) (23,791) 

5,025 18,634 

(5,498) (3.043) 

1,949 3,896 

(811) (3,327) 

(5,685) (179) 

(3,421) l,11~ 

(7,114) $ (4,041) 

(3,006) $ (538) 

(20,322} $ (23,852) 

(6,116) (5,418) 

(7,953) (5,057) 

3,191 1,247 

(41,584) (59,715) 

29,456 39,268 

24,006 16,544 

2,732 265 

(786) (702) 

133 230 

(17,243) $ (37, I 90) 

(744) $ (359) 

1,004 

(1,858) (1,312) 

(397) (308) 

6,409 10,712 

18,603 13,904 

(18,885) (11,281, 

20,584 26,704 

(4,574) (186) 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

(UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED) 

In millions of dollars 

Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing operations 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 

Change in cash and due from banks 

Cash and due from banks at beginning of period 

Cash and due from banks at end of period 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information for continuing operations 

Cash paid during the period for income taxes 

Cash paid during the period for interest 

Non-cash investing activities 

Decrease in goodwill associated with significant disposals reclassified lo HFS 

Transfers to loans HPS from loans 

Transfers to OREO and other repossessed assets 

(I) See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Sta!ements for forthcr information on significant disposals. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 

19,138 $ 

340 $ 

(771) $ 

23,043 

12,272 

913 

3,250 

2,800 

30 

$ 

$ 

2016 

38,878 

190 

1,340 

20,900 

22,240 

688 

2,694 

(30) 

3,200 

56 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

I. BASIS OF PRl<:SENTATION AND ACCOUNTING 
CHANGES 

Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Pinancial 
Statements as of March 31, 2017 and for the three-month 
periods ended March 3 1, 2017 ru1d 2016 include the 
accounts of Citigroup Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

r n the opinion of management, all adjustments, 
consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a 
lair pre!>entation have been reflected. The accompanying 
unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements should be read 
in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and related notes included in Citigrnup's Annual Report on 
Form J 0-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, 
(2016 Annual Report on Form I 0-K). 

Ce1tain financial information that is normally included 
in annual financial statemenLS prepared in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), but 
is not required for interim reporting purposes, has been 
condensed or omitted. 

Management must make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related 
footnote disclosures. While management uses its best 
judgment, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

As noted above, tl1e Notes LO Consolidated Financial 
Statements are unaudited. 

Throughout these Notes, "Citigroup," "Citi" and the 
"Company" refer to Citigroup lne. and its consolidated 
subsidiaries. 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior 
periods' financial statements and notes to conform to the 
current period's presentation. 

ACCOUNTING CHANGES 

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation 
In March 2016, the FASI3 issuedASU 2016-09, 
CompensaliM· Stock Compensation (Topic 718): 
Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment 
AccountinK in order to s implify certain complex aspects of 
the accounting for income taxes and forfeitures related to 
employee stock-based compensation. 111e guidru1ce became 
effective for Citi beginning on Jamrnry I, 2017. Under the 
new standard. excess tax benefits and deficiencies related lo 
employee sto~k-based compensation are recognized directly 
within Income tax expense or benefit in Citi 's Consolidated 
Statement of Income, rather than within Additional paid-in 
capital. The impact of this change was not material in the 
first qua1ter of 2017. The impact of this change is similarly 
not expected to be material for the rcrna indcr of 2017 as the 
majority of employees' deferred stock-based compensation 
awar<l5 are granted within the first qua11er o f each year, and 
therefore vest within the first qua1tcr or each year, 
commensurate with vesting in equal annual installments. 
For additional information on these receivables and 
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payables, sec Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Additionally, as permitted under the new guidance, Citi 
made an accounting policy election to account for forfeitures 
of awards as they occur, which represents a change from the 
previous requirement to estimate fo1feitures when 
recognizing compensation expense. This change resulted in 
a cumulative e ffect adjustment to retained earnings that was 
not material at January J, 2017. 

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 
In Januaiy 20 L6, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 
2016-01, Financial Instruments-Overall (,<:Jubtopic 825-10): 
Recognition and Measurement o/Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities, which addresses ce1tain aspects of 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
financial instruments. 

This ASU requires entities to present separately in 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCJ) the 
po1tion of the total change in the fair value of a liability 
resulting from a change in the inslrumenHpecific credit risk 
when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair 
value in accordance with the lair value option for financial 
instruments. It also requires cquily investments (except 
those accounted for under the equity method of accounting 
or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be 
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized 
in net income, thus eliminating eligibility for the current 
available-for-sale category. However, Federal Reserve Bank 
and .Federal Home Loan Bank stock as well as certain 
exchange seats will continue to be presented at cost. 

Citi early adopted only the provisions ofthisASU 
related to presentation of the change in fair value of 
liabilities for which the fair value option was elected, related 
to changes in Citigroup's own credit spreads in AOCl 
effective Januruy I, 2016. Accordingly, as of the first quarter 
20 16, these amounts are reflected as a component of AOCl, 
whereas these amounts were previously recognized in 
Citigroup's revenues and net income. The impact of 
adopting this amendment resulted in a cumulative catch-up 
reclassification from retained earnings to AOCl of an 
accumulated after-tax los5 of approximately $15 mi llion at 
January 1, 2016. Financial statements for periods prior to 
2016 were not subject to restatement under the provisions of 
this ASU. For additional infonnation, see Note 17, Note 20 
ru1d Note 21 lo the Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
Company is evaluating the effects that the other provisions 
of ASU 2016-01,which are effective on January 1, 20 18, will 
have on its Consolidated Financial Statements and related 
disclosures. 



FUTURE APPLICATlON OF ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS 

\ccounting for Financial Jnstruments--Cl'edit Losses 
.n June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No.2016-13, Financial 
Instruments -Credit Losses (Topic 326). The ASU 
introduces a new accounting model, the Current Expected 
Credit Losses model (CECL), which requires earlier 
recognition of credit losses, while also providing additional 
transparency about credit risk. 

The FASB's CECL model utilizes a lifetime "expected 
credit loss" measurement objective for the recognition of 
credit losses for loans, held-lo-maturity securities and other 
receivables at the time the financial asset is originated or 
acquired. The expected credit losses arc adjusted each 
period for changes in expected lifetime credit losses. For 
available-for-sale securities where fair value is less than cost, 
credit-related impairment, if any, will be recognized in an 
allowance for credit losses and adjusted each period for 
changes in expected credit risk. This model replaces the 
multiple existing impairment models in current GAAP, 
which generally require that a loss be incurred before it is 
recognized. 

The CECL model represents a significant departure 
from existing GAAP and may result in material changes to 
the Company's accounting for financial instruments. The 
Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-13 will 
have on its Consolidated Financial Statements and related 
disclosures. The impact of the ASU will depend upon the 
.late of the economy and the nature of Citi's portfolios at the 

date of adoption. The ASU will be effective for Citi as of 
January 1, 2020. Early application is permitted for annual 
periods beginning January l, 2019. 

Revenue Recognition 
[n May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, which requires an entity to 
recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be 
entitled for the trans for of promised goods or services to 
customers. The Company will adopt the guidance as of 
January I, 2018 with a cumulative-effect adjustment to 
opening retained earnings. While the guidance will replace 
most existing revenue recognition guidance in UAAP, the 
ASU is not applicable to financial instruments and, 
therefore, will not impact a majority of the Company's 
revenue, including net interest income. 

While in scope of the new guidance, the Company does 
not expect a material change in the Liming or measurement 
of revenues related to deposit fees. Cit i's credit cardholder 
foes and mortgage servicing fees have been concluded to be 
out of scope oftJ1e standard and therefore will not be 
impacted by the issuance of this guidance. The Company 
expects the presentation of expenses associated with 
underwriting activity to change from the current rcpo1ting 
where underwriting revenue is recorded net of the related 
~xpcnscs to a gross presentation where the expenses are 
recorded in Other operating expenses. This change Lo a gross 
presentation will result in an equivalent increase in 
underwriting revenue recorded in Commissions am/fees and 
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associated underwriting expenses recorded in Other 
operating expenses; however, this change in presentation 
will not have an impact on Income from continuing 
operations. The Company continues to evaluate the effect 
that the guidance will have on other revenue streams within 
its scope, including the presentation of certain contract 
expenses, as well as changes in disclosures required hy the 
new guidance. 

Lease Accounting 
rn February 2016, the FASH issued ASU No.2016-02, 
Leases (Topic 842), which is intended to increase 
transparency and comparability of accounting for lease 
transactions. The ASU will require lessees to recognize all 
leases on the balance sheet as lease assets and lease 
liabilities and will require both quantitative and qualitative 
disclosures regarding key information about leasing 
arrangements. Lessor accounting is largely unchanged. The 
guidance is effective beginning Janua1y 1, 2019 with an 
option to early adopt. The Company docs not plan to early 
adopt the /\SU. The Company is evaluating the effect that 
the standard will have on its Consolidated financial 
Statements, regulatory capital and related disclosures and the 
impact is not expected to be material. 

Income Tax Impact of Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets 
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 20 J 6-16, 
income 'l'axes-lntra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than 
Jnvento1y, which will require an entity to recognize the 
income tax consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an 
asset other than inventory when the transfer occurs. The 
ASU is effective on January 1, 201 S with early adoption 
permitted. The Company continues to evaluate the impact or 
this standard, which is expected to increase DTAs, with an 
associated decrease in prepaid taxes of approximately $500 
million. 

Subsequent Measurement of Goodwill 
[n January 2017, the FASH issued ASU No. 2017-04, 
Intangibles Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying 
the Test.for Guodwill lmpai>·ment. The ASU simplifies the 
subsequent measurement of goodwill impairment by 
eliminating the requirement to calculate the implied fair 
value or goodwill (i.e., the current Step 2 of the goodwill 
impairment test) to measure a goodwill impairment charge. 
Under the ASU, the impairment test is simply the 
comparison or the fair value of a repo11ing unit with its 
carrying amount (the current Step l), with the impairment 
charge being the deficit in fair value but not exceeding the 
total amount of goodwill allocated to that repo11ing unit. The 
simplified one-step impairment test applies to all reporting 
units (including those with zero or negative carrying 
amounts). 

The ASU is effective for Citi as of January I, 2020. 
Early adoption is permitted for interim and annual goodwill 
impairment testing dates aller January I, 2017. The impact 
of the ASU will depend upon the performance of the 
reporting units and the market conditions impacting the fair 
value of each reporting unit going forward. 



Clarilying the Definition of a Business 
In January 2017, the FASB issuedASU No. 2017-01, 
Business Combination<: (Topic 805): Clar[fying the 
Definition qf a Business. The definition of a business directly 
and indirectly affects many areas of accounting ( e.g., 
acquisitions, disposals, goodwill and consolidation). The 
ASU narrows the definition of a business by introducing a 
quantitative screen as the first step, such that if substantially 
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is 
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a group of 
similar identifiable assets, the set of transferred assets and 
activities is not a business. lfthe set is not scoped out from 
the quantitative screen, the entity then evaluates whether the 
set meets the requirement that a business include, at a 
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together 
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. 

The ASU is effective for Citi as of January 1, 2018. The 
ASU will he applied prospectively, with early adoption 
permitted. The impact oftheASU will depend upon the 
acquisition and disposal activities of Citi. Ir fewer 
transactions qualify as a business, there could be less initial 
recognition of goodwill, but also less goodwill allocated to 
disposals. 

Premiums on Purchased Callable Debt Securities 
In late March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-08, 
Receivahles-Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs 
(Subtopic 310-20). The ASU changes the period of 
amortization of premiums on certain callable debt securities 
from d1c full contractual life of the security to the earliest 
call date or the security. The ASU will not change the 
accretion or discounts. 

The ASlJ is effective for Citi as of January I, 2019 
through a cumulative effect adjustment lo retained earnings, 
with early adoption permitted. This accounting change will 
primarily affect Citi's ponfolios of available-for-sale and 
held-to-maturity state and municipal debt securities. The 
Company is evaluating the effect that the standard will have 
on its Consolidated Financial Statements, but based on a 
preliminary analysis, it is expected to result in a cumulative 
effect adjustment reducing retained earnings (primarily 
through a reclassification from AOCI} to reflect the shorter 
amortization period to the earliest call date for the premiums 
on callable debt securities. Under the new guidance, interest 
revenue recorded on callable bonds subject to a premium 
will decrease before the call date because premiums will be 
amo1tized over a shorter time period. 
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Other Potential Amendments to Current Accounting 
Standards 
The FASB has issued a proposed ASU that will provide 
targeted improvements to the accounting guidance for 
hedging activities. The exposure draft contains many 
proposals for improving how the economic results ofrisk 
management are reflected in financial repo1ting. Specifically, 
among other improvements, the ASU is expected to expand 
the list of benchmark interest rates and also increase the 
ability for entities to construct hedges of interest rate risk 
that hedge only certain cash flows ofa hedged item. If 
issued in its current fonn, the ASU is also expected to 
modify exisling guidance related to the timing and income 
statement line recognition of ineffectiveness and components 
excluded from hedge relationships and add incremental 
disclosures regarding hedging activities. 



2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT 
DISPOSALS 

Discontinued Operations 
'.'he following sales are reported as Discontinued operations 
within Corporate/Other. 

Sale of Egg Banking pie Credit Card Business 
Citi sold the Egg Banking pie credit card business in 2011. 
Residual costs from the disposal resulted in losses from 
Discontinued operations, net of taxes, of$l8 million and $2 
million for the three months ended March 31, 20 l7 and 2016, 
respectively. 

Combined Results for Discontinued Operations 
The following summarizes financial information for all 
Discontinued operations for which Citi continues to have 
minimal residual costs associated with the sales: 

Three months ended 

In millions q( dollars 

Total revenues, net ofinte1·est ex11ensc 

Income (loss) from discontinut:d 
operations 

Provision (benefit) for income: taxes 

Income (loss) from discontinued 
operations, net of taxes 

$ 

$ 

$ 

March 31, 

2017 2016 

-$ 

(28) $ (3) 

(IO) ()) 

(18) $ (2) 

'::ash flows for the Discontinued operations were not material 
.or the periods presented. 

Significant Disposuls 
The following sales completed during 20 17 and 2016 were 
identified as significant disposals. The major classes of assets 
and liabilities derecognized from the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet at closing and the income related to each business until 
the disposal date are presented below. 

Novation of the 80% Primerica Coinsurance Agreement 
Eflective January l, 2016, Citi completed a novation (an 
arrangement that extinguishes Citi's rights and obligations 
under a contract) of the Primerica 80% coinsurance 
agreement, which was patt of Corporate/Other, to a third­
paity re-insurer. The novation resulted in revenues of $404 
million recorded in Other revenue ($263 million after-tax) 
during the first qua1ter of 2016. Fmthe1more, the novation 
resulted in derccognition of$ l.5 billion of available-for-sale 
securities and cash, $0.95 billion of deferred acquisition costs 
and $2.7 billion of insurance liabilities. 
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Exit of U.S. Mortgage Service Operations 
As previously disclosed, Citigroup signed agreements during 
the first quarter of 20 l 7 to effectively exit its U.S. mo1tgage 
servicing operations by the end of 2018 to intensify focus on 
originations. The exit of the mortgage servicing operations 
included the sale of mo1tgage servicing rights and execution of 
a suhscrvicing agreement for the remaining Citi-owned loans 
and ce,tain other mortgage servicing rights. As part of this 
transaction, Citi will also transfer ce1tain employees. 

This transaction, which was prut of Corporate/Other, 
resulted in a pretax loss of$33 l million ($207 million after 
tax) recorded in Other revenue during the first quarter of 2017. 
The loss on sale does not include certain other costs and 
charges related to the disposed operation recorded primarily in 
Operating Expenses in the first qua1ter of 2017, resulting in a 
total pretax loss of$382 million. As part of the completed sale, 
Citi derecognized a total of$l,162 million or servicing related 
assets, including$ I ,046 million of mo11gage servicing rights, 
related to approximately 750,000 Fannie .Mae and Freddie 
Mac held loans with outstanding balances of approximately 
$93 billion. Excluding the loss on sale and the additional 
charges recorded during the current period, income before 
taxes for the disposed operation was immaterial for the three 
months ended March 3 I, 2017 and 2016. 

Sale of CitiFinancial Canada Consumer Finance Business 
On March 31, 20 l 7, Citi sold CitiFinancial Canada 
(CitiFinancial), which was part of Corporate/Other, including 
220 retail branches and approximately 1,400 employees. As 
part of' lite sale, Citi derecognized total assets of 
approximately $1.9 billion, including $1.7 billion consumer 
loans (net or allowance), and total liabilities of approximately 
$1.5 billion related to intercompany borrowings, which were 
settled at closing of the transaction. Separately, during the first 
qua1ter of 2017, Citifinancial settled $0.4 billion of debt 
issued through loan securitizations. The transaction generated 
a pretax gain on sale of $350 million recorded in Other 
revenue ($178 million after-tax). 

Income before taxes, excluding the pretax gain on sale, 
was as follows: 

In millions of dollars 

Income before taxes 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

2017 2016 

$ 30 $ 21 



3. BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

Citigroup's activities are conducted through the Global 
Consumer lJanking (GCB) and Institutional Clients Group 
(!CG) business segments. In addition, Corporate/Other 
includes activities not assigned to a specific business segment, 
as well as certain No11h America and international loan 
portfolios, discontinued operations and other legacy assets. 

The prior-period balances reflect reclassifications to 
conform the presentation for all periods to the current period's 
presentation. Effective January I, 2017, financial data was 
reclassi lied to reflect: 

• the repo11ing of the remaining businesses and 
portfolios of assets of Citi Holdings as pa1t of 
Corporate/Other which, prior to the first quai1er of 2017, 
was a separately repo1ted business segment; 
the re-attribution of ce,tain treasury-related costs between 
Corporate/Other, GCB and /CG; 

• the re-attribution of regional revenues within /CG; and 
• certain othcl' immaterial reclassifications. 

Citi's consolidated results remain unchanged for all periods 
presented as a result of the changes and reclassifications 
discussed above. 

For additional information regarding Citigroup's business 
segments, see Note 3 to the Consolidated Fimmcial Statements 
in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The following table presents ce11ain information 
regarding the Company's continuing operations by segment: 

Three months ended March 31, 

Re,•enues, Provision (benefits) 
net of interest expense<•) for income taxes 

In millions of do!lal's, except 
ident/fiahle assets in billions 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Global Consumer Hanking $ 7,817 $ 7,714 $ 584 $ 634 

lnsliLUtional Clients G1·oup 9,126 7,895 1,375 764 

Corporate/Other 1,177 1,946 (96) 81 

Total $ 18,120 $ 17,555 $ 1,863 $ 1,479 

lncomc (loss) from 
continuing opcrationsl2l 

2017 2016 

$ 1,003 $ 1,194 

3,011 l,869 

104 445 

$ 4,118 $ 3,508 

Identifiable assets 

March 31, Decemher 31, 
2017 2016 

$ 412 $ 412 

1,314 l,277 

96 103 

$ 1,822 $ 1,792 

(I) lnch,dcs total revenues, net of interest expense (excluding Corpora1e!Other), in North America of $11.3 hi Ilion and $7.8 billion; in /:.'Mt.ii of $2.8 billion llnd $2.2 
billion; in Latin America of$2.1 hillion and $2.2 billion; and in Asia of'$3.5 billion m1!! $3.4 billion for the three months enued March 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. These regional numbers exclude Corporate!Oil,er, which largely operntes within the \J.S. 

(2) Includes prernx provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims in the GCB results of$1.8 billion and $1.5 billion; in the ICU results of$(205) million and 
$390 miUion; und in the <:miwmt<ilOthP.r re~11IN nf $5?. million and $170 miUion for the three months ended Mar1:h 31, 2017 aud 2016, respectively. 
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4. INTEREST REVENUE AND EXPENSE 

Interest revenue a11d Interest expense consisted of the following: 

Three months ended 
M,1rch 31, 

In millions qf dollars 2017 2016 

Interest revenue 

Loan interest, including fees $ 9,947 $ 9,760 

Deposits with banks 295 219 

Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 661 647 

Investments, including dividends 1,960 1,855 

Trading account assets(1
l 1,266 1,434 

Other interest 294 252 

Total interest revenue $ 14,423 $ 14,167 

Interest expense 

DepositsC2> $ 1,415 $ 1,204 

foederal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase 493 502 

Trading account liabilitie:/1l 147 88 

Short-term horrowings 199 100 

J ,ong-term debt 1,312 1,046 

Total interest expense $ 3,566 $ 2,940 

Net interest revenue $ 10,857 $ 11,227 

Provision for loan losses 1,675 1,886 

Net interest revenue after provision for loan losses $ 9,182 $ 9,341 

(I) Interest expense on fradin~ account liabilities or /CG is reported as a reduction of interest revenue from J'rading account assets. 
12) Includes der,osit insurance fees and charges ot'$305 million and $23S million lor the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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5. COMMISSIONS AND FEES 

The primary components ofCiti's Commissions and fees 
revenue are investment banking fees, trading-related fees, fees 
related to trade and securities services in JCG and credit card 
and bank card fees. For additional information regarding 

In millions of dollars 

Investment banking 

Trading-related 

Trade and securities services 

Credit 1.:ards and bank cards 

Corporate financc<n 

Other consumerr2> 

Checking-related 

Loan servicing 

Other 

Total commissions and fees 

certain components of Commissions andfees revenue, see 
Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Citi's 2016 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The following table presents Cummi.~sions and fees 
revenue: 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 
$ 862 $ 

572 

390 

311 

169 

164 

120 

86 

85 
$ 2,759 $ 

574 

601 

406 

271 

123 

158 

1 l<i 

96 

118 

2,463 

(I) Consists primm·ily offees earned from structuring mid unde.-writing loan syndications. 
(2) Primarily consists of fees for investment fond mlministrntion and management, third-party collections, commercial demand deposit accounts and certain credit 

card services. 

6. PRINCIPAL TRANSACTIONS 

Citi's Principal transactions revenue consists ofrealized and 
unrealized gains and losses from trading activities. For 
additional information regarding Principal transactions 
revenue, sec Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
in Citi's 2016 Annual Repo1t on Form 10-K. 

The following table presents Principal transactions 
revenue: 

In millions of dollars 

Global Consumer Bankingl'l 

lnstit11tiona/ Clients Group 

Corporate!Othe,· (I) 

Total Citigroup 

Interest rate risksf2l 

Poreign exchange risks<3l 

Equity risks<4l 

Commodity and other risks!J) 

Credit products and risks(G) 

Total 

(I) Primarily relates to foreign 1::xdmnge risks. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

149 $ 143 

2,668 1576 

205 121 

3,022 $ 1,840 

1,766 $ 807 

588 613 

188 50 

90 144 

390 226 

3,022 $ 1,840 

(2) Includes revenues from government securities and corporate c.lebt, municipal secmitics, morlgage sec11riti1::s imd other debt instruments. Also includes spot and 
forward tradi11g or currencies and 1::xchangc-tradcd and over-the;:-c;ounter (OTC) curl'eney options, options on fixed income securities, interest rate;: swaps, currency 
swaps, swa1) options, c<1ps and floors, financial ruturcs, OTC options and forward contracts on fixed income securities. 

(3) Includes rcvcnut:s from foreig11 exchange spol, forward, option und swap contracts, as well as fort:ign crnTem;y translation (FX translation) gains and losses. 
(4) Includes rcvcnut:s from common, prcfcl'rcd and convertible;: prt:ft:rn:d stock, convcrtihlc corporate dt:bt, e(Juity-linked notes and cxchangt:-lrnded and OTC equity 

options and warrants. 
(5) Primarily includes rev1::1111es from crude oil, rcli11cd oil products, naturnl gas and other commoditit:s trades. 
(6) Includes revenues from structured cl'edit prod11cts. 
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7. INCENTIVE PLANS 

For additional information on Citi's incentive plans, see Note 
7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Citi's 2016 
\nnual Report on Fonn 10-K. 

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

For additional information on Citi's retirement benefits, 
see Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in 
Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Net (Benefit) Expense 
The following table summarizes the components of net 
(benefit) expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement 
of Income for the Company's pension and postretirement 
plans for Significant Plans and A II Other Plans: 

Three months ended March 31, 

Pension plans Postretil'cmcnt benefit plans 

U.S. plans Non-U.S. plans U.S. plans Non-U.S. plans 

In millions qf dollars 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Qualified plans 

Benefits earned during the period $ 1 $ $ 36 $ 38 $ $ $ 2 $ 3 

Interest cost on benefit obligation 132 141 71 73 6 8 24 24 

Expeck<l return on plan assets (216) (218) (70) (72) (1) (2) (21) (21) 

Amortization of unrecognized 

Prior service benefit (I) (2) (3) 

Net actuarial loss (gain) 41 36 16 19 (1) 8 8 

Curtailment gains' 11 (3) 

Settlement loss0 l 

Net qualified plans (benefit) expense $ (42) $ (40) $ 52 $ 56 $ 4 $ 6 $ 11 $ II 

Nonqualitied plans expense 10 10 

Total net (benefit) expense $ (32) $ (30) $ 52 $ 56 $ 4 $ 6 $ 11 $ II 

(I) (Gains) losses due to cunailment and setclcmcnt relate to repositioning and div~stiture activities. 
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Funded Status and Accumulated Other Compl'ehensive Income (AOCI) 
'l'he following tables summarize the funded status and amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the Company's 
Significant Plans. 

Three months ended March 31, 2017 

Pension plans Postretirement benefit 11hms 

In millions of dollars U.S. plans Non-U.S. lllans U.S. plans Non-U.S. plans 

Change in projected benefit obligntion 

Projected benefit obligation at be.ginning of year $ 14,000 $ 6,522 $ 686 $ 1,141 

Plans measun:d annually (28) (1,784) (303) 

1'1·(!jec1ed benefit obligation at hegi11ni11g of year· --Significant Plans $ 13,972 $ 4,738 $ 686 $ 838 
Benefits earned during the period 1 21 2 

Interest cost on benefit obligalion 139 60 6 20 

Plan amendments 5 

Actuarial loss 72 134 3 39 

Benefils paid, net ofpaiticipants' co11tribuLions (187) (75) (16) (11) 

Foreign exchange impact and olher 657 84 

Pro_jected benefit obligation at period end-Significant Plans $ 13,997 $ 5,540 $ 679 $ 972 

Three months ended March 31, 2017 

Pension plans Postl'ctirement benefit 1>l:111s 

In millions qf dollars U.S. plans Non-l/.S. plans U.S. plans Non-lJ.S. plans 
Change in 1>la11 assets 

Plan assets at fair value at begi011ing of year $ 12,363 $ 6,149 $ 129 $ 1,0[5 

Plans measured annually (1,167) (11) 

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year-Significant Plans $ 12,363 $ 4,982 $ 129 $ 1,004 

Actual return on plan assets 333 179 4 36 
Company conlributions, net of reimbursements 13 13 12 

Plan participants' contributions 1 
Bem:lils paid, net of government subsidy (187) (76) ()6) (11) 

Porcign exchange impact and olher 786 99 
Plan assets at fail' value at period end-Significant Plans $ 12,522 $ 5,885 $ 129 $ 1,128 

Funded stntus of the Significant Plans 

Qualified plansl1l $ (778) $ 345 $ (550) $ 156 

Nonqualiticd plans (697) 

Funded status of the plans at period end-Significant Plans $ (1,475) $ 345 $ (550) $ 156 

Net amount recognized 

Benefit asset $ $ 801 $ $ 156 

Benefit liahility (1,475) (456) (550) 

Net amount recognized on the balance .sheet-Significant Plans $ (1,475) $ 345 $ (550) $ 156 

Amounts l'ecognized in AOC! 

Prior service benefit $ $ 32 $ $ 92 
Net actuarial gain (loss) (6,795) (921) 104 (372) 

Net amount recognized in equity (pretax)--Significant Plans $ (6,795) $ (889) $ 104 $ (280) 

Accumulated benefit obligation at period end-Significant Plans $ )3,991 $ 5,272 $ 679 $ 972 

(I) Tile U.S. qualified pension rlan is folly funded under specified Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (F.RISA), !um.ling rules as of 
January I, 2017 1md 110 minimum rc1wircd fu11<.ling is expected for 2017. 
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The following table shows the change in AOCI related to the Company's pension, postrctircment and post employment plans: 

In millions of dollars 

Beginning of period balance, net of tax<•)t2> 

Actuarial assumptions changes and plan experience 

Net asset gain <lue lo difference between actual and expected returns 

Net amortization 

Prior service ( cost) credit 

Curtailment/settlement gainC3l 

Foreign exchange impact and other 

Change in deferred laxes, net 

Change, net of tax 

~nd of period ha lance, net of taxl1
><

2l 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Three months ended 
March 31, 2017 

(5,164) 

(248) 

253 

56 

(S) 

(58) 

(JO) 

(12) 

(5,176) 

Year ended December 
31, 2016 

$ (5,116) 

(854) 

400 

232 

28 

17 

99 

30 

$ (48) 

$ (5,164) 

(I) Sec Note 17 to the Consolidated Fin11ncial S1a1e01enls for furthcl' discussion of net AOC! balance. 
(2) Includes nc(-of-(ax amount~ for certain prolit sharing plans outside the U.S. 
(3) Gains due lo curtailment and settlement n:latc: to repositioning and divestiture activities. 

Plan Assumptions 
The discount rates utilized during the period in determining 
the pension and postretirement net (bcnclil) expense for the 
Significant Plans are as follows: 

Net benefit Three months ended 
(expense) assumed 

Mar. 31, Mar. 31, discoufll rates 
during the period 2017 Dec. 31, 2016 2016 

U.S. plans 

Qualified 
pension 4.10% 3.55% 4.40% 

Nonqualificd 
pension 4.00 3.45 4.35 

Postrctircmcnl 3.90 3.30 4.20 

Non-l/.S. ()lans 

Pension 0.60-11.00 0.20-11.55 0.75-13.20 

Weighted 
average 5.08 4.42 5.37 

Postretirement 9.65 8.25 8.60 
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The discount rates utilized at period-end in determining 
the pension and postretirement benefit obligations for the 
Significant Plans are as follows: 

Plan obligalion., 
assumed discoum 
rares at period ended Mar. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016 

lJ.S. plans 

Qualified 
pension 4.05% 4.IO'V., 

Nonqual ified 
pension 3.95 4.00 

Postrctiremenl 3.85 3.90 

Non-U.S. plans 

Pension 0.55-10.45 0.60-11.00 

Weighted 
average 4.83 5.08 

Posll'elirement 9.25 9.65 

Sensitivities of Cerlttin Key A.t.<mmptions 
The following table summarizes the estimated effect on the 
Company's Significant Plans quarterly expense of a one-
percentage-point change in the discount rate: 

Tha·ee months ended March 31, 2017 

One-percentage- One-percentage-
In millions of dollars point increase point decrease 

Pension 

U.S. plans $ 7 $ (ti) 

Non-U.S. plans (5) 7 

Postrctirement 

ll.S. plans $ -$ 

Non-lJ.S. plans (2) 2 



Contributions 
For the U.S. pension plans, there were no required 
minimum cash contributions during the lirst three months 
of20l7. 

The following table summarizes the Company's actual 
contributions for the three months ended March 31, 20 l 7 
and 2016, as well as estimated expected Company 
contributions for the remainder of 2017 and the actual 
contributions made in the second, third and fourth quaiters 
of 2016. 

In millions qf dollars 

Pension plans 

U.S. plans lll Non-U.S. plans 

2017 2016 2017 2016 

Company eontributioml21 for the three months ended March 3 I $ 13 $ 15 $ 34 $ 32 $ 

Company eomrihution:; made or expected to he rnade during the 
remainder of the year 43 541 105 94 

(I) The U.S. pension plans includt: benefit~ paid directly by 1he Company for the nonqualificd pension plans. 

Postl'etia·ement plans 
U.S. plans Non-U.S. plans 

2017 2016 2017 2016 

12 $ 6 $ 2 $ 2 

6 7 

(2) Company contributions are composed of ca~h contributions made to the plans and hcncfits paid directly by the Company. 

Defined Contribution Plans 
The following table summarizes the Company's 
contributions for the defined contribution plans: 

In millions <if dollars 

U.S. plans 

Non-{J.S. plans 

Post Employment Plans 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

2017 2016 

$ 98 $ 96 

69 68 

The following table summarizes the components of net 
expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement oflncome 
for the Company's U.S. post employment plans: 

In millions ofdollars 

Scrvice-1·elated expense 

Interest cost on benefit obligation $ 

Amortization of unrecognize<l 

Prior service benefit 

Net actuarial Joss 
Total service-related benefit 

Non-service-related expense 

Total net benefit expense 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

2017 2016 

- $ 

(8) 

(7) $ 

8 $ 

1 $ 

(8) 
I 

(6) 

8 

2 
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table reconciles the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) computations: 

Three months ended 

In mil/iom, except per-share amounts 

Income from continuing operations before attribution of noncontrolling inte,·ests 

Less: Noncontrolling interests from continuing operations 

Net income from continuing opel'ation.s (for f.PS purposes) 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 

Citigroup's net income 

Less: Preferred dividends()) 

Net income available to common shnn:bolders 

Less: Dividends and undistributed earnings allocated to employee restricted and deferred shares with 
nonforfoitablc rights to dividends, applicable to basic EPS 

Net income allocated to common shareholders for basic EPS 

Net income allocated to common shareholders for diluted EPS 

Weighted-average common shares outstanding applicable to b;1sic EPS 

Effect of dilutive sccuritics(2> 

Options(3J 

Adjusted weighted-average common shal'es outstanding ap11licahle to diluted EPS<~l 

Basic earnings per sharel51 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net income 

Diluted earnings per share<SJ 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net income 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

March 31, 

2017 2016 

4,118 $ 3,508 

10 5 

4,108 $ 3,503 

(18) (2) 

4,090 $ 3,501 

301 210 

3,789 $ 3,291 

55 40 

3,734 $ 3,251 

3,734 3,251 

2,765.3 2,943.0 

0.2 0.1 

2,765.5 2,943.1 

1.36 $ 1.11 

(0.01) 

1.35 $ 1.10 

1.36 $ 1.11 

(0.01) 

1.35 $ 1.10 

(1) During the first quarter of 2017, Citi distributed $30 I million in dividends on its outstimding preferred stock. As or March JI, 2017, Citi estimates it will distribute 
rrcfcrrcd dividends of approximately $912 million during the remainder of 2017, in each c.ise ussuming such dividends an: dech1red by the Ci!i Roard of 
Directors. 

(2) Warrants issued to the lJ.S. Treasury as part of the Trouhled /\sset Relief Program (TARP) und the loss-sharing .ign:emenl (all of which were subsequently sold to 
the public in January 2011 ), with exercise prices of $17K.SO and $105.71 per share for approxinrntely 21.0 million und 25.5 million shares of Citigroup common 
stock, rcspcc!ivcly. Roth warrants were not included in the computation of earnings per share in the three months ended Murch 31,2017 imd 2016 because they 
were anli-dil11livc. 

(3) Ouri11g the first quarters of2017 and 2016, weighted-average or,tion.~ to purchase 0.9 million and 6.2 million shares of common stock, .-espectively, w..:re 
outstanding, bul not included in the computation of earnings per share because the weighted,average exercise prices of $201.01 and $69.88 per share, respectively, 
were anti-dilutive. 

(4) Due lo rounding, common shares 011tstanding applicable to basic F.PS and the effect of dilutive securities may not sum to common shares outstanding upplic.ible lo 
diluted EPS. 

(5) Due lo rounding, earnings per share on continuing operations and discontinued operations may not sum to earning.~ per share on net income. 
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IO. FEDF.RAL FUNDS, SECURITIES BORROWED, 
LOANED AND SUBJECT TO REPURCHASE 
AGREEMENTS 

For additional information on the Company's resale and 
repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending 
agreements, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Federal.fund,· sold and securities borrowed or purchased 
under agreements to resell, at their respective canying values, 
consisted of the following: 

Mal'ch 31, De::cembe::r 31, 
In millions of dol/ar.r 2017 2016 

redcral funds sold $ $ 

Securities pmehased under 
agreements to resell 134,924 131,473 

Deposits paid for securities 
borrowed l08,005 105,340 

Totat<ll $ 242,929 $ 236,813 

Federal.fund~ purchased and securities loaned or sold 
under agreements to repurchase, at their respective carrying 
values, consisted of the following: 

March 31, December 31, 
In 111il/io11s of dollars 2017 2016 

Federal fund:; purchased $ 133 $ 178 

Securities sol<l un<ler agreements 
to repurchase 133,129 125,685 

Ueposits receive::<l for securities 
loaned 14,968 15,958 
Total!') $ 148,230 $ 141,821 

(I) The above !ables do not include securities-for-securities lending 
transactions or $ l I .8 billion and $9.3 billion at March 3 J. 2017 and 
December 31, 20 l 6, rcspcclively, where the Com puny a~1s a~ lender and 
receives scc11ritics that can be sold or pledged as collateral. In these 
transactions, the Company recogni:i:es the securities received at fair 
value within Other assets llnu tht: obligation to return those securities as 
a liability within Rrokerage payables. 

It is the Company's policy to take possession of the 
underlying collateral, monitor its market value relative to the 
amounts due under the agreements and, when necessary, 
require prompt transfer of additional collateral in order to 
maintain contractual margin protection. For resale and 
repurchase agreements, when necessa1y, the Company posts 
additional collateral in order to maintain contractual margin 
protection. 

A substantial pmtion of the resale and repurchase 
agreements is recorded at fair value, as described in Notes 20 
and 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
remaining po1tion is carried at the amount or cash initially 
advanced or received, plus accrued interest, as specilicd in the 
respective agreements. 

A substantial portion of securities borrowing and lending 
agreements is recorded at the amount or cash advanced or 
received. The remaining portion is recorded at lair value as the 
Company elected the fair value option for certain securities 
borrowed and loaned portfolios, as described in Note 21 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. With respect to securities 
loaned, the Company receives cash collateral in an amount 
generally in excess of the market value of the securities 
loaned. The Company monitors the market value of securities 
borrowed and securities loaned on a daily hasis and ohtains or 
posts additional collateral in order Lo maintain contractual 
margin protection. 

The following tables present the gross and net resale and 
repurchase agreements and sccurilies borrowing and lending 
agreements and the related otlsclling amount permitted under 
ASC-210-20-45. The tables also include amounts related to 
financial instruments that are not pcrmiued to he offset under 
ASC-210-20-45, but would be eligible for offsetting to the 
extent that an event of default occurred and a legal opinion 
supporting enforceability of the offseuing rights has been 
obtained. Remaining exposures continue Lo be secured by 
financial collateral, but the Company may not have sought or 
been able to obtain a legal opinion evidencing enforceability 
oftJ1e offsetting right. 

As of March 31, 2017 

Amounts 

In millions of dollars 

Gross amounts 
of recognized 

assets 

Gross amounts 
offset on the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet!') 

Net amounts of 
assets included on 
the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet<2l 

not offset on the 
(:onsolidated Balance 
Sheet but eligible for 

offsclling upon Net 
counterpnrty defaultn1 amounts<4l 

Securities purchased under agreements to 
resell 

Oeposits paid for securities borrowed 

Total 

$ 

$ 

185,844 $ 

IOR,005 

293,849 $ 

50,920 $ 

50,920 $ 

107 

134,924 $ 

108,005 

242,929 $ 

102,227 $ 32,697 

20,622 87,383 

122,849 $ 120,080 



Amounts 
not offset on the 

C1·oss amounts Net 11mounts of Consolidated Balance 
Gross amounts offset on the liabilities included on Sheet hut eligible for 

'. 
of recognized Cousolidated the Consolidated offsetting upon 

'n millions of dollars liabilities Balance Sheet10 Balance Shcct<1
) countcrparty defau1t<3> 

Securities sold under agreements to 
repurchase $ 184,049 $ 50,920 $ 133,129 $ 66,956 

Deposits received for securities loaned 14,968 14,968 3,447 

Total $ 199,017 $ SG.920 $ 148,097 $ 70,403 

As of December 31, 2016 

Amounts 
not offset on the 

Gross amounts Net amounts of Consolidated Balance 
Gross amounts otlset on the assets included on Sheet but eligihle for 
of recognized Consolidated the Consolidated off.">Clling upon 

In millions ofdol/ars assets Balance Sheet<1l Balance Sheet'2l counlerparty default13l 

Securities purchased under agreements to 
resell $ 176,284 $ 44,811 $ 131,473 $ 102,874 

Deposits paid for securities borl'Owed 105,340 105,340 16,200 

Total $ 281,624 $ 44,811 $ 236,813 $ 119,074 

Amounts 
not offset on the 

Gross amounts Net amounts of Com,Qlidated Balance 
Gross amounts offset on the liabilities inducted on Sheet hut eligihle for 
of recognized Consolidated the Consolidated ofl'sclling upon 

In mil/ion.t of dollars liabilities Balance Sheet<n Balance Shcd2> countcrparly dcfattlt'3J 

Securities sold under agreements to 
repurchase $ 170,4% $ 44,RI I $ 125,685 $ 63,517 

Oeposils received for securities loaned 15,958 15,958 3,529 

Total $ 186,454 $ 44,811 $ 141,643 $ 67,046 

(I) Includes financial instrument.~ suhject to enforceable master netting agreements that are pennillcd lo be ol'fsel under ASC 210-20-45. 
(2) The total of this column for each period excludes Federal funds sold/purchased. See tables above. 

Net 
11mounts141 

$ 66,173 

11,521 

$ 77,694 

Net 
amounts<41 

$ 28,599 

89,140 

$ 117,739 

Net 
amounts<4l 

$ 62.168 

12,429 

$ 74,597 

(3) lnch1des financial instruments suhject to enforceahle master netting agreements that are not permiUed 10 be ollsel under ASC 210-20-45, hut would he eligible for 
oll'scUing to the extent that an event of default has occurred and a legal opinion supporting enforceability ol'the ollscuing right ha.~ been obtained. 

(4) Remaining exposures continue to he secured hy financial collaternl., but the Company may not have sought or been able to obtain a legal opinion evidencing 
enforceability of'the ollselting right. 

The following tables present the gross amount of liabilities associated with repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements, 
by remaining contractual maturity: 

In millions of dollars 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Deposits received for securities loaned 

Total 

In millions of dollars 

:Securities sold under agreements lo repurchase 

Deposits received for securities loaned 

Total 

$ 

$ 

01m1 and 
overnight 

$ 82,260 

9,997 

$ 92,257 

Open and 
overnight 

79,740 

10,813 

90,553 
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As of March 31, 2017 

Up to 30 Gl'catcr than 
days 31-90 days 90 days Total 

$ 55,581 $ 20,438 $ 25,770 $ 184,049 

1,274 2,062 1,635 14,968 

$ 56,855 $ 22,500 $ 27,405 $ 199,017 

As or December 31, 2016 

Greater than 
Up Lo 30 days 31-90 days 90 days Total 

$ 50,399 $ 19,396 $ 20,961 $ 170,496 

2,169 2,044 932 15,958 

$ 52,568 $ 21,440 $ 21,893 $ 186,454 



The following tables present the gross amount or liabilities associated with repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements, 
by class of underlying collateral: 

As of March 31, 20)7 

Securities 
Repurchase lending 

In millions of dollars agteements agreements Total 

U.S. Treasury and fo<leral agency securities $ 67,821 $ 78 $ 67,899 

State and municipal securities 794 794 
Foreign government securities 65,167 1,145 66,312 

Corporate bonds 19,098 698 19,796 

Equity securities 10,756 12,593 23,349 
Mortgage-backed securities 10.428 10,428 

Asset-backed securities 6,016 6,016 

Oiher 3,969 454 4,423 
Total $ 184,049 $ 14,968 $ 199,017 

As of December 31, 2016 

Securities 
Repurchase lending 

In millions ofdol/ars agreement~ agreements Total 

U.S. Treasury im<l federal agency securities $ 66,263 $ $ 66,263 

State and municipal securities 334 334 

foreign government securities 52,988 1,390 54,378 

Corporate bonds 17,164 630 17,794 

Equity securities 12,206 13,913 26,119 

Mortgage-backed securities 11,421 11,421 

Asset-ba<.:ke<l securities 5,428 5,428 

Other 4,692 25 4,717 

Total $ 170,496 $ 15,958 $ 186,454 
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11. BROKERAGE RECEIVABLES AND BROKERAGE 
PAYABLES 

The Company has receivables and payables for financial 
.i1struments sold to and purchased from brokers, dealers and 
customers, which arise in the ordinary course orbusiness. 

For additional information on these receivables and 
payables, see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Citi's 2016 Annual Repo11 on Fonn I 0-K. 

Brokerage receivables and Brokerage payables 
consisted of the following: 

March 31, December 31, 
In millions of dollars 2017 2016 

Receivables from customers $ 12,452 $ 10,374 

Receivables from brokers, 
dealers, and clearing 
organizations 24,436 18,513 

Total brokernge receivahles<ll $ 36,888 $ 28,887 

Payables to customers $ 37,769 $ 37,237 

Payables to brokers, dealers, 
and clearing organizations 21,886 19,915 

Total brokerage payableslll $ 59,655 $ 57,152 

( l) Includes brokerage receivables and payables recorded by Citi broker­
dealer entities that arc accounted for in accordance with the AICPA 
Accounting Guide for Brokcl's and Dealers in Secmities as codified in 
ASC 940-320. 

12. INVESTMENTS 

For additional info1mation regarding Citi's investment portfolios, including evaluating investments for other-than-temporary 
impairment, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Ci ti's 2016 Annual Repo11 on Form l 0-K. 

Overview 
The following table presents Citi's investments by category: 

In millions qf dollars 

Securities available-for-sale (AFS) 

Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTMf J 

Non-marketable equity securities carried at fair valucC2
l 

No11-marketable equity securities carried at cost'1l 

Total investments 

(I) Curried 11111(\justed amor1iied cost basis, net of any credit-related impairment. 
(2) Unrealized gains and losses for non-inarl<.ctablc equity securities carried at fair value are recognized in earnings. 

$ 

$ 

March 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

290,282 $ 299,424 

47,942 45,667 

l,529 1,774 

6,080 6,439 

345,833 $ 353,304 

(3) Primarily consists of sh:1rc:s issued by the Federal Reserve Rank, Federal Home Loan Uanks and val'ious cleming houses of which Citigroup is a member. 

The followi11g table presents interest and dividend income on investments: 

In millions of dollars 

Taxable interest 

Interest exempt from U.S. federal income tax 

Dividend income 

Total interest and dividend income 

110 

$ 

$ 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 20l6 

1,760 $ 1,677 

146 143 

54 35 

1,960 $ 1,855 



The following table presents realized gains and losses on the sales of investments, which excludes losses from other-than-temporary 
impairment (OTT!): 

In millions ofdol/ars 

Gross realized investment gains 

Oross reali:,.ed invt:stmcnt losses 

Net realized gains 011 sale of investments 

Securities Available-for-Sale 
The amorlizcd cost and fair value of AFS securities were as follows: 

March 31, 2017 

Gross Gross 
Amortized unrealized unrealized !<'air 

In millions of dollars cost gains losses value 

Securities AFS 

Mo1tgage-hacked securitiesl1l 

U.S. government-sponsored agency 
guaranteed $ 35.951 $ 241 $ 489 $ 35,703 

Prime 2 - - 2 

All-A 38 9 - 47 

Non-U.S. residential 3,416 31 22 3,425 

Commercial 360 l I 360 

Total mortgage-backed securities $ 39,767 $ 282 $ 512 $ 39,537 

U.S. Treasury and federal agency 
securities 

U.S. Treasury $ 107,543 $ 637 $ 396 $107,784 

Agency obligations 9,910 23 70 9,863 

Total U.S. Treasury and federal agency 
securities $ 117,453 $ 660 $ 466 $117,647 

State and municipal $ 10,228 $ 81 $ 684 $ 9,625 

Foreign government 99,974 623 467 100,130 

Corporate 15,897 91 109 15,879 

Asset-backed sccuriticsCll 6,522 9 8 6,523 

Other debt securities 550 - - 550 

Total debt securities AFS $ 290,391 $ 1,746 $ 2,246 $289,891 

Marketable equity securities J\fS $ 368 $ 28 $ 5 $ 391 

Total securities AFS $ 290,759 $ 1,774 $ 2,251 $290,282 

Amortized 
cost 

$ 38,663 

2 

43 

3,852 

357 

$ 42,917 

$ 113,606 

9,952 

$ 123,558 

$ 10,797 

98,112 

17,195 

6,810 

503 

$ 299,892 

$ 377 

$ 300,269 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 

$ 

$ 

288 $ 

(96) 

192 $ 

December 31, 2016 

Gross Gross 

2016 

379 

(193) 

186 

unrealized unrealized Fair 
gains losses value 

$ 248 $ 506 $ 38,405 

- - 2 

7 - 50 

13 7 3,858 

2 1 358 

$ 270 $ 514 $ 42,673 

$ 629 $ 452 $ 113,783 

21 85 9,888 

$ 650 $ 537 $123,671 

$ 80 $ 757 $ 10,120 

590 554 98,148 

105 176 17,124 

6 22 6,794 

- - 503 

$ 1,701 $ 2,560 $ 299,033 

$ 20 $ 6 $ 391 

$ 1,721 $ 2,566 $299,424 

(I) The Company invests in mortgage-backed and asset-hacked securities. These se1:uriti:wtions m-.: gem:rally considered VI Es. The Company's maximum 1:xposure to 
loss from lhese V!Es is equal to the canyi11g amount of the scctiritics, which is reflected in the table above. FOi' mortgage-backed and asscl-backed securiti,:alions in 
which the Company has other iuvolvement, sec Note 18 to tile Consolidated financial Statements. 
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The following shows the fair value of AFS securities that have been in an unrealized loss position: 

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total 

Gross Gross Gross 
Fair unrealized Fair unl'ealized Fair unrealized 

Jn millions qf dollars value losses value losses value losses 

March 31, 2017 

Securities AFS 

Morlgage-hacked securities 

U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed $ 21,496 $ 423 $ 2,043 $ 66 $ 23,539 $ 489 

Non-U.S. residential 423 .I 803 21 1,226 22 

Commercial 91 I 49 - 140 1 

Total mortgage-backed securities $ 22,010 $ 425 $ 2,895 $ 87 $ 24,905 $ 512 

U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities 

U.S. Treasury $ 38,221 $ 393 $ 955 $ 3 $ 39,176 $ 396 

Agency ohligations 6,099 70 145 - 6,244 70 

Total U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities $ 44,320 $ 463 $ 1,100 $ 3 $ 45,420 $ 466 

State and municipal $ 1,039 $ 47 $ 2,883 $ 637 $ 3,922 $ 684 

Foreign government 33,770 173 11,624 294 45,394 467 

Coq,orate 6,278 93 881 16 7,159 109 

Asset-backed :;ecurities 221 - 1,369 8 1,590 8 

Other debt securities 70 - - - 70 -
Marketable equity securities /\PS 13 I 66 4 79 5 

Total securities AFS $ 107,721 $ 1,202 $ 20,818 $ 1,049 $ 128,539 $ 2,251 

December 31, 2016 

Securities AFS 

Mo1tgagc-baekcd securities 

U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed $ 23,534 $ 436 $ 2,236 $ 70 $ 25,770 $ 506 

Prime I - - - I -
Non-U.S. residential 486 - 1,276 7 1,762 7 

Commercial 75 l 58 - 133 I 

Tolal mortgage-backed securities $ 24,096 $ 437 $ 3,570 $ 77 $ 27,666 $ 514 

U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities 

U.S. Treasury $ 44,342 $ 445 $ 1,335 $ 7 $ 45,677 $ 452 

Agency obligations 6,552 83 250 2 6,802 85 

Total U.S. Trcasmy and federal agency securities $ 50,R94 $ 528 $ 1,585 $ 9 $ 52,479 $ 537 

Stale and municipal $ 1,616 $ 55 $ 3,116 $ 702 $ 4,732 $ 757 

Foreign government 38,226 243 8,973 311 47,199 554 

Corporate 7,011 129 1,877 47 8,888 176 

Asset-backed sccurilies 411 - 3,213 22 3,624 22 

Other debt securities 5 - - - 5 -
Marketable equity securities AFS 19 2 24 4 43 6 

Total securities AFS $ 122,278 $ 1,394 $ 22,358 $ 1,172 $ 144,636 $ 2,566 
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The following table presents the amortized cost and fair value of/\FS debt securities by contractual maturity dates: 

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 

Amortized ft air Amortized 1-'air 
In millions of dollars cost value cost value 
Mortgage-backed securities11l 

Due within 1 year $ 127 $ 127 $ 132 $ 112 

After I but within 5 years 633 635 736 738 

After 5 hut within 10 years 1,888 1,877 2,279 2,265 

After I O yearsc21 
37,119 36,898 39,770 39,538 

Total $ 39,767 $ 39,537 $ 42,917 $ 42,673 

U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities 

Due within I year $ 4,182 $ 4,161 $ 4,945 $ 4,945 

After I hut within 5 years 101,314 IOl,367 101,369 101,323 

Aller 5 but within to years 11,920 12,082 17,153 17,314 

After to years<2J 37 37 91 89 
Total $ 117,453 $ 117,647 $ 123,558 $ 123,671 

State and municipal 

Oue within l year $ 2,057 $ 2,057 $ 2,093 $ 2,092 

After I but within 5 years 2,675 2,674 2,668 2,662 

!\Iler 5 but within 10 years 319 316 335 334 

After IO ycars<21 5,177 4,578 5,701 5,032 

Total $ 10,228 $ 9,625 $ 10,797 $ 10,120 

Foreign go\'ernment 

l)ue within I year $ 31,111 $ 31,140 $ 32,540 $ 32,547 

Afle1· I but within 5 years 53,827 53,747 51,008 50,881 

After 5 but within IO years 12,402 12,478 12,388 12,440 

After 10 years<2! 2,634 2,765 2,176 2,280 

Total $ 99,974 $ 100,130 $ 98,112 $ 98,148 
All othcr<3> 

Uue within I year $ 3,443 $ 3,243 $ 2,629 $ 2,628 

After I but within 5 years 10,306 I0,526 12,339 12,334 

After 5 but within 10 years 6,250 6,242 6,566 6,528 

After I O yearsC2l 2,970 2,941 2,974 2,931 
~ 

Total $ 22,969 $ 22,952 $ 24,508 $ 24,421 

Total debt securities AFS $ 290,391 $ 289,891 $ 299,892 $ 299,033 

(I) Includes mortgage-ba<.:ked securities oflJ.S. government-sponsored agencies. 
(2) Investments with no stated maturities arc included as contractual nu1turities of greater than IO years. Ai;tual nullurities may differ due to call or prepayment rights. 
(3) Includes corporate, i1sse1-backed and other debt securities. 
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Debt Securities Held-to-Maturity 

The carrying value and fair value of debt se«.:ul'ities HTM were as follows: 

In millions of dollars 

March 31, 2017 

Debt secm·ities held-to-maturity 

Mortgage-backed securities131 

U.S. government agency guaranleed $ 

Prime 

Alt-A 

Non-U .S. residential 

Commercial 

Total mortgage-hacked securities $ 

Stale and municipal $ 

foreign government 

Asset-backed sccurities<3> 

Total debt securities held-to-maturity $ 

De<.:ember 31, 2016 

Debt securities held-to-maturity 

Mortgage-backed sccurities<3J 

U.S. government agency guaranteed $ 

Prime 

Alt-A 

Non-U.S. residential 

Commercial 

Total mortgage-hacked securities $ 

Slate and municipal $ 

Foreign government 

Asset-backed sccuriticsC31 

Total debt securities hcld-to-maturity<4> $ 

Amortized 
cost basisl•> 

23,998 

7 

303 

1,828 

26 

26,162 

9,530 

1,202 

11,565 

48,459 

22,462 

31 

314 

1,871 

14 

24,692 

9,025 

1,339 

11,107 

46,163 

Net 
unrealized 

gains 
(losses) 

recognized in 
AOCI 

$ 27 $ 

-
(25) 

(46) 

-
$ (44) $ 

$ (468) $ 

-
(5) 

$ (517) $ 

$ 33 $ 

(7) 

(27) 

(47) 

-
$ (48) $ 

$ (442) $ 

-
(6) 

$ (496) $ 

Carrying 
vatmP1 

24,025 

7 

278 

1,782 

26 

26,118 

9,062 

l,202 

11,560 

47,942 

22,495 

24 

287 

1,824 

14 

24,644 

8,583 

1,339 

11,101 

45,667 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Gross 
unrei1lized 

gains 

46 

lO 

78 

60 

-
194 

163 

-
63 

420 

47 

10 

69 

49 

-
175 

129 

-
41 

345 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Gross 
unrealized 

(losses) 

(204) 

-

-
-
-

(204) 

(224) 

(21) 

(6) 

(455) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(186) $ 

(I) 

(I) 

-
-

(188) $ 

(238) $ 

(26) 

(5) 

(457) $ 

Fair 
vnlue 

23,867 

17 

356 

1,842 

26 

26,108 

9,001 

l,181 

11,617 

47,907 

22,356 

33 

355 

1,873 

14 

24,631 

8,474 

1,313 

11,137 

45,555 

(I) ror securities transferred to I !TM from Tradin~ account assets, a111orti1.cd cost basis is defined as the fair value oftht: st:curitit:s al the dale ortransfor rlus any 
accretion income and less any impairments recogni:i:t:d in earnings subsequent to trausfer. ror securities transferred to IITM fronl AFS, amortized cost is defined as 
the original purchase cost, a(ljusted for the cumulative accretion or amorti1.ation of any rurchase discount or premium, plus or minus any cumulative fair value hedge 
adjustments, net of accretion or amo1tiza1ion, and less uny other-lhan-tcrnporary impairment recognized in earnings. 

(2) HTM securities arc carried on the Consolidated 13alance Sheet at all\ortizcd cosl basis, pll1s or minus any unamortized unrealizt:d gains and losses and lair value 
hedge adjustments rceog11i1.cd in AOCI prior to reclassifying the securities from AFS to HTM. Changes in the values of these securities are not reported in lhe 
financial statements, except for the amortization of any differt:111.:e bt:tween the carrying value at the transfer date and par value of the securities, and the recognition 
or any non-credit lair value adjustments in AOCI in conne1..1ion with the recognition or any credit impairment in earnings related to securitit:s the Company cotllinucs 
to intend to hold until maturity. 

(3) The Company invests in mortgage-hacked and asset-hacked securities. These securiti:talions arc generally considered Vll-:s. The Company's maximum exposure Co 
Joss from these VIEs is equal to the carrying amount of the securities, which is reflected in the table above. Formortgagc-hackcd and asset-backed securitizations in 
which the Company has other involvement, sec Note I K to the Consolidated Pimmcial Stah:ments. 

(4) During tht: fourth ((uaner or2016, securities with a total fair value of approximately $5.8 billion were tra11slcrrcd rrom AFS to HTM, composed of$5 billion of U.S. 
government agency mortgage-backed securities and $Km million of municipal st:curities. The transli:r rellects the Company's intent to hold these securities lo 
maturity or to issuer call, in part, in order to reduce tl1e imr,aet of price volatility on AOC! and certain capital measures under Rascl 111. While these securities wt:re 
lrnnsft:rrt:d to I ITM at fair value as of the trans for dale, no suhscquent changes in vulue may be recorded, otht:r than in connection with the recognition of any 
subse<1uenl olher-lhun-lt:mpornry impainncnt .in\l the a11101ti:1.alio11 of differences between the carrying values al the transtcr date and the par values of each security 
as an adjustment of yield over the remaining contraclltal life of each ~ecurity. Any net unreali:i:t:d holding losses wilhin AOCI related to the respective securities at the 
date of transfer, inclusive or any cumulative fair value hedge adjustments, will be 111nor1ized over the remi1ining contractual life of each security as an adjustmt:nt of 
yield in a manner consistent with the amortization of' any premium or discount. 
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The table below shows the fair value of debt securities HTM that have been in an unrecognized loss position: 

Less than 12 m()nths 12 months or longer Total 

Grnss Gross Gross 
Fair unrecognized Fair unrecognized Fair unrecognized 

/11111il/io11s qf dollars value losses value losses value losses 

March JI, 2017 

Debt securities held-to-maturity 

Mortgage-backed securities $ 3 $ - $ 18,784 $ 204 $ IR,787 $ 204 
State and municipal 2,005 52 1,199 172 3,204 224 

Foreign government 1,181 21 - - 1,181 21 

Asset-ba1,;ked securities - - 1,348 6 1,348 6 

Total debt securities held-to-maturity $ 3,189 $ 73 $ 21,331 $ 382 $ 24,520 $ 455 

December 31, 2016 

Debt securities held-to-maturity 

Mortgage-backed securities $ 17 $ - $ 17,176 $ 188 $ 17,193 $ rn8 
Stale and municipal 2,200 58 1,210 180 3,410 238 

roreign government 1,313 26 - - 1,313 26 

Asset-backed securities 2 - 2,503 5 2,505 5 
Total debt securities held-to-maturity $ 3,532 $ 84 $ 20,889 $ 373 $ 24,421 $ 457 

Note: Excluded from the g1oss umecogni,.i:<l lusst:s p11::st:11Le<l in thc ahovc Lablc arc $(517) million and $(496) million of net unrealized losses recor<lt:<l in AOCI 11s of 
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, rt:spectively, primarily related to the dillcrcnce between the amortized cost and carrying value or J-ITM securilit:s that were 
reclassific.d from /\FS. Sullstanti~lly all of these net unrecognized losses relate 10 securities thal have been in a los~ position for 12 months or longer at March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016. 
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The following table presents the carrying value and fair value of I lTM debt securities by contractual maturity dates: 

Maa·ch 31, 2017 December 3 I. 2016 

Tn millions ofdol/ars Carrying value F'iiir value Carrying value fair value 

Mol'tgage-backed secu1·ities 

Due within I year $ - $ - $ - $ -
After I but within 5 years 755 758 760 766 

After 5 but within to years 53 54 54 55 

Af'ler 10 yeal's<1l 25,310 25,296 23,830 23,810 

Total $ 26,118 $ 26,108 $ 24,644 $ 24,631 

State and municipal 

Due within I year $ 358 $ 358 $ 406 $ 406 

After 1 but within 5 years 147 148 112 II 0 

After 5 but within IO years 344 349 363 367 

After JO years0 l 8,213 8,146 7,702 7,591 

Total $ 9,062 $ 9,001 $ 8,583 $ 8,474 

Foreign government 

Due within 1 year $ 637 $ 637 $ 824 $ 818 

After I but within 5 years 565 544 515 495 

Af!er 5 but wi!hin IO years - - - -
After 10 ycarl'l - - - -
Total $ 1,202 $ 1,181 $ 1,339 $ 1,313 

All other12l 

Due within I yeal' $ - $ - $ - $ -
Atler I but within 5 years - - - -
.<\Her 5 but within IO years 500 501 513 514 

After 10yearsl11 11,060 11,116 10,588 10,623 

Total $ 11,560 $ 11,617 $ 11,101 $ 11,137 

Total debt secul'ities held-to-maturity $ 47,942 $ 47,907 $ 45,667 $ 45,555 

(I) Investments with no stated maturities are included as contrnctual maturities of greater thau 10 years. Actual maturities may dillcr due to call or prepayment rights. 
(2) Includes corporate and asset-hacked securities. 

Recognition and Measurement ofOTTI 
The following tables present total OTT] recognized in earnings: 

OTTI on Investments and Other assets 

In millions qf dollars 

Impairment losses related to securities that the Company does not intend to sell nor will likely be required to 
sell: 

Total OTTl losses recognized during the period 

Less: po1tion of impairment loss recognized in AOC] (before taxes) 

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings for securities that the Company docs nol intend to sell nor will 
likely be required to sell 

Impairment losses recognized in earnings for securities that the Company intends to sell, would be more 
likely than not required lo sell or will be subject to an issuer call deemed probable of exercise 

Tot:il impairrncnl losses recognized in earning!\ 

'
1
1) Includes OTT! on non-marketable equity securities. 

116 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Three months ended 
Mal'ch 31, 2017 

Other 
AFS(IJ HTM assets Total 

$ $ $ 

$ $ -$ 

JI I 12 

II $ l $ $ 12 



OTTI on Investments and Other assets 

In millions qf dollars 

Impairment losses related to securities lhat the Company docs not intend to sell nor will likely be required to 
sell: 

Total OTT! losses recognized during lhe period 

Less: po1tion of impail'menl loss recognized in AOC[ (hefore taxes) 

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings for securities that the Company does not intend to sell nor will 
likely be required to sell 

Impairment losses recogni;,:ed in earnings for securities that the Company intends to sell, would be more likely 
than not required to sell or will be su~ject to an issuer call deemed probable of exercise and FX losses 

Three months ended 
March 31, 2016 

IITM Other 
AFsc11<2l asse1PJ Toti.-

$ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ 

195 7 262 464 

Total impairment losses recognized in earnings $ 196 $ 7 $ 262 $ 465 

(I) Includes OTTI 011 non-marketable equity securities. 
(2) Includes a $160 million impairment related to AFS securities allt:cted by changes in the Venezuela exchange rate during the tl1ree months ended March 31, 2016. 
(3) The impairment charge is related to the carrying value of'an equity investment. 

The following are three-month roll forwards of the credit-related impairments rccogni7.ed in earnings for AFS and HTM debt securities 
held that the Company does not intend lo sell nor likely will be required to sell: 

In millions of dollars 

AFS debt securities 

Mo11gagc-backed securities 

State and municipal 

Foreign government sec.;urities 

Corporate 

All other debt securities 

Total OTTI credit losses recognized for AFS debt 

Cumulative OTTI credit losses recognized in earnings on securities still held 

Dec. 31, 2016 
balance 

$ . 

4 

5 

22 

$ 

Credit 
impafrments 
recognized in 
earnings on 

securities not 
p,·eviously 
impaired 

Credit 
impairments 
recognized in 
earnings on 

securities that 
have 

been previously 
impaired 

$ 

Reductions due to 
credit-impaired 
securities sold, 
transferred 01· 

matured 

$ 

( I) 

March 31, 
2017 balance 

$ 

4 

4 

22 

securities $ 31 $ -$ -$ (1) $ 30 
l:ITM debt secui-itics 

Mortgage-backed securities()} 

State and municipal 

Total OTTI credit losses recognized for HTM 
debt securities 

(I) Primarily consists of Alt-A st:curitit:s. 

$ 

$ 

JOI $ 

3 

104 $ 

117 

$ $ 

-$ -$ 

(4) $ 

(4) $ 

97 

3 

JOO 



Cumulative OTTI credit losses recognized in earnings on securities still held 

In millions of dollars 

Al--"S debt securities 

Mortgage-backed securities 

State and municipal 
Foreign government securities 

Corporate 

All other deht securities 

Dec. 3 I, 20 15 
balance 

$ 

12 

5 

9 

47 

$ 

Total OTTT credit losses recognized for /\I'S debt 
securities $ 73 $ 

HTM debt securities 

Mo11gagc-backe<l seu1rities'1) $ 

State and municipal 

Total OTTI credit losses recognized for I ITM deht 
securities $ 

(I) Primarily consists of Alt-A securities. 

Investments in Alternative Investment Funds That 
Calculate Net Asset Value 

132 $ 

4 

136 $ 

The Company holds investments in certain alternative 
investment funds that calculate net asset value (NAV), or its 
~quivalent, including hedge funds, private equity funds, funds 
,r funds and real estate funds, as provided by third-party asset 

managers. Investments in such funds are generally classilied as 
non-marketable equity securities carried at fair value. The lair 
values of these investments are estimated using the NAV of the 
Company's ownership interest in the funds. Some of these 
investments arc in "covered funds" for purposes of the Volckcr 

Credit 
impairments 
recognized in 
e11rnings on 

securities not 
111·eviously 
impaired 

Credit 
impairments 
recognized in 
earnings on 

securities that 
have 

been previously 
impaired 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Reductions clue to 
credit-impaired 
securities sold, 
tr·ansferred or 

matured 

$ -
(8' 

(3) 
(4 ' 

$ (15 

$ 

- $ - $ -

Mar.31,2016 
balance 

$ 

4 

5 

7 
43 

$. 59 

$ 132 
4 

$ 136 

Rule, which prohibits certain proprietary investment activities 
and limits the ownership of, and relationships with, covered 
funds. On April 21, 2017, Citi's request for extension of the 
pennitted holding period under the Volcker Rule for certain of 
its investments in illiquid funds was approved, allowing the 
Company to hold such investments until the earlier of 5 years 
from the July 21, 2017 expiration date of the general 
conformance period, or the date such investments mature or are 
otherwise conformed with the Volcker Rule. 

Redemption frequency Redemption 
lJnfunded (if currently eligible) notice 

Fair value commitments monthly, quarterly, annually period 

March 31, Dec em bcr 3 I, March 31, Decem her 3 I, 
In millions of dollars 2017 2016 2017 2016 

I ledge funds $ 3 $ 4 $ $ Generally quarterly 10-95 days 

Private equity funds< 1>c2i 359 34R 82 82 
Real estate funds <2l(3) 54 56 21 20 
Total $ 416 $ 408 $ 103 $ 102 

(I) Private equity funds include funds tlml i11vesl in infrastructure, emerging markt:ls am! venture capital. 
(2) With respect to the Compimy's investments in private equity funds and real estate funds, distributions from each fuud will he received as the underlying assets held 

by these funds arc liquidated. It is t:stimated that the underlying assets of these funds will bt: li<1uidatcd over a period of several yt:itrs as mmket conditions allow. 
Private equity and real estate funds do not allow redemption or investments hy their investors. Investors are permitted to sell or transfer their invt:slme1tts, subject to 
the approval ofthe general paitner or invt:stment manager orthcsc funds, which gent:rnlly may not bt: unreasonably withheld. 

(3) lnch1dcs several real estate funds that invt:st primarily in commercial real estate in tile U.S., Europt: and Asia. 
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13. LOANS 

Citigroup loans are reported in two categories-consumer and 
corporate. These categories are classified primarily according to 
the segment and subsegment that manage the loans. For 
additional information regarding Citi's consumer and corporate 
loans, including related accounting policies, see Note 14 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements in Citi's 2016 Annual 
Repott on Form I 0-K. 

Consumer Loans 
Consumer loans represent loans and leases managed primarily 
by GCB and Corporate/Other. The following table provides 
Citi's consumer loans by loan type: 

March 31, December 31. 
In millions of dollars 2017 2016 

In U.S. offices 

Mortgage and real esta1e<11 $ 71,170 $ 72,957 

Installment, revolving credit, 
and other 3,252 3,395 

Cards 125,799 132,654 

Commercial and industrial 7,434 7,159 

$ 207,655 $ 216,165 

rn omces outside the U.S. 

Mortgage and real estate0> $ 43,822 $ 42,803 

Installment, revolving credit, 
and other 26,014 24,887 

Cards 24,497 23,783 

Commercial and industrial 17,728 16,568 

Lease financing 83 81 

$ 112,144 $ 108,(22 

Total consumer loans $ 319,799 $ 324,2&7 

Net unearned income $ 757 $ 776 

Consumer loans, net of 
une:.wned income $ 320,556 $ 325,063 

(1) Lom,s secured primarily by real estate. 

The Company sold and/or reclassified to held-for-sale $2.3 
billion and $2.7 billion of consumer loans during the three 
months ended March 31, 2017and2016, respectively. 
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Consumer Loan Delinquency and Non-Accrual Details at March 31, 2017 

Past due 
Total 30-89 daxs ;:: 90 days government 

/11 millions qj'dof/ars currentl1><21 past due > past duc<3> guarantecd141 

In North America omces 

Residential first mo11gages<5
> $ 50,423 $ 447 $ 299 $ 1,368 

Home equity loansC6>(
7l 16,694 233 404 

Credit cards 123,638 t,362 1,433 

Installment and other 3,537 46 18 

Commercial banking loans 9,128 18 68 

Total $ 203,420 $ 2,106 $ 2,222 $ 1,368 

In offices outside No11h America 

Residential first mo1tgages<5l $ 36,624 $ 245 $ 156 $ 

Credit cards 23,272 394 331 

Installment and other 24,088 295 123 

Commercial banking loans 25,726 91 93 

Total $ 109,7!0 $ 1,025 $ 703 $ 

Total CCH and Corporate/Oiher consumer $ 313,)30 $ 3,131 $ 2,925 $ 1,368 

Othercs> 2 

Total Citigroup $ 313,132 $ 3,131 $ 2,925 $ 1,368 

(1) Loans less than 30 days past due arc presented a~ current. 
(2) Includes $28 million ol' residential first mortgages recorded at fair value. 
(3) Excludes lo11ns guanmteed by U.S. govcrnment·sronsored entities. 

Total 
Total non- 90 days past due 

loans<2> acc1·ual and accruing 

$ 52,537 $ 763 $ 1,117 

17,33 I 848 

126,433 1,433 

3,601 24 l 

9,214 291 12 

$ 209,116 $ 1,926 $ 2,563 

$ 37,025 $ 400 $ 

23,997 272 242 

24,506 149 

25,910 208 

$ 111,438 $ 1,029 $ 242 

$ 320,554 $ 2,955 $ 2,805 

2 

$ 320,556 $ 2,955 $ 2,805 

(4) Consists of residential first mortgages that arc guaranteed hy U.S. government-sponsored entities that arc 30 /19 days past <lue of $0.2 billion and 90 days or more 
past due of$1.2 billion. 

(5) Includes approximately $0.1 billion or residential first mortgage loans in process of loreclosure. 
'6) Includes approximately $0.1 billion orhomc equity loans in process of foreclosure. 
7) rixed-rate home equity \o,ms and loans extended under home equity lines of credit, which are typically in junior lien positions. 

(8) Rerresents loans classified as consumer loans on the Consolidated 1:3alance Sheet that are not included in the Corporate!01her consumer credit metrics. 
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Consumer Loan Delinquency and Non-Accrual Details at Occcmbcr 31, 2016 

Past due Total 
Total 30-89 daxs > 90 davs government Total non- 90 days 1rnst due 

In millions 1/f dollars currcnt11>l2> 1111st due > pllst cluel3) gu11ra11tcedf4> loans<2l 11ccrual 11nd accruing 
In North America offices 

Residential first mortgages<5J $ 50,766 $ 522 $ 371 $ 1,474 $ 53,133 $ 848 $ 1,227 

I lorne ec.iuily loansl6lPJ 18,767 249 438 19,454 914 

Cn:dil cimls 130,327 1,465 1,509 133,301 1,509 

Installment and other 4,486 106 38 4,630 70 2 

Commercial hanking loans 8,876 23 74 8,973 328 14 

Total $ 213,222 $ 2,365 $ 2,430 $ 1,474 $ 219,491 $ 2,160 $ 2,752 

In offices outside No1th America 

Residential first mortgages<5l $ 35,862 $ 206 $ 135 $ $ 36,203 $ 360 $ 

Credit cards 22,363 368 324 23,055 258 239 

Jnstalhnent and other 22,683 264 126 23,073 163 

Commercial banking loans 23,054 72 112 23,238 217 

Total $ 103,962 $ 910 $ 697 $ $ 105,569 $ 998 $ 239 

To(al GCB and Co1purate/Other consumer $ 317,184 $ 3,275 $ 3,127 $ 1,474 $ 325,060 $ 3,158 $ 2,991 
Other<Sl 3 3 

Total Citigroup $ 317,11!7 $ 3,275 $ 3,127 $ 1,474 $ 325,063 $ 3,158 $ 2,991 

(I) Loans less than 30 days past due art: prt:sented as current. 
(2) Includes $29 million ofrcsidcnlial firsl morlgages recorded at fair val11c. 
(3) Excludes loans guaranteed by U.S. govern1rn:nt-spo11.~ored entities. 
(4) Consists ofresidential first mortgages that are guarnnleed hy IJ.S. govcmmen!-sponson:d entities that arc 30 X9 days past due of$0.2 billion and 90 days or more 

past due of$1.3 billion. 
(5) Includes approximately $0.1 billion of residential firsl mortgage loans in process of foreclosure. 
(6) Includes a1iproximatcly $0.1 billion ol'home equily loans in process of foreclosure. 
(7) Fixed-rnte home equity loa11s and loans extt:nded under home cqui1y lines or credil, which are ty)Jically in junior lien positions. 
(8) Represents loans classified as consumer loans on the Consolidated Balance Shee( that are not included in the Corpora1e/01her co11sumer credit metrics. 

Consumer Credit Scores (FICO) 
The following tables provide details on the FICO scores for 
Citi's U.S. consumer loan po11folio (commercial banking loans 
are excluded from the table since they are business based and 
FICO scores are not a primary driver in their credil evaluation). 
FICO scores are updated monthly for substantially all of the 
portfolio or, otherwise, on a qua11erly basis for the remaining 
portfolio. 

FICO score 
distribution in 

U.S. portfolio<1><2l 

In millions ofdof/ars 

Residential first 
mortgages 

I lome equily loans 

Credit cards 

Installment and other 

Total 

Less than 
620 

$ 2,643 

1,650 

8,631 
281 

March 31, 2017 

~ 620 but less 
than 660 

$ 2,323 

1,330 

11,270 

274 

$ 13,205 $ 15,197 

Equal to or 
greater 

than 660 

$ 43,848 

13,935 

!03,156 

2,479 

$ 163,418 

121 

FICO score 
distl'ihution in 

U.S. portfolio<ll!Z) 

In millions of dollars 

Residential first 
mortgages 

Home equity loans 

Credit cards 

Installmelll and other 

Less than 
620 

$ 2,744 

1,750 

8,310 

284 

Total $ 13,08& 

December 31, 2016 

> 620 but less 
- tha11 660 

$ 2,422 

1,418 

11,320 

271 

$ 15,431 

$ 

$ 

Equal to or 
greater 

than 660 

44,279 

14,743 

110,522 

2,601 

172,145 

(I) Excludes loans guaranleed by U.S. government entities, loa,1s subject lo 
long-term standby commitments (LTSC) with U.S. govcrnmen!-sponsored 
cnti(ies and loans recorded at fair value. 

(2) Excludes balances where FICO was 11ot available. Such a111ounls are not 
material. 



Loan to Value (LTV) Ratios 
The following tables provide details on the LTV ratios for Citi 's 
U.S. consumer mortgage portfolios. LTV ratios arc updated 
nonthly using the most recent Core Logic Home Price Index 
Jata available for substantially all of the po1tfolio applied at the 
Metropolitan Statistical Area level, if available, or the state 
level if not. The remainder of the portfolio is updated in a 
similar manner using the Federal Housing Finance Agency 
indices. 

LTV distribution in 
U.S. portfolio111121 March 31, 2017 

Less than > 80%, but less 
or than or equal Greater 

equal to to than 
In millions qf'do/lars 80% lOO'Yo 100% 

Residtmtial first 
mortgages $ 45,335 $ 3,358 $ 312 

Home equity loans 12,344 3,305 1,183 

Total $ 57,679 $ 6,663 $ 1,495 

LTV distribution in 
U.S. portfolio<IJIZJ December 31, 2016 

Less than 
or > 80% but less Greater 

equal to than or equal to than 
In millions qf dollars 80% 100% 100% 

Residential first 
mortgages $ 45,849 $ 3,467 $ 324 

Home equity loans 12,869 3,653 1,305 

Total $ 58,71& $ 7,120 $ 1,629 

( 1) Excludes loans guaranteed by U.S. government entities, loans subject to 
i..:rSCs with U.S. governmcnt-si,onsored entities and loans recorded at fair 
value. 

(2) Excludes balances where LTV was not available. Such amounts arc not 
material. 
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Impaired Consumer Loans 

The following tables present information about impaired consumer loans and interest income recognized on impaired consumer loans: 

Three months ended March 3 
Balance at March 31, 2017 2017 2016 

Unpaid Related Avenige 
Recorded µrincipal specific carryinr Interest income Interest inC()me 

In millions of dollars investme11t('J<2J balance allow1mce13l valuc 14 recognizcd15l rccognized'5l 
Mortgage and real estate 

Residential first mortgages $ 3,632 $ 3,995 $ 402 $ 4,116 $ 36 $ 61 
Home equity loans 1,219 1,720 281 l,289 8 9 

Credit cards 1,824 1,858 588 1,813 38 41 
Installment and other 

Individual installment and other 391 411 176 449 8 7 

Commercial hanking loans 507 710 122 549 6 2 
Total $ 7,573 $ 8,694 $ 1,569 $ 8,216 $ 96 $ 120 

(I) l{ecol'dcd invcstmclll in a loan includes net dclcrred Joan fees and costs, unarnorti.:ed premium or discount and direct write-downs and includes accrued interest only 
on cl'cdit card loa11s. 

(2) $680 million of residential first mortgages, $388 million of home equity loans and $82 million of commercial market loans do not have a specific allowam;,:, 
(3) Included in the Allowance.for loan losse.,. 
(4) Average carrying value represents the average recorded investment ending balance for the last four quarters and does 1101 include die related .~pccific allowanc,:. 
(5) Includes amounts recognized on hoth on occrunl and cash basis. 

Balance, December 31, 2016 

Related 

in millions of dollar., 
Recorded 

invcslmentf'l!ZJ 
Unpaid 

princi1>al balance 
specific 

allowancc11l 
Average 

cal'l'ying value<4> 

Mortgage and real estate 

Rcsidclllial first mortgages $ 3,786 $ 4,157 $ 540 $ 4,63~ 
Home equity loans 1,298 1,824 189 1,326 

Credit cards 1,747 1,781 566 1,831 
Installment and other 

Individual installment and other 455 481 215 475 

Commercial banking loans 513 744 98 538 
Total $ 7,799 $ 8,987 $ 1,608 $ 8,802 

(I) Recorded investment in a loa11 includes n,:t deferred loan foes and cosls, unamortized premium or discount and direct write-downs and includes accrued interest only 
on credit cmd loans. 

(2) $740 million ofl'csidcntial firs! mortgages, $406 million or home tquity loans and $97 millio11 of commercial market loans do 1101 have a specific allowance. 
(3) Included in the /l/lowancefor loan losses. 
(4) Average carrying value represents the average recorded investment ending halancc for the last four quarters and docs not i11clude the related specific allowance. 
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Consumer Troubled l>eht Restructurings 

In millions ofdolfars excepl number of 
loans modified 

North America 

Number of 
loans modified 

At 11nd for the three months ended March 31, 2017 

Post­
modificatioo 

recorded 
investment<l)l2l 

Deferred 
principa1<3l 

Contingent 
principal 

forgivenessl4l 
Principal 

forgiveness<5J 

Residential first mo11gages 

Home equity loans 

966 $ 130 $ 3 $ 

3 

$ 

Credit cards 

InstaJlment and other revolving 

Commercial markets16> 

Total<81 

International 

Residential first mo1tgages 

Credit cards 

Installment and other revolving 

Commercial markets<6
l 

Total<81 

In millions of dollars except number of 
loans modified 

North America 

Residential first mortgages 

Horne equity loans 

Credit cards 

Installment and ot11cr revolving 

Commercial markets(6
) 

TotalC8l 

International 

Residential first mo1tgages 

Credit cards 

Installment and other revolving 

Commercial markcts<6J 

Totaf8l 

679 

59,337 

221 

26 

61,229 

613 

25,237 

11,307 

32 

37,189 

Number of 
loans modified 

1,468 

858 

49,109 

1,385 

23 

52,843 

419 

52,207 

21,644 

28 

74,298 

56 

231 

2 

5 

$ 424 $ 6 $ $ 

27 

85 

60 

l3 

$ 185 $ $ $ 

At and for the three months ended March 31, 2016 

l'ost-
modification Contingent 

recorded Deferrc~ principal Prh1eipal 
inveslmentC1lO) prin<.:ipal 3l forgi vcncssC4l forgiveness<~) 

$ 212 $ 2 $ $ 

30 

188 

12 

5 

$ 447 $ 2 $ $ 

15 

123 

82 

20 

$ 240 $ $ $ 

(I) Post-modification balances include past due amounts lhat are capitafo:cd at the moc.lifif.:l1tion date. 

2 

4 

6 

2 

2 

4 

Average 
interest rafe 

reduction 

1% 

17 

s 

-% 

Average 

14 

7 

2 

interest rate 
reduction 

1% 

3 

17 

14 

-% 

13 

7 

(2) Po.~t-modification balances in North America include $15 millio11 of residential first mortgages and $6 million of home equity loans to borrowers who have gone 
through Chapter 7 bankruptcy in the three months ended M,irch 31, 2017. These amounts include $9 million of residential first mortgages ml(] $6 million of home 
equity loans that were newly classified as TORs in the three months ended March 31, 2017, based on previously received OCC guidance. 

(3) Represents po1tion of contrac!ual loan principal that is non-inten:sl bearing, hut still due from the borrower. S11ch deferred principal is charged off .ii the lime of 
permanent modification 10 !he extent that the related Joan balance exceeds the underlying collaternl v,due. 

(4) Represents portion of contractual loan prineiral that is non-interest bearing and, depending upon borrower perlormancc, eligible for forgiveness. 
(5) Represents portion of con1rac1ual loan principal that wa<; forgiven al the lime of pcnnancnt modification. 
(6) Commercial hanking lollns are generally borrower-specific modi[ications and incorporate changes in the amount and/or timing of principal and/or inlerest. 
(7) Post-modification balances in Nonh Am<:rica include $20 million of residential first mortgages and $5 million of home equity loans to borrowers who lrnve gone 

through Chapter 7 bankruptcy in the lhrec months ended March J l, 2016. These amounts include $14 million ol'rcsidcntial first mortgages and $5 million of home 
cq11ity loans that were m:wly classified as TORs in the three months ended March 31, 2016, based on previously received OCC guidance. 

8) The above tables reflect activi!y for loans 011tstanding as of tile end of the reporting period that were considered TDRs. 
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The following table presents consumer TDRs that defaulted for which the payment default occurred within one year of a permanent 
modification. Default is defined as 60 days past due, except for classifiably managed commercial banking loans, where default is defined 
as 90 days past due. 

In millions qf dollars 

North America 

Residential first mortgages 

Home equity loans 

Credit can.ls 

Installment and other revolving 

Commercial banking 

Total 

lntea·national 

Residential first mortgages 

Credit cards 

Installment and other revolving 

Commercial hanking 

Total 

Corporate Lonns 
Corporate loans represent loans and leases managed by !CG. 
The following table presents information by corporate loan 
type: 

March 31, December 31, 
In 111iflio11s of do/furs 2017 2016 

In U.S. ofliccs 

Commercial and industrial $ 49,845 $ 49,586 

Financial institutions 35,734 35,517 

Mortgage and real estatc<1l 40,052 38,691 

Installment, revolving credit 
and other 32,212 34,501 

Lease financing 1,511 1,518 

$ 159,354 $ 159,813 

In otliccs outside the U.S. 

Commercial and industrial $ 87,258 $ 81,882 

Financial institutions 33,763 26,886 

Mortgage and rca.l cstatc<1> 5,527 5,363 

Installment, revolving credit 
and other 16,576 19,965 

I .ease financing 253 25! 

Governments and official 
institutions 5,970 5,850 

$ 149,347 $ 140,197 

Total corporate loans $ 308,701 $ 300,010 

Net u11earned income (662) (704) 

Co1·porate loans, net of 
unearned income $ 308,039 $ 299,306 

(I) Loans secured primarily by real estate. 
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Three months ended March 31, 

1017 2016 

$ 51 $ 

9 

52 

2 

$ 114 $ 

$ 2 $ 

42 

23 

$ 67 $ 

The Company sold and/or reclassified to held-for-sale 
$0.5 billion of corporate loans during both the three months 
ended March 31, 2017 and 20 l 6. The Compa11y did not have 
significant purchases of corporate Joans classified as held­
for-investment for the three months ended March 31, 2017 
or 2016. 

87 

9 

49 

2 

148 

3 

37 

22 

3 
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Corporate Loan Delinquency and Non-Accrual Details at March 31, 2017 

30-89 days ~ 90 dnys 
past due past due and Total past due Total Total Total 

In millions qf dollars and accruing111 accruing(J) and accruing non-accrualm currc11t<3l loans 141 

Commercial and industrial $ 170 $ $ 170 $ 1,692 $ 132,583 $ 134,445 

Financial institutions 215 18 233 301 67,478 68,012 

Mortgage and real estate 211 211 181 45,172 45,564 

Leases 98 8 106 67 1,591 1,764 

Other 427 3 430 98 53,719 54,247 

Loans at fair value 4,007 

Purchased distressed loans 

Total $ 1,121 $ 29 $ 1,150 $ 2,339 $ 300,543 $ 308,039 

Corporate Loan Delinquency and Non-Accrual Details at December 31, 2016 

30-89 days 2! 90 days 
past due past due and Total past due Total Total Total 

In millions qj'do/lors and accruing111 accruing<'! and accruing non-accrual111 current(J) loans <4l 

Commercial and industrial $ 143 $ 52 $ 195 $ l,909 $ 127,012 $ 129,116 

Financial institutions 119 2 121 \85 61,254 61,560 

Mortgage and real estate 141! 137 285 139 43,607 44,031 

I ,eases 27 8 35 56 1,678 1,769 

Other 349 12 361 132 58,880 59,373 

Loans at fair value 3,457 

Purchased distressed loans 

Total $ 7R6 $ 211 $ 997 $ 2,421 $ 292,431 $ 299,306 

I) Corporate loans that arc 90 days past due are generally classified as non-accrual. Corporate loans arc considered past due when principal or interest is 
contractually due but unpaid. 

(2) Non-accrual loans generally include those loans that are 2: 90 days pa~t due or those loans for which Citi believes, ha~cd on actual experience and a forward· 
looking assessment of the collectahility of the Imm in lull, that the payment of interest or principal is doubltlll. 

(3) Corporate Joans arc past due when principal or interest is contractually due hut unpaid. Loans less than 30 days past due are presented as current. 
(4) Total loans il1cludc loans at fair value, which are not included in the various delinquency columns. 
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Corporate Loans Credit Quality Indicators 

Recorded investment in loans<11 

In millions ofdo/lars 

Investment grade<2> 

Commercial and industrial 

Vinan<.:ial institutions 

Mortgage and real estate 

Leases 

Other 

Total investment grade 

Non-investment gr.adcl2l 

Acc1·ua/ 

Commercial and industrial 

Financial institutions 

Mortgage and real estate 

(,eases 

Other 

Non-accrual 

Commercial and industrial 

Financial institutions 

Mortgage and real estate 

I .eases 

Other 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total non-investment grade $ 

Private bank loans managed 
on a delinquency hasis<21 $ 

Loans .at fair value 

Corporate loans, net of 
uoearned income $ 

March 31, 
2017 

December 31, 
2016 

90,753 $ 

55,422 

19,901 

1,169 

47,307 

214,552 $ 

41,999 $ 

12,288 

1,865 

528 

6,843 

1,692 

301 

181 

67 

98 

65,862 $ 

23,618 $ 

4,007 

308,039 $ 

85,369 

49,915 

18,718 

1,303 

51,930 

207,235 

41,838 

11,459 

1,821 

410 

7,312 

1,909 

185 

139 

56 

132 

65,261 

23,353 

3,457 

299,306 

(I) Recorded investment in a loan includes net deferred loan fees and 
costs, umunonized premium or discount, less any direct writc-dow11s. 

(2) Held-for-investment loans arc accounltd for on an amorti1.cd cost 
basis. 
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Non-Accrual Corporate Loans 
The following tables present non-accrual loan information by corporate loan type and interest income recognized on non-accrual 
corporate loans: 

March 31, 2017 

Unpaid Related lntel'est 
Reco1·ded principal specific Average income 

In millions of dollars investment('> balance allowance carrying value<2> recogn izcd13
> 

Non-accrual corporate loans 

Commercial and industrial $ 1,692 $ 2,040 $ 332 $ 1,876 $ 2 

financial institutions 301 324 37 217 

Mortgage and real estate 181 309 9 168 

Lease financing 67 67 4 60 

Other 98 205 88 

Total non-accrual corporate loans $ 2,339 $ 2,945 $ 382 $ 2,409 $ 2 

December 3 I , 2016 

IJnpaid Relate<l 
Recorded principal speci fic Average 

In millions qf dollars inves1me111<1J balance alJowance carrying vaJue<2> 

Non-accrual corporate loans 

Commercial an<l industrial $ 1,909 $ 2,259 $ 362 $ 1,919 

Financial institutions 185 192 16 183 

Mortgage and real estate 139 250 10 174 

I ,ease financing 56 56 4 44 

Other 132 197 87 

Total non-accrnal corporate Joans $ 2,421 $ 2,954 $ 392 $ 2,407 

March 31, 2017 December 3 I, 2016 

In million., of dollars 

Non-accrual corporate loans with valuation allowances 

Commercial and industrial 

Financial institutions 

Mortgage and real estate 

Lease financing 

Other 

Total non-accrual corporate loans with specific 

$ 

allowance $ 

Non-accrual corporate loans without specific allowance 

Commercial and industrial 

Financial institutions 

Mortgage and real estate 

Lease financing 

Other 

Total non-accrual corpo1·ate loans without specific 

$ 

allowance $ 

Recorded 
inve.~tmen 1(1l 

1, 103 

87 
35 

53 

I 

1,279 

589 

214 

146 

14 

97 

1,060 

Related specific Recorded 
.tllowance invcs1mcnt<1 l 

$ 332 $ 1,343 $ 

37 45 

9 41 

4 55 

$ 382 $ 1,485 $ 

$ 566 

140 

98 

I 

131 

N/A $ 936 

(I) Recorded investment in a loan includes net deferred Joan fees and costs, unamortized rrcmium or discount, Jess any direct write-downs. 
'.2) Average carrying value represents the average recorded investment bahmce and docs not include related specific allowance. 
(3) Interest income recognized for the <hrec months ended March 31, 2016 was $13 million. 
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to 
4 
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Corporate Troubled Debt Restructurings 

At and for the three months ended March 3 I, 2017: 

In millions qf dollars 
Carrying 

Value 

TDRs 
involving changes 

in the amount 
and/or timing of 

principal payments<'' 

TDRs 
involving changes 

in the amount 
and/or timing of 

interest pnyment!,121 

TDRs 
involving changes 

in the :imount 
and/or timing of 

both principal and 
interest payments 

Commercial and industrial 

Financial institutions 

Mortgage and real estate 

$ 55 $ 

15 

$ $ 55 

t 
15 

I 
Total $ 71 $ $ $ 71 

Al and for the three months ended March 31, 20 I 6: 

In millions qf'do/lars 
Carrying 

Value 

TDRs 
involving changes 

in the amount 
and/ot' timing of 

principal payments< 11 

TDRs 
involving cha11ges 

in the amount 
and/or timing of 

interest pay111cnts<21 

TDRs 
involving changes 

in the amount 
and/or liming of 

both principal and 
interest payme11ts 

Commercial and industrial 

Mortgage l:lnd real estate 

$ 98 $ 

4 

$ $ 98 

4 
Total $ 1()2 $ $ $ 102 

(\) TORs involving changes in the amount or timing of principal payments may involve principal forgiveness or deferrnl of periodic and/or lina\ prim:ipal 
paynu:nts. Because forgiveness ol'principa\ is rnre for corporate loans, modificutions typically have little to no impact on the loans' projected cash flows and 
tl1us little lo 110 impact on tl1c allowance established for the loans. Cllargi:-ofls for mnounts deemed uncollectable may be recorded at the time ol'the 
restructuring or may have already been reconlt:d in prior periods such tltal no charge-off is required at tile time of the modification. 

(2) TO Rs involving changes in the amount or timing of interest payments may involve a below-market interest rate. 

The following table presents total corporate loans modified in a TDR as well as those TDRs that defaulted and for which the 
payment default occurred within one year of a permanent modification. Default is defined as 60 days past due, except for 
elassifiably managed commercial banking loans, where default is defined as 90 days past due. 

TDR loans in payment default TDR loans in payment default 
TDR halances at during the three months ended TDR balances at during the three months ended 

Jn millions of dollars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Mareh31, 2016 
Commercial and industrial $ 390 $ 9 $ 219 $ 

Loans to financial institutions 24 3 2 

Mortgage and real estate 84 139 
Other 177 303 
Totaff) $ 675 $ 12 $ 663 $ 

(I) The above tables reI\ect activity for loans 011lsta11ding as of the end of the reporting period that were considered TDRs. 
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14. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES 

In millions of dollars 

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period 

Gross credit losses 

Gross recoveries'1> 

Net credit losses (NCLs) 

NCLs 

Net reserve builds (releases) 

Net specific reserve builds (releases) 

Total provision for loan losses 

Other, net (see table below) 

Allowance for loan losses at end of period 

Allowance for credit losses on unfunded lending commitments at beginning of period 

Provision (release) for unfunded km.ling commitments 

Other, net 

Allowance for credit losses on unfunded lending commitments at end of perio<1<2l 

Total allowance for 101111s, leases, and unfunded lending commitments 

(I) Recoveries have heen reduced by certain collection costs that are incurred only if collection efforts arc successful. 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

2017 2016 

$ 12,060 $ 12,626 

(2,144) (2,143) 

435 419 

$ (1,709) $ (1,724) 

$ 1,709 $ 1,724 

(20) 42 

(14) 120 

$ 1,675 $ 1,886 

4 (76) 

$ 12,030 $ 12,712 

$ 1,418 $ 1,402 

(43) 71 

2 

$ 1,377 $ 1,473 

$ 13,407 $ 14,185 

(2) Represents additional credit loss r~s~rv1:s !or unfondcd lending commillm:nts mid letters ol' credit recorded in 01her liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Other, net details 

•n millions of dollars 

Sales or transfers of various consumer loan portfolios to held-for-sale 

1 'ransfer of real estate loan portfolios 

Transfer of other loan portfolios 

Sales or tr:insfer.s of various consumer loan portfolios to held-for-sale 

FX translation. consumer 

Other 

Othe1·, net 

Allowance for Credit Losses and Investment in Loans 

March 31, 2017 

In millions of dollars Corporate Consumer 

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period $ 2,702 $ 9,358 :$ 
Charge-offs (l03) 

I 
(2,041)1 

Recoveries 66 369 ! 

Replenishment of net charge-off'> 37 
I 

1,6721 

Net reserve builds (releases) (166) 146 l 
Net speci fie reserve huilds (releases) (12) (2)l 
Other II (7~ 

Ending balance $ 2,535 $ 9,495 :$ 

130 

Three Months Ended 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

2017 2016 

$ (37) $ (29) 

(124) (119) 

$ (161) $ (148) 

164 63 

9 

$ 4 $ (76) 

Mareh31,2016 

Total Corporate Consumer Total 

12,060 $ 2,791 $ 9,835 1$ 12,626 

(2,144) (223) (1,920)! (2,143) 

435 13 406 ! 419 

1,709 210 1,514 l 1,724 

(20) 4 38 l 42 

(14) 101 19 I 120 

4 9 (85)1 (76) 

12,030 $ 2,905 $ 9,8071 $ 12,712 



Three Months F..nded 

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 

In millions of dollars Co1·porate Consumer Total Corporate Consumer Total 

Allowance for Joan losses 
I I 
I I 

Determined in accordance with J\SC 450 $ 
I 

$ 2,310 $ 
I 

10,054 $ 2,153 7,9211$ 10,074 7,744 I$ 

Determined i11 accordance with ASC 310-10-35 382 
I 

1,951 392 
I 

2,000 1,569 I J,608 I 

Determim~d in accordance with ASC 310-30 s l 5 6! 6 

Total allowance for loan losses $ 2,535 $ 9,495 1$ 11,030 $ 2,702 $ 9,358 l$ 12,060 

Loans, net of unearned income 
I I 
I I 

Loans collectively evaluated for impairment in accordance 
I I 
I I 

with ASC 450 $ 301,561 $ 312,761 :$ 614,322 $ 293,218 $ 317,048 1$ 6!0,266 
Loans individually evaluated for impairment in accordance 

I 
I 

with ASC 310-10-35 2,471 7,573: 10,044 2,631 7,799 10,430 

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality in 
I 
I 

accordance wilh ASC 310-30 .194: 194 187 187 

Loans held at fair value 4,007 2s: 4,035 3,457 29 3,486 

Total loans, net of unearned income $ 308,039 $ 320,556 :$ 628,595 $ 299,306 $ 325,063 
1
$ 624,369 
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15. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

for additional information regarding Ci Li's goodwill impairment testing process, see Notes I and 16 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Citi's 20 l 6 Annual Report on form 10-K. 

Goodwill 
The changes in Goodwill were as follows : 

In millions of doflurs 

Balance, Oecemhe1· 31, 2016 

Foreign excha11ge translation and other 

Impairment of goodwill 

Balance at March 31, 2017 

Effective January l, 2017, the mortgage servicing 
business in North America GCB was reorganized and is now 
reported as part of Corporate/Other. Goodwill was allocated 
lo the transferred business based on its relative fair value to 
the legacy North America GCB repmting unit. An inlerim 
test was performed under both the legacy and new reporting 
structures, which resulted in full impairment of the $28 
million of allocated goodwill upon transfer to Citi Holdings­
REL. The impairment was recorded as an operating 
expense in the first quarter or 2017. 

Further, the interim test performed in the fourth qua,ter 
of2016 indicated that the fair value of the Citi Holdings­
Consumer Latin America reporting unit only marginally 
exceeded its carrying value. An updated interim test was 
performed during the first quarter ol'2017, with a minimal 
change in results. While there was no indication of 
impairment, the $16 million of goodwill present in Citi 
Holdings · -Consumer Latin America may be particularly 
sensitive to further deterioration in economic conditions. 
The fair value as a percentage of allocated book value as of 
March 31, 2017 was 103%. 

There were no other triggering events identilied during 
the first quarter of 2017. The fair values of all other 
reporting units with goodwill balances exceeded their 
carrying values and did not indicate a risk ofimpairmcnl 
based on the most recent valuations. 

The following table shows repo1ting units with goodwill 
balances as of March 31, 2017 and the fair value as a 
percentage of allocated book value as of the latest 
impairment test: 
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In millions of dollars 

Repo1·ting unit(IJ Goodwill 

North America Global Consumer 
Banking $ 6,732 

Asia Global Consumer Banking 4,910 

Latin America vfobal Consumer 
Banking 1,151 

/CG-Banking 2,902 

!CG-Market.~ and Securities 
Services 6,554 

Citi Holdings--Consumer Latin 
AmericaC2

) 16 

Total as of March 31, 2017 $ 22,265 

$ 

$ 

21,659 

634 

(28) 

22,265 

Fair value ns n 
% ofllllocated 

book value 

148% 

157 

180 

194 

115 

I03 

(I) Other Citi Holdings reporting units, including Cili Holdings-REL, 
are excluded from the tahle a,; there is no goodwill allocated to them. 

(2) All Citi Holdings reporting units are presented in the Corporate/Other 
segment beginning in the fir.~t quarterof 2017. 



Intangible Assets 

The components of intangible assets were as follows: 

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 

Gross Net Gross Net 
carrying Accumulated carrying carrying Accumulated carryi11g 

In millions q( dollars amount amortization amount amount amortization amount 
Purchased credit card relationships $ 5,703 $ 4,049 $ 1,654 $ 8,215 $ 6,549 $ 1,666 

Credit card co11tract related intangibles<') 5,044 2,159 2,885 5,149 2,177 2,972 

Core deposit intangibles 776 750 26 801 771 30 

Other customer relationships 480 275 205 474 272 202 

Present value of future profits 34 29 5 31 27 4 
.Indefinite-lived intangible assets 227 227 2IO 210 

Other 170 159 11 504 474 30 

Intangible assets (excluding MSRs) $ 12,434 $ 7,42.1 $ 5,013 $ 15,384 $ 10,270 $ 5,114 

M011gage servicing rights (MSRs)l2l 567 567 1,564 1,564 

Total intangible assets $ 13,001 $ 7,421 $ 5,580 $ 16,948 $ 10,270 $ 6,<i78 

The changes in intangible assets were as follows: 

Net carrying Net carrying 
amount at amount at 

December 31, Acquisitions/ FX translation March 31, 
In millions ofdol/ars 2016 divestitures Amortization and other 2017 

Purchased credit card relationships $ l,666 $ 20 $ (33) $ I $ 

Credit card contract related intangihles<1l 2,972 9 (98) 2 

Core deposit intangibles 30 (6) 2 

Other customer relationships 202 (6) 9 
Present value of future profits 4 

Indefinite-lived intangible assets 210 17 

Other 30 (14) (4) {]) 

Intangible assets (excluding MSRs) $ 5,114 $ 15 $ (147) $ 31 $ 

Mortgage servicing rights (MSRsi21 1,564 

Total inhrngible assets $ 6,678 $ 

(I) Primarily reflects contl'act-rclalcd in1a11gibles associated with the J\mcrican Airlines, Sems, The l lome Uepot, Costco and AT&T credit card program 
agreements, which l'eprcscntcd 96% allll 97% of the aggregate net carrying amount at Mmd1 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. 

1,654 

2,885 

26 

205 

5 

227 

II 

5,013 

567 

5,580 

(2) for i1dditional infol'mation on Citi's MSRs, including the rollforward for the three months ended Mal'ch 31,2017, sec Note 18 to the Consolidated rinancial 
Stutements. 
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16. DEBT 

For additional infonnation regarding Citi's sho11-tcrm 
borrowings and long-term debt, see Note 17 to the 
~onsolidated Financial Statements in Citi 's 2016 Annual 

Report on Form l 0-K. 

Short-Term Borrowings 

March 31, December 31, 
In millions of dol/at's 2017 2016 

Balance 1:!alance 

Commercial paper $ 10,088 $ 9,989 

Other borrowings<ll 16,039 20,712 

Total $ 26,127 $ 30,701 

(I) Includes borrowings from Federal Home Loan l:!anks and other 
market participants. Al March 31, 2017 and Oecember 31, 2016, 
collaterali:i:ed short-term advances from the Federal Home Loan Lhmks 
were $6.3 billion and $12.0 billion, respectively. 

Long-Term Debt 

March 31, December 31, 
In millions of dollars 2017 2016 

Citigrou1> Inc.Ill $ 141,626 $ 147,333 

Bank'2l 51,085 49,454 

B1·oke1·-dealer<3l 15,819 9,391 

Total $ 208,530 $ 206,178 

(I) Represents the parent holding company. 
(2) Represents Citibank entities as well as other bank entities. At 

March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, collaternli:i:ed long-term 
advances from the Federal Home Loan l:!anks were $20.3 billion and 
$21 .6 billion, respectively. 

(3) Represents broker-dealer subsidiaries that are consolidated into 
Citigroup Inc., the parent holding company. 

Long-term debt outstanding includes tl'ust preferred 
securities with a balance sheet carrying value of $1. 7 billion 
al both March 31, 20 l 7 and December 31, 2016. 

The following table summarizes Citi's outstanding trust preferred securities at March 31, 2017: 

Junior subordinated debentures owned by trust 

Common 
shares Redeemable 

Issuance Securities Liquidation Coupon issued by issuer 
Trust date issued value(•> rate(2J to parent Amount Maturity beginning 

In millions ofdo/lc,rs, except share amounts 

Citigrou(l Ca(lital HJ Dec. 1996 194,053 $ 194 7.625% 6,003 $ 200 Dec. I, 2036 Not redeemahle 

3 mo I.IBOR + 
Citigroup Ca(lital X Ill Sept. 2010 89,840,000 2,246 637 h(lS 1,000 2,246 Oct. 30, 2040 Oct. 30, 2015 

Citigroup Capital XVIII June 2007 99,901 125 6.829 50 125 June 28, 2067 June 28, 2017 

Total obligated $ 2,565 $ 2,571 

Note: Oistributions on the: trust preft:m:d securities and interest on the .~uhordinated debentun:s 11re payable semiannually for Citigroup Capital Ill and Citigrnup 
Capital XVIII and qullrterly for Ciligroup Capital XIII. 
(I) Represents the notional value received by investors from lhc trusts at the time ofissuanct:. 
(2) In each case, the coupon rnte on the subordinated debenlurcs is the same a~ that on the trust preft:rred st:curilit:s. 
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17. CHANG.ES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

Changes in each component of Citigroup's Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows: 

In millions ofdo/lars 

Balance, December 31, 2016 

Other comprehensive income before 
reclassifications 

Increase (decrease) due to amounts reclassified 
from AOCI 

Change, net of taxes 

Bahmce at March 31, 2017 

In millions ofdo/lars 

Balance, December 31, 2015 

Adjustment to opening balance, net of taxes <1> 

/\<ljustcd balance, beginning of period 

Other comprehensive income before 
reclassifications 

Increase (decrease) due to amounts reclassified 
from J\OCI 

Chtlllge, net of taxes 

Balance, March 31, 2016 

Net 
unt'calizcd Debt 

gains (losses) valuation 
on investment adjustment Cash flow 

securities (DVAf1 hedgcs'21 

$ (799) $ (352) $ (560) $ 

334 (55) 24 

(J 14) (5) (26) 

$ 220 $ (60) $ (2) $ 

$ (579) $ (412) $ (562) $ 

Net 
unrealized Debt 

gains (losses) valuation 
on investment adjustment Cash flow 

securitie.s (DVA)C1l hcdges<ZJ 

$ (907) $ $ (617) $ 

(15) 

(907) ( 15) (617) 

2,026 192 291 

8 I 26 

$ 2,034 $ 193 $ 317 $ 

$ 1,127 $ 178 $ (300) $ 

Foreign 
currency 

translation Accumulated 
adjustment other 

Benefit (CTA), net of comprehensive 
plnns<3l hedges<~) income (loss) 

(5,164) $ (25,506) $ (32,381) 

(49) 1,465 1,719 

37 (147) (255) 

(12) $ 1,318 $ 1,464 

(5,176) $ (24,188) $ (30,917) 

Fol'cign 
currency 

t..anslation Accumulated 
adjustment other 

Benefit (CTA), net of compl'ehensive 
plans131 hedges14> income (loss) 

(5,116)$ (22,704) $ (29,344) 

(15) 

(5,116) (22,704) (29,359) 

(500) 654 2,663 

35 70 

(465) $ 654 $ 2,733 

(5,581) $ (22,050) $ (26,626) 

(I) Beginning in the first quaner of'2016, elumges in DVJ\ are l'efleelcd as a component ol'AOCJ, pursuant to the early adoption of only the provisions of ASU 
2016·01 relating to the presentation ofDVA on foir value option liabilities. Sec Nole l to the Consolidatt:d l'inancial Statements for further information regarding 
this change. 

(2) Primarily dl'iven hy Citigroup's pay Jixed/receive floating intere.~t rate swap programs that ht:dge the floating rntes on liahilities. 
(3) Primarily reflects adj11stments based on the <11mrterly actuarial valuations ofthe Company's Significant pension and postretiremcnt plans, annual acluarial 

valuations of all other plans, and amurti:i:ation of amounts previously recognized i,1 other comprehensive income. 
(4) Primarily reflects the movements in (by order of impact) the Mexican peso, Korean Won, and Japanese Yen against the ll.S. dollar, a,1<1 changes in related tax 

effects and hedges for the quarter endtd March 31, 2017. Primarily reflects the movemtnls in (by onler of impact) the Japanese Yen, euro, and Brazilian real 
against the IJ.S. dollar, and changes in related tax effects and hedges for the quarter ended March 31, 20 I 6. 
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The pretax and after-tax changes in each component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows: 

In millions of dollars 

. Balance, December 31, 2016 

2hangc in net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities 

Debt valuation adjustment (DVA) 

Cash flow hedges 

Benefit plans 

Foreign cun·ency translation adjustment. 

Change 

B11la11ce, Mal'ch 31, 2017 

In millions of dollars 

Balance, December 31, 2015 

Adjustment to opening balance l•> 

Adjusted balance, beginning of period 

Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities 

Debt valuation adjustment (DVA) 

Cash tlow hedges 

Benefit plans 

Foreign cun-ency translation adjustment 

Change 

Balance, March 31, 2016 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Pretax 
(42,035) $ 

346 

(95) 

I 

(2) 

1,468 

1,718 $ 

(40,317) $ 

P,·etax 

(38,440) $ 

(26) 

(38,466) 

3,224 

307 

481 

(727) 

513 

3,79& $ 

(34,668) $ 

Tax effect 
9,654 $ 

(126) 

35 

(3) 

(10) 

(150) 

(254) $ 

9,400 $ 

Tax eflect 

9,096 $ 

11 

9,107 

(1,190) 

(114) 

(164) 

262 

141 

(1,065) $ 

8,042 $ 

·, 
.I) Represents lhe ($15) million mlju:shnenl related to the initial adoption of ASU 2016-01. Set: Note I to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Aftel'-tax 
(32,381) 

220 

(60) 

(2) 

(12) 

1,318 

1,464 

(30,917) 

After-tax 

(29,344} 

(15) 

(29,359) 

2,034 

193 

317 

(46.5) 

654 

2,733 

(26,626) 



The Company recognized pretax gain (loss) related to amounts in AOC[ reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Income as 
follows: 

In millions of dollars 

Realized (gai11s) losses on sales of investments $ 

01TI gross impairment losses 

Subtotal, pretax $ 

Tax ctfoct 

Net realized (gains) losses on investment securities, after-ta,cP> $ 

Realized DV A (gains) losses on fair value option liabilities $ 

Subtotal, pretax $ 

Tiix effect 

Net realized debt valuation adjustment, after-lax $ 

Interest rate contracts $ 

Foreign exchange contrncts 

Suhtotal, pretax $ 

Ti1x effect 

Amortization of cash tlow hedges, after-tax<2> $ 

Amortization of unrecognized 

Prior service cost (benefit) $ 

Net actuarial loss 

Curtail111e11Vsettlcmcnt impact<1J 

Subtotal, pretax $ 

Tax effect 

Amortization of benefit plans, after-tax13l $ 

foreign currency tr1:1J1slation adjustment $ 

Tax effecl 

Foreign currency translatio11 adjustment $ 
~ 

Total amounts reclassified out of AOCI, pretax $ 

Total tax effect 

Total amounts reclassified out of AOCI, after-tax $ 

Increase (decrease) in AOC[ due to 
amounts reclassified to Consolidllted 

Statement of Income 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

(192) $ (186) 

12 203 
(180) $ 17 

66 (9) 

(114) $ 8 

(8) $ J 

(8) $ I 

3 -
(5) $ I 

(44) $ 16 

3 26 

(41) $ 42 

15 (16) 

(26) $ 26 

( 10) $ (10) 

67 66 

- (2) 

57 $ 54 
(20) ( 19) 

37 $ 35 

(232) $ -
85 -

( 147) $ -
(404) .$ 114 

149 (44) 

(255) $ 70 

(I) The pretax amount is reclassified to Realized gains (losses) on sales ofinvestmenls, net and Gross impairmem losses on the Consolidated Statement oflneome. 
See Note I 2 to lhe Consoliduted .Financial Statemenls for additional details. 

(2) See Note 19 to the Consolidated .Financial Stc1lements for additional details. 
(3) See Note 8 to the Consoli<laled Financial Statements for additional details. 
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18. SF,CURTTTZATIONS AND VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES 

For additional information regarding Citi's use of special purpose entities (SPEs) and variable interest entities (VlEs), see Note 21 to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Citigroup's involvement with consolidated and unconsolidated VJEs with which the Company holds significant variable interests 
or has continuing involvement through servicing a majority of the assets in a VIE is presented below: 

Total 
in,,olvemcnt Consolidated Signiticnnt 

unconsolidated 
V l E assetsl3l In millions of dollars 

Credit card sccuritizations $ 

Mortgage sccuritizations<4l 

lJ .S. agency-sponsorcd1~l 

Non-agency-sponsored 
Citi-administcred asset-

backed commercial paper 
conduits (ABCI') 

Collatcralizcd loan 
obligations (Cl .Os) 

Asset-based financing 
Municipal securities tender 

option bond trusts (TOBs) 

Municipal investments 
Client intermediation 

Investment runds 

Other 

with SPE VIE/ SPE 
assets 

46,993 $ 

I17,2IO 

20,164 

19,120 

18,246 

50,939 

6,927 

18,463 
1,504 

2,177 

767 

assets 

46,993 $ 

1,037 

19,120 

742 

2,659 

15 
800 

767 

36 

117,210 

19,127 

18,246 

50,197 

4,268 

18,448 

704 

1,410 
731 

As of March 31, 2017 

Maximum expo.sure to loss in significant unconsolidated Vlf.s<•l 

Funded exposures<2
> Unfunded exposures 

Guarantees 
Debt li:quity Funding and 

investments investments commitments derivatives Total 

$ 

2,766 

284 

5,071 

15,707 

8 

2,507 
462 

32 
115 

$ 

35 

583 

3,639 

34 
11 

$ 

4,923 

2,914 

2,561 
208 

15 

66 

$ $ 

74 2,840 

I 320 

64 5,135 

21,213 

2,922 

8,707 
670 

I 82 

44 236 

Total $ 302,510 $ 72,169 $ 230,34 1 $ 26,952 $ 4,302 $ 1.0,687 $ 184 $ 42,125 

In millions of dollars 

Credit card sccuritizations 
Mortgage seuLritizations<~l 

lJ.S. agency-sponsored 
Non-agency-sponsored 

Citi-administercd asset-
backed commercial paper 
conduits (ABCP) 

Collateralizcd loan 
obligations (CLOs) 

Asset-based financing 
Municipal securities tender 

option bond trusts (T013s) 

Municipal investments 
Client intermediation 
Investment funds 

Other 
Total 

As ofDecemher 31 , 2016 

Maximum exposure to loss in significant u11consolidatcd VIEsc1
, 

1-'unded cxposurc:/ZJ Unfunded exposures 

Total 
involvement Consolidated Guarantees 

Debt Equity Funding and with SPE VIE/ SPE 
assets assets 

Signifiumt 
unconsolidated 

VIE assctsciJ investments investments commitments derivatives Total 

$ 50,171 $ 

214,458 
15,965 

19,693 

18,886 

53,168 

7,070 

17,679 

515 

2,788 

L429 
$ 401,822 $ 

50,171 $ 

1,092 

19,693 

733 

2,843 

14 
371 
767 

607 
76.291 $ 

214,458 
14,873 

18,886 

52,435 

4,227 

17,665 
144 

2,021 

822 

$ 

325,531 $ 

3,852 
312 

5,128 

16,553 

40 

2,441 
49 

32 

116 

$ 

28,523 $ 

35 

475 

3,578 

120 

11 

$ 

4-219 $ 

4,915 

2,842 

2,580 

27 

51! 

$ 

10,422 $ 

$ 

78 

62 

3,930 
348 

5,190 

21,943 

2,882 

8,599 
3 52 

3 182 

43 228 
190 $ 43,354 

'I) The definition of maxi in um exposure to loss is included in lhc lext thut follows this table. 
,2) Included on Citigroup's March 31, 2017 uml December 3 I, 2016 Consolid,tled Ralancc Sheet. 
(3) A significunt unconsolidated Vil-: is an entity where the Company has uny variable interest or continuing involvement considered to be signilicanl, regardless of 

the likelihood of loss. 
(4) Citigroup mortgage sccuritizations ulso indude agency and non-agency (privatc-lahcl) rc-sccuritization aclivilics. These Sl'I::s are not consolidated. Sec ''l{e­

securiti:Lations" below for further discussion. 
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(5) Sec Note 2 1o the Consolidated Financial Slc1h:me11ts for more information on the exit of Che U.S. mortgage servicing operations and sale of MSRs. 

The previous tables do not include: 

certain venture capital investments made by some of the 
Company's private equity subsidiaries, as the Company 
accounts for these investments in accordance with the 
Investment Company Audit Guide (codified in ASC 946); 
c~rtain investment funds for which the Company provides 
investment management services and personal estate 
trusts for which the Company provides administrative, 
trustee and/or investment management services; 
ce11ain VIEs structured by third parties where the 
Company holds securities in inventory, as these 
investments are made on arm's-length tenns; 
ce11ain positions in mo11gage-backcd and asset-backed 
securities held by the Company, which are classified as 
Tradini account assets or Investments, where the 
Company has no other involvement with the related 
securitization entity deemed to be significant (for more 
information on these positions, sec Notes 12 and 20 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements); 
certain representations and warranties exposures in legacy 
/CG-sponsored mo1tgage-backed and asset-backed 
securitizations, where the Company has no variable 
interest or continuing involvement as servicer. The 
outstanding balance of mortgage loans securitized during 
2005 to 2008 where the Company has no variable interest 
or continuing involvement as servicer was approximately 
$Io billion at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016; 
certain representations and warranties exposures in 
Citigroup residential mo11gage securitizations, where lhc 
original mortgage loan balances arc no longer 
outstanding; and 
VIEs such as trust preferred securities trusts used in 
connection with the Company's funding activities. The 
Company docs not have a variable interest in these trusts. 
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The asset balances for consolidated VJEs represent the 
carrying amounts of the assets consolidated by the Company. 
The carrying amount may represent the amortized cost or the 
current fair value of the assets depending on the legal form of 
the asset (e.g., loan or security) and the Company's standard 
accounting policies for the asset type and line of business. 

The asset balances for unconsolidated VIEs where the 
Company has significant involvement represent the most 
current information available to the Company. In most cases, 
the asset balances represent an amortized cost basis without 
regard to impairments, unless fair value information is readily 
available to the Company. 

The maximum funded exposure represents the balance 
sheet carrying amount of the Company's investment in the 
VIE. It reflects the initial amount of cash invested in the VIE 
adjusted for any accrued interest and cash prin~ipal payments 
received. The carrying amount may also be adjusted for 
increases or declines in fair value or any impairment in value 
recognized in earnings. The maximum exposure o~tmfunded 
positions represents the remaining undrawn committed 
amount, including liquidity and credit facilities provided by 
the Company, or the notional amount of a derivative . 
instrument considered to be a variable interest. In ce11am 
transactions, the Company has entered into derivative 
instruments or otl1er arrangements that are not considered 
variable interests in the VIE (e.g., interest rate swaps, cross­
currency swaps or whore the Company is the purchaser of 
credit protection under a credit default swap or total ret~rn 
swap where d1e Company pays the total return on ce11am 
asst:ts to the SPE). Receivables under such arrangements are 
not included in tl1e maximum exposure amounts. 



Funtling Commitments for Signijicant Unc()mwlidmed VIEs-liqui<lity Facilities mu/ Loan Commitments 
The following table presents the notional amount ofliquidity facilities and loan commitments that are classified as funding 
commitments in the VIE tables above: 

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
Liquidity Loan/equity Liquidity 

facilitie~ 
I .nan/equity 

commitments In millions ,if dollars facilities commitments 

Asset-hased financing $ $ 4,923 $ 5 $ 4,910 

Municipal securities tender option bond trusts (TOBs) 2,914 2,842 

Municipal investments 2,561 2,5&0 

Client Intermediation 208 

Investment funds 15 27 

Other 66 58 

Total funding commitments $ 2,914 $ 7,773 $ 2,847 $ 7,575 

Significant lntere.w; in Unconsoli,latetl VIEs-B,,t,111ce Sheet Cl"ssffication 
The following table presents the carrying amounts and classification of significant variable interests in unconsolidated VJEs: 

In billions qj"do/lars 

Cash 
Trading account assets 
Investments 
Total loans, net of allowance 
Other 
Total assets 

Credit Cllrd Securitizations 
Substantially all of the Company's credit card securitization 
ctivity is through two trusts-Citibank Credit Card Master 

Trust (Master Trust) and the Citibank Omni Master Trust 

In billions qj"do/lars 

Ownership inte1·ests in principal amount of tl'ust credit card receivables 
Sold to investors via trust-issued securities 
Rt:tained by Citigrm1p as trust-issued securities 
Retained by Citigroup via non-certificated interests 

Total 

The following table summarizes selected cash flow 
information related to Citigroup's credit card securitizations: 

In billions of dollal's 

Proceeds from new securitizations 
Pay down of maturing notes 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

$ 

2017 2016 
2.5 $ 

(2.0) (2.2) 

The weighted average maturity of the third-party term notes 
issued by the Master Trust was 2.5 years as of March 31, 2017 
and 2.6 years as of December 31, 2016. 
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March 31, 
2017 

$ 0.1 

8.1 
4.4 

18.3 
0.5 

$ 31.4 

December 31, 
2016 

$ 0.1 

$ 

8.0 
4.4 

18.8 
1.5 

32.8 

(Omni Trust), with the substantial majority through the Master 
Trust. These trusts are consolidated entities. 

The following table reflects amounts related to the 
Company's securitized credit card receivables: 

March 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

$ 

$ 

23.2 $ 
7.5 

16.2 
46.9 $ 

Muster Trust Liabilities (at Par Value) 

In billions of dollal'S 
March 31, 

2017 
Tenn notes issued to third parties $ 22.2 

Term notes retained by Citigroup 
S.6 affiliates 

Total Master Trust lillbilities $ 27.8 

$ 

$ 

22.7 
7.4 

20.6 
50.7 

Dec. 31, 
2016 

21.7 

5.5 

27.2 

The weighted average maturity ol'the third-party term 
notes issued by the Omni Trust was 1 .6 years as of March 31, 
2017 and 1.9 years as of Decembel' 31, 2016. 

Omni Trust Liabilities (at Par Value) 

In billions of dollars 
March 31, Dec. 31, 

2017 2016 
Term notes issued to third parties $ 1.0 $ 1.0 
Term notes retained by Citigroup 

affiliates 1.9 1.9 

Total Omni Trust liabilities $ 2.9 $ 2.9 



Murtg"ge Securitizmions 
The following table summarizes selected cash flow information related to Citigroup mortgage securitizations: 

2017 2016 

In billions ofdollars 

U.S. agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

Non-agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

U.S. agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

Non-agency- · 
sponsored 

mortgages<1> 

Proceeds from new securitizations 

Contractual servicing foes received 

$ 7.2 $ 

0.1 

1.4 $ 10.6 $ 

0.1 

(I) The proceeds from new securitizations in 2016 include $0.5 billion l'elated to personal loan securitizations. 

During the first quarter of 2017, gains recognized on the 
securilization of U.S. agency-sponsored mo1tgages and non­
agency sponsored mortgages were $29 million and $20 
million, respectively. 

Agency and non-agency securitization gains for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2016 were $25 million and $9 
million, respectively. 

Key assumptions used in measuring the fair value of retained interests at the date of sale or securitization of morrgagc receivables 
were as follows: 

March 31, 2017 

4.2 

Non-agency-sponsored mortgagesClJ 

Discount rate 

Weighted average discou11t rate 
Constant prepayment rate 

Weighted average constant prepayment rate 

Anticipated net credit lossesl2> 

Weighted average anticipated net credit losses 

Weighted avera_ge life 

Discount rate 

W~ightcd average discount rate 

Constant prepayment rate 

Weighted average constant prepayment rate 

Anticipated net credit losses<21 

Weighted average anticipated net credit losses 

Weighted average life 

U.S. agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

2.4% to 19.9% 

13.0% 

3.8%, to 10.5% 

(i.2% 

NM 

NM 
6.S to 12.2 years 

U.S. agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

2.1% to 11.5% 

8.4% 

9.J% to 23.3% 

11.8% 

NM 
NM 

3.5 to 17.5 years 

Senior 
intea·ests 

Man:h 31, 2016 

Subordinated 
interests 

Non-agency-sponsored mortgages11 J 

Senior 
interests 

Subordinated 
interests 

Note: Citi held no retained illlerests in non-agency-sponsored mortgages securitized during 1hc first <1uarlerof2017 and 2016. 
(I) Disclosure or non-agency-sponsored mortgages as senior and subordinated interests is indicative of the interests' position in the capilul structure of the 

securitization. 
(2) /\nticipaled net credit losses represent estimated loss severity associated with dcfaulled morlguge Joans underlying the mortgage securitizations disclosed above. 

Anticipated net credil losses, in this instance, do not represent total credit losses i11cum:d to datt:, nor do they rcrrescnt credit losses expected on retained interests 
in mortgage securitizations. 

NM Anticipated nd credit losses are not mcaningfol due to U.S. agency guarantees. 
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The interests retained by the Company range from highly 
rated and/or senior in the capital struclure to unrated and/or 
residual interests. 

The key assumptions used to value retained interests, and 
he sensitivity of the fair value to adverse changes of 10% and 

20% in each of the key assumptions, are scl forth in the tables 

Discount rate 

Weig~ted average dis<.:ou11t rate 

Constant prepayment rate 

Weighted average constant prepayment rate 
Anticipated net credit losses<2l 

Weighted average anticipated net credit losses 

Weighted average life 

Discount rate 
Weighted average discount rate 

Co11sta11t prepayment rate 

Weigh!ed average constant prepayment rate 
Anticipated net credit losses<2i 

Weighted average anticipated net credit losses 

Weighted average life 

below. The negative effect of each change is calculated 
independently, holding all other assumptions constant. 
Because the key assumptions may not be independent, the net 
c(foct of simultaneous adverse changes in the key assumptions 
may be less than the sum of the individual cf'lects shown 
below. 

March 31, 2017 

Non-agency-sponsored mortgagestll 

U.S. agency-
sponsored Senior Subordinated 
mortgages interes~ interests 

0.7% to 41.8% 0.0% to4.4% 6.2% to 23.8% 

9.5% 0.5% 11.8% 

6.2% to 20.7% 8.0% to 13.1% 0.5% to 23.6% 

9.8% 12.3% 9.0'Yo 

NM 0.5% to 53.0% 29.7°/., to 62.7% 

NM 8.7% 49.0% 

0.0 to 28.6 years 5.3 to 8.6 years 0.9 to 11.9 years 

December 31, 2016 

Non-agency-sponsored mortgage:P l 

U.S. agency-
sponsored Senior Subordinated 
mortgages interests interests 

0. 7% to 28.2% 0.0%to8.1% 5.1%to26.4% 

9.0% 2.1% 13.1% 

6.8% to 22.8% 4.2% to 14.7% 0.5% to 37.5% 

10.2% 11.0% 10.8% 

NM 0.5% to 85.6% 8.0% to 63.7% 

NM 31.4% 48.3% 

0.2 to 28.8 years 5.0 to 8.5 years 1.2 to 12.1 years 

(I) Disclosure ofnon-ageney-sponsorcd mortgages as senior und subordinated intcl'csts is indicative of the interests' position in the capital structure oflhe 
securiti,rntion. 

(2) /\nticipaled nel credit losses represent estimated loss severily associated with defaulted mortgage loans underlying the mortgage seeuriti1.ations disclosed above. 
Anticipated nel credit losses, in this instance, do not represent tolal credit losses incurred to date, nor do they represent credit losses expected on retitined interests 
in mortgage securitiiations. 

NM Anticipated net credit losses arc not meaningful due to U.S. agency guarantees. 
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In millions of dollars 

Carrying value of retained interests 

Discount rates 
Adverse change of 10% 

Adverse change of 20% 

Constant prepayment rate 
t\dversc change of 10% 

Adverse change of20% 

Anticipated net credit losses 

Adverse change of I 0% 

Adverse change of20% 

In millions of dollars 

Carrying value of retained interests 

Discount rates 
Adverse change of IO% 

Adverse change of20% 

Constant prepayment rate 

Adverse d1angc of I 0% 

Adverse d1angc of20% 

t\nti<.:i pated net credit losses 
Adverse change of I 0% 

Adverse change of 20% 

U.S. agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

$ 1,211 $ 

$ (42) $ 

(80) 

(33) 
(69) 

NM 

NM 

Mal'ch 31, 2017 

Non-agency-sponsored mortgagesl1> 

Senior Suoordinated 
interests interests 

30 $ 168 

(8) $ (8) 

(16) (15) 

(2) (3) 

(3) (7) 

(7) (1) 

(14) (2) 

December 31, 2016 

lJ.S. agency­
sponsored 
mortgages 

$ 2,258 $ 

$ (71) $ 

(138) 

(80) 

(160) 

NM 

NM 

Non-agency-sponsored mortgages'') 

Senior Subordinated 
interests interests 

26 $ 161 

(7) $ (8) 
()4) (16) 

(2) (4) 

(3) (8) 

(7) (l) 

(14) (2) 

(I) Disdosun: ofnon-agency-sronsorcd mortg.ig~s as senior and suhordinatcd interesls is indicative of the interests' position in the c.ipital strncture of the 
s~curi1iz11tion. 

NM Anticipated net c1edit losses arc not meaningful due to U.S. agency guarantees. 

Mortgage Servicing Rights (MSRs) 
The fair value ofCiti's capitali7:ed MSRs was $567 million 
and $1.6 billion at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
respectively. The MSRs correspond to principal loan halances 
of $71 bill ion and $168 billion as of March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, respectively. The following table 
summarizes the changes in capitalized MSRs: 

In miflions ofdof/ars 2017 2016 
Balance, beginning ofye.ir $ 1,564 $ 1,781 
Originations 35 33 
Changes in fair value ofMSRs due to 

changes in inputs and assumptions 67 (225) 

Other changes<1l (53) (79) 
Sale Qf MSRl21 (1,046) 14 
Balance, as of Mllrch 31 $ 567 $ 1.524 

(I) Represents changes due to customer payments and passage of time. 
(2) Sec Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements /or more 

information on the exit ol"the U.S. mortgage servicing operations and 
sale of MSRs. 2016 amount includes sales or credit drnllenged MSRs 
for whicl1 Citi paid th~ m:w servicer. 
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The Company receives fees during the course or servicing 
previously sccuritized mo11gages. The amounts of these fees 
were as follows: 

In millions ofdol/ars 2017 2016 
Servicing fees $ 106 $ 128 
Late fees 3 4 
Ancillary fees 4 5 
Total MSR fees $ 113 $ 137 

In the Consolidated Statement of Income these fees are 
primarily classified as Commissions and.fees, and changes in 
MSR fair values are classified as Other revenue. 



Re-securitizations 
The Company engages in re-securilization transactions in 
which debt securities are transferred Lo a VIE in exchange for 
new beneficial interests. Citi did not transfer non-agency 
'.private-label) securities to re-securilization cnLities during the 
quarters ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. These securities are 
backed by either residential or commercial morLgagcs and are 
often structured on behalf of clients. 

As of March 31, 2017, the fair value ofCiti-retaincd 
interests in private-label re-securitization transactions 
structured by Cili totaled approximately $126 million (all 
related to re-securitization transactions executed prior to 
2017), which has been recorded in Trading account assets. Of 
this amount, substantially all was related to subordinated 
beneficial interests. As of December 31, 2016, the fair value of 
Citi-retained interests in private-label rc-sccuritization 
transactions structured by Citi totaled approx imatcly $126 
million (all related to re-securitization transactions executed 
prior to 2016). Of this amount, substantially all was related to 
subordinated beneficial interests. The original par value or 
private-label ro-securitizatior transactions in which Citi holds 
a retained interest as or March 31, 2017 and December 31, 
2016 was approximately $1.0 billion and $1.3 billion, 
respectively. 

The Company also re-securitizcs U.S. government-agency 
guaranteed mortgage-backed (agency) securities. During the 
quarters ended March 3 l, 2017 and 2016, C iti transferred 
agency securities with a fair value or approximately $4.5 
billion and $7.3 billion, respectively, to rc-sccuritization 
~ntities. 

As of March 31, 2017, the fair value ol"Citi-rctained 
interests in agency re-securitization transactions sLructured by 
Citi totaled approximately $2.3 billion (induding $599 million 
related to re-securitization transactions executed in 2017) 
compared to $2.3 billion as of December 31, 2016 (including 
$741 million related to re-securitization transactions executed 
in 2016), which is recorded in Trading account assets. The 
original fair value of agency re-securitization transactions in 
which Citi holds a retained interest as of March 3l,2017 and 
December 31, 2016 was approximately $68.6 billion and 
$71.8 billion, respectively. 

As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the 
Company <lid not consolidate any private-label or agency re­
securitization entities. 
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Citi-Atlministerell Asset-/Jacked Commel'ci(I/ Paper Conduits 
At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the commercial 
paper conduits administered by Citi had approximately $19.1 
billion and $19. 7 billion of purchased assets outstanding, 
respectively, and had incremenLal funding commitments with 
clients of approximately $14.2 billion and $12.8 billion, 
respectively. 

Substantially all of the funding of the conduits is in the 
form of short-term commercial paper. At March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, the weighted average remaining lives of 
the commercial paper issued by the conduits were 
approximately 52 and 55 days, respectively. 

The primary credit enhancement provided to the conduit 
investors is in the form or transaction-specific credit 
enhancements described above. In addition to the transaction­
specific credit enhancements, the conduits, other than the 
government guaranteed loan conduit, have obtained a letter of 
credit from the Company, which is equal to al least 8% to 10% 
ol"thc conduit's assets with a minimum of$200 million. The 
letters of credit provided by the Company to the conduits total 
approximaLcly $ 1.7 billion and $1.8 billion as of March 31, 
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The net result 
across multi-seller conduits administered by the Company is 
that, in the event defaulted assets exceed the transaction­
specific credit enhancemcnLs described above, any losses in 
each conduit are allocated firsL to the Company and then the 
commercial paper investors. 

At March 3l,2017 and December 31, 2016, the 
Company owned $9.3 billion and $9.7 billion, respectively, of 
the commercial paper issued by its administered conduits. The 
Company's investments were not driven by market illiquidity 
and the Company is not obligated under any agreement to 
purchase the commercial paper issued by the conduits. 

Collatemlizet/ Lo"u Ob/ig(lfions 
The following table summarizes selected cash How 
information related to Citigroup CLOs: 

Mar.31, Mar.31, 
In billions rif dollars 2017 2016 

Proceeds from new securitizations $ 0.3 $ 

The key assumptions used to value retained intcrcsLs in CLOs, 
and the sensitivity of the fair value to adverse changes of 10% 
and 20% arc set forth in the tables below: 

Discount rate 

In millions of dollars 

Mar. 31, 20)7 Dec. 3 I , 2016 

1.1% to 1.7% 

Mar. 31, 
2017 

1.3% to l.7% 

Dec. 3 L 
2016. 

Currying value of retained interests $ 4,259 $ 4,261 

Discount rates 
Adverse change of I 0% 
Adverse change of20% 

$ (28) $ 

(55) 

(30) 
(62) 



As.w~t-Rase,I Financing 
The primary types of Citi 's asset-based financings, total assets 
oflhc unconsolidated VJEs with significant involvement, and 
Cit i's maximum exposure to loss are shown below. For Citi to 
realize the maximum loss, the VIE (borrower) would have to 
default with no recovery from the assets held by the VIE. 

March 31, 2017 

Maximum 
Total exposure to 

unconsolidated unconsolidated 
In millions qf dollars VIE assets V(Es 
Type 

Commercial and other real estate $ 

Corporate loans 
Hedge funds and equities 
Airplanes, ships and other assets 

Total $ 

8,194 

3,376 

417 

38,210 

50,197 

$ 2,164 

2,183 

57 

16,809 

$ 21,213 

December 31, 2016 

In millions of dollar., 

Total 
unconsolidated 

VIE iissets 
Type 

Commercial and other real estate $ 

Corporate loans 

Hedge funds an<l equities 

Airplanes, ships and other assets 

Total $ 

ll,784 

4,051 

:no 
39,230 

52,435 

Maximum 
exposure to 

unconsolidated 
VIEs 

$ 2,368 

2,684 

54 
16,837 

$ 21,943 
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Municipal Securities Tellder Option Rom/ (TOB) Trusts 
At March 31, 2017 and December 3 J, 2016, approximately 
$81 million and $82 million, respectively, of the municipal 
bonds owned by non-customer TOB trusts were subject to a 
credit guarantee provided by the Company. 

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, liquidity 
agreements provided wid1 respecl lo customer TOB trusts 
to!aled $2.9 billion, of which $2.1 billion were offset by 
reimbursement agreements. For the remaining exposure 
related to TOB transactions, where !he Residual owned by the 
customer was at least 25% of the bond value at the inception 
of the transaction, no reimbursement agreement was executed. 

The Company also provides other liquidity agreements or 
letters of credit to customer-sponsored municipal investment 
funds, which are not variable interest entities, and 
municipality-related issuers that totaled $7.4 billion as of 
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. These liquidity 
agreements and letters of credit are offset by reimbursement 
agreements with various term-out provisions. 

Client Intermediation 
The proceeds from new securitizations related to the 
Company's client intermediation transactions for the qua11crs 
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled approximately $0.5 
billion and $0.6 billion, respectively. 



19. DERIVATIVES ACTIVITIES 

In the ordinary course of business, Citigroup enters into 
various types of derivative transactions. For additional 
;nformation regarding Citi's use of and accounting for 
Jerivatives, see Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Citi's 20l6Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

information pertaining to Citigroup's derivative activities, 
based on notional amounts is presented in the table below. 
Derivative notional amounts are reference amounts from 
which colltractual payments are derived and do not represent a 
complete and accurate measure of Cit i's exposure to derivative 
transactions. Rather, Citi's derivative exposure arises 
primarily from market fluctuations (i.e., market risk), 
counterpa1ty failure (i.e., credit risk) and/or periods of high 
volatility or financial stress (i.e., liquidity risk), as well as any 
market valuation adjustments that may be required on the 
transactions. Moreover, notional amounts do not reflect the 
netting of offsetting trades. For example, ir Citi enters into a 
receive-fixed interest rate swap with $100 million notional, 
and offsets this risk with an identical but opposite pay-fixed 
position with a different counterparty, $200 million in 
derivative notionals is reported, although these offsetting 
positions may result in de minimis overall market risk. 
Aggregate derivative notional amounts can fluctuate from 
period to period in the normal course of business based on 
Citi's market share, levels or client activity and other factors. 
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Derivative Notionals 

In millions ofdollars 

Int,west rate contrncts 

Swaps 

Futures and forwards 

Written options 

Purchased ortions 

Total interest rate contract notionals 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Swaps 

Futures, forwards and spot 

Written options 

Purchased options 

Total foreign exchange contract notionals 

Equity contrncts 

Swaps 

Futures and forwards 

Written OJltions 

Purchased options 

Total equity contract notionals 

Commodity and othe1· contracts 

Swaps 

Futures and forwards 

Written optio11s 

Purchased options 

Total commodity and other contn1ct notionnls 

Cl'edit derivativcs<4> 

Protection sold 

Protection purchased 

Total credit derivatives 

l'ot:ll derivative notiouals 

Hedging instruments under 
ASC 815<1l<2> 

March 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

$ 198,753 $ 151,331 

97 97 

- -
- -

$ 198,850 $ 151,428 

$ 36,928 $ 19,042 

38,220 56,964 

1,172 -

2,596 -
$ 78,916 $ 76,006 

$ - $ -
- -
- -
- -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -
155 182 

. - -
- -

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 155 $ 182 $ 

$ - $ - $ 

- -

$ - $ - $ 

$ 277,921 $ 227,616 $ 

Other derivative instruments 

Trading derivatives Management hedges<3> 

March 31, December 31, March 31, December 3 I , 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

20,669,239 $ 19,145,250 $ 29,447 $ 47,324 

8,341,434 6,864,276 10,143 30,834 

3,645,213 2,921,070 3,288 4,759 

3,501,503 2,768,528 3,900 7,320 

36,157,389 $ 31,699,124 $ 46,778 $ 90,237 

6,548,915 $ 5,492,145 $ 21,420 $ 22,676 

4,175,350 3,251,132 2,333 3,419 

1,299,018 1,194,325 - -
1,308,291 1,215,961 - -

13,331,574 $ I l, I 53,563 $ 23,753 $ 26,095 

204,137 $ 192,366 $ - $ -
42,926 :n,s:;1 - -

372,759 304,579 - -
350,655 266,070 - -
970,477 $ 800,572 $ - $ -

67,942 $ 70,774 $ - $ -
151,844 142,530 - -
74,668 74,627 - -
70,529 69,629 - -

364,983 $ 357,560 $ - $ -
876,791 $ 859,420 $ - $ -
895,380 883,003 17,226 19,470 

1,772,171 $ 1,742,423 $ 17,226 $ 19,470 

52,596,594 $ 45,753,242 $ 87,757 $ 135,802 

(I) The notion«1l 11mounts presented in this table do not include hedge accounting relationships un<ler /\SC RI 5 where Citigroup is hedging the foreign currency risk or 
a net invest1m:nt in a foreign operation by issuing a foreign-currcncy-dcno111inated debt instrument. The notional amount or such debt was .'61,X 15 million and 
$1,825 million ut March 31, 2017 and nccember 31, 2016, respectively. 

(2) Derivatives in hedge accounting relationships accounted for under ASC 815 arc recorded in either Other a.vsets/Other liabilities or J"rading account assets/Trading 
account liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

(3) Management hedges represent dcriv.itive instruments used to mitigate cenain economic risks, hut fm which hedge accounting is not applied. These derivatives ,art: 
recorded in either Other usse1s/01her /iabilil.ies or 1"rading account asse/s/Trading account liabilities on the Consolidated Ualance Sheet. 

(4) Credit derivative.~ arc arrangements desigm:d to ullow one party (protection buyer) to trnnsfer the credit risk of a "reference asset" to another party (protection 
seller). These arrangements allow u protection seller to assume the credit risk associated with the reference asset without directly purchasing that asset. The 
Company enters into credit deriv.itive positions for purposes such as risk management, yield enhancement, reduction of credit concentrations and diversification 
of overall risk. 
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The following tables present the gross and net fair values 
of the Company's derivative transactions and the related 
offsetting amounts as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 
2016. Gross positive fair values are offset against gross 
)egative fair values by counterparty pursuant to enforceable 
master netting agreements. Under ASC 815- 10-45, payables 
and receivables in respect of cash collateral received from or 
paid to a given countcrparty pursuant to a credit support annex 
are included in the offsetting amount if a legal opinion 
supporting the enforceability of netting and collateral rights 
has been obtained. GAAP does not permit similar offsetting 
for security collateral. 

ln addition, the table for March 31, 2017 reflects a rule 
change adopted by a clearing organization that became 
effective January 3, 2017. Under this rule change, variation 
margin exchanged on certain interest rate and credit derivative 
contracts is legally characterized and accounted for as 
settlement of the related derivative fair value, and not as 
collateral (whereby the counterparties would record a related 
collateral payable or receivable). As a result, the table for 
March 31, 20 l 7 reflects a reduction in approximately $20 
billion of gross derivative assets and gross derivative liabilities 
due to the accounting treatment of variation margin payments 
as settlement for derivatives with this clearing organization 
that are subject to the rule change. There is no change to the 
consolidated balance sheet repmting for the affected items. 

The tables also present amounts that are nol permitted to 
be offset, such as security collateral or cash collateral posted at 
third-party custodians, but which would be eligible for 
offsetting to the extent an event of default occurred and a legal 
jpinion supporting enforceability of the netting and collateral 
rights has been obtained. 
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Derivative Mark-to-Market (MTM) Receivables/Payables 

In millions of dollars a/ March 31. 2017 

Derivatives instruments designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Interest rate contrnets 

Ove,·-the-counter 

Fo .. eign exchange contracts 

Total derivatives insfruments designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Derivatives instruments not designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

h,change traded 

Interest rate contracts 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Exchange traded 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Exchange traded 

Equity contracts 

Over-the-ct>unler 

Exchange;,: traded 

Commodity and ofhe1· contrncts 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 
Credit deriv:itives<~) 

Total derivatives instruments not designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Total derivatives 

Cash collateral paid/reccivcd<sl(6l 

Less: Ncning agreements<11 

Less: Netting cash collalt:ral reccived/paid1~l 

Net receivables/payables included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet<9l 

Additional amounts subject to an enforceable master netting agreement, but not 
offset on the Consolidated B:ilance Sheet 

Les.~: Cash collateral rcccived/1.aid 

Less: Non-cash collaternl received/paid 

Total net receivahles/payables19l 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Derivatives classified 
in Trading nccount 

assets/ liabilitics(1><2><3J 

Assets 

645 $ 

3,925 

4,570 $ 

1,315 $ 

1,315 $ 

5,885 $ 

222,212 $ 

86,795 

150 

309,157 $ 

122,726 $ 

1,170 

25 

123,921 $ 

16,494 $ 

19 

8,123 

24,636 $ 

10,807 $ 

642 

I l,449 $ 

16,987 $ 

6,335 

23,322 $ 

492,485 $ 

498,370 $ 

10,436 $ 

(416,229) 

(36,198) 

56,379 $ 

((i53) $ 

(I0,239) 

45,487 $ 

Liabilities 

143 $ 

2,175 

2,318 $ 

923 $ 

923 $ 

3,241 $ 

203,860 $ 

94,086 

85 

298,031 $ 

126,685 $ 

1,042 

17 

127,744 $ 

20,844 $ 

27 

7,819 

28,690 $ 

12,647 $ 

665 

13,312 $ 

17,770 $ 

6,916 

24,686 $ 

492,463 $ 

495,704 $ 

13,961 $ 

(4 16,229) 

(40,577) 

52,859 $ 

( 13) $ 

(8,635) 

44,211 $ 

(J) The tl'ading derivatives fair values are presented in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Derivatives classified 
in Other 

assets/ liahilities12><3> 

Assets 

1,308 $ 

53 

1,36 1 $ 

232 $ 

232 $ 

l,593 $ 

64 $ 

119 

-
183 $ 

- $ 

-
-
- $ 

- $ 

-
-
- $ 

- $ 

-

- $ 

46 $ 

26 

72 $ 

255 $ 

1,848 $ 

5 $ 

-
(940) 

913 $ 

-$ 

(506) 

407 $ 

Liabilities 

34 

62 

96 
236 

236 

332 

-
164 

-
164 

59 

-
-
59 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
87 

325 

412 

635 

967 

15 

-

(SJ) 

931 

931 

(2) Oerivative mark-to-market receivubles/payahlcs related to management hedges arc recorded in either 01her assets/Other liabilities or Trading account assets/ 
·trading ac,·ou11t /iabilities. 

(3) Ovcr-thc-co11ntcr (OTC) derivatives al'c derivatives executed and settled hilatc..ally with counterpmties without the use of an organi:i:ed exchm1ge or cent..al 
clearing hot1sc. Cleared derivutives include derivatives executed bilaternlly with a countcrparty in the OTC market, hut then novated to a centrnl cleariug house, 
whereby the cc11(ral clearing house becomes the cou11terpmty to both of the original com1(erpmties. Exchange traded derivatives include derivatives executed 
directly 011 an organi;:ed exchange that provides pre-trade price transparency. 

(4) The credit derivatives trading assets com1>risc $6,312 million related to protection purchased and $17,010 million related to protection sold as of March 31, 2017. 
The credit derivatives trading liabilities comprise $18,467 million !'elated to protection purchased imd $6,219 million related to protection sold as of March 31, 
2017. 

(5) ror the trading account assets/liabilities, rcllccts the l\tl amount of the $51,013 million a11d $50,159 million of gross cash cotlakrnl paid and received, 
respectively. Of the gross cush collateral paid, $40,577 million was used to offact trading derivative liabilities and, of the gross cash collaternl received, $36,198 
million was used to ollset trading derivative assets. 
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(6) !'or cash collateral paid with respect to non-trnding derivative assets, reflects the net amount ol'$56 millio11 of gross cash collaternl paid, ol'which $51 million is 
nelled against non-trading derivative positions within Other liuhilities. ror cash collateral received with respect to non-trading derivative liahilitics, reflects the net 
amount of$955 million ofgro~s cash collateral received, of which $940 million is netted against OTC non-trading derivative positions within Other assets. 

(7) Represe11ts the netting of derivative receivable <1nd payable bala11ccs with the same counterparty under enforceable netting agreements. Approximately $31 S 
billion, $93 billion and $1\ billion of the netting ugains( trading account a~set/liability balances is attributable to each of the OTC, cleared and cxchange-trndetl 
derivatives, respectively. 

,8) Represents the nc1ti11g of cash collaternl paid imd rt:ceived by countcrpa1ty under enforceable credil s11pport agreements. Substantially all cash collateral received 
and paid is netted against OTC derivative assets and liabilities, respectively. 

(9) The net receivables/payables include approximately $7 billion or derivative asset and $11 billion or derivative liability foir values not subject to c11forccahle 
master netting agreements, respectively. 

In mi/lio11s of dollars ul /Jece111ber 3/, 2016 

Derivatives instruments designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Interest rate contracts 

Over-the-counter 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Total derivatives instruments designated :\s ASC 815 hedges 

Derivatives instruments not designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Exchange traded 

Interest rnte confr.acts 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Exchange traded 

Fo1·eign exchange contracts 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Exchange traded 

Equity contracts 

Over-the-counter 

Exchange traded 

Commodity and other contrncts 

Over-the-counter 

Cleared 

Credit derivatives'4l 

Total derivatives instruments not designated as ASC 815 hedges 

Total derivatives 

Cash collateral paid/rcccivcd<~l(Gl 

Less: Netting agreementsl7l 

Less: Netting cash collateral receivcd/paid1Kl 

Net reccivablcs/pay11bles included on the Consolidated Balance Sheetl9l 
.. 

Add1t1on:1I amounts subject to 1m enforceable master ncttmg agreement, 
but not offset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Less: Cash collateral received/paid 

Less: Non-cash collateral received/paid 

Total net receivablcs/payables<9> 

Derivatives classified in Trading 
account assets/ lia bilities<11l2l!3l 

Derivatives classified in 
Other assets/ lillbilities121<

31 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Assets 

716 $ 

3,530 

4,246 $ 

2,494 $ 

2,494 $ 

6,740 $ 

244,072 $ 

120,920 

87 

365,079 $ 

182,659 $ 

482 

27 

183,168 $ 

15,625 $ 

I 

8,484 

24,110 $ 

13,046 $ 

719 

13,765 $ 

19,033 $ 

5,582 

24,615 $ 

610,737 $ 

617,477 $ 

11,188 $ 

(519,000) 

(45,912) 

63,753 $ 

(819) $ 

(11,767) 

51,167 $ 

Liabilities 

171 $ 

2,154 

2,325 $ 

393 $ 

393 $ 

2,718 $ 

221,534 $ 

130,855 

47 

352,436 $ 

186,867 .'I, 

470 

31 

187,368 $ 

19,119 $ 

21 

7,376 

26,516 $ 

14,234 $ 

798 

15,032 $ 

19,563 $ 

5,874 

25,437 $ 

606,789 $ 

609,507 $ 

15,731 $ 

(5 19,000) 

(49,811 ) 

56,427 $ 

( 19) $ 

(5,883) 

50,525 $ 

Assets Liabilities 

1,927 $ 

47 

1,974 $ 

747 $ 

747 $ 

2,721 $ 

225 $ 

240 

-
465 $ 

- $ 

-
-
- $ 

- $ 

-
-

- $ 

- $ 

-
- $ 

159 $ 

47 

206 $ 

671 $ 

3,392 $ 

8 $ 

-
(1,345) 

2,055 $ 

-$ 

(530) 

1,525 $ 

22 

82 
!04 

645 

645 

749 

5 

349 

-

354 

60 

-
-

60 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
78 

310 

388 

802 

1,551 

I 

-
(53) 

1,499 

1,499 

· 1) Tlic trading derivatives fair values are presented i11 Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(2) Derivative mark-to-market receivabh:s/payablcs related to management he<lges arc recorded in either 01her assets!Oiher liabilities or Trading account assets! 

Tmding uccounl liabilities. 
(3) Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives are derivatives executed and settled bilaterally with countcrparties without the use oran organi7.cd exchange or centllll 

clearing house. Cleared derivatives i11cludc derivatives executed bilaterally with a eountcrparty in the OTC mmket, bul !hen novatcd to a central clearing house, 

150 



whereby the central clearing house becomes the counterpmty to both of the original counterparties. Exchange traded deriv,llives include derivatives executed 
directly on an organized exchange that provides pre-trmlt: price transparency. 

(4) The credit derivatives trading assets comprise $!!,871 million related to protection p\lrch,m:d and $l 5,744 million rcla!cd to protection sold as of December 31, 
2016. The credit derivatives trading liabilities comprise $16,722 million related to prolcction purchased and $8,715 million rchlled to protection sold as or 
December 31, 2016. 

(5) l'or the trading account asscts/lillbilities, reflects the net amount of the $60,999 million a11d $61,643 million of gross cash eollaternl paid and received, 
respectively. Of the gross cash collaternl paid, $49,811 million was used to offset trading derivative liabilities and, of the gross cash collateral received, $45,912 
million was used to offset trading derivative assets. 

(6) For casl1 collateral paid with respect to non-trading derivative 11ssets, reflects the net amount of$61 million of gross cash collateral paid, of which $53 million is 
netted against non-trading derivative positions within Other liabilities. For cash collateral received with respect to non-trading derivative liabilities, reflects the net 
.imount of $1,346 million of gross cash collateral received, of which $1,345 million is ncl!ed againsl OTC non-trading derivative positions within Other assets. 

(7) Represents the nel!ing or derivative receivable and payable balances with the same counlerpllrty under euforccahlc netting agreements. /\pproximaccly $383 
billion, $12R billion and $8 billion of the netting against trading account asset/liahility balances is attributable to each ol"lhe OTC, cleared and exchange-traded 
derivatives, respectively. 

(8) Represents the netting of cash collateral paid and received by counterparty under cnlorct:able credit support agrec111en1s. Substantially all cash collateral received 
and paid is netted against OTC derivative assets and liabilities, respectively. 

(9) The net rcccivablcs/payabh:s include approximately $7 billion of derivative asset a11d $9 billion of derivative liability lair values not subject to enforceable 1m1ster 
netting agreements, respectively. 

For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the 
amounts recognized in Principal transactions in the 
Consolidated Statement ofincomc related to derivatives not 
designated in a qualifying hedging relationship, as well as the 
underlying non-derivative instruments, are presented in Nole 6 
to tJ1e Consolidated Financial Statements. Citigroup presents 
this disclosure by business classification, showing derivative 
gains and losses related to its trading activities together wilh 
gains and losses related to non-derivative instruments within 
the same trading po1tfolios, as this represents the way these 
po1tfolios are risk managed. 

The amounts recognized in Other revenue in the 
Consolidated Statement ofrncomc related to derivatives not 
designated in a qualifying hedging relationship are shown 
below. The table below does not include any offsetting gains/ 
losses on the economically hedged items to the extent such 
amounts are also recorded in Other revenue. 

In millions of dollars 

Interest rate contracts 

Foreign t:xchangc 

Credit tkrivativcs 

Total Citigroup 

Gains (losses) included in 
OIiier revenue 

Three months ended Marci, 31, 

2017 2016 

$ (45) $ 15 

3 4 

(263) (213) 

$ (305) $ (194) 
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The following table summarizes the gains (losses) on the Company's fair value hedges: 

In millions of dollars 

Gain (loss) Oil the derivatives in designated and qualifying fair value hedges 

Interest rate contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Commodity contracts 

Total gain (loss) on the derivatives in designated and qualifying fair value hedges 

Gain (loss) on the hedged item in designated and qualifying fair value hedges 

Interest rate hedges 

Foreigt, exchange hedges 

Commodity hedges 

Total gain (loss) on the hedged item in designated and qualifying fair value hedges 

Hedge ineffectiveness 1·ccognized in earnings on designated and qualifying fair value hedges 

Interest rate hedges 

Foreign exchange hedges 

Total hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings on designated and qualifying fair value hedges 

Net gain (loss) excluded from assessment of the effectiveness of fair vnlue hedges 

Interest rate contracts 

Foreign exchange contral:ls(2l 

Commodity hedgcsm 

Total net gain (loss) excluded from assessment of the effectiveness of foir value hedges 

Gains (losses) on foir value hedgeslll 

Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

$ (305) $ 2,115 

(82) (1,361) 

2 349 

$ (385) $ 1,103 

$ 296 $ (2,090) 

196 1,307 

(1) (344) 

$ 491 $ (I, 127) 

$ (10) $ 27 

62 (75) 

$ 52 $ (48) 

$ 1 $ (2) 

52 21 

l 5 

$ 54 $ 24 

(I) Amounts arc included in Other revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Income. The accrued interest income on fair value hedges is recorded in Net interest 
revenue and is excluded from this table. 

2) Amounts relate to the premium associated with forward contracts (differential between spot and contractual forward rntes). These amounts are excluded from the 
assessment of hedge effectivem:ss and are reflected directly in earnings. 
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Cash Flow Hedges 
The amount of hedge ineffectiveness on the cash flow hedges 
recognized in earnings for the three months ended March 31, 
20 I7, and 2016 is not significant. The pretax change in AOCl 
from cash tlow hedges is presented below: 

In millions ofdoflars 

Effective 110,·tion of cash flow hedges included in AOCI 

Interest rate contracts 

1-'oreign exchange contracts 

Total effective portion of cash flow hedges included in AOCI 

Effective portion of cash flow hedges reclassified from AOCI to earnings 

Interest rate contra<.:ts 
Foreign exchange contracts 

Total etlective portion of cash flow hedges reclassified from AOCI to earnings<•> 

(I) Included primarily in Other revenue and Net interest revenue on the Consolidated Income Statement. 

For cash flow hedges, the changes in the fair value of the 
hedging derivative remain in AOC( on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet and will be included in the earnings of future 
periods to offset the variability or the hedged cash tlows when 
such cash flows affect earnings. The net gain (loss) associated 
with cash flow hedges expected to he reclassified from AOCI 
within 12 months of March 31, 2017 is approximately $(217) 
million. The maximum length of time over which forecasted 
cash flows are hedged is IO years. 

The after-tax impact of cash llow hedges on AOCI is 
shown in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Net Investment Hedges 
The pretax gain (loss) recorded in the Foreign currency 
translation adjustment account within AOCJ, related to the 
etlective po11ion of the net investment hedges, is $(1,716) 
million and $(1,374) million for the three months ended 
March 31, 20 l 7 and 20 J 6, respectively. 
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Three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

$ 41 $ 415 

24 
$ 41 $ 439 

$ 44 $ (16) 

(3) (26) 

$ 41 $ (42) 



Credit Derivatives 
The following tables summarize the key characteristics of Citi's credit derivatives pottfolio by counterpa,ty and derivative form: 

Fair values Notionals 

Protection 
In millions ofdol/ars at March 31, 2017 Receivab1c< 11 Payahle111 purchased 

By industl'y/cou nterparty 

Banks $ 10,428 $ 9,483 $ 383,466 $ 

Broker-dealers 3,297 3,587 107,767 

Non-financial 80 187 3,164 

Insurance and other financial 
institutions 9,589 11,841 418,209 

Total by industry/counte,·party $ 23,394 $ 25,098 $ 912,606 $ 

By instrument 

Credit default swaps and options $ 23,145 $ 23,096 $ 889,829 $ 

Total return swaps and other 249 2,002 22,777 

Total by instrument $ 23,394 $ 25,098 $ 912,606 $ 

By rating 

Investment grade $ 9,951 $ 10,142 $ 691,002 $ 

Non-investment grade 13,443 14,956 221,604 

Total by rating $ 23,394 $ 25,098 $ 912,606 $ 

By maturity 

Within I year $ 3,008 $ 4,108 $ 304,227 $ 

from I to 5 years 16,894 17,187 532,809 

Afler 5 years 3,492 3,803 75,570 

Total by m ntur it.y $ 23,394 $ 25,098 $ 912,606 $ 

'I) The fair value amount l'eceivahle is composed or $6,384 million undel' protection purchased and $17,0I O million umler protection sold. 
,2) The fair value amount payable is composed of$18,879 million under prntection purchased and $6,219 million under protection sold. 

Fair values Notionals 

Protection 
In millions qf'dollars al Dec·ember 3/, 2016 Receivable''' Payahle1z) purchased 

By industl'y/countei·party 

Banks $ 11,895 $ 10,930 $ 407,992 $ 

Broker-dealers 3,536 3,952 115,013 

Non-financial 82 99 4,014 

Insurance and other financial 
institutions 9,308 10,844 375,454 

Total by industry/countcr1rnrty $ 24,821 $ 25,825 $ 902,473 $ 

By instrument 

Credit default swaps and option~ $ 24,502 $ 24,631 $ 8!!3,719 $ 

Total return swaps and other 319 1,194 18,754 

Total by instrument $ 24,821 $ 25,825 $ 902,473 $ 

By rating 

r nvestmcnt grade $ 9,605 $ 9,995 $ 675,138 $ 

Non-investment grade 15,216 15,830 227,335 

Total by rating $ 24,821 $ 25,825 $ 902,473 $ 

By maturity 

Within 1 year $ 4,113 $ 4,841 $ 293,059 $ 

From I to 5 years 17,735 17,986 551,155 

,\.fter 5 years 2,973 2,998 58,259 

Total by maturity $ 24,821 $ 25,825 $ 902,473 $ 
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P1·otcction 
sold 

393,864 

116,589 

1,430 

364,908 

876,791 

868,748 

8,043 

876,791 

669,241 

207,5~0 

876,791 

296,731 

511,054 

69,006 

876,791 

Protection 
sold 

414,720 

119,810 

2,061 

322,829 

859,420 

852,900 

6,520 

859,420 

64!!,247 

211,173 

859,420 

2X7,262 

523,371 

48,787 

859,420 



(I) The fair value amount receivable is composed of$9,077 million under pro!cction purchused and $15,744 million under prolectio11 sold. 
(2) The fair value amount payuble is composed 01'$17,110 million u11de1 protection purchased and $8,715 million under prolcc;tion sold. 

Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Features in Derivatives 
Certain derivative instruments contain provisions that require 
the Company to either post additional collateral or 
immediately settle any outstanding liability balances upon the 
occurrence or a specified event related to the credit risk of the 
Company. These events, which are delined by the existing 
derivative contracts, are primarily downgrades in the credit 
ratings or the Company and its affiliates. Th.e fair value 
(excluding CVA) of all derivative instruments with credit-risk­
related contingent features that were in a net liability position 
at both March 31, 2017 and December 3 l, 2016 was $29 
billion and $26 billion, respectively. The Company posted $26 
billion and $26 billion as collateral for this exposure in the 
normal course of business as or March. 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, respectively. 

A downgrade could trigger additional collateral or cash 
settlement requirements for lhc Company and certain 
afliliates. In the event that Citigroup and Citibank were 
downgraded a single notch by all three major rating agencies 
as of March 31, 2017, the Company could be required to post 
an additional $1.1 billion as either collateral or settlement of 
the derivative transactions. Additionally, the Company could 
be required to segregate with third-party custodians collateral 
previously received from existing derivative counterparties in 
the amount of$0.3 billion upon the single notch downgrade, 
resulting in aggregate cash obligations and collateral 
requirements of approximately $1.4 billion. 

Derivatives Accompanied by Financial Asset T1·ansfers 
For transfers of financial assets accounted for as a sale by the 
Company, where the Company has retained substantially all of 
the economic exposure to the transfetTed asset through a total 
return .swap executed in contemplation of the initial sale with 
the same counterparty and still outstanding as of March 31, 
2017, both the asset carrying amounts derecognized and gross 
cash proceeds received as of the date of derecognition were 
$1.5 billion. At March 31, 2017, the fair value of these 
previously derecognized assets was $1.5 billion and the fair 
value of the total return swaps was $29 million recorded as 
gross derivative assets and $6 million recorded as gross 
derivative liabilities. The balances for the total return swaps 
are on a gross basis, before the application of counterpatty and 
cash collateral netting, and are included primarily as equity 
derivatives in the tabular disclosures in this Note. 
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20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMF..NT 

For additional information regarding fair value measurement 
at Citi, see Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
·n Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form I 0-K. 

Market Valuation Adjustments 
The table below summarizes the credit valuation adjustments 
(CVA) and funding valuation adjustments (FVA) applied to 
the fair value of derivative instruments al March 31, 2017 
and December 31, 2016: 

In millions of dollars 

Counterparty CV A 

AssctFVA 

Citigroup ( own-credit) CV A 

I .iability FVA 

Total CVA-derivative 
instruments111 

Credit and funding valuation 
adj ustrncn ts 

contrn-lial>ilily (contra-:isset) 
Miwch 31, December 31, 

2017 2016 

$ (1,316) $ (l,488) 

$ 

(444) (536) 

377 

52 

(1,331) $ 

459 

62 

(1,503) 

(I) I1VA is included with CVA for presentation purposes. 

The table below summarizes pretax gains (losses) 
related to changes in CVA on derivative instruments, nel of 
hedges, FVA on derivatives and debt valuation adjustments 
(DVA) on Citi's own fair value option (FVO) liabilities for 
he periods indicated: 

In millions of dollars 

Counterparly CV A 

Assctf'VA 

Own-credit CV A 

I .iahi!ity FVA 

Credit/funding/debt 
valuation 

adjustments gain ( loss) 

$ 

Three months ended 
March 31, 

2017 2016 

90 $ (108) 

92 (80) 
(72) 135 

(10) 29 

Total CV A-derivative instruments $ 100 $ (24) 

DVA related to own FVO liabilities <1l $ (95) $ 307 
Total CVA and DVA<2> $ 5 $ 283 

(I) St:1: Note I lo the Consolidatt:d Fimmcial Statement~. 
(2) PVA is included with CVA for pres1:ntatio11 purposes. 
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Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis classified as Level 3, but also with financial instruments 
The following tables present for each of the fair value classified as Level I or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The 
hierarchy levels the Company's assets and liabilities that are effects of these hedges are presented gross in the following 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis at March 31, 2017 tables: 
and December 31, 2016. The Company may hedge positions 
that have been classified in the Level 3 category with other 
financial instruments (hedging instruments) that may be 

Fair Value Levels 

In millions ofdollars at March 31. 2017 Level 1<1l Level 2l'l Level 3 
Gross Net 

inventory Netting<2> bahmce 
Assets 

Federal funds sold and secul'ities borrowed or purchased under ' ' agl'ecments to resell $ -$ 174,962 $ 1,187 $ 176,149 $ (38,789);$ 137,360 
Trading non-derivative assets . . 

Trnding mortgage-backed securities I . . 
U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed 21,410 271 

I 

21,681 21,681 -: 
Residential 289 368 657 

I 

-: 657 
Commercial 1,052 266 

I 

1,318 -: 1,318 
Total trading mol'tgage-backed securities $ $ 22,751 $ 905 $ 23,656 $ -:$ 23,656 
U.S. Treasul'y and federal agency securities $ 18,757 $ 3,51 I $ I $ 22,269 $ -;$ 22,269 

I State and municip11l 3,086 270 3,356 _ , 3,356 . 
Foreign government 37,588 21,152 126 

I 
58,866 - : 58,866 

Corporate 240 16,011 16,547 
I 

16,547 296 - · ' Equity securities 43,108 5,468 llO 48,686 
I 

- : 48,686 
Asset-backed securities 1,536 1,941 3,477 

I 
3,477 

Other trading assets<:ii 8 9,771 1,888 11,667 11,667 
Total trnding non-derivative assets $ 99,701 $ 83,286 $ 5,537 $ 188,524 $ $ 188,524 
Trading derivatives 

Interest rate con!racts $ 17 $ 311,584 $ 2,126 $ 313,727 
Foreign exchange;,: contracts 18 124,740 478 125,236 
Equity contracts 1,815 22,196 625 24,636 
Commodity contracts 250 10,647 552 11.449 
Credit derivatives 21,751 1,571 23,322 

Total trading derivatives $ 2,100 $ 490,918 $ 5,352 $ 498,370 
Cash collateral paidr > $ 10,436 
Netting agreements $ (416.229) 
Netting of cash colla(cral rnceived I 

(36,198): 
Total trnding derivatives $ 2,100 $ 490,918 $ 5,352 $ 508,806 $ (452,427):$ 56,379 
lt1vestments 

Mortgage-backed securities 
' 

l J.S. gove;.:rnment-sponsored agency guaranteed $ $ 35,648 $ 55 $ 35,703 $ 
I 

- :$ 35,703 
l{esidential 3,474 3,474 

I 

-: 3,474 
Commercial 360 360 

I 

- : 360 
Total investment mortgage-backed securities $ $ 39,482 $ 55 $ 39,537 $ -:$ 39,537 
U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities $ 106,915 $ 10,731 $ 1 $ 117,647 $ -:$ 117,647 

State and municipal 8,392 1,233 
I 

9,625 9,625 ' 
Foreign government 56,398 43,497 235 100,130 100,130 
Corporate l,807 13,733 339 15,879 -· 15,879 

' Equity secul'ities 317 65 9 
I 

391 . 391 
Asset-backed securities 5,811 712 6,523 -: 6,523 
Othe1· debt securities I 

55(} 550 550 -· ' Non-marketable equity sccurities!5l 31 1,082 
I 

1,113 - : 1,1 I3 
Total investments $ 165,437 $ 122,292 $ 3,666 $ 291,395 $ - :$ 291,395 

Table continues on the next page. 
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In millions of dollars al March 31, 20/7 

Loans 

Mortgllge servicing rights 

Non-trading derivatives 11nd other financial assets measured 
on a recurring bl!sis, gross 

Cash collateral pllid(61 

Netting of cash collateral received 

Non-trading derivatives and other financial assets measured 
on a recurring basis 

Total assets 

Total as a percentage of gross asscts(7
l 

Lia bilitics 

Level 1<11 Level 2''1 

$ $ 3,455 

$ ll,750 $ 6,439 

$ 11,750 $ 6,439 

$ 278,988 $ 881,352 

23.7% 74.9% 

Level3 

$ 580 

567 

$ 27 

$ 27 

$16,916 

l.4'}'o 

Gross 
inventory 

$ 4,035 

S67 

$ 18,216 

s 

$ 18,221 

$1,187,697 

Netting121 

$ - :$ 
I . - . 
. . 
I 

$ (940): . . 

Net 
balance 

4,035 

567 

$ (940): $ 17,281 

$(492,156)! $ 695,541 

. . 
I 

Interest-hearing deposits $ $ l,005 $ 302 $ 1,307 $ - :$ 
I 

1,307 

40,939 
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under 
agreements to repurchase 

Trading account liabilities 

Securities sold, not yet purchased 

Other ti·ading liabilities 

Totnl trading liabilities 

Trading derivntives 

Interest rate contracts 

Fol'eign exchange contracts 

Equity COll(l'aC(S 

Commodity conlra<.:ts 

Credit derivatives 

Total trading derivatives 

Cash collate1·al receivedl8J 

Netting agreements 

Netting of cash collateral paid 

Total trading derivatives 

Short-term borrowings 

1.ong-term debt 

Non-trading derivatives and other financial liabilities 
measured on a recurring oasis, gross 

Cash collaternl received(9
l 

Netting of cash collnternl paid 

. . 
78,919 809 79,728 (38,789)! 

80,154 7,302 1,151 

2,605 

88,607 

2,605 

. . 
I . . 
I . - , 

$ 80,154 $ 9,907 $ 1,151 $ 91,212 $ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5 

8 

1,675 
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t,843 

$ 297,445 

128,229 

24,866 

10,531 

21,992 

$ 483,063 

1,843 $ 483,063 

$ 3,413 

17,350 

$ 2,899 

430 

2,149 

2,626 

l,694 

$10,798 

$10,798 

$ 60 

10,176 

$ 300,349 

128,667 

28,690 

)3,312 

24,686 

$ 495,704 

$ 13,961 

$ 509,665 

$ 3,473 

27,526 

$ 11,750 $ 963 $ 4 $ 12,717 

15 

I 
$ (416,229): 

I 
(40,577}: 

$ ( 456,806}! $ 

$ - :$ 
I 

$ 

' - , 

: . . 
I 

(51)! 

88,607 

2,605 

91,212 

52,859 

3,473 

27,526 

Total non-trading derivatives nnd other financial liabilities 
measured on a recurring basis $ 11,750 $ 963 $ 4 $ 12,732 $ (51);$ 12,681 

Total liabilities $ 93,747 $ 594,620 $23,300 $ 725,643 $ (495,646): $ 229,997 

Total as a percentage of gross liabilities('! 13.2% 83.6% 3.3% 

(I) For the lhree months ended March 31, 2017, the Company lrnnsl'errcd assets of approximately $0.9 billion from Level I to Level 2, primarily related to foreign 
government securities and equity securities not traded in aclive markels. Ouring the three months ended Mmch 31. 2017, the Compiiny transferred assets of 
approximalely $1.4 billion from Level 2 to Level I, primHrily rel<1led to lorcign government honds traded with suflicient li"equcncy to constitute an active market. 
During the lhn:t: months ended March 31, 2017, the Company translerred liabilities of approximately $0.1 billion from Level I lo I .eve\ 2. Ou ring the three 
months t:nded March 31, 2017, lhc Company transferred liabilities of approximately $0.1 billion from Level 2 to Lt:vel I. 

(2) Rt:presenls nelling of: (i) lhe amounts due under securities purclmst:d under agreements to resell and the amounts owed under securilies sold under agreements to 
repurchase; and (ii) dt:rivative exposures covered hy a qualifying master nelling agreement and cash collateral offsetting. 

(3) Includes positions relatt:d lo inveslmcnts in unallocated precious metals, as discussed in Note 21 to the Consolidated financial Stalemcnls. Also includes physical 
commodities accounted for .it the lower of cost or fair value and unfundt:d credit products. 

(4) Reflects the net amount of$5 l,013 1nillion gross cash co\laternl paid, ofwhieh $40,577 million wa~ used to offaet trading derivative liabilities. 
(5) /\mounts excludt: $0.4 billio11 inveslmcnts measured at Net Asset Value (NAV) in accordance with ASlJ No. 2015-07, Fair Value Measuremrmt (Topic 1120).· 

Visclosures.for Investments in Cerlain F:.ntilies Thai Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its J-.q11ivalen1). 
(6) Reflects the net amount of$56 million of gross cash collaternl paid, ofwhicl1 $51 million was used to offaet non•trnding derivative liabilities. 
(7) 13ecause the amount of the cash collateral paid/received has not been allocalcd to the Level I, 2 and 3 subtotals, these percenlllges are calculated hascd on total 

assets and liabilitit:s measured al fair viiluc on a recurring basis, excluding lhc cash collateral paid/received 011 del"iv11tivt:s. 
(8) Reflects tht: nt:t mnounl $50,159 million of gross cash collatt:rnl received, ol'which $36,198 million was used to offiet trading derivative assets. 
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(9) Reflects the net amount 01'$955 million of gross cash collateral re,;eived, ofwhieh $940 million lkaS used lo ollset non-trading derivative assets. 

Fair Value Levels 

In millions qf dollars at December 31, 2016 Level 1111 Level 2''1 Lcvcl3 
Gross Net 

inventory Netti11g<2> balance 
Assets 

Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under 
agreements to resell $ -$ 172,394 $ 1,496 $ 173,890 $ (40,686): $133,204 

Trading 11011-derivative assets . 
Trading mortgage-hacked securities 

U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed 22,718 176 22,894 22,894 
I 

Residential 291 399 690 ' 690 - , 
I 

Comm~rcial 1,000 206 1,206 ' 1,206 - , 
Total trading mortgage-backed securities $ - $ 24,009 $ 781 $ 24.790 $ - :$ 24,790 

U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities $ 17,756 $ 3,423 $ I $ 21.180 $ - !$ 21,180 
I 

State and municipal 3,780 296 4,076 ' 4,076 . 
I 

Foreign government 36,8.52 12,804 40 49,696 49,696 

Corporate 424 14,199 324 14,947 14,947 

Equity securities 45,331 4,985 127 50,443 50,443 

Asset-backed securities 892 1,868 2,760 2,760 

Other trading assets<3> 2 9,464 2.814 12,280 12,280 

Total tt'ading non-derivative assets $ 100,365 $ 73,556 $ 6,251 $ 180,172 $ $180,172 
Trading derivatives 

lnteresl rate contracts $ 105 $ 366,995 $ 2,225 $ 369.325 

rorcign exchange contracts 53 184,776 833 185.662 

Equity contracts 2,306 21,209 595 24,110 

Commodity con!racts 261 12,999 505 13,765 

Credit del'iva(ives 23,021 1,594 24,615 

Total trading derivatives $ 2,725 $ 609,000 $ 5,752 $ 617,477 
Cash collateral paid(4J $ 11,188 

I 
Netting agreements $ (519,000)! 

I 
Netting of cash collateral received (45,912): 

Total trading detivatives $ 2,725 $ 609,000 $ 5,752 $ 628,665 $ (564,912):$ 63,753 

Investments 

Mortgage-backed securities . . 
U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed $ $ 38,304 $ IOI 

I 
$ 38,405 $ - :$ 38,405 

I 
Residential 3,860 50 3,9IO 3,910 

Commercial 358 358 358 

Total investment mortgage-backed securities $ $ 42,522 $ 151 $ 42,673 $ -:$ 42,673 

U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities $ 112,916 $ 10,753 $ 2 $ 123,671 $ - :$123,671 

State and municipal 8,909 1,211 
I 

10,120 10,120 

Foreign government 54,028 43,934 186 98,148 98,148 

Corporate 3,215 13,598 311 17,124 17.124 

Equity securities 336 46 9 391 391 

Asset-backed securities 6,134 660 6,794 6,794 

Other debt securities 503 503 503 
Non-marketable equity securities(S) 35 L331 1,366 1,366 

Total investments $ 170,495 $ 126,434 $ 3,861 $ 300,790 $ $300,790 

Table continues on the next page. 
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Gross Net 
In millions of dollars at December 31, 2016 Level 1<1

> Level 2<11 Level3 inventory Nettin:;:'21 balance 

Loans $ $ 2,918 $ 568 $ 3,486 $ - :$ 3,486 
I 

Mortgage servicing rights 1,564 1,564 ' 1,564 ' 
Non-trading derivatives and other financial assets measured on 11 

recurring basis, gross $ 9,300 $ 7,732 $ 34 $ 17,066 

Cash collateral paid<61 8 ' ' I 
Netting of cash collateral 1·eceived $ ( 13 45): 

Non-trading derivatives and other financial assets measured on a ' ' 
recurring basis $ 9,300 $ 7,732 $ 34 $ 17,074 $ ( I ,345): $ 15,729 

Total assets $ 282,885 $ 992,034 $19,526 $1,305,641 $ (606,943}: $698,698 

Total as a percentage of gross assets171 21.9% 76.6% 1.5% 

Liabilities ' ' I 
Interest-bearing deposits $ $ 919 $ 293 $ 1,212 $ - :$ 1,212 

I 
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under ' ' 
agreements to repurchase 73,500 849 74,349 (40,686): 33,663 

I 
T1·ading account liabilities 

Securities sold, not yet purchased 73.782 5,831 I, 177 80,790 80,790 

Other trading liabilities 1,827 1,828 1,828 

Total trading liabilities $ 73,782 $ 7,658 $ 1,178 $ 82,618 $ - :$ 82,618 

Trading account derivatives 

r ntcrcst rate contracts $ 107 $ 35 l,766 $ 2,888 $ 354,761 

Foreign exchange co11tracls 13 187,328 420 187,761 

Equity contracts 2.245 22,119 2,152 26,516 

Commodity contracts 196 12,386 2,450 15,032 

Ct·edit derivatives 22,842 2,595 25,437 

Total trading derivatives $ 2,561 $ 596,441 $ 10,505 $ 609,507 

Cash collate1·al receivedtxJ $ 15,731 
' I 

Netting agreements $ (51 9,000): 

Netting of cash collateral paid 
I 

(49,811): 

Total trading derivatives $ 2,561 $ 596,441 $10,505 $ 625,238 $ (568,811 ): $ 56,427 

Short-term borrowings $ $ 2,658 $ 42 $ 2,700 $ - :$ 2,700 

Long-term debt 16,510 9,744 26,254 26,254 

Non-trnding derivatives and other financial liabilities measured 
on a recurring basis, gross $ 9,300 $ 1,540 $ 8 $ 10,848 

Cash collateral received<9
l 

I 

Netting of cash collateral paid $ (53): 

Non-trading derivatives and other financial liabilities measured ' ' 
on a recurring hasis $ 9,300 $ 1,540 $ 8 $ 10,849 $ (53): $ 10,796 

Total liabilities $ 85,643 $ 699,226 $22,619 $ 823,220 $ (609,550): $213,670 

Total as a percentage of gl'oss liahilitics(71 10.6% 86.6% 2.8% 

(I) In 2016, the Company lnmsforred assets of arrmximately $2.6 billion fro111 I ,eve! I to I .cvcl 2, primarily related lo lorcign government securities and equity 
securities not traded in active 1m1rke1s. In 2016, the Company trnnsft:m:d assels of approximately $4.0 billion from Level 2 to Level I, rrimarily related to foreign 
government bonds and equity securities traded with sufficient frequency to constitute a liquid market. In 2016, the Company transferred liahilities of 
approximately $0.4 billion from Level 2 to T .cvcl I. In 2016, the Company lranslcrrcd liabilities of approximately $0.3 billion from l.cvcl I to Level 2. 

(2) Represents netting of: (i) the mnounts due under securities rurch1t~ed under agreements to resell and the amounts owe<l under securities sold under agreements to 
repurchase; and (ii) derivative exposun:s covered by a qualifying master nt:lling agreemcnl and cash collateral offseuing. 

(3) J11cl11dcs positions related to inveslmenls i1t unallocated precious metuls, as discussed in Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial S1a1emen1s. Also includes physical 
commodities accounted for at the lower of cos\ or lair value and unfunded credit products. 

(4) Rellects the net amount of $60,999 million ol' gross casl1 collateral paid, of which $49,811 million was used to offset trn<ling derivative liabilities. 
(5) Amounts exclude$ $0.4 billion investments 1m:asured al Net Asset Value (NAV) in accordance with ASU No. 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820)· 

Disclosures for lnvestmenls in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its F.quivalent). 
(6) Rellecls the ncl amount of$6l million of gross cash collateral paid, of which $53 million was used to offact uon-trnding derivative liabilities. 
'7) 13ecause the amount of the cash collaternl paid/received has not hcen allocate<l to the Level I, 2 and 3 subtotals, these percentages are calt.:ulatcd based on totul 

assets and liabilities measured at foir value on a recurring basis, excluding the cash collateral paid/received on derivatives. 
(8) Renecls the net amount of$61,643 million of gross cash collateral received, of which $45,912 million was used to offset trading derivative assets. 
(9) Rellecls the net amount of$1,346 million of gross cash collateral received, of which $1,345 million was used to offset non-trading derivative assets. 
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Changes in Level 3 Fair Value Category 
The following tables present the changes in tJ1e Level 3 fair 
value category for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 
2016. The gains and losses presented below include changes in 
the fair value related to both observable and unobservable 
inputs. 

The Company often hedges positions with offsetting 
positions that are classified in a different level. For example, 
the gains and losses for assets and liabilities in the Level 3 

category presented in the tables below do not reflect the effect 
of offsetting losses and gains on hedging instruments that may 
be classified in the Level 1 or Level 2 categories. In addition, 
the Company hedges items classified in the Level 3 category 
with instruments also classified in Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy. The hedged items and related hedges are presented 
gross in the following tables: 

Level 3 Fair Value Rollfonvard 

~ct n:alized/unrealized 
gains (losst:s) incl. in Transfers Unrealized 

gains 

In millions of dollars 
Dec. 31, Principal into out of 

2016 transactions Othcr'1H2
l Level 3 Level 3 Purchases Issuances 

Mar. 31, (fosscs) 
Sales Settlements 2017 :still hchf11 

Assets 

Federal l'unds sold anti 
securities borrowed or 
purchased under 
ngreements to resell $ 1,496 $ 

Trading non-derivative 
assets 

Trading morlgai:e-
backed securities 

U.S. government· 
sponsored agency 
guarantet:d 

Rcside111ial 

Commercial 

Tolftl tradini: mortgage-

176 

399 

206 

hacked securities $ ?RI $ 

ll.S. Treasury and 
federal agency secnrilics $ $ 

Stnte and municipal 296 

t,·oreign government 40 

Corporate 324 

F.quity securities 127 

Asset-backed securities I ,!168 

Other trading assets 2,814 

Total tradini: non­
derivative assets 

Trading derivatives, nd~l 

$ 6,251 $ 

I ntcrest rntt: contrncts $ ( 663) $ 

Foreign exchange 
contracts 413 

Equity contracts (1,557) 

Commodity contracts (1,945) 

Crt:dit derivatives (1,001) 

')btal trading derivatives, 
net<•> $ (4,753) $ 

(56) $ 

s 
IS 

(8) 

12 $ 

2 

4 

91 

15 

160 

(7) 

$ 

277 $ 

(37) $ 

(390) 

(2) 

(175) 

(92) 

(696) S 

- $ 

$ 

$ 

- S (252) $ 

50 

17 

17 

(17) 

(29) 

(13) 

84 S (59) S 

2 

78 

27 

2 

20 

210 

$ -$ 

(47) 

(13) 

(52} 

(12) 

(16) 

(531) 

-$ 

161 

50 

190 

401 S 

81 

44 

IIR 

7 

391 

287 

$ 

$ 423 $ (730) $ 1,329 $ 

$ (38) S 19 S 

55 (20) 

(16) 

46 (2) 

(24) (I!) 

-$ 39 $ (27) $ 

6 S 

34 

85 

125 $ 

Table conlinues on the next page. 
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- $ - $ 

(l04) 

(84) 

(126) 

$ (314) $ 

$ -$ 

(64) 

(27) 

(197) 

(29) 

(482) 

(875) 

$ (1,988) $ 

$ (113) $ 

(32) 

(24) 

$ (169} $ 

(1 )! $ 1,187 $ 

. 

271 

368 

266 

-:$ 905 $ 

. 
I 

(15): 
I 

. . 
I 

(11): . 

270 

126 

296 

110 

1,941 

1,888 

$ 

(26)! $ 5,537 $ . . 
I 

53: S (773) $ 
I . . 

(12): 48 
I 

(IO): (1,524} 
I 

2: (2,074) 
I 

2: (1,123) . 
35 : S (5,446) $ 

4 

10 

(4) 

6 

2 

6 

12 

2 

81 

(55) 

54 

(23) 

(341) 

202 

(170) 

(108) 

(440) 



Nel reali:,.ed/unrealized 
gains (losses) ind. in Transfca·s Unrealized 

gains 

In millions ofdollars 
Dec. 31, Principnl intu 0111 of 

2016 lransaclions Othcr('1121 Level 3 Level 3 Purchases Issuances 
Mar. 31, (losses) 

Sales Settlements 2017 still bcldµ, 

·. Investments 

Mortgage-backed 
securities 

U.S. government­
sponsored agency 
guaranteed 

Residenlial 

Commercial 

Total investment 
mortgage-backed 
securities 

U.S. Treasury an<l federal 

$ 

$ 

IOI $ 

50 

151 $ 

llgency securities $ 2 $ 

1,211 

186 

311 

State and municipal 

Foreign government 

Corpornte 

Equity securities 

Asset-backed securities 

Other debt securities 

Non-marketable e<1uity 
securities 

Total investments 

l.oans 

9 

660 

1,331 

$ 3,861 S 

$ 568 $ 

$ 1,564 $ 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

s 
$ 

2 $ 

2 

4 S 

12 

1 

2 

9 

(94) 

$ 

(66) S 

(4) $ 

67 $ 

I $ {49) $ 

(47) 

37 

2 

59 

17 

$ (96) S 

$ -$ 

(30) 

(18) 

(4) 

116 $ (148} S 

6S $ (16) S 

$ - $ 

$ 

8 

8 S 

54 

142 

91 

26 

11 

8 

$ 

340 $ 

12 S 

s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

-$ 

(5) 

(8) 

(13) $ 

(I)$ 

(SI) 

(78) 

(120} 

(11) 

(73) 

$ (347) $ 

$ (43) $ 

35 $ (1,046) $ 

$ 

$ 

s 

55 $ 

5S S 

1,233 

235 

339 

9 

712 

$ 

(90) 1,01'2 

(90) $ 3,666 $ 

(2) $ 

(53) $ 

580 $ 

567 S 

2 

2 

6 

2 

3 

(2) 

12 

74 

83 Mongage servicing rights 

Other linm1ci,d assets 
measured on a recurring 
ha~is $ 34 $ -$ (189) $ 3 S (]) $ - $ 29 $ 204 $ (53) S 27 S (191) 

Liabililies 

Interest-bearing deposits 

Federal fun<ls purchased 
and securities loaned or 
sold under agreements to 
repurclmst: 

Trading account liabilities 

Securities sold, not yet 
purchased 

Other trading liabilities 

Short-term borrowings 

Long-term deht 

Other 11nancial liabilities 
measured on a recurring 
basis 

$ 293 $ 

849 

1,177 

42 

9,744 

8 

-$ 

6 

S4 

{9) 

17 

II $ 20 S 

II 

200 

(2) 

- $ 

(14) 

(409) 

-$ 

(I) 

-$ 

II 

929 

-S 

IOI 

- S 302 $ 

(34) 809 

(70) 

(1) 

(2) 

1,151 

60 

(271) 10,176 

(6) 4 

(I) Changes in fair value for available-for-sale investments are recorded in AOCI, unless related to other-than-lempornry imp,1innen1, while gains and losses from 
sales are recorded in Realized gains (/osses)from safes qfinvestments on the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

(2) Unreali:l.ed gains (losses) on MSRs arc recorded in 01her revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Income. 
(3) Rc:presenls the amount or total gains or losses for the period, included in earnings (and AOC! for changes in foir value of avaih1ble-lor-sale investmc111s), 

attributable to the change in lair value relating to assets and li11bilities chissilied as I .cvel 1 that arc still held at March 31, 2017. 
(4) Totitl Level 3 trn<ling derivative assets and liabilities have been netted in these !ables for presentation purposes only. 
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Net rcali:i:cd/unrealized 
Unreali,..ed gnin.s {losses) incl. iu Transfers 

i:nins 
D~c. 31, l'l'incip1d into out of Mar. 31, (losses) 

In millions of dollars 2015 transactions Other11H2> Level 3 J.evcl 3 Purchases Issuances Sales Settlements 2016 still heldm 

Assets 

l<'cdcrnl funds sold and 
securities borrowed OI' 

' purchased under ' ' agreements to resell $ 1,337 $ 70 $ $ -$ -$ 503 $ $ -$ (I);$ 1,909 $ 

Trnding non-derivative 
I 

assets 

Trnding moi·tgage-
backed securities 

U.S. government-
sponsored agency 

3: guaranteed 744 12 335 (220) 356 (191) . 1,039 
Residential 1,326 49 104 (43) 

I 

211 (455) -: 1,192 

Commercial 517 9 S6 (27) 
I 

245 (219) 581 
Total trading morti:ai:c- ' 
backed securities $ 2,587 $ 70 $ $ 495 $ (290) $ 812 $ $ (865) $ 3 ;$ 2,812 $ 

IJ.S. Treasury and ' ' fcdcrnl agency securities $ $ $ $ 2 $ -$ $ $ -$ - :$ 3 $ 

State and municipal 351 7 13 (159) 103 (106) ' 209 
Foreign government 197 (l) 2 (4) 41 (16) 219 
<:orporate 376 12 45 (16) 169 (109) 477 2 
}:quity securities 3,684 (44) 93 (34) 79 (23) - : 3,755 

' Asset-backed securities 2,739 128 117 (14) 492 (648) ' 2,814 ' 
Other trading assets 2,483 (27) 778 (613) 283 ' ll (331) (10); 2,574 (5) 

Total trading non- ' derivative assets $ 12,418 $ 145 $ $ 1,545 $ (1,130) $ 1,979 $ II $ (2,098) $ (7):$ 12,863 $ (2) 

Trading derivativfs, net<'> 

Interest rate contra<.:ts $ (495) $ (508) $ $ 165 $ 90 $ 5 $ $ (3) $ 
I 

(9): $ (755) $ (9) 
I 

Foreign exchange ' 
contl'aets 620 (353) 3 30 17 (39) 17: 295 2 
Equity contracts (800) :n 75 (144) 

I 
24 (S9) (4): (876) 

Commodity conlracls (1,861) (142) (52) 10 
I %: (I ,949) (1) 

Credit dcrivat ivcs 307 (515) (81) 29 ' (62)! (321) (I) 

Total ca·ading derivatives, ' ' netN> $ (2,229) $ (1,486) $ -$ 110 $ 15 $ 47 $ - $ (JOI)$ 38•$ (3,606) $ (9) 

Investments 

Mortgage-backed 
securities 

U.S. government-
sponsored agency 
guaranteed $ 139 $ $ (31) $ 7 $ (39) $ 39 $ $ (3) $ (l) $ Ill $ 

Residential 4 ' (5) 

Commercial 2 3 (2) 3 
Total investment 
1no1·tg::igc-backcd 

(l):$ securities $ 145 $ $ (30) $ IO $ (41) $ 39 $ $ (B) $ 114 $ 

U.S. Treasury and ' ' t'ederal agency securities $ 4 $ $ $ $ - $ $ $ (I)$ - :$ 3 $ 

State and municipal 2,192 3S 261 (409) ' 151 {132) 2,098 

Foreign i:overnmcnt 260 2 33 62 (182) - : 175 
Corporate 603 14 5 (37) (88) ' 498 
Equity securities 124 2 - : 126 
Asset-hacked securities 596 (26) (I) 132 ' . 701 

Other deht securities 

Non-marketable equity ' ' securities 1,135 (2) 38 12 (J 8): 1,165 
Tofal investments $ 5,059 $ $ (7) $ 349 $ (488) $ 397 $ $ (411) $ (19): $ 4,880 $ 

Table continues on the next page. 
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Net realized/unrealized Unrealized gains (lom:is) incl. iu Trnnsfcl's gains 
0cc. 31, Principal into outof :Viar. 31, (losses) 

In millions of dollars 2015 transactions OUier<<l<ll Level 3 Level 3 Purchases Issuances Sales Sclllements 2016 still hcl<J<J> 

Loans $ 2,166 $ $ (77) $ 89 $ (538) $ 359 $ 161 $ (378) $ (59): $ 1,723 $ 7 
I 

MortgaJ:!c servicing rights 1,781 (225) 33 14 (79): 1,524 57 

Other financial assets 
measured on a recurring I 

I 

basis 180 17 3 (3) 63 (120) (83): 57 (317) 

Liabilities I 
I 

lntcrest-bcal'ing deposits $ 434 $ - $ (4) $ 4 $ (209) $ - $ 4 $ - $ 
I 

(46Y, $ 191 $ 
I 

federal funds purchased 
nnd securities loaned or 

I 

sold under agreements to 
1,247 (25) 16 (50): 1,23!l repul'chase I 

Trading nccount liabilities . 
Securities sold, not yet 

199 25 59 (25) 36 (126): I 18 (2) purchased 
I 

Other trading liabilities I 
I 
I 

Short-term borrowings 9 (3) 5 (4) 34 (I); 46 (4) 
I 

Lo11g-tc1·m debt 6,951 46 509 (1,087) 1,440 (89): 7,671! 
I 

Other fin:rndal liabilities 
measured on a recurring 

14 (8) (4) (4) (l): 14 (5) bnsis 

(I) Changes in fair val11e of available-for-salt: investments arc recorded in AOC!, unless related to othcr-than-tempo.-ary impairment, while gains and losses from sales 
are recorded in Realized guins (lo.~ses)from sales ofinvestmenls on the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

(2) Unreali:ted gains (losses) on MS Rs are recorded in Other revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Income. 
(3) Represents the amount of total gains or losses for the period, included in earnings (und AOC! for changes in fai.- value of availab\e-lor-salc investments), 

attributable lo the change in fair value relating to assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 that are still held at March 31, 2016. 
(4) lotal Level 3 derivative assets and liabilities have been nellcd in these tables for presc:nlation purposes only. 

Level 3 ·Fair Value Rollfonvard 
There were no significant Level 3 transfers for the period from 
0ecember 3 l, 2016 to March 31, 2017. 

The following were the significant Level 3 transfers for the 
period December 3 l, 2015 to March 31, 2016: 

Transfers of Long-term debt of$0.5 billion from Level 2 
to Level 3, and of$ l. I billion from Level 3 to Level 2, 
mainly related to structured debt, reflecting certain 
unobservable inputs becoming less significant and ce11ain 
underlying market inputs being more observable. 
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Valuation Techniques and Inputs for Level 3 fair Value 
Measurements 
The following tables present the valuation techniques covering 
the majority of Level 3 inventory and the most significant 
unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements. 
Differences between this table and amounts presented in the 
Level 3 Fair Value Rollforward table represent individually 
immaterial items that have been measured using a variety of 
valuation techniques other than those listed. 

Fair value1'l Weighted 
As c!fMarch 31, 2017 (in millions) Methodology Input Low<2l<3l Hig1Jl21c1J average<4l 

Assets 

Federal funds sold and securities 
hol'rowed or purchased under 
agreements to resell $ 1,187 Model-based lR normal volatility )3.87 % 71.61°/., 57.55 % 

r ntcrcst rate (0.56)% 2.25% (0.39)% 
Mol'tgllge-backed securities $ 890 Price-based Price $ 5.78 $ 113.12 $ 70.94 
State and munici1lal, foreign 

government, corporate and 
other debt securities $ 3,136 Price-based Price $ 15.00 $ 108.88 $ 92.19 

655 ca~h llow Credit SJll'ea<l 35 bps 600 bps 236 bps 
J::quity securitics<~J $ 73 Model-based Price $ $ 158.24 $ 7.28 

30 Price-based WAL 2.50 years 2.50 ye.ws 2.50 years 
Asset-backed secul'ities $ 2,617 Price-based l'l'iCe $ 3.35 $ 101.38 $ 72.53 
Non-marketable equity $ 527 Pri1,;e-based Discou11l to pri1,;e -% 100.00% 12.77 o;., 

513 Comparablcs analysis EBITDJ\ multiples 6.50x I0.60x 8.60x 
Price-to-hook ratio 0.70 % 1.03% 0.92 % 

Derivatives-gross'6
' 

Interest rate contracts (gross) $ 4,917 Model-based IR normal volatility 13.87 % 86.04% 53.37 % 

Mean reversion 1.00 % 20.00% 10.50 % 

foreign exchange <.:ontracts (gross) $ 761 Model-based 
Foreign exchange (FX) 

volatility 3.04 % 22.77% IO.OJ% 
149 Cash flow Yield 5.62 % 14.50% 8.49 % 

IR-FX correlation (27.35)% 60.00% 47.42 '}'o 

IR-!R correlation 40.00 % 47.54% 40.22 % 

Credit spread 22 bps 523 bps 217 bps 
Equity contracts (gross)t7l $ 2,700 Model-based hquily volatility 3.00 % 55.49% 24.77 % 

Forward price 43.06 % 144.61% 93.92 % 

Equity-Equity 
correlation (89.91)% 97.69% 14.44 % 

Equity-FX correlation (70.20)% 29.90% (24.R8)% 
Commodity contracts (gross) $ 3,170 Model-based Forward price 38.85 % 299.37% 102.39 % 

Commodity volatility 10.45 % 45.13% 26.24 % 

Commodity conclation (44.00)% 91.00'Yo 56.00 % 
Credit derivatives (gross) $ 2,976 Model-based Recovery rate 6.50 % 65.00% 35.21 % 

1,287 Price-based Credit correlation 5.00 % 95.00% 32.70 % 
Upfront points 10.20 % 99.00% 54.28 % 

Price $ $ 123.67 $ 75.18 
Credit spread 4 bps 2,109 b1>s 210 bps 
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Fair valuc('I Weighted 
As of March 31, 2017 (in millions) Methodology Input Low<2>(3I High<2l<3J average•41 

Nontrading derivalives and olher 
financial assets and liahilities 
measured on a recurring basis 
(grosst1 $ 30 Model-based Redemption rate 12.52 % 99.50% 72.08 % 

Recovt:ry ralt: 40.00 % 40.00'Y'o 40.00 % 

Crt:dil sprt:ad 33 bps 659 bps 202 bps 

Loans $ 235 Model-based Credit spread 45 bps 500 bps 76 bps 

214 Yield /\ nalysis Yield 2.90 % 20.00% lt.98 % 

120 Price-bast:<l 

Mortgage servicing rights $ 475 Cash flow Yidd 4.20 'Yo 21.22% 12.38 % 

92 Model-based WAL 3.53 years 7.72 years 6.23 years 

Liabilities 

Interest-bearing deposits $ 282 Model-bu:;t:d Mean reversion 1.00 % 20.00%, 10.50 % 

Forward price 99.50 % 99.95% 99.62 % 

Federal funds purchased and 
securities loaned or sold under 
agreements to repurchase $ 809 Modt:1-based Interest rate 0.73 % 2.25% 2.07 %, 

Trading accou,,t liabilities 

Securities sold, not yet purchased $ 1,013 Model-based .IR nom,al volalilily 13.87 %, 71.61% 57.55 'Yo 

$ 138 Price-based Price $ 1.29 $ 121.00 $ 98.22 

Short-term borrowings and long-
term debt $ )0,303 Modt:1-based Mean Reversion 1.00 % 20.00% 10.50 % 

Forward price 68.46 % 235.35% 100.73 % 

Equity volatility 3.00 % 50.00% 20.71 % 

IR normal volatility 0.16 %, 86.04%, 57.73 "/o 

Fair valucnl Wt:ightcd 
As <{'December 31, 2016 (in millions) Methodology Input Low<2>C3l Higtil21l3l averagcC4l 

Assets 

Federal funds sold and securities 
borrowed or purchased under 
agreements to resell $ 1,496 Model-based [R log-normal volatility 12.86 % 75.50 % 61.73 % 

Intert:sl rate (0.51)% 5.76 % 2.80 % 

Mortgage-backed securities $ 509 l'rice-hased Price $ 5.50 $ 113.48 $ 61.74 

368 Yield analysis Yield 1.90 % 14.54 % 4.34 % 

State and municipal, foreign 
government, corporate and 
other debt securities $ 3,308 Price-based !'rice $ 15.00 $ 103.60 $ 89.93 

1,513 Cash flow Credit spread 35 bps 600 bps 230 hps 

Equity securities•51 $ 69 Model-based Price $ 0.48 $ 104.00 $ 22.19 

58 Priet:-based 

Asset-backed securities $ 2,454 Price-based Price $ 4.00 $ 100.00 $ 71.51 

Non-marketable equity $ 726 Price-bast:d Discount to price -% 90.00 % 13.36 % 

565 Comparablcs analysis EBITDA multiples <i.ROx 10.!0x 8.62x 

Price-to-book ratio 0.32 % 1.03 % 0.87 % 

Price $ $ 113.23 $ 54.40 

Ocrivntives-grossC 1 

Interest rate contracts (gross) $ 4,897 Model-bast:d m log-normal volatility 1.00 % 93.97 % 62.72 % 

Mt:an reversion 1.00% 20.00 % 10.50 % 

.Foreign exchange contracts (gross) $ 1,110 Model-hased 
Foreign exchange (FX) 

volatility 1.39% 26.85 % 15.18% 

134 Cash flow lntel'est rate (0.1!5)% (0.49)% (0.84)% 

Credit spread 4 bps 657 bps 266 bps 
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As (!(December 31, 2016 

Equity contrac~ (gross)' J 

Commodity contracts (gross) 

Credit derivatives (gross) 

Nontrading derivatives and other 
financial asst:ts and liabilities 
measured on a re1,;urring basis 
(gross}'6l 

Loans 

Mol'tgage servicing fights 

Liabilities 

lnterest-bearing deposits 

Federal funds purchased and 
securities loaned 01· sold under 
agreements to rct>Urchase 

Trading account liabilities 

Securities sold, no· yet purchased 

Sho,·t-term borrowings and long-
term deht 

Fair value111 

(in millions) Methodology 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,701 Model-based 

2,955 Model-hased 

2,786 Model-based 

1,403 Price-based 

42 Model-based 

258 Price-based 

221 Yield analysis 

79 Model-based 

1,473 Cash now 

293 Model-based 

849 Model-based 

1,056 Model-based 

9,774 Model-hased 

Input 

JR.JR corl'elation 

IR-FX 1,;orrelation 

Equity volatility 

Forward price 

Equity-FX correlation 

Equity-lR correlation 

Yield volatility 

Equity-equity correlation 

Forward price 

Commodity volatility 

Commodity correlation 

Recovery rate 

Credit correlation 

Upfront points 

Price 
Credit spread 

Recovery rate 

Redemption rate 

Upfront points 

Price 

Yield 

Yield 

WAL 

Mean reversion 

Porward price 

Interest rate 

IR normal volatility 

Mean reversion 

Commodity correlation 

Commodity volatility 

Forward price 

l,OW(Z)(l) I-Iighr2l<3> 

40.00 % 50.00 % 

16.4 t % 60.00 % 

3.00% 97.78 % 

69.05 % 144.61 % 

(60.70)% 28.20 % 

(35.00)% 41.00 % 

3.55 % 14.77 % 

(87.70)% 96.50 % 

35.74 % 235.35 % 

2.00 % 32.19 % 

(41.61)% 90.42 % 
20.00 % 75.00 % 

5.00% 90.00 % 

6.00% 99.90 % 

$ 1.00 $ 167.00 

3 bps 1,515 hps 

40.00 % 40.00 % 

3.92 % 99.58 % 

l<i.00 % 20.50 % 

$ 31.55 $ 105.74 

2.75 % 20.00 % 

4.20 % 20.56 % 

3.53 years 7.24 years 

1.00 % 20.00 % 

91!.79 % 104.07 % 

0.62 % 2.19 % 

12.86 % 75.50 % 

1.00% 20.00 % 

(41.61)% 90.42 % 

2.00 % 32.19% 

69.05 % 235.35 % 

(I) The fair value amounts presented in these tables repn:sent the primary valuation technique or techniques for em.:h dass of assets or liabilities. 
(2) Some inputs are shown as zero due to rounding. 

Weighted 
average<4l 

41.27 % 

49.52 o/. 
29.52 % 

94.28 % 

(26.28)% 

(15.65)% 

9.29 % 

67.45 % 

119.99% 

17.07 ,y,, 

52.85 % 

39.75 % 

34.27 % 

72.89 % 

$ 77.35 

256 bps 

40.00 % 

74.69 % 

18.78 % 

$ 56.46 

11.09 % 

9.32 4l-

5.83 years 

10.50 % 

100.19 % 

1.99% 

61.73 % 

10.50 % 

52.&5 % 

17.07% 

103.28 % 

(3) When the low and high inputs are the same, there is either a constant input applied to all positions, or !he methodology involving the input applies to only one 
lmge 110.~ition. 

(4) Weighted averages arc calculated based on the fair values of the instruments. 
(5) For equity securities, the price and fund NAV inputs are expressed on an absolute basis, no! ,is a percentage of the notional amount. 
(6) Hoth trading and non!rading m.:count derivatives-assets and liabilities-arc presented on a gross ubsolute value ba~is. 
(7) Includes hybrid products. 
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Items Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 
Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis and therefore are not included in the tables 
above. These include assets measured at cost that have been 
vritten down to fair value during the periods as a result of an 

impairment. In addition, these assets include Joans held-for­
sale and other real estate owned that are measured at the lower 
of cost or market. 

The following table presents the carrying amounts of all 
assets that were still held for which a nonrecurring fair value 
measurement was recorded: 

In millions of dollar.~ Fair value Level 2 Level3 

March 31, 2017 

Loans held-for-sale $ 3,790 $ 2,002 $ 1,788 

Other real estate owned 70 13 57 

Loans11l 1,195 630 565 
Total assets at fail' value 

on a nonrecurring basis $ 5,055 $ 2,645 $ 2,410 

In millions of dollars Fait· value Levell Level3 

December 31, 2016 

Loans held-for-sale $ 5,802 $ 3,389 $ 2,413 

Other real estate owned 75 15 60 

Loans0 > 1,376 586 790 

Total assets at fair value 
on a nonrecurring basis $ 7,253 $ 3,990 $ 3,263 

I) Represents impaired loans held for investmt:nt whost: carrying amount is 
hased on the fair value ofthc underlying collatentl, primarily real estate. 
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Valuation Techniques and Inputs for Level 3 Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements 
The following tables present the valuation techniques covering the majority of Level 3 nonrecurring fair value measurements and the 
most significant unobservable inputs used in those measurements: 

Fair valuc<•J Weighted 
!Is q(March 31, 2017 (in million.1) Methodology Input Low121 High averagc<3> 

Loans hcld-foa·-sale $ 1,788 Price-based Price $ 77.93 $ I00.00 $ 98.03 
Other real estate owned $ 57 Price-based Discount to price<4

J 0.34% 0.34% 0.34% 

Appraised value $ 27,054.05 $4,514,806.00 $2,032,098.00 

Price $ 61.43 $ 85.81 $ 65.53 

Loans!5> $ 345 Pricc-hased Price $ 3.20 $ 100.00 $ 23.67 

128 Recovery analysis Discount to pric1::C4J 18.67% 28.39% 23.57'!/o 

Recovery rate 92.68% 92.68% 92.68% 

!<'air value<') Weighted 
Aso/December3/, 2016 (in millions) Methodology Input Low<2> High avcrnge131 

Loans held-for-sale $ 2,413 Price-based Price $ $ 100.00 $ 93.08 
Other real estate owned $ 59 Price-ha~t:d Discount to price<4J 0.34% 13.00% 3.10% 

Price $ 64.65 $ 74.39 $ 66.21 
Loans<5l $ 431 Cash flow Price $ 3.25 $ 105.00 $ 59.61 

197 Recovery analysis Forward price $ 2.90 $ 210.00 $ 156. 78 

135 Price-based Discount to price141 0.25% 13.00% 8.34% 

Appraised value;: $ 25.80 $ 26,400,000 $ 6,462,735 

(I) The fair value amoun!s pn:sented in this tahlc represent the primary valuation tcclmiquc or techniques for each class or assets or liabilities. 
(2) Some inputs arc shown as iero due to rounding. 
(3) Weighted averages arc calculated based on the fair values of the instruments. 
(4) Includes estimated costs lo sell. 
(5) Represents loans held lor investment whose carrying amounts are based on the fair value of the underlying collateral. 

Nonrecurring Fair Value Changes 
The following table presents total nonrecurring fair value 
measurements for the period, included in earnings, attributable 
to the change in rair value relating to assets that were still 
held: 

In millions of dollars 

I ,oans held-for-sale 

Otl1er real estate owned 
LoansOl 

Other Asset:P1 

Thl'ee months 
ended Mal'ch 31, 

2017 

$ (22) 

(2) 

(28) 

$ 

Total nonrecurring fair value gains (losses) $ (52) 

(1) Rcpresen!s loans held for invcstme11t whose carrying amount is based on 
the lair value of the underlying eolla!eral, primarily real estate. 

169 

In 111il/io11s of dollars 

Loans held-for-salt: 

Other rt:al e;::;tatc owned 

Loans<1> 

Other Assets <21 

Total nonrecurring fair value gains (losses) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Th1·ee months 
ended March 31, 

2016 

3 

(2) 

(63) 

(262) 

{324) 

( l) Represents Joans held for investment whose canying amount is based on 
the fair vulue of the underlying eollaternl, primarily real estate. 

(2) Represents net impainncut loss1:s related to an equity investment. 



.Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments Not 
Carried at Fair Value 
The following table presents the carrying value and fair value 
of Ci ti group's financial instruments that are not carried at fair 
'alue. The table therefore excludes items measured at fair 

value on a recurring basis presented in the tables above. 

In biflions of dol/ars 

Assets 

Investments 

Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to 
resell 
LoansC1l<2l 

Other financial asse1s0l<1
> 

Liabilities 

Deposits 

federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to 
repurchase 

I .ong-term debtf4l 

Other financial liabilitics<5l 

In billions of dollars 

Assets 

Investments 

Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements lo 
resell 
Loruisl 1 l<2J 

Other financial assets<2l(3l 

I ,iabilities 

Deposits 

Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements lo 
repurchase 

Long-term deb1<4> 

Other financial liabilities<~) 

March 31, 2017 

Carrying Estimated 
value fair value 

$ 54.0 $ 53.9 

105.6 105.6 
6I0.7 604.0 

242.3 242.8 

$ 948.7 $ 947.1 

107.3 107.3 

181.0 187.5 

110.2 110.2 

December 3 1, 2016 

Carrying Estimated 
value fair value 

$ 52.1 $ 52.0 

103.6 103.6 

607.0 604.5 

215.2 215.9 

$ 928.2 $ 927.6 

108.2 108.2 

179.9 185.5 

115.3 115.3 

F.stimated fair value 

Level I Lcvel2 Level3 

$ 0.9 $ 50.5 $ 2.5 

100.6 5.0 

7.3 596.7 

7.0 173.2 62.6 

$ -$ 800.5 $ 146.6 

107.2 0.1 

158.7 28.8 

14.9 95.3 

Estimated fair value 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 

$ 0.8 $ 48.6 $ 2.6 

98.5 5.1 

7.0 597.5 

8.2 153.6 54.1 

$ -$ 789.7 $ 137.9 

107.8 0.4 

156.5 29.0 

16.2 99.1 

(I) The carrying value ol'loans is net of the Allowance for lo,111 losses of $12.0 billion lor March 31, 2017 and $12.1 billion for December 31, 2016. In addition, the 

canying values exclude $1.8 hill ion and $1.9 billion ol'lcasc finance receivables at March 31, 2017 and l)ecember 31, 2016, respectively. 
(2) Includes items measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. 
(3) Includes cash and due from banks, deposits with banks, brokerage receivables, reinsurance recoverable and other financial instruments included in Other asset., on 

the Consoliditted 13alance Sheet, for all of which the carrying value is a reasom,ble estimate of fair value. 
(4) The carrying value: includes long-term dcht balances under qualifying fair value hedges. 
(5) Includes brokerage payables, scparalc and variable accounts, short-term borrowings (cmried at cost) and other fimmciul instruments included in Other /iabililies 

on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, for all of which the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 

The estimated fair values of the Company's corporate 
unfunded lending commitments at March 3 t, 20 l 7 and 
December 31, 2016 were liabilities of $2. 9 billion and $5.2 
billion, respectively, substantially all of which are classified as 
Level 3. The Company does not estimate the fair values of 
consumer unfunded lending commitments, which are 
generally cancellable by providing notice to the borrower. 
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21. FAIR VALUE ELECTIONS 

The Company may elect to report rnost financial instruments 
and certain other items at fair value on an instrumcnt-by­
instrumcnt basis with changes in fair value reported in 
earnings, other than DVA (see below). The election is made 
upon the initial recognition or an eligible financial asset, 
financial liability or firm commitment or when ce11ain 
specilicd reconsideration events occur. The fair value election 

may not be revoked once an election is made. The changes in 
fair value are recorded in current earnings, other than OVA, 
which from January l, 2016 is reported in AOCJ. 

The Company has elected fair value accounting for its 
mortgage servicing rights. See Note 18 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for further discussions regarding the 
accounting and reporting of MS Rs. 

The following table presents the changes in fair value of'those items for which the fair value option has been elected: 

In millions of dollars 

Assets 

federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell -
selected portfo lios $ 

Trading account assets 

Investments 

Loans 

Certain corporate loansC1
> 

Certain consumer loans!ll 

Total loans $ 

Other assets 

MSRs $ 

Certain mortgage loans held for sale(2l 

Other assets 

Total other assets $ 

Total assets $ 

Liabilities 

lntcrcst·bcaring deposits $ 

Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase -
selected portfolios 

Trading account liabilities 

Short-term borrowings 

Long-term debt 

Total liabilities $ 

Changes in fair value g.iins (losses) for the 

three months ended March 31, 

2017 2016 

(33) $ 28 
430 258 

I 

24 24 

(l) 

24 $ 23 

67 $ (225) 

37 80 
370 

104 $ 225 

525 $ 535 

(14) $ (50) 

613 (6) 
26 94 

19 80 
(332) (423) 

312 $ (305) 

(l) Includes moatgage loans held by mortgllge loan securiti~.alion VIEs consolidated upon the adoption of /\SC RIO, Conso/idalion (Sl'/\S 167), on January I, 2010. 
(2) Includes gains (losses) associated with interest rate lock-commitments for those loans that have been originated a11d elected under the fair value option. 

171 



Own Debt Valuation Adjustment~ (DVA) 
Own debt valuation adjustments arc recognized on Citi's 
liabilities for which the fair value option has been elected 
using Cili's credit spreads observed in the bond market. 
\mong other variables, the fair value ol' liabilities for which 
the fair value option has been elected (other than non-recourse 
and similar liabilities) is impacted by the narrowing or 
widening of the Company's credit spreads. 

The estimated change in the fair value or these liabilities 
due to such changes in the Company's own credit spread (or 
instrument-specific credit risk) was a loss of $95 million and a 
gain of $307 million for the three months ended March 31, 
2017 and 2016, respectively. Changes in fair value resulting 
from changes in instrument-specific credit risk were estimated 
by incorporating the Company's current credit spreads 
observable in the bond market into the relevant valuation 
technique used to value each liability as described above. 
Effective January I, 2016, changes in fair value of fair value 
option liabilities related to changes in Citigroup's own credit 
spreads (DVA) are reflected as a component of AOC[; 
previously these amounts were recognized in Citigroup's 
Revenues and Net income along with all other changes in fair 
value. See Note l to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
additional information. 

The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities 

Selected Portfolios of Securities PurclUL'led Under 
4greement.'I to Resell, Securities Borrowed, Securities Sol<I 
Jntler Agreement.'/ to Repurdutse, Securities Loaned anti 
Certt1in No11-Collatera/ized Short-Term Borrowings 
The Company elected the fair value option for certain 
portfolios of fixed-income securities purchased under 
agreements to resell and fixed-income securities sold under 
agreements to repurchase, securities borrowed, securities 
loaned, and ce1tain non-collateralized short-term borrowings 
held primarily by broker-dealer entities in the United States, 
United Kingdom and Japan. In each case, the election was 
made because the related interest-rate risk is managed on a 
portfolio basis, primarily wilh offsetting derivative 
instruments that ai·e accounted for at fair value through 
earnings. 

Changes in fair value for transactions in these po1tfolios 
arc recorded in Principal transactions. The related interest 
revenue and interest expense arc measured based on the 
contractual rates specified in the transactions and are reported 
as interest revenue and expense in the Consolidated Statement 
of[ncomc. 

Certain Lo,m.<1 am/ Other Credit Products 
Citigroup has also elected the fair value option for ce1tain 
other originated and purchased loans, including certain 
unfunded loan products, such as guarantees and letters of 
credit, executed by Citigroup's lending and trading businesses. 
None of these credit products are highly leveraged financing 
commitments. Significant groups of transactions include loans 
and unfunded loan products that are expected to be either sold 
or securitized in the near te1m, or transactions where the 
economic risks are hedged with derivative instruments, such 
as purchased credit default swaps or total return swaps where 
the Company pays the total return on the underlying loans to a 
third paity. Citigroup has elected the fair value option to 
mitigate accounting mismatches in cases where hedge 
accounting is complex and to achieve operational 
simplifications. Fair value was not elected for most lending 
transactions across the Company. 

The following table provides information about certain credit products carried at fair value: 

In millions qf dollars 

Carrying amount reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
Aggregate unpaid principal balance in excess of fair value 

Balance or non-accrual loans or loans more than 90 days past due 

March 3), 2017 

Trading assets Loans 

$ 9,126 $ 4,035 

532 

2 

December 3 1, 20 16 

Trading assets l.oa11s 

$ 9,824 $ 3,486 

758 18 

Aggregate unpaid principal balance in excess of fair value for non-accrual loans or 
Joans more than 90 days past clue 

ln addition to the amounts reported above, $1,263 million 
and $1,828 million of unfunded commitments related to 
certain credit products selected for fair value accounting were 
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Changes in the fair value of funded and unfunded credit 
products are classified in Principal transactions in the 
Company's Consolidated Statement of Income. Related 
interest revenue is measured based on the contractual interest 
rates and reported as Interest revenue on T!-ading account 
assets or loan interest depending on the balance sheet 
classifications of the credit products. The changes in fair value 
for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 due to 
instrument-specific credit risk totaled to gain of $26 million 
and $13 million, respectively. 

Certain Investments in Um1llocflted Precious Illetali, 
Citigroup invests in unallocated precious metals accounts 
(gold, silver, platinum and palladium) as part of its commodity 
and foreign currency trading activities or to economically 
hedge certain exposures from issuing structured liabilities. 
Under ASC 815, the investment is bifurcated into a debt host 
contract and a commodity forward derivative instrument. 
Citigroup elects the fair value option for the debt host contract, 
and rcpo11s the debt host contract within Trading account 
assets on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 
total carrying amount or debt host contracts across unallocated 
precious metals accounts was approximately $0.4 billion and 
$0.6 billion at March 31, 2017 and Decemher:11, 2016, 
respectively. The amounts are expected to fluctuate based on 
trading activity in future periods. 

As pa11 of its commodity and foreign currency trading 
activities, Citi trades unallocated precious metals investments 
and executes forward purchase and forward sale derivative 
contracts with trading counlerpa1ties. When Cili sells an 
unallocated precious metals investment, Citi's receivable from 
its depository bank is repaid and Citi derecognizcs its 
investment in the unallocated precious metal. The forward 
purchase or sale contract with the trading countcrparty 
indexed to unallocated precious metals is accounted for as a 
derivative, at fair value through earnings. As of March 31, 
2017, there were approximately $18.4 billion and $15.4 billion 
notional amounts of such forward purchase and forward sale 
derivative contracts outstanding, respectively. 

Certain lnves'tments in Private Equity amt Real Estate 
Ventures (lftt/ Certllin Equity Method and Other Investment'> 
Citigroup invests in private equity and real estate ventures for 
the purpose of earning investment returns and for capital 
appreciation. The Company has elected the fair value option 
for certain of these ventures, because such investments are 
considered similar to many private equity or hedge fund 
activities in Citi's investment companies, which are reported at 
fair value. The fair value option brings consistency in the 
accounting and evaluation of these investments. All 
investments (debt and equity) in such private equity and real 
estate entities arc accounted for at fair value. These 
investments arc classified as Investments on Citigroup's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Changes in the fair values of these investments are 
classified in Other revenue in the Company's Consolidated 
Statement oflncome. 

Citigroup also elects the fair value option for certain non­
marketable equity securities whose risk is managed with 
derivative instruments that are accounted for at fair value 
through earnings. These securities are classified as Trading 
account as.~ets on Citigroup's Consolidated Balance Sheet. 
Changes in the fair value of these securities and the related 
derivative instruments are recorded in Principal transactions. 

Certain Mortgage Loans /leltlfl>r Sale (HFS) 
Citigroup has elected the fair value option for certain 
purchased and originated prime fixed-rate and conforming 
adjustable-rate first mortgage loans HFS. These loans arc 
intended for sale or securitization and are hedged with 
derivative instruments. The Company has elected the fair 
value option lo mitigate accounting mis1.natches in cases 
where hedge accounting is complex and to achieve operational 
simplifications. 

The following table provides information about ce11ain mo11gage loans HFS carried at fair value: 

In millions ofdo/fars 

Carrying amount repo1tcd on the Consoli(lated Balance Sheet 
Aggregate fair value in excess of unpaid principal halan1.:e 

Bala111.:c of non-accrual loans or loans more than 90 days past due 

Aggregate unpaid prindpal balance in excess of fair value for non-accrual Joans or loans more than 90 days 
pi1st due 

The changes in the fair values of these m01tgage loans are 
reported in Other revenue in the Company's Consolidated 
Statement of Income. There was no net change in fair value 
during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 due 
to instrument-specific credit risk. Related interest income 
continues to be measured based on the contractual interest 
rates and reported as Interest revenue in the Consolidated 
Statement of Income. 
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March 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

$ 683 $ 915 

21 8 



Certain Structured Liabilities 
The Company has elected the fair value option for certain 
structured liabilities whose perfo1mancc is linked to structured 
interest ralcs, inflation, currency, equity, rclcrcnced credit or 
ommodily risks. The Company elected the fair value option 

because these exposures are considered to be trading-related 
positions and, therefore, are managed on a fair value basis. 
These positions will continue to be classified as debt, deposits 
or derivatives (Trading account liabilities) on the Company's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet according to their legal form. 

The following table provides information about the canying value of structured notes, disaggregated by type of embedded derivative 

instrument: 

In billions of dollars 

Interest rate linked 

Foreign exchange linked 

Equity linh:<l 

Commodity linked 

Credit linked 

Total 

Prior to 2016, the total change in the fair value of these 
structured liabilities was reported in Principal transactions in 
the Company's Consolidated Statement of Income. Beginning 
in the first quaiter of 2016, the portion of the changes in fair 
value attributable to changes in Citigroup's own credit spreads 
(OVA) are reflected as a component of AOCI while all other 
changes in fair value will continue to be reported in Principal 
ransactions. Changes in the fair value of these structured 

liabilities include accrued interest, which is also included in 
the change in fair value reported in Principal transactions. 

March 31, 2017 

$ 11.3 

0.2 

12.0 

0.8 

1.6 

December 31, 2016 

$ 10.6 

0.2 

12.3 

0.3 

0.9 

$ 25.9 $ 24.3 

Cert(lin No11~Structured Liabilities 
The Company has elected the fair value oplion for certain non­
structured liabilities with fixed and tloating interest rates. The 
Company has elected the fair value option where the interest­
rate risk of such liabilities may be economically hedged with 
derivative contracts or the proceeds ai·e used to purchase 
financial assets that will also be accounted for at fair value 
through earnings. The elections have been made to mitigate 
accounting mismatches and to achieve operational 
simplifications. These positions are repo11ed in Short-term 
borrowings and Long-term debt 011 the Company's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Prior to 2016, the total change in 
the fair value of these non-structured liabilities was reported in 
Principal transactions in the Company's Consolidated 
Statement of Income. Heginning in the first quatter of 2016, 
lhe portion of the changes in fair value attributable to changes 
in Citigroup's own credit spreads (DVA) are reflected as a 
component of AOCJ while all other changes in fair value will 
continue to be reported in Principal transacliuns. 

Interest expense on non-structured liabilities is measured 
based on the contractual interest rates and reported as Interest 
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

The following table provides information about long-term debt carried at fair value: 

In millions of dollars 

Carrying amount reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Aggregate unpaid principal balance in excess of (less than) fair value 

The following table provides information about shm1-term borrowings carried at fair value: 

In millions of dollars 

Carrying amount reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Aggregate unpaid principal balance in exl:e:;~ of(less than) fair value 
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$ 

March 31, 2017 

27,526 

(55) 

December 31, 2016 

$ 26,254 

(128) 

March 31, 2017 Del:ember 31, 2016 

$ 3,473 $ 2,700 

(9) (61) 



22. GUARANTEES AND COMMITMENTS 

Citi provides a variety of guarantees and indemnifications to 
its customers to enhance t11eir credit standing and enable 
them lo (.;Omplete a wide variety of business transactions. for 
certain contracts meeting the definition of a guarantee, the 
guarantor must recognize, at inception, a liability for the lair 
value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. 

[n addition, the guarantor must disclose the maximum 
potential amount of future payments that the guarantor could 
be required to make under the guarantee, if there were a total 
default by the guaranteed parties. The determination of the 
maximum potential future payments is based on the notional 
amount of the guarantees without consideration or possible 

In billions qf doflal's a, March 31, 2017 except carrying value in millions 

Finandal standby letters of credit 

Performance guarantees 

Derivative instruments considered to be guarantees 

Loans sold with recourse 

Securities lending indem11Hicalio11s<1
) 

Credit card merduuit proccssing(l)!Z) 

Credit cant arrangements with partners 

Custody indemnifications and other 

Totnl 

In billions 1!f dollars at Decembel' 3/, 20/6 exc:epl ca,.rying value in 
millions 

F-'inancial standby letters of credit 

Performance guarantees 

Derivative instruments considered to he guarantees 

Loans sold with recourse 

Securities lending indemnifications()) 

Credi! car<l merchant processi11g<11<2l 

Cre<lit card arrangements with partners 

Custody indemnifications and other 

Total 

recoveries under recourse provisions or from collateral held 
or pledged. t\s such, Citi believes such amounts hear no 
relationship to the anticipated losses, if any, on these 
guarantees. 

For additional infonnation regarding Citi's guarantees 
and indemnifications included in the tables below, as well as 
its other guarantees and indemnifications excluded from the 
tables below, see Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Citi's 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The following tables present information about Citi's 
guarantees at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016: 

Mnxim urn potential amount of future 
payments 

Expire within Expire after Total amount Carrying value 
1 ycor 1 ycai· outstanding (in millions of dollars) 

$ 28.1 $ 66.0 $ 94.1 $ 205 

7.6 3.7 11.3 20 

I0.7 78.1 88.8 690 
0.2 0.2 11 

97.1 97.J 

77.6 77.6 

0.2 1.3 1.5 206 

1.5 47.5 49.0 58 

$ 222.R $ 196.8 $ 419.6 $ 1,190 

Maximum potential amount of future 
payments 

Expire within Expire after Total amount Carrying value 
I year 1 year outstanding (in millions of dollars) 

$ 26.0 $ 67.1 $ 93.1 $ 141 
7.5 3.6 I I. I 19 

7.2 80.0 87.2 747 

0.2 0.2 12 

80.3 80.3 

86.4 R6.4 

1.5 1.5 206 

45.4 45.4 58 

$ 207.4 $ 197.8 $ 405.2 $ 1.183 

(I) The carrying values of securities leuding indcmnilications and credit card merchant processing were not matcl'ial for either period presented, a~ the probability 
of potential liabilities arising from these guarantees is minimal. 

(2) /\t March 31, 2017 ,md December 31, 2016, this maximum potential exposure was estimated to be $78 billion and $86 billion, respectively. However, Citi 
believes that the maximum ex11osurc is not representative of the actual potential loss exposure bused on its historical experience. This contingent liability is 
unlikely lo arise, 11s most products and services are delivered when purchased and amounts are refunded when items me returned to merchants. 
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Loans sold with recourse 
• ,oans sold with recourse represent Citi's obligations to 
. cimburse the buyers for loan losses under certain 
circumstances. Recourse refers lo the clause in a sales 
agreement under which a seller/lender will fully reimburse 
the buyer/investor for any losses resulting from the 
purchased loans. This may be accomplished by the seller 
taking back any loans that become delinquent. 

In addition to the amounts shown in the tables above, 
Citi has recorded a repurchase reserve for its potential 
repurchases or make-whole liability regarding residential 
mo1tgage representation and warranty claims related to its 
whole loan sales to the U.S. government-sponsored 
enterprises (GSEs) and, to a lesser extent, private investors. 
The repurchase reserve was approximately $104 million and 
$107 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
respectively, and these amounts are included in Other 
liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Credit cant <1l'rangeme11ts with p(lr/11ers 
Citi, in ce11ain of its credit card pattner arrangements, 
provides guarantees to the partner regarding the volume of 
certain customer originations during the term of the 
agreement. To the extent such origination targets are not met, 
the guarantees serve to compensate the pattner for certain 
payments that otherwise would have been generated in 
connection with such originations. 

Other guarantees amt imlemuificatiom 

Credit Card I'rotection Programs 
Citi, through its credit card businesses, provides various 
cardholder protection programs on several of its card 
products, including programs that provide insurance 
coverage for rental cars, coverage for certain losses 
associated with purchased products, price protection for 
cettain purchases and protection for lost luggage. These 
guarantees are not included in the table, since the total 
outstanding amount of the guarantees and Citi's maximum 
exposure to loss cannot be quantified. The protection is 
limited to ce11ain types or purchases and losses, and it is not 
possible to quantify the purchases that would qualily for 
these benefits at any given Lime. Citi assesses the probability 
and amount of its potential liability related to these programs 
based on the extent and nature of its historical loss 
experience. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the 
actual and estimated losses incurred and the canying value 
ofCiti's obligations related to these programs were 
immaterial. 

Value-Transfer Networks 
Citi is a member of, or shareholder in, hundreds of value 
transfer networks (VTNs) (payment, clearing and settlement 
,:;ystems as well as exchanges) around the world. As a 
condition or membership, many or these VTNs require that 
members stand ready to pay a pro rata share of the losses 
incurred by the organization due to another member's default 
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on its obligations. Citi's potential obligations may be limited 
to its membership interests in the VTNs, contributions to the 
VTN's funds, or, in limited cases, the obligation may be 
unlimited. The maximum exposure cannot be estimated as 
this would require an assessment of f"uture claims that have 
not yet occun·ed. Citi believes the risk of loss is remote 
given historical experience with the VTNs. Accordingly, 
Citi's paiticipation in VTNs is not repo11ed in the guarantees 
tables above, and there are 110 amounts renccted on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2017 or 
December 31, 2016 for potential obligations that could arise 
from Citi's involvement with VTN associations. 

l.ong-Term Care insurance Indemnification 
In connection with the 2005 sale or certain insurance and 
annuity subsidiaries to MetLife Jnc. (MetLife), the Company 
provided an indemnification for policyholder claims and 
other liabilities relating to a book of long-term care (LTC) 
business (for the entire term of the LTC policies) that is fully 
reinsured by subsidiaries of Genworth Financial [nc. 
(Genworth). In turn, Genworth has offsetting reinsurance 
agreements with MetLife and the Union Fidelity Lile 
[nsurance Company (UFLIC), a subsidiary of the General 
Electric Company. venworth has funded two trusts with 
securities whose fair value (approximately $7.1 billion at 
March 31, 2017, compared to $7.0 billion at December 31, 
2016) is designed to cover Genwo11h's statutory liabilities 
for the LTC policies. The trusts serve as collateral for 
Genworth's reinsurance obligations related to the MetLife 
LTC policies and MetLife Insurance Company USA is the 
sole beneficiary or the trusts. The assets in these trusts are 
evaluated and adjusted periodically to ensure that the fair 
value of the assets continues to cover the estimated statutoty 
liabilities related to the LTC policies, as those statutory 
liabilities change over time. 

lfUenworth fails to perform under the reinsurance 
agreement for any reason, including insolvency, and the 
assets in the two trusts arc insufficient or unavailable to 
MetLife, then Citi must reimburse MetLife for any losses 
actually incurred in connection with the LTC policies. Since 
both events would have to occur before Citi would become 
responsible for any payment Lo MetLife pursuant to its 
indemnification obligation, and the likelihood of such events 
occurring is currently not probable, there is no liability 
rellectcd in the Consolidated Ha lance Sheet as of March 31, 
2017 and December 31, 2016 related to this indemnification. 
Citi continues to closely monitor its potential exposure under 
this indemnification obligation. 

In the fourth quarter of 2016, MetLife announced it was 
pursuing spinning off the entity involved in the long-term 
care reinsurance obligations as patt of a broader separation 
of its retail and group/corporate insurance operations. 
Separately, Genwo11h announced that it had agreed to be 
purchased by China Occanwide Holdings Co., Ltd, su~ject to 
a series of conditions and regulatory approvals. Citi is 
monitoring these developments. 



Futures amt over-tlte-cou11ter llerivfltive.,· c/e(tring 
Citi provides clearing services on central clearing 
counterparties (CCP) for clients that need to clear exchange­
traded and over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives contracts 
with CCPs. Based on all relevant facts and circumstances, 
Citi has concluded that it acts as an agent for accounting 
purposes in its role as clearing member for these client 
transactions. As such, Citi does not reflect the underlying 
exchange-traded or OTC derivatives contracts in its 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Sec Note 19 for a 
discussion ofCiti's derivatives activities that are reflected in 
its Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As a clearing member, Citi collects and remits cash and 
securities collateral (margin) between its clients and the 
respective CCP. In cettain circumstances, Citi collects a 
higher amount of cash (or securities) from its clients than it 
needs to remil to the CCPs. This excess cash is then held at 
depository institutions such as banks or carry brokers. 

There arc two types of margin: initial margin and 
variation margin. Where Citi obtains benefits from or 
controls cash initial margin (e.g., retains an interest 
spread), cash initial margin collected from clients and 
remitted to the CCP, or depository institutions, is reflected 
within Brokerage payables (payables to customers) and 
Brokerage receivables (receivables from brokers, dealers and 
clearing organizations) or Cash and due from banks, 
respectively. 

llowevcr, for exchange-traded and OTC-cleared 
derivatives contracts where Citi does not obtain benefits 
from or control the client cash balances, the client cash 
initial margin collected from clients and remitted to the CCP 
or depository institutions is not rellected on Citi's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. These conditions are met when 
Citi has contractually agreed with the client that (i) Citi will 
pass through to the client all interest paid by the CCP or 
depository institutions on the cash initial margin; (ii) Citi 
will not utilize its right as a clearing member to transform 
cash margin into other assets; (iii) Citi does not guarantee 
,md is not liable to the client for the performance or the CCP 
or the depository institution and (iv) the client cash balances 
are legally isolated from Citi's bankruptcy estate. The total 
amount of cash initial margin collected and remitted in this 
manner was approximately $10.6 billion and $9.4 billion as 
of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. 

Variation margin due from clients to the respective CCP, 
or from the CCP to clients, reflects changes in the value of 
the client's derivative contracts for each trading <lay. As a 
clearing member, Citi is exposed to the risk or 
nonperformance by clients (e.g., failure or a client to post 
variation margin to the CCr for negative changes in the 
value of the client's derivative contracts). fn the event of 
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non-performance by a client, Citi would move to close out 
the client's positions. The CCP would typically utilize initial 
margin posted by the client and held by the CCP, with any 
remaining shortfalls required to he paid by Citi as clearing 
member. Citi generally holds incremental cash or securities 
margin posted by the client, which would typically be 
expected to he sufficient to mitigate Citi's credit risk in the 
event the client foils to perform. 

As required by ASC 860-30-25-5, securities collateral 
posted by clients is not recognized on Citi's Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. 

Carrying Vctlue-Guarantees and hidemn(ficatiom; 
At both March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the total 
carrying amounts oftJ1c liabilities related to the guarantees 
and indemnifications included in the tables above amounted 
to approximately $1.2 billion. The carrying value of 
financial and performance guarantees is included in Other 
liabilities. For loans sold with recourse, the carrying value of 
lhc liability is included in Other liabilities. 

Collttteml 
Cash collateral available to Citi to reimburse losses realized 
under these guarantees and indemnifications amounted to 
$55 billion and $45 billion at March 31, 2017 and 
Dccem ber 31, 2016, respectively. Securities and other 
marketable assets held as collateral amounted to $45 billion 
and $38 billion at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
respectively. The majority of collateral is held to reimburse 
losses realized under securities lending indemnifications. 
Additionally, letters or credit in favor of Citi held as 
collateral amounted to $6.0 billion and $5.4 billion at 
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. Other 
property may also be available to Citi to cover losses under 
certain guarantees and indemnifications; however, the value 
or such prope1fy has not been determined. 

Per/ ornumce risl, 
Presented in the tables below are the maximum potential 
amounts of future payments that are classified based upon 
internal and external credit ratings. The determination of the 
maximum potential future payments is based on the notional 
amount of the guarantees without consideration of possible 
recoveries under recourse provisions or from collateral held 
or pledged. As such, Citi believes such amounts bear no 
relationship to the anticipated losses, if any, on these 
guarantees. 



In billions qf dollars al March 3/, 20/7 

financial standby letters of credit 

Performance guarantees 

Derivative instruments deemed to be guarantees 

Loans sold with recourse 

Securities lending indemnifications 

Cl'edit card merchant processing 

Credit card arrangements with partners 

Custody indemnifications and other 

Total 

In billions ofdollars (1/ /)ec:emher 31, 2016 

financial standby letters of credit 

Performance guarantees 

Derivative instruments deemed to be guarantees 

I .oans sold with recourse 

Securities le11ding indemnifications 

Credit card merchant processing 

Credit card arrangements with partners 

Custody indemnifications and other 

Total 

Credit Commitments and Lines of Credit 
The table below summarizes Citigroup's credit commitments: 

In millions qf dollars 

Commercial an<l similar letters of credit 

One- to four-family residential mortgages 

Revolving open-end loans secured by one- to four-family residential 
properties 

Commercial real estate, construction and land development 

Credit card lines 

Commercial and other consumer loan commitments 

Other commitments and contingencies 

Total 

The majority of unused commitments are contingent upon 
customers maintaining specific credit standards. 
Commercial commitments generally have floating interest 
rates and lixed expiration dates and may require payment of 
fees. Such lees (net of ce11ain direct costs) are defe1Ted and, 
upon exercise of the commitment, amortized over the tile of 
the loan or, if exercise is deemed remote, amortized over the 
commitment period. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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Maximum potential amount of future 1>:lyments 

Non-
Investment investment Not 

grade grade rnted Total 

65.9 $ 14.8 $ 13.4 $ 94.l 

7.2 2.6 1.5 11.3 

88.8 88.8 

0.2 0.2 

97.1 97.1 

77.6 77.6 

1.5 1.5 

47.3 0.1 1.6 49.0 

120.4 $ 17.5 $ 281.7 $ 419.6 

Maximum potential amount or future payments 

Non-
Investment investment Not 

grade grade rated Total 

66.8 $ 13.4 $ 12.9 $ 93.1 

6.3 4.0 0.8 11.1 

87.2 87.2 

0.2 0.2 

80.3 80.3 

86.4 86.4 

1.5 1.5 

45.3 0.1 45.4 

I 18.4 $ 17.5 $ 269.3 $ 405.2 

Outside of March 31, December 31, 
U.S. U.S. 2017 2016 

$ 795 $ 4,790 $ 5,585 $ 5,736 

1,283 1,698 2,981 2,838 

11,900 1,542 13,442 13,405 

9,562 1,318 10,880 10,781 

576,402 97,286 673,688 664,335 

174,429 96,164 270,593 259,934 

3,723 9,290 13,013 11,267 

$ 778,094 $ 212,088 $ 990,182 $ 968,296 



23. CONTINGENCIES 

The following information supplements and amends, as 
applicable, the disclosures in Note 27 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements ofCitigroup's 2016 Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. For purposes of this Note, Citigroup, its affiliates 
and subsidiaries and current and former officers, directors and 
employees, are sometimes collectively referred to as Citigroup 
and Related Pa11ies. 

In accordance with ASC 450, Citigroup establishes 
accruals for contingencies, including the litigation and 
regulatory matters disclosed herein, when Citigroup believes it 
is probable that a loss has been incun-ed and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. Once established, accruals 
arc adjusted from time lo time, as appropriate, in light of 
additional information. The amount of loss ultimately 
incurred in relation to those matters may be substantially 
higher or lower than the amounts accrued for those matters. 

lf Citigroup has not accrued for a matter because the 
matter does not mee! the criteria for accrual (as set forth 
above), or Citigroup believes an exposure to loss exists in 
excess of the amount accrued for a pa11icular matter, in each 
case assuming a ma!crial loss is reasonably possible, Citigroup 
discloses the matter. In addition, for such matters, Citigroup 
discloses an estimate of the aggregate reasonably possible loss 
or range of loss in excess of the amounts accrued for those 
matters as to which an estimate can be made. At March 31, 
2017, Citigroup estimates that the reasonably possible 
unaccrued loss for these matters ranges up to approximately 
$2.0 billion in the aggregate. 

As available information changes, the matters for which 
Citigroup is able to estimate will change, and the estimates 
themselves will change. ln addition, while many estimates 
presented in financial statements and other financial 
disclosures involve significant judgment and may be suqject 10 
significant uncertainly, estimates oftJ1e range of reasonably 
possible loss arising from litigation and regulatory 
proceedings are subject to pru1icular uncertainties. For 
example, at the time of making an estima!e, Citigroup may 
have only preliminary, incomplete or inaccurate information 
about the facts underlying the claim; i1s assumptions about the 
future rulings of the cou,1 or other tribunal on significant 
issues, or the behavior and incentives or adverse pru1ies or 
regulators, may prove to be wrong; and the outcomes it is 
attempting to predict are often not amenable to the use or 
statistical or olher quantitative analytical tools. In addition, 
from time Lo lime an outcome may occur that Citigroup had 
not accounted for in its estimates because it had deemed such 
an outcome to be remote. For all these reasons, the amount of 
loss in excess of accruals ultimately incurred for the matters as 
to which an estimate has been made could be substantially 
higher or lower thru1 the range of loss included in the estimate. 

Subject to the foregoing, it is the opinion of Citigroup's 
management, based on current knowledge and after taking into 
account its current legal accruals, that the eventual outcome of 
all matters described in !his Note would not be likely to have a 
material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition 
ofCi!igroup. NonetJ1elcss., given the substantial or 
indctcrm in ate amounts sought in ce11ain of these matters and 
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the inherent unpredictability of such matters, an adverse 
outcome in ce11ain of these matters could, from lime to time, 
have a material adverse effect on Citigroup's consolidated 
results of operations or cash llows in pruticular quarterly or 
annual periods. 

For fu1ther information on ASC 450 and Citigroup's 
accoun!ing and disclosure framework for contingencies, 
including for litigation and regulatory matters disclosed 
herein, see Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial SLatcments 
ofCi1igroup's 2016 Annual Rcpo,1 on Form 10-K. 

Credit Crisis-Related Litigation and Other Matters 
Mortgage-Kelated Litigmion a11d Other Mmters 
Mortgage Backed Security Repurchase Claims: On March 29, 
2017, the parties filed a s!ipulation of discon!inuance with 
prejudice in U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
SOLELY IN ITS CAPACITY AS TRUSTEE FOR 
C[TIGROUP MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST 2007-AHL2 v. 
CfTIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS REALTY CORP. 
Additional information concerning this aclion is publicly 
available in court filings under the docket number 
653816/2013 (N.Y. Sup. Ct.)(Kornreich, J.). 

Mortgage Backed Securities Trustee Actions: 
On April 7, 2017, Cilibank submitted a motion for summary 
judgment as to all claims in FIXED INCOME SHARES: 
SERIES MET J\L. v. C[TIBANK N.A. Additional 
information concerning this action is publicly available in 
court filings under tJ1c docket number 14-cv-9373 (S.D.N.Y.) 
(Furman, J.). 

Foreign Exchange Matters 
Antitrust and Other litigation: On March 24, 2017, in NYPL 
v. JPMORGAN CHASE & CO., ET AL., the cow1 granted the 
motion to dismiss filed by Citigroup and Related Pat1ies along 
with other defendant banks. Plaintiffs may move for leave to 
file an amended complaint by May 5, 2017. Additional 
information concerning this action is publicly available in 
court filings under the docket numbers 15 Civ. 2290 (N.D. 
Cal.) (Chhabria, J.) and 15 Civ. 9300 (S.D.N.Y.) (Schofield, 
J.). 

On Januruy 9, 2017, in ALLEN V. BANK OF AMERICA 
CORrORATION, ET Al .. , the plaintiff~ appealed the 
dismissal of their claims. Additional information concerning 
this action is publicly available in court filings under the 
docket numbers 15 Civ. 4285 (S.D.N.Y.) (Schofield, J.); 
16-3327 (2d Cir.); and 16-3571 (2d Cir.). 

On February 27, 2017, in NEGRETE v. CITIBANK, 
N.A., the court granted Citibank's motion to dismiss in pat1 
without leave to amend, and denied plaintiffs' motion for 
partial summary judgment. On March 13, 2017, Ci!ibank filed 
an answer to plaintiffs' amended complaint. On March 21, 
2017, plaintiffs moved for entry of final judgment as to the 
dismissed claims and requested that litigation or the remaining 
claim be stayed pending an appeal. Additional information 
concerning this action is publicly available in com1 filings 
under the docket number 15 Civ. 7250 (S.D.N.Y.) (Sweet, J.). 

On .January 23, 2017, in BAKER ET AL. v. BANK OF 
AMERICA CORPORATION ET AL., Citigroup and Related 
Parties, along with otJ1er defendant banks, moved to dismiss 



the complaint. On March 24, 20 l 7, in lieu of responding to 
the motion, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint. Additional 
information concerning this action is publicly available in 
coui1 filings under the docket number 16 Civ. 7512 (S.D.N.Y) 
Schofield, J.). 

Interest Rate Swaps Matters 
Antitrust and Other Utigation: On January 20, 2017, 
defendants, including Citigroup, Citibank, CGMl and CGML, 
filed a joint motion to dismiss all claims in IN RE INTEREST 
RATE SWAPS ANTITRUST LITlGATJON. Additional 
information concerning action is publicly available in court 
filings under the docket number 16 MD 2704 (S.D.N.Y.) 
(Engelmayer, .l.}. 

Interchange Fee Litigation 
On March 27, 2017, the United States Supreme Cou11 entered 
an order denying class plaintiffs' petition for writ of ce11iorari. 
Additional information concerning this action is publicly 
available in court filings under the <locket numbers MDL 
05-1720 (E.D.N.Y.)(Brodie, J.); 12-4671 (2d Cir.); and 
16-710 (U.S. Sup. Ct.) . 

. Interbank Offered Rates-Related Litigation and Other 
Matters 

Antitrust and Other Litigation: On Februa1y 21, 2017, in 
SULLIVAN v. BARCLAYS PLC, ET AL., the court ruled on 
defendants' motion to dismiss, dismissing all claims against 
Citigroup and Citibank, with the exception of one claim under 
·he Sherman Act and two common law claims. On March 7, 
2017, defendants, including Citigroup and Citibank, filed a 
motion seeking clarification concerning the scope of the 
February 21, 2017 ruling, and, on April 18, 2017, the court 
granted defendants' motion. Additional information 
concerning this action is publicly available in court filings 
under the docket number 13 Civ. 2&11 (S.D.N.Y.) (Castel, J.). 

Oceanografia Fraud and Related Matters 
Other litigation: On February 27, 2017, a complaint was filed 
against Citigroup in the United States District Court for the 
Southern District of New York by Oceanografia SA de CV 
(OSA) and its controlling shareholder, Amado Yanez Osuna. 
The complaint alleges that plaintiffs were injured when 
Citigroup made certain public statements about receivable 
financings and other tinancing arrangements related to OSA . 
The complaint asse11s claims for malicious prosecution and 
tortious interference with existing and prospective business 
relationships. Additional information concerning this action is 
publicly available in court lilings under the docket number 
l:17-cv-01434 (S.D.N.Y.) (Sullivan, J.). 
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Sovereign Securities Matters 
Antitrust and Other Utigation: On April l l, 2017, plaintiff,; 
filed a consolidated amended complaint against various 
financial institutions and traders, including Citigroup and 
Related Parties, in the consolidated proceeding before the 
United States District Cow1 for the Southern District of New 
York, In Re SSA Bonds Antitrust Litigation. Based on 
allegations tJrnt defendants engaged in collusion in the 
supranational, sub-sovereign, and agency (SSA) bond market, 
plaintiffs assert claims under the antitrust laws and for unjust 
enrichment., and seek damages, including treble damages 
where authorized by statute, and restitution. Additional 
information relating to this action is publicly available in coui1 
filings under the docket number 16 Civ. 03711 (S.D.N.Y.) 
(Ramos, J.). 

Settlement Payments 
Payments required in settlement agreements described above 
have been made or are covered by existing litigation accruals. 



24. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Citigroup amended its Registration Statement on Form S-3 on 
file with the SEC (File No. 33-192302) to add its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. 
(CGMI-11), as a co-registrant. Any securities issued by CGMHJ 
under the Fom, S-3 will be fully and unconditionally 
guaranteed by Citigroup. 

The following are tJ1e Condensed Consolidating 
Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for tl1e 
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 20 l 6, Condensed 
Consolidating Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016 and Condensed Consolidating Statement 
of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 
2016 for Citigroup Inc., the parent holding company 
(Citigroup parent company), CGMHl, other Citigroup 
subsidiaries and eliminations and total consolidating 
adjustments. "Other Citigroup subsidiaries and eliminations" 
includes all other subsidiaries of Citigroup, intercompany 
eliminations and income (loss) from discontinued operations. 
"Consolidating adjustments" includes Citigroup parent 
company elimination of distributed and undistributed income 
or subsidiaries and investment in subsidiaries. 
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These Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements 
have been prepared and presented in accordance with SEC 
Regulation S-X Rule 3-10, "Financial Statements of 
Guarantors and Issuers of Guaranteed Securities Registered or 
Being Regislcred." 

These Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements 
schedules arc presented for purposes of additional analysis, 
but should be considered in relation to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Citigroup taken as a whole. 



Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 

Three months ended March 31, 2017 

Citigroup Other Citigroup 
parent subsidinries and Consolidating Citigl'oup 

In millions ofdo/lars company CGMHI elimi11;1tions adjustments consolidated 

Revenues ' ' 
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 3,750 $ $ $ ' (3,750) :$ 

Interest revenue l 1,027 ' 13,395 14,423 

Interest revenue---intercompany 793 157 (950) 

Interest expense 1,218 396 1,952 3,566 

Interest cxpense-intel'company 90 416 (516) 

Net interest revenue $ (514) $ 362 $ 11,009 $ $ 10,857 

Commissions and fees $ $ 1,255 $ 1,504 $ $ 2,759 

Commissions and fees-intcrcompany 2 (2) 

Principal transactions (163) 1,606 1,579 3,022 

Principal transactions-inlercompany 204 (682) 478 

Other income (39) 74 1,447 l,482 

Other income-intcrcompany (123) 34 89 

Total non-interest revenues $ (121) $ 2,289 $ 5,095 $ :$ 7,263 

Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 3,115 $ 2,651 $ 16,104 $ (3,750) ;$ 18,120 

Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims $ $ $ 1,662 $ :$ 1,662 

Operating expenses ' ' 
1,262 ' Compensation and benefits $ (14) $ $ 4,286 $ :$ 5,534 

Compensation and bcncfits-intercompa11y ' 31 (3l) ' 
Other operating 28 406 4,509 4,943 

Other operaling-intercompany (59) 468 (409) 

Total operating expenses $ (14) $ 2,136 $ 8,355 $ :$ 10,477 

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 587 (587) : 

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income 
taxes $ 3,716 $ 515 $ 6,087 $ (4,337) :$ 5,981 

: 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (374) 215 2,022 . 1,863 

' 
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 4,090 $ 300 $ 4,065 $ (4,337) :$ 4,118 

' Loss from discontinued operations, net of tnxes (18) -: (18) 

Net income (loss) before nttl'ibution of noncontrolling ' 
interests $ 4,090 $ 300 $ 4,047 $ (4,337) 1$ 4,100 

Nonconlrolli11g interests 10 ' lO 
' 

Net income (loss) $ 4,090 $ 300 $ 4,037 $ (4,337) :$ 4,090 

Compl'ehensive income ' ' ' Add: Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,464 (10) (3,721) 3,741 ' 1,464 
' 

Total Citigroup comprehensive income (loss) $ 5,554 $ 280 $ 316 $ (596) :$ 5,554 

Add: Other comprehensive i11come attributable to 
' noncontrolling interests 31 - ' 31 
' ' 

Add: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 10 ' 10 ' 
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 5,554 $ 280 $ 357 $ (596) :$ 5,595 
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Condensed Consolidating Statements oflncome and Comprehensive Income 

Three months ended March 31, 2016 

Citigroup Other Citigroup 
parent subsidiaries and Consolidating Citigroup 

ln millions of dollars company CGMIU eliminations adjustments consolidated 
Revenues . . 
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 2,800 $ $ $ (2,800) : $ 
Interest revenue 2 1,146 13,019 

I 

14,167 
Interest revcnue-intcrcompa11y 872 136 (1,008) 
Interest t:xpensc 1,070 364 1,506 2,940 
Interest expense-intercompany 41 429 (470) 
Net interest t·evcnue $ (237) $ 489 $ 10,975 $ :$ 11,227 
Commissions and fees $ $ 960 $ 1,503 $ :$ 2,463 
Commissions and fees -intcrcompa11y (2) (6) 8 

I 

Principal transactions (209) ( 137) 2,186 1,840 
Principal tnmsactions-intcrcompany 258 7'11! (1,006) 
Other income (3,094) 76 5,043 2,025 
Other income --intcrcompany 3,260 (140) (3,120) 
Total non-interest revenues $ 213 $ 1,501. $ 4,614 $ :$ 6,328 
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 2,776 $ l.990 $ 15,589 $ (2,800) : $ 17,555 
Provisions for credit losses and for benefits and claims $ $ $ 2,045 $ :$ 2,045 
Operating expenses . . 
Compensation and benefits $ 8 $ 1,289 $ 4,259 $ 

I 

:$ 5,556 
Compensation and bencfits-intercompany 3 (3) 

I 

Other operating 267 386 4,314 4,967 
Other operating-· intereompany 307 (308} 
Total operating expenses $ 279 $ 1,982 $ 8,262 $ :$ 10,523 
Equity in u11distributed income of subsidiaries 944 (944) : 

Income (loss) from continuing operntions before income . . 
taxes $ 3,441 $ 8 $ 5,282 $ (3,744) [$ 4,987 
Provision (benefit) for income tuxes (60) 37 1,502 1,479 
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3,501 $ (29) $ 3,780 $ (3,744) :$ \508 
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes (2) 

I 

(2) 

Net income (loss) before attl'ibution of noncontrolling 
interests $ 3,501 $ (29) $ 3,778 $ (3,744) i $ 3,506 
Noncontrolling interests 2 3 - . 5 . 
Net income (loss) $ 3,501 $ (31) $ 3,775 $ (3,744) :$ 3,501 
Comprehensive income 

Add: Other comprehensive income (loss) $ 2,733 $ 47 $ (534) $ 487 
I 

:$ 2,733 
Total Citigroup comprehensive income (loss) $ 6,234 $ 16 $ 3,241 $ (3,257) : $ 6,234 
Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to 
noneontrolling interests 27 - . 27 . 
Add: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 2 3 

. 
5 

Total com1>rchensive income (loss) $ 6,234 $ 18 $ 3,271 $ (3,257) : $ 6,266 
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet 

March 31, 2017 

Other 
Citigroup 

Citigroup subsidiaries 
parent and Consolidllting Citigroup 

In mi/lions of dollars company CGMHI eliminations adjustments consolidated 

Assets I 
I 

Cash and due from banks $ $ 480 $ 21,792 $ 
I 

:$ 22,172 

Ca~h and due from banks-intercompany 352 3,167 (3,519) 
I 

Federal funds sold and resale agreements 196,387 46,542 242,929 

Federal funds sold and resale agree1m:ots-intercompany 14,742 (14,742) 

Trading account assets l 128,414 I 16,488 244,903 

Trading account assets-intercompany 991 3,173 (4,164) 

Investments 43 217 345,573 345,833 

I ,oans, net of unearned income 1,269 627,326 628,595 

Loans, net of unearned incomc--intercompany 

Allowam.:e for loan losses (12,030) (12,030) 

Total loans, net $ $ 1,269 $ 615,296 $ :$ 616,565 

Advances to subsidiaries $ 143,808 $ $ (143,808) $ :$ 

Investments in subsidiaries 228,432 (228,432) : 

Other assets <1l 23,924 51,968 
I 

273,241 349,133 

Other assets-intereompany 8,229 58,770 (66,999) 

Total assets $ 405,780 $ 458,587 $ 1,185,700 $ (228,432) : $ 1,821,635 

Liabilities and equity ' 
Deposits 

I 

$ $ $ 949,990 $ •$ 949,990 

Deposits--intcrcompany 

federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold 128,196 20,034 148,230 

Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold-
intereompany 20,807 (20,807) 

Trading account liabilities 7 94,791 49,272 144,070 

Trading account liabilitics-intercompany 819 2,834 (3,653) 

Short-term horrowings 1,961 14,166 26,127 

Short-term borrowings---intcrcompany 65,562 (65,562) 

Long-term debt 141,626 15,017 51,887 208,530 

Long-term debt-inten.:ompany 28,781 (28,781) 

Advances from subsidiaries 26,357 (26,357) 

Other liabilities 3,346 66,324 45,865 115,535 

Other liahilities---intcreompany 5,493 1,263 (6,756) 

Stockholders' equity 228,132 33,051 196,402 (228,432) 229,153 

Total liabilities and equity $ 405,780 $ 458,587 $ 1,185,700 $ (228,432) $ 1,821,635 

(!) Other as.wrs for Citigroup parent company al March 31, 2017 included $18.2 billion of placements 10 Cilibank and its branches, of which $8.3 billion had a 
remaining term of less than 30 days. 
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2016 

Other 

Citigroup 
Citigroup 

subsidiaries 
parent and Consolidating Citigroup 

In millions qf dollars company CGMHI eliminations adjustments consolidated 
Assets 

Cash and due from ha11ks $ $ 870 $ 22,173 $ $ 23,043 
Cash and due from banks --intercompany 142 3,820 (3,962) 
Federal funds sold and resale agreements 196,236 40,577 236,813 
Federal funds sol<l and resale agreements-inkrcompany 12,270 (12,270) 
Trading account assets 6 121,484 122,435 243,925 
Trading account asscts-incercompany 1,173 907 (2,080) 
Investments 173 335 352,796 353,304 
I ,oans, net of unearned income 575 623,794 624,369 
Loans, net of unearned income- -intcrcompany 
Allowance for loan losses (12,060) (12,060) 
Total loans, net $ $ 575 $ 611,734 $ :$ 612,309 
Advances to subsidiaries $ 143,154 $ $ (143,154) $ !$ 
Investments i11 subsidiaries 226,279 

I 

(226,279) ! 
Other asse1~1'J 23,734 46,095 252,854 

I 

322,683 
Other assets-intercompany 27,845 38,207 (66,052) 
Total assets $ 422,506 $ 420,799 $ 1,175,051 $ (226,279) : $ 1,792,077 
Liabilities and equity I 

I 

Deposits $ $ $ 929,406 $ 
I 
:$ 929,406 

l)eposits-intcrcompany I 

rederal funds purchased um! securities loaned or sold 122,320 19,501 141,821 
federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold-
intercompany 25,417 (25,417) 
Trading; account liabilities 87,714 51,331 139,045 
Trading account liahilities-intcrcompany 1,006 868 (1,874) 
Short-term borrowings 1,356 29,345 30,701 
Short-term borrowings-intercompany 35,596 (35,596) 
Long-term debt 147,333 8,128 50,717 206,178 
Long-term debt-intercompany 41,287 (41,287) 
Advances from subsidiaries 41,258 (41,258) 
Othel' liabilities 3,466 57,430 57,887 118,783 
Other liabilitics-intcrcompany 4,323 7,894 (12,217) ' ' 
Stockholders' equity 225,120 32,789 194,513 

I 

(226,279) ! 226,143 
Total liabilities and equity $ 422,506 $ 420,799 $ 1,175,051 $ (226,279) ! $ 1,792,077 

(I) Other assets for Citigroup parent company at December 31, 2016 included $20.7 hill ion ofplacemt:nts to Citibank and its branches, of which $6.8 billion had u 
remaining term of lc.~s than 30 days. 
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows 

Three months ended March 31, 2017 

Other 
Citigroup 

Citigroup subsidiaries 
p11rent and Consolidating Citigroup 

In million.~ of dollars company CGMHI eliminations adjustments cons0Iid11ted 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of ' ' 
continuing operations $ 24,958 $ (3,405) $ (24,559) $ :$ (3,006) 

Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations 

Purchases of investments $ $ $ (41,584} $ $ (41,584) 

Proceeds from sales of investments 116 29,340 29,456 

Proceeds from maturities of investments 24,006 24,006 

Change in deposits with hanks 6,514 (26,836) (20,322) 

Change in loans (7,953) (7,953) 

Proceeds from sales and secul'itizations of loans 3,191 3,191 

Proceeds from significant disposals 2,732 2,732 

Change in federal funds sold and resales (2,623) (3,493) (6,116) 

Changes in investments and advanccs-intercompa11y (569) (5,007) 5,576 

Other investing activities (653) (653) 

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations $ (453) $ (1,116) $ (15,674) $ :$ (17,243) 

Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations ' ' 
Dividends paid 

I 

$ (744) $ $ $ •$ (744) 

Treasury stock acquired (1,858) (1,858) 

Proceeds (repayments) from issuance oflong-term <lebt, net (6,395) 5,175 938 (282) 

Proceeds (repayments) from issuance of long-tern, debt-
intercompany, net (12,506) 12,506 

Change in deposits 20,584 20,584 

Change in federal funds purchased and rcpos 1,266 5,143 6,409 

Change in short-term borrowings 605 (5,179) (4,574) 

Net change in short-term horrowings and other a<lvant.:es-
intercompany (14,901) 8,938 5,963 

Other financing activities (397) (397) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of ' . 
continuing operations $ (24,295) $ 3,478 $ 39,955 $ :$ 19,138 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and due from banks $ $ $ 340 $ :$ 340 

Change in cash and due from banks $ 2IO $ (1,043} $ 62 $ :$ (771) 

Cash and due from banks 11t beginning of period 142 
I 

4,690 18,211 ' 23,043 
' 

Cash and due from banks at end of period $ 352 $ 3,647 $ 18,273 $ •$ 22,272 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information for 
continuing operations 

Cash paid (refund) during the year for income taxes $ (139) $ 64 $ 988 $ $ 913 

Cash paid during tl1c year for interest 1,153 822 1,275 3,250 

Non-cash investing activities 

Transfers to loans HFS from loans 2,800 2,800 

Transfers to OREO and other repossessed assets 30 30 
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows 

Three months ended March 31, 2016 

Other 

Citigroup 
Citigrou11 

subsidiaries 
pllrent and Consolidating Citigroup 

In millions qf dollars company CGMHI eliminations adjustments consolidated 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of I 

continuing operations $ 5,194 $ (2,833) $ (2,899) $ :$ (538) 

Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations . 
I 

Purchases of investments $ $ $ (59,715) $ 
I 

:$ (59,715) 
Proceeds from sales of investments 39,268 

I 
I 39,268 

Proceeds from maturities of investments 26 16,518 16,544 
Change in deposits with banks (7,380) (16,472) (23,852) 
Change in loans (5,057) (5,057) 

Proceeds from sales and securitizations of loans 1,247 1,247 

Proceeds from significant disposals 265 265 
Change in tcdcral funds sold and resales (1,127) (4,291) (5,418) 
Changes in investments and advances intcrcompany (12,271) (6,052) 18,323 

Other investing activities (472) (472) 

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations $ (12,245) $ ( 14,55?) $ (10,386) $ :$ (37,190) 
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations I 

I 
I 

Dividends paid $ (359) $ $ $ : $ (359) 
I 

Issuance of preferred stock 1,004 1,004 
Treasury stock acquired (1,312) (1,312) 
P,·oceeds (repayments) from issuance of long-term debt, net 2,448 1,527 (1,352) 2,623 

Proceeds (repayments) from issuance of long-tenn debt· 
intercompany, net (2,692) 2,692 
Change in deposits 26,704 26,704 
Change in federal funds purd1ased and repos 12,077 (1,365) 10,712 
Change in short-term horrowings (109) 342 (419) (186) 

Net change in sho1t-tcrm borrowings and other advances-
intercompany 5,926 3,711 (9,637) 

Capital contributions from parent 2,500 (2,500) 

Other financing activities (308) (308) 
Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing i 

operntions $ 7,290 $ 17,465 $ 14,12.3 $ :$ 38,878 
Etkct of exchange rate changes on cash and due from ha11ks $ $ $ 190 $ :$ 190 
Change in cash and due from banks $ 239 $ 73 $ 1,028 $ :$ 1,340 
Cash imd due from hanks at beginning of period 124 1,995 18,781 20,900 
Cash and due from banks at end of period $ 363 $ 2,068 $ 19,809 $ :$ 22,240 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information for 
continuing operations 

' 
Cash paid (refund) during the year for income taxes $ (231) $ 20 $ 899 $ :$ 688 
Cash paid during the year for interest 1,036 637 1,021 

I 
2,694 

Non-cash investing activities 

Decrease in goodwill asso1.:iated with significant disposals 
reclassified to HFS (30) (30) 
Transfers to loans I lrS from loans 3,200 3,200 
Transfers to OREO and other repossessed assets 56 56 
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UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES, PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITJF.S ANO DIVIDENDS 

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities 
None. 

Equity Security Repurchases 
The following table summarizes Citi's equity security repurchases, which consisted entirely of common stock repurchases. 

In millions, except per share amounts 

January 2017 

Open market repurchases<1> 

Employee lransactionsC2l 

February 2017 

Open market repurchascs<11 

Employee tra11sactions<2> 

March 2017 

Open market rcpurchascs(ll 

Employee transactionsl21 

Total for 1Q17 and remaining program balance as of March 31, 2017 

Total shares 
purchased 

Average 
price paid 
per share 

App1·oximate dollar 
value of shares that 

may yet be purchased 
under the plan 01· 

prngrams 

10.4 $ 57.68 $ 2,969 

NIA 

9.2 

10.7 

30.3 $ 

58.54 

60.15 

58.82 $ 

2,431 

NIA 

1,785 

NIA 

1,785 

(I) Represents repurchases under the $10.4 billion 2016 common stock rcpurch~sc rrogram (2016 Repurchase Program) lhal was approved by Citigroup's Board 
or Directors a,,d annoltnccd on .lune 29, 2016. The 2016 Repurchase Program includes the additional $1 .75 billion increase ill the program that was apr,roved 
by Citigroup's Roard of Directors and announced on November 21, 2016. The 2016 Repurchase Progrnm was pmt of the planned capital actions included by 
Cili in its 2016 Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (CCAR). Shares repurchased under the 2016 Repurchase Progrnm were added to treasury stock. 

(2) Consistt<l or shares added to trca~ury stock related to (i) certain activity on employee stock option r,rogram exercises where lhe employee delivers existing 
shares lo cover the option exercise, or (ii) under Citi's employee restricted or deterred stock programs where shares are withheld to salisly tax requirements. 

NIA Not applicable 

Dividends 
In addition to Board of Directors' approval, Cit i's ability to 
pay common stock dividends substantially depends on 
regulatory approval, including an annual regulatory review 
of the results of the CCAR process required by the Federal 
Reserve Board and the supervisory stress tests required 
under the D0dd-Fra11k Act. For additional information 
regarding Citi's capital planning and stress testing, sec 
"Capital Resources-Current Regulatmy Capital Standards 
-Capital Planning and Stress Testing" and "Risk Factors­
Strategic Risks" in Citi's 2016 Annual Repott on Form 10-K. 
Any dividend on Citi's outstanding common stock would 
also need to be made in compliance with Citi's obligations to 
its outstanding preferred stock. 

for information on the ability ofCitigroup's subsidiary 
depository institutions to pay dividends, see Note 18 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements in Cit i's 2016 Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on t11e 1st day of May, 2017. 

CITIGROUP INC. 
(Registrant) 

By /s/ John C. Gerspach 
John C. Gerspach 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

Ily Is/ Jeffrey R. Walsh 
Jeffrey R. Walsh 
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 
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EXIIlBIT INDEX 

1Exhibit 
Number Description of Exhibit 

Restated Certificate of I ncorporalion or the Comganv, as in effect on the date hereof, incorporated bx reference 
to Exhibit 3.0 I to the Company's Quarterlx Re~ort on Form I 0-Q For the guarter ended Marcil 31, 20 16 (File 

3.01 No. 1-9924): 

JO.Ol 1 * Form or Cit igroug Inc. Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (for awards granted on Februarx 16.2017 
and in future :tears}. 

10.02+* 
The Amended and Restated 2011 Citigroup Execulive Performance Plan (as amended and restated as of 
Januar~ I. 20 16. and as further amended on Februrny 16.20 17). 

12.01+ Calculation of Ratio of Income lo fixed Charges. 

12.02+ Calculation of Ratio or Income LO Fixed Charges Including Preforred Stock Dividends. 

31.01 + Certification ofgrinciga l executive officer 12ursua11l to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Ox le~ 8Cl of 2002. 

31.02-1 Ce11ification orgrinciQal financial officer 12ursuruH 10 Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act of?002. 

Ccrtilication gursuant to 18 U .S.C. Section 1350, as aclQgted gursunnt to Scclion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxle~ 
32.01+ Act of 2002. 

Financial statements frnm lhe Q·uarterl~ Regort on Form I 0-Q or the Com pan~ for lhe guarter ended March 
3 1, 201 7. filed on Mai I, 20 17. formatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statement or lnc0me, (i i} lhe 

I 101.01+ 
Consolidated Balance Sh!.°<et, (iii} the Cm1solidated Statement of Changes in Equ it)'.. (iv} the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial StaLcments. 

The total amount of securities authorized pursuant to any instrument defining rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company does 
not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. The Company will furnish copies of any such 
instrument to the SEC upon request. 

I!< Denotes a management contract or compensalory plan or arrangement. 
+ Filed herewith. 
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